SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, May 15, 2013
Greenfield High School Library

225 S. El Camino Real
Greenfield, CA 93927

BOARD OF EDUCATION STUDENT BOARD MEMBER

Mike Foster — President Adam Mann, Greenfield HS

Raul Rodriguez - Clerk
Paulette Bumbalough — Member :
Debra McAlahney-Dodson - Member STATE ADMINISTRATOR

Bob White — Member Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.

OPEN SESSION: 6:00 PM

A.

B.

CALL TO ORDER

PUBLIC COMMENT

The public may address the Board concerning items that are scheduled for discussion during
closed session by completing the Request to be Heard Form provided on the table at the
entrance lo the meeting room and submitting the card 1o the Executive Assistant prior 1o the
Board adjourning 1o closed session.

El publico puede dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacidn con respecto a asuntos que
estan enlistados para dialogar durante la sesicn a puertas cerrada completando asi la Jorma
que se le da a la comunidad para poder hablar durante la sesidn, esta forma se encuentra en
la entrada de la junia donde se lleva acabo la sesion y entregando esta tarjeta a la Secretaria
de el Superiniendente antes de que la Mesa Directiva de Educacion de por terminada la

Junta.

CLOSED SESSION: 6:05 PM

MO0

Public Employment

Employee Discipline/Dismissal Release
Negotiations with Employee Organizations
Threatened/Potential Litigation

Student Matters

e Recommendation to Expel Student #36:12/13

OPEN SESSION: 7:00 PM

A.

B.

CALL TO ORDER

FLAG SALUTE

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT: The public may address the Board regarding general school district
topics or a specific agenda item. The person wishing to speak must complete a Request 10 be
Heard Form prior to the meeting, indicating whether they wish to address a non-agenda item

or a specific item and present it to the Executive Assistant. This is an opportunity to address
the Board when that item is acted upon. Unless otherwise determined by the Board/State



Page 2
Agenda

May 15, 2013

=

Q@

—

Administrator, each person is limited to 3 (three) minutes. If a large number wish to speak
on a specific item, there is a limit of 20 minutes total input on an item.

El piblico puede dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacién con respecto a asuntos
generales o a asuntos especificados en la agenda. La persona que quiera hablar debe de
completer la forma que se le da a la comunidad pidiendo permiso antes de la junta,
indicando si se desea hacer algiin comentario sobre un tema de la agenda o algun otro
asunto y presentarlo a la Secretaria de el Superintendente. Esta es una oportunidad de
dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacion cuando un asunto se este llevando acabo. A
menos que se determine de otra manera por el Administrador de el Estado, cada persona
tiene un mdximo de 3 minutos para hablar. Se hay muchas personas que

quieran hablar sobre un asunto especifico entonces habrdun limite de 20 minutos en total
para cada asunto.

REPORT FROM STATE ADMINISTRATOR
STUDENT BOARD MEMBER REPORT
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Approval of Minutes: April 10, 2013 and April 24, 2013 (Pages 1-8)

2. Approval of Personnel Report Dated May 15, 2013 (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State
Administrator)

3. Approval of Designation for California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) League
Representative for the 2013-14 School Year (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator)
(Pages 9-11)

4. Approval of Resolution #25:12/13 Ordering Election Requesting County Elections to
Conduct the Election and Specification of the Election Order (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.,
State Administrator) (Pages 12-15)

5. Approval of Joint Powers Agreement with Mission Trails ROP (Daniel Moirao,

Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 16-27)

Approval of the CODESP JPA Agreement (Linda Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 28-38)

7. Approval of Duane Wolgamott’s Contract (Daniel Moirao Ed.D., State Administrator)
(Pages 39-42) :

8. Approval of the Contract with Christy White Associates Accountancy Corporation
(Linda Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 43-96)

o

CONSENT ITEMS REMOVED FOR COMMENT/QUESTIONS

INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Review of Williams Third Quarterly Report (John Sims, Director of MOTF) (Pages 97-
105)

2. Cash Flow Report from July 1, 2012 through April 30, 2013 (Linda Grundhoffer, CBO)
(Pages 106-108)

3. Revenue and Expenditure Report from July 1, 2012 through April 30, 2013 (Linda
Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 109-134)

4. School Enrollment, Attendance, and Referral Statistics (Pages 135-141)

5. California Healthy Kids Survey Form (Candy McCarthy) (Pages 142)



Pages 3
Agenda
May 15, 2013

6.

Board Policies (First Reading) (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages
143-203)

BP 6161.1 — Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials

AR 661.1 — Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials

BP 6161.11 — Supplementary Instructional Materials

AR 6173.1 — Education for Foster Youth

BP 6174 — Education for English Language Learners

AR 6174 — Education for English Language Learners

E 6174 — Education for English Language Learners

AR 6183 — Home and Hospital Instruction

BB 9322 — Agenda/Meeting Materials

BB 9323.2 — Actions By the Board

E 9323.2 — Actions By the Board

M. ACTION ITEMS

1.

2.

Approval from the Young Farmers for the Donation of $5,100 for the Greenfield

High School ASB FFA Club (Linda Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 204-205)

Approval of the 2012-13 Memorandum of Understanding Between SMCJUHSD and the
King City Joint Union High School District Teachers Association (Linda Grundhoffer,
CBO) (Pages 206-218)

. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding: Early Retirement Incentive — CTA (Daniel

Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 219-220)
Approval of Resolution #26:12/13 Designating Authorized Agent to Sign School Orders
(Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 221-222)

. Approval of Resolution #28:12/13 Designate Specified Position as Senior Management of

the Classified Service (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 223-224)
Board Policies (second reading) (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (pages 225-
304)

BP 3100 Business and Noninstructional Operations (revised)

BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5125 Student Records (revised)

BP 5136 Gangs (new)

AP 5136 Gangs (new)

AR 5141.3 Students Health Examinations (revised)

BP5144 Discipline (revised)

AR 5144 Discipline (revised)

BP 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)

AR 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)

BP 5145.6 Parental Notification (revised)

N. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/MEETING DATES
May 22, 2013 — Board Study Session — TBD
June 11, 2013 — Regular Board Meeting at King City
June 25, 2013 — Special Board Meeting

O. SIGNING OF PAPERS

Q. ADJOURNMENT (TO CLOSED SESSION) (if required)



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, May 15, 2013

Greenfield High School Library
225 S. El Camino Real
Greenfield, CA 93927

BOARD OF EDUCATION STUDENT BOARD MEMBER
Mike Foster — President Adam Mann, Greenfield HS
Raul Rodriguez - Clerk

Paulette Bumbalough — Member

Debra McAlahney-Dodson - Member STATE ADMINISTRATOR
Bob White — Member . Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.

OPEN SESSION: 6:00 PM
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. PUBLIC COMMENT :
The public may address the Board concerning items that are scheduled for discussion during
closed session by completing the Request to be Heard Form provided on the table at the
entrance to the meeting room and submitting the card to the Executive Assistant prior to the
Board adjourning to closed session.

El publico puede dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacidn con respecto a asuntos que
estan enlistados para dialogar durante la sesion a puertas cerrada completando asi la forma
que se le da a la comunidad para poder hablar durante la sesién, esta forma se encuentra en
la entrada de la junta donde se lleva acabo la sesidn y entregando esta tarjeta a la Secretaria
de el Superintendente antes de que la Mesa Directiva de Educacion de por terminada la
Jjunta.

CLOSED SESSION: 6:05 PM
A. Public Employment
B. Employee Discipline/Dismissal Release
C. Negotiations with Employee Organizations
D. Threatened/Potential Litigation
E. Student Matters
e Recommendation to Expel Student #36:12/13

OPEN SESSION: 7:00 PM
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. FLAG SALUTE

C. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

E. PUBLIC COMMENT: The public may address the Board regarding general school district
topics or a specific agenda item. The person wishing to speak must complete a Request to be
Heard Form prior to the meeting, indicating whether they wish to address a non-agenda item

or a specific item and present it to the Executive Assistant. This is an opportunity to address
the Board when that item is acted upon. Unless otherwise determined by the Board/State



Page 2
Agenda

May 15, 2013

=

Q@

H

Administrator, each person is limited to 3 (three) minutes. If a large number wish to speak
on a specific item, there is a limit of 20 minutes total input on an item.

El piiblico puede dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacién con respecto a asuntos
generales o a asuntos especificados en la agenda. La persona que quiera hablar debe de
completer la forma que se le da a la comunidad pidiendo permiso antes de la Junta,
indicando si se desea hacer algiin comentario sobre un tema de la agenda o algun otro
asunto y presentarlo a la Secretaria de el Superintendente. Esta es una oportunidad de
dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacién cuando un asunto se este llevando acabo. A
menos que se determine de otra manera por el Administrador de el Estado, cada persona
tiene un maximo de 3 minutos para hablar. Se hay muchas personas que

quieran hablar sobre un asunto especifico entonces habréun limite de 20 minutos en total
para cada asunto. V

REPORT FROM STATE ADMINISTRATOR
STUDENT BOARD MEMBER REPORT
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Approval of Minutes: April 10, 2013 and April 24, 2013 (Pages 1-8)

2. Approval of Personnel Report Dated May 15, 2013 (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State
Administrator)

3. Approval of Designation for California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) League
Representative for the 2013-14 School Year (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator)
(Pages 9-11)

4. Approval of Resolution #25:12/13 Ordering Election Requesting County Elections to
Conduct the Election and Specification of the Election Order (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.,
State Administrator) (Pages 12-15)

5. Approval of Joint Powers Agreement with Mission Trails ROP (Daniel Moirao,

Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 16-27)

6. Approval of the CODESP JPA Agreement (Linda Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 28-38)

7. Approval of Duane Wolgamott’s Contract (Daniel Moirao Ed.D., State Administrator)
(Pages 39-42)

8. Approval of the Contract with Christy White Associates Accountancy Corporation
(Linda Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 43-96)

CONSENT ITEMS REMOVED FOR COMMENT/QUESTIONS

INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Review of Williams Third Quarterly Report (John Sims, Director of MOTF) (Pages 97-
105)

2. Cash Flow Report from July 1, 2012 through April 30, 2013 (Linda Grundhoffer, CBO)
(Pages 106-108)

3. Revenue and Expenditure Report from July 1, 2012 through April 30, 2013 (Linda
Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 109-134)

4. School Enrollment, Attendance, and Referral Statistics (Pages 135-141)

5. California Healthy Kids Survey Form (Candy McCarthy) (Pages 142)



Pages 3
Agenda
May 15,2013

6.

Board Policies (First Reading) (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages
143-203)

BP 6161.1 — Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials

AR 661.1 — Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials

BP 6161.11 — Supplementary Instructional Materials

AR 6173.1 — Education for Foster Youth

BP 6174 — Education for English Language Learners

AR 6174 — Education for English Language Learners

E 6174 — Education for English Language Learners

AR 6183 — Home and Hospital Instruction

BB 9322 — Agenda/Meeting Materials

BB 9323.2 — Actions By the Board

E 9323.2 — Actions By the Board

M. ACTION ITEMS

1.

2.

Approval from the Young Farmers for the Donation of $5,100 for the Greenfield

High School ASB FFA Club (Linda Grundhoffer, CBO) (Pages 204-205)

Approval of the 2012-13 Memorandum of Understanding Between SMCJUHSD and the
King City Joint Union High School District Teachers Association (Linda Grundhoffer,
CBO) (Pages 206-218)

. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding: Early Retirement Incentive — CTA (Daniel

Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 219-220)
Approval of Resolution #26:12/13 Designating Authorized Agent to Sign School Orders
(Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 221-222)

. Approval of Resolution #28:12/13 Designate Specified Position as Senior Management of

the Classified Service (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (Pages 223-224)
Board Policies (second reading) (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator) (pages 225-
304)

BP 3100 Business and Noninstructional Operations (revised)

BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5125 Student Records (revised)

BP 5136 Gangs (new)

AP 5136 Gangs (new)

AR 5141.3 Students Health Examinations (revised)

BP5144 Discipline (revised)

AR 5144 Discipline (revised)

BP 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)

AR 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)

BP 5145.6 Parental Notification (revised)

N. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/MEETING DATES
May 22, 2013 — Board Study Session — TBD
June 11, 2013 — Regular Board Meeting at King City
June 25, 2013 - Special Board Meeting

O. SIGNING OF PAPERS

Q. ADJOURNMENT (TO CLOSED SESSION) (if required)



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, April 10, 2013

Minutes

BOARD OF EDUCATION STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS
Mike Foster — President - Present Sarah Rae Shepard, King City HS
Raul Rodriguez - Clerk - Present

Paulette Bumbalough —~ Member - Excused Absence

Debra McAlahney-Dodson — Member — Excused Absence STATE ADMINISTRATOR
Bob White — Member - Present Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.
OPEN SESSION:

Call to Order
Mike Foster called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public. The meeting was recessed to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:

. Public Employment

Employee Discipline/Dismissal Release
Negotiations with Employee Organizations
Threatened/Potential Litigation

Student Matters — Transfer/Discipline
Recommendation to Expel Student #24:12/13
Recommendation to Expe] Student #25:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #26:12/13

SESE- RS

OPEN SESSION:
Call to Order
Mike Foster called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.

Flag Salute
Mike Foster led in the flag salute.

Report of Closed session Action

Mike Foster said the Personnel Report was accepted. Mr. Foster also reported the board
approved the recommendation from the expulsion panel to suspend the expulsion for Student
#24:12/13 and to expel Student #25:12/13 for the remainder of this school year and the first
semester of the first semester of the 2013-14 school year.

Approval of Agenda
Dr. Moirao distributed a revision to Action Item #5, Resolution #23:12/13 Classified Layoff.

Dr. Moirao approved the agenda with the Resolution #23- 12/13 replacement.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public.

-1-



Page 2

Minutes
April 10, 2013

Report from State Administrator

The district has received preliminary reports on our graduation rates for the schools, county and
state. Initial reports show everyone is up and improving in the graduation rate and decreasing in
dropouts, but we are still far from our mark. Our district dropout rate is as follows: Greenfield
High school 3.1%; King City High School 1.9%; and Portola-Butler 16.9%. Our graduation rate
15 79.6% district wide, for the Hispanic or Latino students it is 78.7% and for the white not of
Hispanic origin it is 93.6%. These figures are up from last year, but we need to be in the 90%

plus range.

Dr. Moirao reminded the Board of the WASC visits at King City High School on Monday, April
22 and Greenfield High School on April 22 and 23.

Dr. Moirao said the Board may have heard the news about the drug sniffing dogs that were on the
Portola-Butler campus. One student was found to have drugs. This sweep also took place at
Greenfield High School and several students were identified. The district wants to make sure
students are aware the district does not tolerate drugs on campus.

Dr. Moirao extended his deepest sympathy to Board member Debra McAlahney-Dodson, whose
father passed away last week.

Raul Rodriguez inquired about the drop out and graduations rate for the district. What happens to
a student who leaves the area? Dr. Moirao said if students leaves us and does not go to another
school in the state it is considered a drop.

Raul Rodriguez inquired if we have the number of students who come in as freshman and then
how many of those students graduated from our district. He felt this would be valuable data.

Mike Foster said it is important, when students are freshman, to make sure they are on track to
graduate and continue to review the data on the students. It is important to keep the students on
track early. Currently the students who are not on track to graduate have been enrolled in the
district credit recovery program.

Student Board Member Report

Sarah Shepard said the current sports are track, baseball, softball, and swimming. There will be a
track meet at home tomorrow. The swim team had their meet yesterday. Baseball has an away
game on Friday. Softball will have a home game tomorrow.

A couple of weeks ago scholarship interviews were conducted, there will be more interviews
tomorrow night.

There will be an Academic Luncheon on May 3 for all students who have a 3.5 GPA.
STAR testing at KCHS will be next week.

The Prom will be held on April 27 at the Monterey Marriott.

Board Member Comments

Bob White said he attended the Arsenic and Lace Play at Greenfield High School. The students
did a great job.

Mr. White said, as a Rotary member, there were 6 students who applied for the Rotary
Scholarship, all 6 candidates interviewed we’’ 2'_' will be hard to decide who will be the recipient
of the scholarship. The Scholarship Banque:i o« WHS is scheduled for April 26 at 6:30 P.M.



Page 3
Minutes
April 10, 2013

Raul Rodriguez said last year Silviana Sanchez, from GHS, had record of 43 students accepted at
a UC college. Mr. Rodriguez said he would like to know how many students this year will be
attending a UC or CSU college by the end of the school year.

Mike Foster said he is working with CSBA on Beta classes for the Masters in Governance
training which is anticipated to be available in July. The two day training would be reduced to a
one day 5 hour session. Only 3 Board members have one session each to complete.

Mike Foster reminded Board members to visit classes and email the information to Shirley to be
recorded.

Mr. Foster said these are financially difficult times for the district. Teachers need to keep
students first; the Board is here to support the staff.

Employee Organizations
There were not any comments from the employee organizations.

CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Minutes: March 13, 2013 and March 27,2013
2. Approval of Personnel Report Dated April 10, 2013
3. Approval of Contract with Facility Inspection Services
4. Approval of MOU with MCOE for Transportation of Special Education Students from

Greenfield to the Soledad Transition Program

Approval of Contract with Axiom

Approval of Resolution #19:12/13 Education Protection Account

Approval of the Surplus of Property (Vehicles) :

Approval of the King City Young Farmers Donation of $7,600 to KCHS ASB FFA

Club

9. Approval of the Quarterly Williams Report

10. Approval of Truancy Abatement Program Memorandum of Understanding with the
District Attorney’s Office

% N o

Dr. Moirao approved the consent agenda.

Consent Items Removed for Comment Questions
There were not any items pulled for comments or questions.

PUBLIC HEARING
2013-14 Use of Categorical Flexibility Fund
Mike Foster opened the public hearing at 6:43 P.M. Dr. Moirao said 3 or 4 years ago the
state changed what was put into categorical funds.

Mike Foster asked, do we know how long this will continue. Linda Grundhoffer said it is
year by year. With the governor’s new funding model, this fund will be eliminated. Funds n
this category are used for such items as school safety and deferred maintenance.

‘The public hearing closed at 6:44 P.M.

INFORMATION ITEMS
Cash Flow Report from July 1, 2012 through March 31, 2013
Linda Grundhoffer said we will be receiving $2.1 million from Proposition 30, therefore we
will not have to borrow from the reserve. Next year it will be done differently. We will not
have to borrow from the loan at this tim: _ 3.




Pages 4
Minutes
April 10, 2013

Revenue and Expenditure Report from July 1, 2012 through March 31, 2013
Linda Grundhoffer said at this moment the ending balance looks preity much the same as it
has. We are getting ready for the P2 report, so adjustments may need to be done.

School Enrollment, Attendance, and Referral Statistics
Dr. Moirao said this is the new format which the Board requested which now has more

specific details.

Board Policies — First Readings

BP 3100 Business and Noninstructional Operations (revised)
BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5125 Student Records (revised)

BP 5136 Gangs (new)

AP 5136 Gangs (new)

AR 5141.3 Students Health Examinations (revised)

BP5144 Discipline (revised)

AR 5144 Discipline (revised)

BP 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)
AR 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)
BP 5145.6 Parental Notification (revised)

Raul Rodriguez said on page 141 it discusses if a student is removed from a classroom and
the student is suspended, he felt the parent should be contacted as soon as possible. He
inquired if the parent comes to the school office or if the discussion is handled over the
telephone. Dr. Moirao said it is required the parent comes to the school site.

Raul Rodriguez said it appears on page 147 there is a typo on number 1of that page.

Raul Rodriguez said on page 138, #17 it talks about suspensions will occur if it is a result of
hazing. He said there is not mention of a suspension if it occurs at an athletic event. Dr.
Moirao said he would check into it.

Dr. Moirao said Debra McAlahney-Dodson had some concerns, at the March board meetin g,
on BP and AR 5136 which addressed gangs. There have been 2 gang presentations to staff,
and staff should be comfortable in taking the appropriate action if necessary.

Mike Foster said he appreciated the notations of new or revised placed next to the policy
number.

Raul Rodriguez said on page 146, which addresses suspensions and explusions, #1 reference
other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about the proper
conduct. Dr. Moirao responded he has sent several expulsion recommendations back to the
sites because it appeared corrective measures had not taken place. We should be focusing on
any intervention.

ACTION ITEMS
Approval of 2013-2014 Academic School Calendar
Dr. Moirao said there are 2 calendars which have been tentatively approved by the
organizations. One is for teachers with shows the number of school days.

Dr. Moirao said the reason for the early ° 4‘_is to make sure the semester testing is done
before winter break.



Page 5
Minutes

April 10, 2013

Mike Foster inquired if any collaboration had taken place with the elementary district to try to
coordinate calendars. Dr. Moirao said they tried to do that for this school year but were not
successful. They will be having a conversation with the elementary district trying again for
the 2014-15 school year.

Dr. Moirao approved the school calendars.

Approval of Resolution #20:12/13 — Categorical Flexibility Funds

Linda Grundhoffer said as long as we continue to receive the funds we need to show where
the funds were used and where they will be proposed to be used for the next school year.
Some of the areas these funds are being used are for ROP, school safety and some of the
testing. The rest is used for general operational purposes.

Dr. Moirao approved Resolution #20:12/13.

Approval of Resolution #21:12/13 Proclaiming and Honoring California Day of the Teacher
May 8, 2013

Dr. Moirao said these resolutions are appropriate for our employees but unfortunately it
comes at a very stressful time for both the certificated and classified staff,

Dr. Moirao said last year pins were issued for years of service at a board meeting. He said
the Board had expresses an interest in presenting the pins to the appropriate staff at each site.

Dr. Moirao approved Resolution #21:12/13.

-Approval of Resolution #22:12/13 Proclaiming and Honoring Classified School Employee

Week May 19-25, 2013
Dr. Moirao said the district wants to acknowledge the classified school employees for the
dedication. He added again this recognition comes at a stressful time for staff.

Dr. Moirao approved Resolution #22:12/13

Approval of Resolution #23:12/13 Classified Employee Layoffs and #24:12/13 Classified
Confidential Management

Dr. Moirao said earlier in the meeting he said there was a revision to Resolution #23:12/13.
Both of these resolutions are being presented for financial reasons. The district is working

with CSEA.

Raul Rodriguez said this was similar to the certificated resolution.
Dr. Moirao approved Resolutions #23:12/13 and #24:12/1 3.

Board Policies (second reading)

BP 3260 Fees and Charges (revised)

AR3260 Fees and Charges (revised)

AR3543 Transportation Safety (revised)

BP4030 Nondiscrimination in Employment (revised)
AR4161.2 Personal Leave (revised)

AR4217.3 Layoff Rehire (revised)

BP5131.61 Drug Testing (new)




Page 6
Minutes

April 10, 2013

BP 5141.33 Head Lice (new)

BP 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency (new)

AR 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency Exam (new)
BP 6178 Career Technical Education (revised)

AR 6178 Career Technical Education (revised)

Dr. Moirao pointed out Debra McAlahney-Dodson questioned BP 5141.33 addressing head
lice and was concerned about student privacy. Dr. Moirao said he reviewed the policy and no
changes have been made because other policies approved by the Board addressed this issue.

Dr. Moirao approved the second reading of the board policies.

Future Agenda Items/Meeting Dates

April 24, 2013 — Board Study Session — TBD

May 15, 2013 — Regular Board Meeting at Greenfield
May 22, 2013 — Board Study Session TBD

June 11, 2013 - Regular Board Meeting at King City -

. Dr. Moirao said the Board Study Session on April 24 will be addressing Common Core.

Signing of Papers
Dr. Moirao signed appropriate papers.

Adjournment
Mike Foster adjourned the meeting at 7:03 P.M.

Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D. Date
State Administrator



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, April 24, 2013

Minutes

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Mike Foster — President - Present

Raul Rodriguez - Clerk - Present

Paulette Bumbalough — Member - Excused Absence
Debra McAlahney-Dodson — Member - Present
Bob White — Member — Excused Absence

OPEN SESSION:
Call to Order

Mike Foster called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

Public Comment

STATE ADMINISTRATOR
Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.

There were not any comments from the public. The Board recessed to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:

SESHOR-IS

Public Employment

Employee Discipline/Dismissal Release
Negotiations with Employee Organizations
Threatened/Potential Litigation

Student Matters — Transfer/Discipline
Recommendation to Expel Student #22:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #26:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #27:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #28:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #29:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #30:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #31:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #32:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #33:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #34:12/13
Recommendation to Expel Student #35:12/13

OPEN SESSION: 7:00 PM
Call to Order

Mike Foster called the meeting to order at 7:16 P.M.

Flag Salute
Mike Foster led in the flag salute.

Report of Closed Session Actions

Mike Foster reported the Board supported the recommendations of the stipulated agreement to
expel the following students through the remainder of the 2012-2013 school year and the first

semester of the 2013-2014 school year: Student #22:12/13, Student #26:12/13, Student

#30:12/13, Student #31:12/13, Student #32:12/13, Student #33:12/13, Student #34:12/13, and

Student #35:12/12.

Mike Foster also reported the Board supported the recommendations from the expulsion panel to

suspend the expulsion on the following stuc-7 - #27:12/13, #28:12/13, and #29:12/13.



Page 2
Minutes
April 24, 2013

Approval of Agenda
Dr. Moirao approved the agenda.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public.

Employee Organizations
There were not any comments from the employee organizations.

CONSENT AGENDA
Approval of Consulting Contract with Candy McCarthy
Dr. Moirao approved the consulting contract with Candy McCarthy.

Approval of Contract with FCMAT
Dr. Moirao approved the contract with FCMAT

INFORMATION
Board Study Session — Common Core Part 2
Megan Munoz gave a presentation to the State Administrator and Board members on the

Common Core Standards.

Adjournment
Mike Foster adjourned the meeting at 8:22 P.M.

Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator Date



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Approval of the Designation for California MEETING: May 15,2013
Interscholastic Federation (CIF) League
Representatives for the 2013-14 School Year

AGENDA SECTION: (J ACTION

O INFORMATION

X ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Each year individuals from the district are designated CIF Representatives. The Assistant Principals from the

comprehensive sites are being designated at the representatives.

Recommendation:; -
The recommendation is to approve the appointed district employees as the CIF Representatives.

Fiscal Impact:

None
Submitted By: _ Approved:
) ] >
;] - —~ .
¥ / / /,-‘ \,,«.Au ' ) . o i el oy :./'} e
/{ // i - P e 7 . s 7/ ((.: . ) > //,L YA v

AN e JTR Al L A PINL VDA o
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D? Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
State Administrator State Administrator



RBGERL BI.AKE EXEEUTWE ﬂIREﬁTllR

ﬁl? STATE ﬂFFIBE 4658 IIIIEKHBRN BRIVE SABRAHEHTU CA 95834 PH 915 238 4477 X916~ 239 4473 ‘#WWEIFSTME HRE

TO: SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PRINCIPAL OF PRIVATE SCHOOLS

FROM: ROGER L. BLAKE
RE: ENCLOSED FORM TO RECORD DISTRICT AND/OR SCHOOL REPRESENTATIVES TO LEAGUES
DATE: APRIL 15, 2013

Enclosed is a form upon which to record your district and/or school representatives to leagues for next year,
2013-2014. Itis a form sent every year to you in order to obtain the names of league representatives to
every league in the state and to make sure that the league representatives are designated by school district
or school governing boards. It is a legal requirement that league representatives be so designated.

The education code gives the authority for high school athletics to high school governing boards. The code
also requires that the boards, after joining CIF, designate their representatives to CIF leagues. This is a

necessity! (Ed. Code 33353 (a) (1))

We are asking that, after action by the governing board, you send the names of league representatives to
your CIF Section office. Obviously, the presumption behind this code section is that the representatives of
boards are the only people who will be voting on issues, at the league and section level, that impact athletics.

If a governing board does not take appropriate action to designate representatives or this information is not
given to Section offices within the required time frame, CIF is required to suspend voting privileges (CIF
Constitution, Article 2, Section 25, p.17) for the affected schools.

At the State Federated Council level we will be asking that Sections verify that their representatives are
designated in compliance with this Ed. Code section.

I hope this gives you a bit of background. Thank you for all you do to help support high school athletics. It is
a valuable program in all high schools and we appreciate the support you give to the program and to CIF.

Please return the enclosed form no later than July 2, 2013 directly to your CIF Section Office. Addresses of
each section are listed on the back of the form. Please contact us if we can give you further information.

_10_



2013-2014 Designation of CIF Representatives to League

Please complete the form below for each school under your jurisdiction and RETURN TO THE CIF SECTION
OFFICE (ADDRESSES ON REVERSE SIDE) no later than July 2, 2013.

South Monterey County Joint Union
High School District School District/Governing Board atits_ 5/15/2013 meeting,

{Name of school district/governing board) (Date)
appointed the following individual(s) to serve for the 2013-2014 school year as the school's league

representative:

PHOTOCOPY THIS FORM TO LIST ADDITIONAL SCHOOL REPRESENTATIVES

NAME OF SCHOOL King City High School

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE David Croy POSITION Assist. Principal
ADDRESS 720 an:—wﬂway ' CITY K4 ng Ci ty ZIP 9393
PHONE 831 .385~-5461 FAX 831-385-0901 E—MAlthrny(ak‘inghif-y k12 . ca.us

FdkA ok Rk ok kR Kok ok ok ok ko kokkok ook ok ok ok ok ok ok ok Kok sk ok oK ok R ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ki o ok ok ok K o ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok ok sk ok ok o e sk ok ok ok s ko ok ok ok

NAME OF SCHOOL Greenfield High School

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE Julio Sierra POSITION _Asst. Principal

ADDRESS 225 S. El Camino Real CTY Greenfield ZIP 93927

PHONE 831 .674-2751 FAX 831 .674-2646 E-MAIL jsierra@kingcityv.ki12.ca.us
ok ok ok sk ok ook o ok ok ok ok sk ok okok kb o ok ook sk sk ok sk ok okok 3 ok ok ok 3ok Sk ok ok o ok ok ok ok o o o ok ok 3 ok ok ok sk s ok ok ok o o o ok ok o 88 ok ok ok ok o o ok ok o ok ok ok ok ok ok

NAME OF SCHOOL

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE POSITION

ADDRESS CITy ZIP

PHONE FAX E-MAIL

*****************************************************************************************

NAME OF SCHOOL

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE POSITION
ADDRESS aTy ZIp
PHONE FAX E-MAIL

If the designated representative is not available for a given league meeting, an alternate designee of the
district governing board may be sent in his/her place. NOTE: League representatives from public schools and
private schools must be designated representatives of the school’s governing boards in order to be eligible to
serve on the section and state governance bodies.

Superintendent's or Principal’s Name Daniel Moirao Signature

Address 800 Broadway CityKing City Zip_93930

Phone ___831.385-0606 Fax 831-385-0695

PLEASE MAIL OR FAX THIS FORM DIRECTLY TO THE CIF SECTION OFFICE.
SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR CIF SECTION OFFICE ADDRESSES.

_11_



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL,

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Resolution # 25:12/13 Board Election - MEETING: May 15,2013
AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
UJ INFORMATION
J ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement throu gh STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

[

Summary:

Three of the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District members of the Board of Education
terms end at the end of the calendar year 2013. Those board members are Ms. Pauleite, Bumbalough, Ms.
Debra McAlhaney-Dodson, and Mr. Raul Rodriquez. It is the responsibility of the SMCIUHSD State
Administrator to advise the County Board of Elections the need to call for an election. This year’s election will
occur on November 5, 2013.

L

Recommendation:
It 1s recommended that the State Administrator approve Resolution #25:12/13 for calling for an election on

November 5, 2013 election.

Fiscal Impact:
This 1s the candidate’s responsibility.

Submitted By: Approved:
B ( ,} N f{: i \.‘QJ) - / ( ,;{i/ ? ) .
;. i LTI - " LB JE I _
£ TV s A\ FoEA N Ve /‘,.’r . (') [ ,’;_”/ A
;f/u{!’* A ‘f\-; 7 <~4/'/‘/ 2L Vi < e P £ o)
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D. “ Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
State Administrator State Administrator

_12_



Before the Board of Trustees of the
SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Resolution # 25:12/13

RESOLUTION ORDERING ELECTION, REQUESTING COUNTY ELECTIONS TO
CONDUCT THE ELECTION, REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THE ELECTION,
AND SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code Section 5322, whenever a school district election is
ordered, the governing board of the district or the board or officer authorized to make such
designations shall, concurrently with or after the order of election, but not less than 123 days
prior to the date set for the election in the case of an election for governing board members, or at
least 88 days prior to the date of the election in the case of an election on a measure, including a
bond measure, by resolution delivered to the county superintendent of schools and the officer
conducting the election specify the date of the election and the purpose of the election;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the governing body of any city or
district may by resolution request the Board of Supervisors of the county to permit the county
elections official to render specified services to the city or district relating to the conduct of an

election;

WHEREAS, the resolution of the governing body of the city or district shall specify the services
requested; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400, whenever two or more elections,
mcluding bond elections, of any legislative or congressional district, public district, city, county,
or other political subdivision are called to be held on the same day, in the same territory, or in
territory that is in part the same, they may be consolidated upon the order of the governing body
or bodies or officer or officers calling the elections; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10403, whenever an election called by a
district, city or other political subdivision for the submission of any question, proposition, or
office to be filled is to be consolidated with a statewide election, and the question, proposition, or
office to be filled is to appear upon the same ballot as that provided for the statewide election,
the district, city or other political subdivision shall, at least 88 days prior to the date of the
election, file with the board of supervisors, and a copy with the elections official, a resolution of
its governing board requesting the consolidation, and setting forth the exact form of any
question, proposition, or office to be voted upon at the election, as it is to appear on the ballot.
Upon such request, the Board of Supervisors may order the consolidation; and

WHEREAS, the resolution requesting the consolidation shall be adopted and filed at the same
time as the adoption of the ordinance, resolution, or order calling the election; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code Section 5342 and Elections Code Section 10400, such
election for school districts may be either completely or partially consolidated;

-13_



WHEREAS, various district, county and statewide and other political subdivision elections have
been or may be called to be held on November'8, 2011;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED THAT the Governing
Board/Board of Trustees of the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District hereby
orders an election to be called and consolidate with any and all elections also called to be held on
November 5, 2013 insofar as said elections are to be held in the same territory or in territory that
18 in part the same as the territory of the School District request to be the Board of Supervisors of
the County of Monterey to order such consolidation under Elections Code Section 10400; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that said School Board hereby requests the
Board of Supervisors to permit the Monterey County Elections Department to provide any and
all services necessary for conducting the election; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that pursuant to Education Code Section
5322, the authority for the specifications of the election order, the governing body of the King
City Joint Union High School District hereby orders an election to be held with the following

specifications;
The election shall be held on Tuesday, November 5, 2013;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Monterey County Elections
Department conduct the election for the following OFFICE/S on the November 5,2013;

District ~ Name Term Expires
South Monterey County Paulette Bumbalough 12/2013

Joint Union High School District

South Monterey County Debra McAlahney-Dodson 12/2013
Joint Union High School District

South Monterey County Raul Rodriguez 12/2013
Jomt Union High School District

No election will be held if there are an insufficient number of nominees.

The qualifications of a nominee of an elective officer of the school district are as follows (i.e. a
registered voter in the district, trustee area, etc.)

Registered voter in the district

The Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications shall be limited to 400 words and will be paid for

by the candidate. :
- 1 4 -



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Monterey County Elections
Department is required to:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Monterey County Elections
Department is ordered that in the event of a tie vote, the candidate will be selected by (Ed. Code

5016(b)):
By lot

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the South Monterey County Joint Union School District, County
of Monterey, State of California, this 15" day of May, 2013 by the following vote:

Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator

Attested:

_15_



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Approval of Joint Powers Agreement with Mission MEETING: May 15, 2013
Trails ROP

AGENDA SECTION: ' J ACTION
(J INFORMATION

x ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

X Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures
Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
- Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
As a member of the Mission Trails Regional Occupational Program consortium, we must annually sign our joint

powers agreement. This agreement outlines the consortium’s obligation to us and our obligation to them.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the State Administrator approve and sign the Joint Power’s Agreement with the Mission

Trails Regional Occupational Program consortium.

Fiscal Impact:
Our participation generates revenue to run ROP courses for students,

Submitted By: Approved:
1 VA a ,-..7/{0 .
iV e AL P
RV L~ (S A Edh N L L s s e
/"‘L/r:\—é'_{“,g_,»"/{_/(,/‘\{j l». \\’U (/ \ oA /,,L/ "/(_I.Lffjf_;‘_/‘;/'\‘ ’/F\J'/ ( (\.—E,-"'L./de"'%.
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D. Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
State Administrator State Administrator

_16-



AMENDED AND RESTATED
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT :
FOR THE MISSION TRAILS REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM

This is an amended and restated joint exercise of powers agreement (“"Agreement”) by and
between the CARMEL UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, GONZALES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT,
MONTEREY PENINSULA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, NORTH MONTEREY COUNTY UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT, SOLEDAD UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY
JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT (each, a “party” or “participating districts”) and SALINAS
UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT ("party” or “lead LEA") and collectively, the “"parties” or
"participating districts”). The effective date of this Agreement is July 1, 2013.

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered in a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement by
which they created and established the Mission Trails Regional Occupational Program to develop,

administer, and operate a regional occupational program ("ROP") throughout Monterey County; and

WHEREAS, the Parties now find it desirable io amend and restate that agreement to
provide further clarity and conformity with administration of this Agreement. :

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. ESTABLISHMENT. The parties to this Agreement have determined and declared that it is in
the best public interest that these parties cooperate in the establishment of a Regional
Occupational Program pursuant to Section 52300 through 52331 of the Education Code.

Section 52301 provides: "The county superintendent of schools of each county, with the
consent of the State Board of Education, may establish and maintain, or with one or more
counties may establish and maintain, at least one regional occupational center, or regional
occupational program, in the county to provide education and training in vocational courses.
The governing boards of any school district maintaining high schools in the county may, with
the consent of the State Board of Education and of the county superintendent of schools,
cooperate in the establishment and maintenance of a regional occupational center, or
regional occupational program, except that if such a school district also maintains five
hundred (500) or more schools its governing board may establish and maintain one or more
regional occupational center, or regional occupational program, without such restrictions. A
regional occupational center or regional occupational program may be established by two or
more school districts maintaining high schools through the use of the staff and facilities of a
community college or community colleges serving the same geographic area as the school
districts maintaining the high schools, with the consent of the State Board of Education and
the county superintendent of schools. The establishment and maintenance of a regional
occupational center, or occupational program, by two or more school districts may be
undertaken pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500 of Chapter 5 of Division 7
of Title 1 of the Government Code). If a school district or school districts establish and
maintain such a regional occupational center, or regional occupational program, pursuant to
this chapter, the county superintendent of schools may, with the consent of the State Board
of Education, establish and maintain a separate regional occupational center or centers, or
regional occupational program or programs.”

It is the purpose of the parties to this Aareement to provide education in occupational areas



and to enable a broader curriculum in said area while avoiding unnecessary duplication of
courses and expensive training equipment.

TERM: The term of this Agreement shall be on a fiscal year basis to be automatically
renewed from year to year subject to the provisions herein contained.

LOCATION:  Each participating district will choose the site or sites for all regional
occupational programs it will conduct.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT: It is hereby mutually agreed that each participating district has or
will make initial capital investments as necessary and desirable for all regional occupational
programs that they plan to operate.

ADMINISTRATION:

a.

It is agreed that there shall be an administrative body to be known as the ROP Board
(“Board”), which-will be the policymaking body and governing board of the JPA. The
Board shall consist of two representatives from each of the participating districts,
one of whom shall be a governing board member selected by and serving on the
governing board of such district, and one of whom shall be an officer or employee of
the participating district appointed by the superintendent of that participating district.
The Board shall select its own officers, except that the superintendent of the Salinas
Union High School District or designee shall serve as Chairperson of the Board. All
of the powers of the JPA, except as may be expressly delegated to others pursuant
to the provisions of applicable law, this Agreement or by direction of the Board, shall
be exercised by and through the Board. Members of the Board shall not receive
compensation for serving on the Board.

The Board may adopt bylaws for the conduct of meetings, the selection of a chair
and vice chair, and any other matters necessary to perform its duties pursuant to
this Agreement. The Board shall establish the time, place, and date of its regular
meetings. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, except that less than a quorum may adjourn meetings from time to time.

The Board shall appoint a chief executive officer of the JPA, to be known as the
Director. Said Director shall be accountable to the Board for the operation of the
programs that are a part of the regional occupational program. Serving at the will of
the Board and subject to its policies, rules, regulations and instructions, the Director
shall have the powers described in this Agreement and those delegated and
assigned by the Board, including without limitation:

(i) Toenforce all orders, rules and regulations adopted by the Board relating
to the regulation, operation or control of educational programs, funds, facilities, and
properties of the JPA.

(i) To act as the Secretary of the Board. The Board may, at any time,
appoint someone other than the Director as the Secretary of the Board in
accordance with applicable law.

Unless the Board directs otherwise, the JPA will be housed at offices made available
for that purpose by the Salinas Union High School District. It is agreed that the
participating districts shall share the administrative costs of the JPA. This would
include the Director's salary, the secretary's salary, and that portion of office, travel

and equipment expenses as W’":'l . fees for consultation including attorney and



auditing expenses furnished by Salinas Union High School District and directly
related to the overall administration of the JPA.

It is agreed that the Salinas Union High School District will pay 50% of these
administrative costs, and the remaining 50% will be prorated to the other
participating districts based on the actual ROP ADA reported on the annual ADA
summary, submitted the previous year of the Agreement. These administrative
costs are to be determined prior to the time that the annual budget is submitted to
the Board for final adoption, but with the provision that the affected salary
adjustments as made by the Salinas Union High School District for its officers and
employees providing services to the JPA will be a part of the accepted budget.

Payment of the JPA's budgeted administrative costs is authorized to be made by
transfers of funds to be processed through the Monterey County Office of Education.

C. The JPA shall have an administrative council that shall carry out the daily
operations of the ROP programs. Such council shall consist of the participating
district superintendent or his or her representative and the ROP Coordinator of each
of the participating districts. The Director shall meet with the council members
individually and as a group to carry out the daily operations of the ROP.

d. Meetings. The Board shall hold at least six (6) regular meetings each year.
The dates times and locations of regular meetings shall be set annually by resolution
of the Board. The Board may also hold special meetings. All meetings of the Board
shall be called, held and conducted in accordance with the terms and provisions of
Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 9 (Sections 54950 et seq.), of the California
Government Code, or as said chapter may be modified by subsequent legislation

Except as otherwise provided or permitted by law, all meetings of the Board shall be
open and public. The Board shall keep minutes of its meetings and transmit to the
Board minutes of the meetings.

The director shall convene meetings of participating districts business officials prior
to each regular Board meeting. The superintendent of each participating district
shall designate the business official to represent the participating district. The
purpose of the business officials meeting will be to review and set business-related
agenda items for the next regular Board meeting. Such agenda items would include
allocation reports, ADA reports, proposed contracts and agreement and any other
fiscally relevant items. Meetings of the business officials shall be open and public
unless otherwise provided. The director will provide a report of the each business
officials meeting to the Board at its next regular meeting.

The director shall convene at least six (6) meetings of the administrative council (as
described in section 5c). The purpose of the administrative council, whose
members will be known as District Coordinators, will be to provide for the daily
operations of the ROP.

e. Treasurer. There shall be a Treasurer of the JPA. Initially, the Treasurer of
the JPA shall be the Monterey County Treasurer. The Board may, at any time,
appoint someone other than the Monterey County Treasurer as the Treasurer of the
JPA in accordance with applicable law.

f. Controller. There shall be a Controller of the JPA. Initially, the Controller of

the JPA shall be the Manager r”* 1"é‘_“,al Services of the Salinas Union High School



District. The JPA may, at any time, appoint someone other than the Manager of
Fiscal Services of the Salinas Union High School District as the Controller of the JPA
in accordance with applicable law. The Controller shall draw warrants to pay
demands against the JPA when such demands have been approved by the Board or
by any other person authorized to so approve such by this Agreement or by
resolution of the Board. The Controller shall perform such duties as are set forth in
this Agreement and such other duties as are specified by the Board. There shali be
strict accountability of all funds and reporting of all receipts and disbursements. The
Controller shall establish and maintain such procedures, funds and accounts as
may be required by sound accounting practices. The books and records of the JPA
in the hands of the Controller shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by
representatives of the parties to this Agreement.

g. Unless the Board directs otherwise, the JPA's annual fiscal year shall be
from July 1 through the following June 30.

ADMISSION AND RETENTION: Any pupil eligible to attend a high school of any district party
hereto is eligible to attend the regional occupational programs, subject to the following:

a. General admission requirements as established by the administrative body in
concurrence with the participating districts.

b. Preference for entrance into regional occupational program classes will be
given to students from the operating districts.

C. Entrance into regional occupational programs for students from other than the
operating district shall be on a space available basis.

Retention of pupils in the regional occupational program shall be governed by the policies
established by the administrative body with the concurrence of the participating districts.

Mission Trails Regional Occupational Programs, the parties hereto or contracting agents,
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, handicap or age, in
employment, enrollment or attendance, in any of its educational programs and activities.
Provisions will be made to accommodate students of limited English proficiency or physical
handicap in all vocational programs.

CONTRACTING WITH OUTSIDE AGENCIES: Itis hereby agreed and stipulated by each
of the participating parties hereto that any of the participating districts may contract with a
community college, non-profit organization or private agency for facilities and/or instruction if
the needs of the students would best be served in this manner, and if it is in the best interest
of the ROP. Contracts affecting more than a single district shall be approved by the Board
before being approved by a participating district.

PRORATION OF COST:
a. Participating districts shall establish and submit a budget for each program
that is a part of the regional occupational program. This budget will be submitted to
the Director by June 1. The format for the budget will be uniform for all districts.

b. The district of attendance shall report and collect the ADA.

c. In the event that a student attends an ROP program in a participating district
("District of Attendance”) that is _"Q‘O*_He student's district of residence (“District of



Residence”), the District of Attendance shall pay the District of Residence $700
per-ADA for each such enrolled student. This money is for transportation,
counseling and administration of the students.

d. Each participating district shall maintain strict accountability of all funds and
shall provide the JPA with two reportsone in February and a final report as of June
30, and shall provide for the reporting alf receipts, ADA and disbursements.

9. GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT:

a. Establishment. A general fund reserve account shall be established by the
Board in the Monterey County Treasury. The fund shall be titled "Mission Trails
General Fund Reserve Account”. It shall serve as a depository for the excess JPA
funds carried by individual districts at the end of the fiscal year and payable to the
JPA

b. Revenues Excess funds deposited in the JPA's General Reserve Account
in accordance with (a.) above shall be transferred back in equal amounts (plus any
interest which may be earned on such amounts) by the Board to those districts
making deposits to the Reserve Account. Such transfer shall be made within 180
days of the commencement of the fiscal year.

10. AUDIT:

a.

JPA Audit - The JPA is responsible for compliance with the requirements of
Education Code Section 41023 (effective January 1, 1989). Education Code Section
41023 requires that all JPA's consisting solely of school districts are subject to the
same audit reporting requirements applicable to local educational agencies (primarily
Education Code Sections 14505 and 41020). The JPA shall fulfil these
requirements through the individual audits performed by each participating district as
described below.

District Audit - Each participating district will be responsible at its expense, for
compliance with requirements of Education Code Section 41020 for annual financial
audits and reports covering regional occupational programs conducted by the
district, in accordance with the standards set forth in the publication Standards and
Procedures for Audits of California Local Educational Agencies. The audit report may
be included in the regular annual financial audit of the district; however, the regional
occupational program operations must be listed as a separate account, including,
but not limited to, enumeration of all income and expenditures, ADA accounting, tax
levies and any exceptions, comments or recommendations in the summary of the
report. The positive statement (accountant's report) concerning the regional
occupational program may be part of the auditor's general positive statement. The
regional occupational program account should have a separate listing in the table of
contents for easy reference and audit review.

11. ADA, REVENUE AND ALLOCATIONS

a.

Initial Allocation of ROP Funds

The Director and Controller will issue an initial report showing anticipated state
revenue ("ADA revenue”) and anticipated allocation thereof for the upcoming fiscal
year to participating districts by April 15 of the preceding fiscal year. Initial revenue
limit projections will be based on each district's individual ADA cap. Initial allocations
enable participating districts t0_2'1_ and budget for their ROP classes. Each




participating district is responsible for monitoring its ROP ADA at P1, P2 and P3
relative to its ADA revenue cap to ensure that its funding is not reallocated due to

ADA performance under-cap.

Temporary Reallocation of ADA Revenue

At the end of each fiscal year, the Board will reallocate any unused ADA revenue for
the ending fiscal year. The Board may, in its discretion, select one of the following
options to temporarily reallocate unused ADA revenue amongst participating
districts:

b1. Base Revenue Limit per-ADA Calculation When Total Annual JPA ADA
Exceeds JPA Cap and All Districts Have Annual ADA That Meets or Exceeds
Cap: When the JPA's ADA at P-3 exceeds the established cap on the JPA's ADA
and each district in the JPA exceeds the individual cap on ADA for that fiscal year,
the base revenue limit amount will be calculated by adding the total state funded
revenue limit amount and the total local excess revenue divided by the JPA’s total
ADA revenue for the fiscal year.

Each district will be allocated excess funds based on its individual ADA multiplied by
the per-ADA base revenue limit. The per-ADA base revenue limit amount will be
determined by adding the total state approved base revenue limit and local excess
revenue and dividing by the JPA's ADA revenue cap. (See example in Appendix 1,
Table b1)

-22-



b2. Base Revenue Limit per-ADA Calculation When Total Annual JPA ADA
Exceeds JPA Cap but not All Districts Have Annual ADA That Meets or
Exceeds Cap: When the JPA's ADA at P-3 exceeds the established cap on the
JPA's ADA and one or more participating districts have not achieved their individual
caps on ADA for that fiscal year, and one or more participating districts have
exceeded their individual caps on ADA for that fiscal year, the base revenue limit
amount will be calculated by adding the total state funded revenue limit amount and
the total local excess revenue divided by the JPA’s total ADA cap.

In this scenario, the Board will temporarily reallocate unused revenue from districts
that have not achieved the cap on their ADA as follows. The JPA will total the ADA
revenue for all districts that have not achieved their individual ADA caps. With
respect to districts that have exceeded their individual ADA caps, the JPA will total
the aggregate excess ADA of all such districts, and determine what percentage of
the aggregate excess ADA each such district has generated. . The JPA will then
reallocate to each district that has exceeded its individual ADA cap a pro rata share
of the unused ADA revenue based on the percentage of excess ADA generated by
each such district. The JPA will also determine a temporary revised ADA cap for
each participating district by subtracting the unused ADA from districts below and
adding it to those districts above their individual caps. The revised caps will be
multiplied by the per-ADA based revenue limit amount. (See example in Appendix 1,
Table b2)

b3. Base Revenue Limit per-ADA Calculation When Total Annual JPA ADA is
below JPA Cap and some or all districts have Unused ADA: In any year when
the JPA’s total ADA at P-3 is below the JPA's ADA cap, the base revenue limit
per-ADA will be calculated by adding total State funding to local excess revenue and
dividing the sum by the JPA's total annual P-3 ADA. Since in this scenario there will
be no need for temporary reallocation, each district will be funded based on their P-3
ADA, following certification of the P-3 (Annual Report of Attendance). (See example
in Appendix 1, Table b3)

The reallocation of revenue is authorized to be made by a transfer made through the
Monterey County Office of Education.

Excess Funding '
In the event the state determines it has unused ADA at the state level and excess
funds are granted to the JPA, such funds will be allocated to districts that have
exceeded their individual ADA caps on a pro rata basis. If the excess funds are
based on an ADA factor that is different than the excess ADA reported by the JPA,
those districts with excess ADA will receive the excess funding based on a
percentage of the excess ADA times the total excess funding.

Permanent ADA Reallocation

When a participating district does not reach its ADA CAP in two consecutive years
(“Reallocation District”), the Board is authorized to reallocate in the third year a
portion of the Reallocation District's ADA CAP to the other participating districts that
are over their CAP's in the second year.

The amount to be reallocated will be calculated as follows: the JPA shall calculate
the difference between the Reallocation District's CAP ADA and actual ADA for each
of the two consecutive years for which the Reallocation District did not reach its CAP

ADA. The JPA shall then calculate 50% of the smallest of the two differences, and
-23- :



round that number down to the nearest whole number.

The reallocation to the participating districts that are over their CAPs will be made on
the basis of a ratio of the total of the ADA over the CAP for all the districts over their
CAP's in the prior year.

It is agreed that once a participating district is within ten (10) ADA of its CAP, there
will not be a permanent reallocation of the unused ADA.

Two consecutive years is defined as being under the CAP for two years in a row.
The cycle would then start over and repeat as long as a district is under its CAP.

The reallocation will be performed as soon as possible after the annual ADA is
compiled from the participating districts.

Reduction in Funding Allocation
The Board may apply a percentage decrease to all districts’ in the form of allocation
or ADA CAP in response to a State ROP funding decrease.

CalWORKS and ADA Funded Grants and Entitlements:

Monies received for such grants and entitlements are restricted to only those
districts who qualify for the grants and entittement. These would include grants and
entitlements which draw ADA from the same pool of ADA as MTROP. Since these
grants have an impact on the ADA/Cap calculation, the calculation for such grants
and entitlements will be calculated and distributed before the ROP base allocation is
calculated. Once the ADA for these grants have been determined and paid by the
grants/entitlement, the grant/entittement ADA will be deducted from the ROP ADA
base for each of those districts who received funding under this category. This will
eliminate the "double dipping” of districts so that ADA can only be counted once as
either a grant/entitlement recipient or as a base allocation recipient.

State Deferrals & Local Excess Revenue

When the initial budget for the ROP is projected for the budget year, state deferred
apportionment amounts and local excess revenue amounts will be included with the
budget information provided to participating districts. The amount of the deferral and
local excess revenue will be shown in separate columns so as to ensure that these
amounts are not included in initial allocations to districts. The actual transfer of the
deferred amounts will not take place until the full apportionment for the prior year is
received by all participating districts. - ‘

Year-end Closing

Participating districts will be required to submit P3 annual report of attendance by
July 15 of the following fiscal year. Year-end closing information will be provided to
participating districts as soon as the P-3 (Annual Report of Attendance) is received
by the JPA, but no later than August 1 of the following fiscal year. Adjustments
resulting from the July recertification for the prior year will be calculated and a fund
transfer will be done to post corresponding adjustments to participating districts.
The P3 annual report of attendance and allocations will be distributed and reviewed
by the Board at the first meeting of the following fiscal year.

Adjustments to ADA Reporting

Any changes in annual (P3) ADA reported by a district after August 1 of the following
fiscal year will be submitted to the JPA Board for review separately from the P3
report. Upon JPA approval of t-- 2"‘1‘_’\ changes, an adjustment will be made to the




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

member participating districts’ allocations in the following year. Increase or
decrease to the district’s allocation will be based on the prior year per-ADA revenue
limit allocation.

TRANSPORTATION: Each participating district is to provide transportation at its expense
for students transported to another participating district's program.

LIABILITY: It is hereby agreed and stipulated by each of the participating parties hereto, as
authorized by Section 895.6, Government Code, that each participating party shall assume
total liability for injury to its participating students due to any negligent or wrongful acts or
omissions occurring in the performance of this Agreement, without right of indemnification
or contribution from each of the other participating parties. In this connection it is further
stipulated, recognized and agreed that the County Superintendent of Schools is not a party
to this Agreement, but is a consenting agency required by Section 52301, Education Code.

MEDIATION: It is mutually agreed hereby that whenever an unresolved dispute arises as to
any matier concerning the operation or program of the regional occupational program, it
shall be submitted to the administrative council and participating district business officials
for discussion and a recommended decision to the Board. The Board shall adopt a final
decision regarding the dispute.

WITHDRAWAL: It is hereby agreed that withdrawal by any participating district shall be on
an orderly basis.

a. Preliminary Notice of Withdrawal

Any participating District considering withdrawal from this Agreement must provide a
Preliminary Written Notice to all Participating Districts, the Board, and Director no
later than May 31 effective June 30 of the following fiscal year. The Preliminary
Withdrawal Notice shall be in the form of a resolution adopted by the withdrawing
Participating District's governing board. The Preliminary Withdrawal Notice must
describe with particularity the withdrawing party's reasons for its intent to withdraw.
The Director shall submit the withdrawing party's reasons for withdrawal to the
mediation process outlined in Section 14 of this Agreement.

b. Actual Notice of Withdrawal

After exhausting the dispute resolution process provided in this Agreement, a
Participating District may withdraw from this Agreement by giving written notice to all
Participating Districts, the MTROP Board and Director no later than
December 31 of the fiscal year preceding withdrawal. The withdrawing Participating
District must notify all of the Participating Districts' governing boards, the MTROP
Board, and the Director, no later than December 31 of its intent to withdraw effective
June 30 of the current fiscal year. The written withdrawal notice shall be in the form
of a resolution adopted by the withdrawing Participating District's governing board. In
order to constitute adequate and sufficient actual notice of withdrawal under this
Agreement, the resolution shall affirmatively state that the withdrawing district shall
withdraw effective June 30 of the current fiscal year. A resolution stating that the
withdrawing district "may" withdraw shall not satisfy this section.

c. Land, improvements and equipment purchased for the occupational programs shall
be the property of and remain with the withdrawing district.

ADMISSION: A public school district not currently served by MTROP may apply for
admission to the JPA. The application to become a participating district would need to be
submitted in the form of a letter and s‘_"aﬂs““_' the number of students in grades 9-12, ROP



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

25.

10

courses to be offered and include a copy of a resolution to apply for admission to the JPA by
the applying district's Board of Trustees along with a copy of the district's Career Technical
Education Plan. The applying district also would need to provide a written plan on how it
would adhere to ROCP guidelines as set forth by the California Department of Education.
The completed application for admission to the JPA would be considered along with its
expected fiscal impact on the JPA and voted upon by the MTROP Board. The Board may
set specific terms or requirements for admission to the JPA. A 2/3 approval vote would be
required for approval.

ASSIGNMENT: Neither the JPA nor any participating district shall assign or subcontract any
of its obligations, rights, or duties under this Agreement without prior written consent of the
other parties. Any assignment or subcontract made without such prior written consent shall
be void.

NOTICES: Notices and other communications under this Agreement to the participating
districts shall be sufficient if delivered to the clerk of the governing board of each

participating district.

VENUE: Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this
Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the
County of Monterey.

COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of
which when signed, irrespective of the date signed and delivered, will be deemed to
constitute one instrument. Facsimile signature pages transmitted to other parties to this
Agreement shall be deemed equivalent to original signatures on counterparts.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including all attached Exhibits, if any, contains the
entire understanding between the parties concerning the matters described in this
Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior understandings, negotiations,
agreements, representations, correspondence and documents relating to the matters
contained in this Agreement.

SEVERABILITY: The ‘provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity or
unenforceability of any one provision in this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions.

INTERPRETATION: The participating districts acknowledge that this Agreement in its final
form is the result of the combined efforts of the participating districts and that, should any
provision of this Agreement be found to be ambiguous in any way, such ambiguity shall not
be resolved by construing this Agreement in favor of or against any participating district, but
rather by construing the terms in accordance with their generally accepted meaning.

WAIVER: The waiver of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition shall not be deemed
to be a waiver any subsequent breach of the same, or any other term, covenant, or
condition herein contained.

WARRANTY OF AUTHORITY.  Each of the persons signing this Agreement represents
and warrants that such person has been duly authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of
the party indicated, and each of the parties by signing this Agreement warrants and
represents that such party is legally authorized and entitled to enter into this Agreement.

AMENDMENTS: This Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of all districts
party hereto. ,

_26-



INWITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of July 1, 2013.

CARMEL UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
of Monterey County

By

SALINAS UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT of Monterey County

By

Superintendent

GONZALES UNIFIED SCHOOL
DISTRICT of Monterey County

By

Superintendent

MONTEREY PENINSULA UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT of Monterey County

By

Superintendent

NORTH MONTEREY COUNTY UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT of Monterey County

By

Superintendent

Superintendent

SOLEDAD UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
of Monterey County

By

Superintendent

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH
SCHOOL ' DISTRICT of Monterey County

By

State Administrator

MONTEREY COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT
OF SCHOOLS, as consenting agency only

By

Superintendent

-27 -



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: CODESP JPA Agreement MEETING: May 15, 2013

AGENDA SECTION: - J ACTION

(J INFORMATION

X ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

X Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

1

2]
=1
=
8
[

ry:

The district expects that all candidates for positions within the district will at least have the basic skills required
n the job description. This agreement with CODESP allows the district to access a myriad of test materials and
tests developed for such purposes. ‘

Recommendation:

Approve the JPA agreement with CODESP

Fiscal Impact:

$925 — unrestricted general funds

Submitted By: Approved:

. . i 2N -
~ ; }Z,Vf C i { ,{;- An NS / / (/ o L\" J\)} ’ ) Y AL
ndi s S UL A ) /{_(Tﬁ”ﬁ’ e A A
Lindg Grundhoffef, Interim CBO Ny Daniel R. Moirao, State Administrator

_28_



www.codesp.com
codesp@codesp.com

714-374-8644

_Public HR

SO0

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
MID-YEAR -

This agreement is entered into pursuant to the provisions of Title |, Division 7, Chapter 5,
Article | (Section 6500, et seq.) Of the California Government Code relating to the joint
exercise of powers, between the public educational agencies signatory hereto, for the
purpose of operating an agency to be known and designated as “Cooperative
Organization for the Development of Employee Selection Procedures.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, all California public agencies must be able to demonstrate that their employment selection
procedures do not discriminate on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry,
physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, sex, and age for individuals over 40 years of age;

and

WHEREAS, school districts, because of limited staff, cannot reasonably add extensive test validation
functions to employment selection procedures, without special assistance; and

WHEREAS, the parties signatory hereto have determined and hereby declare that it is in the public
interest that they join together in an organization for cooperatively developing selection procedures
which will comply with state and federal requirements; :

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and agreementis contained
herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. CREATION OF THE JOINT POWERS AGENCY

A joint powers agency separate and apart from the parties signatory hereto is hereby created
and shall be designated as the Cooperative Organization for the Development of Employee
Selection procedures (hereinafter “CODESP” or “Agency”).

2. PURPOSE

CODESP is established for the purpose of administering this Agreement and of engaging in
activities including but not limited to the following:

a. Providing a system of cooperative measuring devices relevant to common skills,
knowledges and abilities related to common jobs.

b. Establishing priorities to be given to development of written tests, interview
standards and other selection devices.

~-29- CODESP Mid Year Agreement



[¢2]

C. Developing and training representatives of member public agencies in the use of

such selection devices. _
d. Developing guidelines whereby individual public agencies can isolate elements of

particular jobs and determine which selection devices can appropriately be used.

POWERS

CODESP shall have the authority to exercise any power common to public agencies
which are signatory to this agreement, including but not limited to the following:

To make and enter contracts.

a.

b. To employee agents and employees.

C. To acquire, construct, manage, maintain or operate any building, works or
improvements.

d. To acquire, hold or dispose of property.

e. To incur debts, liabilities or obligations.

f. To sue and be sued in the name of CODESP.

TERM

This Agreement shall become effective when duly executed and shall continue in effect
until terminated as provided herein. In the event of a reorganization of one or more of
the public agencies participating in this Agreement, the successor in interest or
successors in interest to the obligations of any such reorganized agency shall be
substituted as a party or parties to this Agreement. Public agencies which become mid-
year members between December 30 and June 30 of the fiscal year shall commit to

membership for the succeeding full year.

MEMBERSHIP

In addition to the public agencies which are parties to this Agreement, other public
agencies may become parties hereto pursuant to the Policies and Procedures of

CODESP.

MEMBERSHIP FEES

Each party to this Agreement shall deposit a half year membership fee with CODESP
upon receipt of an invoice for the same and during the next fiscal year shall deposit an
annual membership fee with CODESP upon receipt of an invoice for the same.

TREASURER/AUDITOR

A director of CODESP shall be designated as the Treasurer/Auditor of CODESP. The
Treasurer/Auditor shall be the depositary and have custody of all the money of CODESP,
from whatever source. The Treasurer/Auditor shall:

a. Receive and receipt for all money of CODESP and deposit it in the County

School Service Fund to the credit of CODESP.
b. Be responsible for the safekeeping and disbursement of all money of

CODESP so held by the Treasurer/Auditor.
C: Pay, when due, out of money of CODESP so held by the Treasurer/Auditor,

all' sums payable by CODESP only upon warrants authorized by the

-30- CODESP Mid Year Agreement



8.

11.

Treasurer/Auditor and drawn by the Treasurer of Orange County, or the

Treasurer’'s authorized representative, :
d. Verify and report in writing on the first day of July, October, January, and
April of each year to CODESP and to the parties to this Agreement the amount of
money held for CODESP, the amount of receipts since the last report, and the

amount paid out since the last report.

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

a. Accountability

CODESP shall be strictly accountable for all funds. CODESP shall cause to
be kept proper accounts and records in which complete and detailed entries shalj
be made of all transactions including all receipts and disbursements. Such
accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with applicable law and
generally accepted accounting principles. Said accounts and records shall be
subject to inspection at any reasonable time by the representative of each of the
parties to this Agreement. CODESP shall cause to be prepared annual financial
statements which shall be provided to the representatives of each of the parties

to this Agreement.

b. Audit

The Treasurer/Auditor shall contract with a certified public accountant or
public accountant to make an annual audit of the accounts and records of
CODESP. The minimum requirements of the audit shall be those prescribed by
the State Controller for special districts under Section 26909 of the Government
Code and shall conform to generally accepted auditing standards. Reports of
such audits shall be filed as public records with each of the parties to this
Agreement and also with the auditor of the county in which each of the parties is
located. Such reports shall be filed within twelve (12) months of the end of the
fiscal year or years under examination. Any costs of the audit, inciuding
contracts with, or employment of, certified public accountants shaii be borne by
CODESP and shall be a charge against any unencumbered funds of CODESP

available for the purpose.

WITHDRAWAL

Any party may withdraw from this Agreement and from CODESP by giving written notice
of its intention to do so to the Board of Directors. Uniess otherwise specified therein,

withdrawal shall be effective upon the receipt of said notice.

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement may be terminated, except for purposes of winding up the affairs of
CODESP, effective at the end of any fiscal year by the affirmative action of a majority of
the public agencies then parties to the Agreement.

DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY AND FUNDS

-31- CODESP Mid Year Agreement



12.

13.

In the event of the dissolution of CODESP, the complete rescission, or other final
termination of this Agreement by all public agencies then parties hereto, any property
interest remaining in CODESP following a discharge of all obligations shall be returned
in proportion to the contributions made by the then parties to the Agreement. The
inclusion of additional parties to this Agreement or the withdrawal of some but not all
the parties to this Agreement shall not be deemed a dissolution of CODESP nor a

termination of this Agreement.

SEVERABILITY

Should any portion, term, condition or provision of the Agreement be decided by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of
California, or be otherwise rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the
remaining portions, terms, conditions and provisions shall not be affected thereby.

AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended by a simple majority vote of all parties to the
Agreement. Any such amendment shall be effective upon the date of execution thereof,

unless otherwise provided in the amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by
their authorized officers there unto duly authorized as set forth herein below:

. 50 Aol
Signed on the < | day of #HO/ { , 201_3, by
7

P o

ARV A N IR

Administrator

Shaars S 7 /o Feoo o/ / N S e S
AT Honte S Lpder /&‘7" St Upigrtd Crgic ekl
A Agerlcy A e
On the day of ,201__, by

Marianne Tonjes - Executive Director - CODESP

School and college districts which become Mid-Year members between December 30 and June 30 of
the fiscal year shall commit to membership for the succeeding full year.

-32- CODESP Mid Year Agreement



%y, PUDlC HR

CODESP SELECTION PROCEDURE SECURITY AGREEMENT

The parties to this agreement are the Cooperative Organization for the Development o loyee
Selection Procedures (CODESP) and the OG\M’\“? Mo Co. \ping (ﬁ/f” (o A STRACT
hereinafter known as the Agency. In order to protect the mutual interests of all CODESP

agencies, each Agency is required to execute this agreement and fulfill its terms.

Test materials obtained through CODESP will be used for the official purposes of the
Agency in festing candidates for placement at public agencies only. Under no
circumstances will materials so obtained, including tutorials, be posted on the Agency’s
website or other websites. Under no circumstances will test materials be stored in any
other agency’s or private computer systems for sale or disbursement to any other agency
or person that is not authorized to have access to such materials, nor will the Agency

knowingly permit others to do so.

a.

b. Test materials obtained through CODESP shall be reviewed by examiners, subject matter
experts, researchers, consultants or others working on the development of examinations.
Such persons are not authorized to make notes about, copy or retain any of the actual
materials. Any reviews of materials are to be conducted under the direct supervision and
responsibility of the Agency representative of CODESP, who shall be the primary signer of
this agreement. The final selection and use of test materials is the responsibility of the

Agency.

C. No official, staff members, consultant or other agent of the Agency may loan, give, sell, nor
otherwise make available any testing material obtained through CODESP to any other
agency or person that is not authorized to have access to such material, nor will they
knowingly permit others to do so. Under no circumstances will CODESP materials be

available for study, copying, photographing, reproduction or re-publication, in whole of in
part.

d. Test materials obtained through CODESP will be used and stored at the Agency in a
manner that will prevent unauthorized persons from having access to them. Tests will be
administered in proctored environments by an Agency employee to ensure that no test
materials are removed from the test site. All test proctors must be ‘employees of the
Agency and must sign the CODESP Selection Procedure Security Agreement.

e. If candidates are allowed consultation regarding their test results, they may only be
provided information on the items they got wrong. They may be told the subject matter of
the question and which incorrect answers were selected, but may not be told what the
correct answer is. Candidates may not visually review their answer sheets or copy down or
reproduce answers. The review of the test must take place one-on-one with an authorized
individual whose signature is on the CODESP Selection Procedure Security Agreement
and must be conducted under security safeguards consistent with this agreement.

f. If it is necessary that materials obtained through CODESP be presented in proceedings
conducted by a court or other body vested with legal authority, the Agency will request that
the material be covered by a protective order that will safeguard its confidentiality, and

CODESP will be promptly notified of the proceedings.
- 33 -



The Agency shall defend, indemnify, and hold CODESP, its board members, officers,

g.
employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense
(including reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for injury or damages arising out of the use
of materials or services provided by CODESP.

h. The Agency understands and acknowledges that it is solely responsible for its employment

decisions, including but not limited to hiring, classification and re-classification, and all uses
of CODESP materials, including but not limited to cutoff scores. The Agency also is solely
responsible for ensuring its employment practices comply with all applicable laws,
regulations and professional guidelines. It is the exclusive responsibility of the Agency
to ensure that the knowledge, skills and abilities measured by CODESP test materials are

valid job requirements.

i The signer(s) of this agreement accept(s) personally and on behalf of the Agency the
responsibility for carrying out its terms. The signer further agrees that all necessary
administrative steps will be taken to assure that staff members, consultants or others who
may have access to material provided through CODESP will be informed of this agreement
and required to comply with it. Any Agency violating test security will be denied any further

test materials.

It is understood and agreed that the primary signer of this agreement will be the person
officially responsible for ordering and administering test materials. The Agency may
designate one or more alternates. If this option is exercised, the alternate(s) will be
regarded as sharing the responsibility with the primary signer for carrying out the terms of
this agreement. CODESP has the right to terminate this agreement and to withhold or
recall CODESP materials if terms and conditions of this agreement are believed to have

been violated:

k. Upon termination of CODESP membership/subscribership, the Agency will destroy all
CODESP test materials except those used to document existing test records and cease
from administering tests that contain CODESP test materials. The Agency must also
delete CODESP test materials from electronic storage devices, data bases, test
management systems, and/or item banks that may be accessible by unauthorized

individuals, agencies or vendors.

I If the signer(s) of this agreement find(s) it impossible to assure fulfilment of this agreement
or leave(s) the Agency, the signer(s) will notify CODESP to make arrangements for

continuation or termination of the agreement.

o ST T SNE £ f b e I S
Title: 97A7E. AL/ AL 5 TR A28

Print Name: \DA&);&/L fdrse RAO

17 Y
: AR 1 VA f p 2T oD
Signature: __Zi i Al ] K UAA D 4 Datedrr:f £5 Z47(9

_34_



Codesp Application for Services Page 1 of 3

CODESP SERVICE AGREEMENT

Please read, acknowledge and agree to the following service agreement terms.

Payment for Services:
Payment is due each July 1, unless you are paying for midyear services. A Purchase Order can be

submitted to begin services, but a check must be received within 45 days after the PO is received. Online
testing services may require additional payment. Notify us if you are interested in this optional service.

Access to the Secure Areas of the Website:
To access the secure areas of the website, login names and passwords are reguired. Initially the HR

Administrator, or designee, is allowed access. This individual will have the authority to add additional
individuals who can access the secure area by clicking on Add/Edit Profiles after login in their agency’s
CATS (CODESP Automated Test System) system. Only employees of agency’s HR departments who are
involved in test administration should be provided with login names and passwords. Access will allow them
to view your agency’s test materials. The agency's HR Administrator/CATS Agency Contact, or designee, is
responsible for keeping their agency’s CATS Website Users and Test Proctors status up-to-date in the

CATS system.

Allindividuals who have access to the secure areas of the site must sign or agree online after login to the
terms of the CODESP Security Agreement. Allowing individuals who have not been registered as a Website
User in CATS access to test materials is a violation of the Security Agreement. All test materials must be
kept in a locked and secure area or in a password protected computer file.

Test Materials
Test materials are requested by completing a CATS Request Form, which is available after login in the left

frame of the website. Customers must provide a job description and any other information that would help
CODESP staff select job-related materials to send your agency. We request 10 days notice to complete
your request, but there are times when we can complete the process much quicker. If you have Subject
Matter Experts who are available to review test materials, please notify us.

Multiple choice test questions can be accessed from the home page after the request has been filled. A
notice will appear under My Request Status on your CATS home page that the request has been filled and
the test materials are ready for review. Other test materials, such as Interviews, are posted under Test
Materials or can also be ordered through the CATS Request Form.

Tutorials are available under Training on a variety of topics related to our Products and Services.

The final selection of test materials is the agency’s responsibility.

On the 29 day of April, 2013 by

South Jﬁ"lontere}/_(;{%ingy Jt Union H$ D‘istrict
By /il RV AN L~ Title
LA TN T

e sl B NN S PR R s
TTATE._ ADNMt 577 47 Uil

On the 29 day of April, 2013 by
Cooperative Organization for the Development of Employee Selection Procedures

—— J,/’? \,./7 N
By //7 / .d.-fd,g',l»-r'b b C".‘u, Cl"lz"‘j/l"ﬂ

CODESP Executive Director, Marianne Tonjes

_35_



www.codesp.com
codesp@codesp.com |

714-374-8644

% Public HR

R, o TR e

2012~ 2013 CODESP FEE STRUCTURE

Invoices will be sent to customers through our Freshbook’s system. If you need a copy email
codesp@codesp.cam

Full year: July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013
Mid-year: January 1, 2013 — June 30, 2013 with an obligation for full year membership /

subscribership for the following year (applies to all agencies)

MEMBERS — Public Educational Agencies:
* No additional fees for online testing
» No additional fees for scanning services

School District
« Less than 1,000 ADA
o County office is a CODESP member - No fee
= Online services or scanning services - $925/year plus mailing costs for scanning

o County office is Not a member - $925 with no mid-year option
< 1,000 - 60,000 ADA

o Full year- $1,850

o Mid-year — $925

o 60,000 and over ADA
o Full year - $1,850 plus an additional fee of $100 per 10,000 ADA over 60,000

o Mid-year — Half of calculated annual fee

College District
o 35,000 students or less
o Full year- $1,850
o Mid-year - $925
* More than 35,000 students
o Full year - $1,850 plus an additional fee of $100 per 10,000 students over 35,000
o Mid-year — Half of calculated annual fee

SUBSCRIBERS — Public agency or afterschool program providing service to public schools:

Public Agency Subscribers
» Access to secure areas of the website
¢ Online testing services option requires an extra fee (see chart below)
+ Police and fire sworn employees not factored into number of employees due to no police or fire
test products will be provided. We are also limited in our engineering/technical position test

_36_



-

materials and require exira time and a customer provided Subject Matter Expert for new test

development.
Scoring services — $200/year plus mailing costs
o Additional fees apply for agencies over 1,500 employees

Less than 100 employees
o $925 base rate (no mid-year fee structure available)

100 - 1,500 employees
o Full year— $1,850 base rate
o Mid-year — $925 base rate

More than 1,500 employees
o Full year — Base rate ($1,850) plus an additional $100 per 10,000 employees over 1,500

o Mid-year — Half of calculated annual fee
o Scoring services — $300 in addition to the $200/year plus mailing costs

State agencies: Each department or agency of the state must become a separate subscriber
with the fee structure based on the number of employees described above

Online Testing Fees for Subscribers

The following extra fees for online testing access will be added to the base rate:

Number of Employees Fee

under 100 $200

101 - 500 $500
501 - 1,000 $1,000
1,001 - 1,500 $1,500
1,501 — 2,000 $2,000
2,001 — 2,500 $2,500
2,501 - 3,000 $3,000
3,001 — 3,500 $3,500
3,501 — 4,000 $4,000

Afterschool Subscribers

Rules:

All districts served by the Afterschool provider must be CODESP members if CODESP test
materials are used in the hiring process

No Access to secure areas of the website available to afterschool agencies

No online testing or scanning services available to afterschool agencies

25 — 50 sites or 5 — 10 school districts supported (over these amounts, call for pricing)
o Full year - $1,850 '
o Mid-year — $925

School districts supported have less than 1,000 ADA or less than 25 sites.

o Fullyear- $925
o Mid-year — No discount available



www.codesp.com

codesp@codesp.com
714-374-8644

I -

CODESP Registration for Public Education Agencies Instructions
(Including Schools, Charters, ROPs and College Districts)

To learn more about CODESP's products and services click on About from the blue toolbar and then on
Products and Services at the bottom of the page. A fee schedule is posted under Join CODESP. Prior to
registering online for CODESP services contact us by phone at 714-374-8644 or by email at
codesp@codesp.com so that we can assist you in the registration process and determine if your district was

a prior member.

Invoices will be sent to you upon registration. Call or email us if you require one prior to registration.

Prior CODESP members: If your district was a previous CODESP website registered member, do not re-
register. We can reactivate your district instead. Please call us for more details. You may have been a member
prior to your employment so it is always best to call us and check. For previous members the Membership and
Security Agreements will need to be re-signed and re-submitted. They can be found under Join CODESP /

Public Education — Districts. We will send you a custom invoice upon request to rejoin.

New CODESP members: The registration process includes (1) Registration on www.codesp.com - click
Register under Register for Services. During registration you will be asked to acknowledge a Service
Agreement and the Security and Membership Agreements: (2) Payment by check or purchase order (Invoices
will be sent to you once you initiate membership) and; (3) Submission of a Security Agreement signed by
your agency's Human Resource Administrator; (4) Submission of the Membership Agreement signed by your
Human Resource Administrator. Agreements can be downloaded from the Join CODESP area of the

agency's
website.

Afterschool Providers: Employees of the district who provide afterschool care are covered under the regular
membership. If these employees are employed by the afterschool agency, not the district, the agency must
become a separate customer. See additional information under Join CODESP ! Afterschool Providers.

If your district has an ADA of less than 1,000 and your County Office of Education is a member, there is
no fee to join. If your district has an ADA of less than 1,000 and your County Office of Education is NOT a

member, the fee is reduced. Contact us before registering.

Mid-Year membership is available beginning January 1 of each yeaf through June 30 and the fee reflects
a half-year membership. Mid-Year membership requires that the agency commit to a full-year membership
the following year. Contact us and we will send you the appropriate Invoice.

Access after Registration and Payment
To access the secure areas of the website, login names and passwords are required and will be sent by email

to the person identified as the CODESP Agency Contact. This individual will have the authority to Add/Edit
the agency's Website Users after logging in. Website Users cannot Add/Edit profiles. Select only HR staff
members involved in the test development process. Test materials are ordered by submitting a CATS Request
Form found in the left margin of the website after login. Tutorials to assist you are available on the website

from the toolbar. Webinars Archives are under Links.

' The Membership and Security Agreements can be sent to us by email or fax.
HELP US GO GREEN, RATHER THAN FAX PLEASE SCAN AND EMAIL DOCUMENTS TO
CODESP@CODESP.COM
Phone: 714-374-8644 Fax: 714-374-8225 Ask for Eliana or Marianne

-38-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Approval of Consultant Agreement with Duane MEETING: April 24,2013

Wolgamott

AGENDA SECTION: J ACTION
(J INFORMATION

X ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

X Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Duane Wolgamott will be serving in the Business Office as we transition from our current interim Chief

Business Official position to a permanent Business Manager.

Recommendation:
It 1s recommended that the State Administrator approve the contract with Duane Wolgamott to assist in the

transition from the Interim Chief Business Official position to a permanent Business Manager

Fiscal Impact:
The time period of this contract covers from April 25,2013 to May 29, 2013 and will not exceed $7,000.00.

These funds had been previously budgeted for a full time Chief Business Manager.

Submitted By: Approved:
[ YN /] s
MO < I g i LI T Upr g iem

Daniel R. Moirao\Ed. D.”
State Administrator

Daniel R. Moirad, Ed.D.
State Administrator

_39_



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 BROADWAY
KING CITY, CA 93930

AGREEMENT TO FURNISH CONSULTANT SERVICES

Pursuant to California Education Code 10400, South Monterey County Joint Union High School
District, hereinafter called “District,” has need of the specialized services of Duane Wologomat
an independent contractor, hereinafter called “Consultant,” for the period specified in Article 1.

“TERM.”

Consultant shall be, for the purposes of this agreement, an independent contractor and shall not
be deemed an employee of the District for any purpose.

District may provide such supplies and equipment as shown herein for the convenience of
CONSULTANT and such accommodation shall not operate as an indication of employment.

I.  TERM:
The effective date of the agreement is April 25 and it terminates May 29, 2013 unless sooner

terminate as provided herein.

II. PAYMENT LIMIT
* Consultant shall be compensated at the rate of 492.05 per diem to be paid to the Aromas-

San Juan Unified School District
* Not to exceed a total of fourteen days of service.
* Total payment(s) to Consultant, under this contract shall not exceed $7000.00

III. DISTRICT OBLIGATION:
Inconsideration of Consultant’s provision of service(s) as described in the Consultants Services

Description and subject to the payment limit expressed herein, the District shall pay the
Consultant, upon documented evidence of completion of service(s), payment according to the fee
schedule listed within thirty (30) days of billing.

IV. CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATION
The consultant shall provide service(s) as described in the Consultant Service Description.

V. CONSULTANT SERVICE DESCRIPTION
Transition to assume the full responsibility as the Business Manager with all the associated

responsibilities.

VI. CONFIDENTIALITY

In the course of performing consulting services, the parties realize that the Consultant may come
in contact with or become familiar with information which may be considered confidential.
Consultant agrees to keep all such information confidential and not to discuss or divulge it to
anyone other than South Monterey County Joint Union High School District.

-40- 1



VII. ASSIGNMENT
This agreement is for personal services to be performed by Consultant and may not be assigned

to, sub-let to or performed by any person or persons who are not parties hereto except by
employees of Consultant whose names and qualifications have been approved by District.

VIII. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
This agreement shall terminate on the last day as written in Article I except:

a. District may terminate agreement at any time if Consultant does not perform, or
refuses to perform according to this Agreement.

b. District and Consultant may terminate agreement at any time with mutual written
consent.

C. In the event of early termination, Consultant shall be paid for all work or services

performed to the date of termination together with an amount for approved expenses
due and owing.

IX. DISTRICT’S RIGHT OF RETENTION

District shall become the owner of and entitled to exclusive possession of all records, documents,
files, graphs, photographic or other reproductions of any kind produced in the scope of services
performed and no other uses thereof will be permitted except by permission of the District.

X. EXTENSION OF TERM
By mutual consent of the parties hereto the term of service described herein in Article I may be
extended by reformation of this Agreement and the attachment hereto of an addendum mutually

executed setting forth the extended term.

-41 -



XI. SIGNATURES
These signatures attest the parties’ agreement hereto:

‘CONSULTANT / TITLE CONTRACT OFFICER OF THE
South Monterey County Joint Union High School District

Date Date

Social Security Number of Consultant *
*  Whenever organizational names are used, the Employer IRS Identification Number

must be used instead of a Social Security Number.

Preferred contact information:

CONSULTANT / TITLE (Please Print)

c/0 Aromas-San Juan Unified School District 2300 San Juan Highway, San Juan Bautista,
95045

Mailing Address (number, street name, city, state and zip code: Please Print)

831 623-4907

Phone number Cell Phone

Account code:

CBO signature Date:
Routing:

1. Immediate supervisor

2. CBO, for coding and presentation to Board

3. After Board (State Administrator) approval, CBO for processing

-42- 3



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Christy White Associates MEETING: May 15,2013

AGENDA SECTION: J ACTION

(J INFORMATION

X ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures
Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:

The State Controller’s Office has granted the district’s request to hire its own auditor beginning with the 2012-
13 audit period through the 2014-15 audit period. After several requests for proposal were pursued, Christy
White Associates responded and was approved by the Controller’s Office.

Recommendation:

Approve the three year audit contract with Christy White Associates.

Fiscal Impact:
General Fund - $34,175 for 2012-13; $35,800 for 2013-14; $37,400 for 2014-15

Submitted By: Apprqved: -

: \ ] i/ :} .

-.‘ [/ . (/v/ i e / L ) {/ (/ ~ K«‘ /,? 5 ) - >
\,»{rer N/ e / VL J et L,{-‘] ¢ Lg:vut_.é{f
Linda brundhoffef, Interim CBO v Daniel R. Moirao, State Administrator

_43_



Proposal for Auditing Services

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District
King City, California

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013
With (2) Two Additional Optional Years

Submitted on April 10, 2013 by:

Christy White, CPA, President

L
,[(-d'.v' o R

s a & s
christy@white -

W R A
A PROFESSIONAL " }‘”’% g W L
ACCOUNTANGY CORFORATION (f;&%”é"‘g’*é&

1050 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 201
Alameda, California 94501
E-Mail: cwhite@cwacpa.com

Telephone: 619-270-8222 Fax: 619-260-9085 -

-44 -



OCL IHSTIUCT

ST ey y WY
SCUTH MO

TranSIIHAl LOteT . ..........ioeeieeiee oo 1
Executive SUIIINATY 1ttt oo eoeeoeeeeeeeeeoee 3
Profile Of CWA ... et 4

>

1) Independence............ccoouuiiemieomeieeoeeeeeeeeeeeee e 8

2) License to Practice in CalifOrnia ............o..ouooveoooooeeeeooooooooo 9

3) Qualifications and Experience of CWA .......coooooiooo 10

4) Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience..........c.............. 12

5) Specific Audit APPIOACh .......coovueeiieecoeeiee oo 14

6) Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems..........ooooooooo 22

| CWA'S REETONCES...........uceeeeeeieeeeee oo 23

Fee INfOrmation ... 27
APPENDIX

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

* Resumes of Key Audit Personnel
* Quality Control Report Opinion
* Insurance Requirements

-45-



TRANSMITTAL LETTER

M

-46-



&

chrishyf ite

A PROFESSIONAL ’y‘“ﬂm 2
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION %V {“”/g

April 10, 2013

Linda Grundhoffer, Interim CBO

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District
800 Broadway

King City, CA 93930

Dear Ms. Grundhoffer:

Christy White Associates (CWA) is pleased to respond to your request for proposal for
South Monterey. County Joint Union High School District’s (the “District’'s”) Annual
Financial and Compliance audits for fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 plus two additional
optional years ending June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2015. In this proposal, we believe that you
will find that our firm is not only highly qualified to perform the audit for South Monterey
County Joint Union High School District, but is prepared to do what it takes to provide the
extra level of service required to maintain a long-term business relationship.

CWA has specialized in Local Educational Agency (LEA) audits for over 12 years. Founding
partner Christy White has 26 years of school audit and consulting experience and is joined
by 4 experienced partners and a staff of 30.

CWA audits over 80 school districts annually plus over 25 charter schools, over 30
Proposition 39 bond audits and 6 community college districts. The vast majority of our local
educational agencies (LEA) clients require a Single Audit under OMB Circular A-133. We
also audit several large nonprofit organizations, JPAs and other local governmental entities
under Single Audit requirements. Due to our specialization in LEA audits, our staff work
year-round on education audits. We have experience auditing and consulting with school
districts, for example:

Sample of CWA’s LEA Clients
San Diego Unified School District (24 largest in California)
Contra Costa County Office of Education
San Antonio School District
Alameda Unified School District
Mount Diablo Unified School District
South San Francisco Unified School District
Pittsburg Unified School District
Knightsen School District
Garden Grove Unified School District
Pleasanton Unified School District
John Swett Unified School District

_47_



AB1200 Experience: CWA has experience with districts that have received State loans and are under
State administration. Christy White was a key member on the FCMAT team that evaluated fiscal and
facilities management for both Compton and Oakland. In addition, we are the auditors for Inglewood
Unified School District in lieu of the State Controller’s Office at the behest of the California Department of
Education and the District.

My partners and I have a great deal of interest and commitment to providing excellent auditing services
to the District. You can expect that I would personally be overseeing the audits of your district, assisted
by Audit Partner Michael Ash, CPA. You will find that the level of partner and management time
afforded by CWA is unmatched by other audit firms. Accompanying me on the audit will be Sarah
Fiehler, Supervising Accountant; Kristen Chacon, Senior Accountant; and experienced senior and staff

auditors.

CWA is committed to meeting all requirements and timelines for the successful completion of the
engagement. We accept all of the terms and conditions of the District's Contract and insurance
requirements. Upon concluding the contract terms, CWA will hold a pre-audit meeting and set forth
specific work plans and due dates for each major audit area. Regular progress meetings will be held and
any issues will be resolved timely and before the release of the final reports.

CWA'’s proposal and other appropriate items are valid, firm and irrevocable for ninety days from the
date scheduled for submission of proposals. After reading through our proposal, if you have any
questions, please feel free to contact me at (619) 270-8222. 1 would be happy to meet with you and/or the

Board of Trustees.
Sincerely,

Christy White, CPA
President



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

_4_9_



UNION HICH SCHOGL IHSTRICT

FAUDITFOR St

AL FOR INDEPEN STEREY COURTY JOIN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Christy White Associates (CWA) is a California CPA firm with offices located in San Diego, Alameda and
Rancho Cucamonga in California. Christy White, CPA our founding partner will both lead the proposed
auditing services that include an audit of the annual financial statements of South Monterey County Joint
Union High School District, a Single Audit under OMB Circular A-133, and Compliance with State Audit
Requirements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 plus two additional optional years ending June 30,
2014 and June 30, 2015.

When considering whether to hire our firm, you will find that CWA can be differentiated from our
competitors in several areas, such as:

LOCAL, EXPERIENCED AND INVOLVED PARTNERS: Christy White, CPA, has 26 years of school district
audit and consulting experience garnered from 19 years in public accounting and 7 years with School
Services of California, Inc. Michael Ash, CPA has 14 years of audit experience. You can expect that Ms.
White and Mr. Ash will be accessible to South Monterey County Joint Union High School District when
the audit is underway and lend their expertise freely on accounting and internal control issues.

ACCOUNTING ADVICE AND AUDIT SERVICES WITHOUT ADDITIONAL CHARGES: The proposed fee is
fixed for the scope described and will not be increased. CWA is happy to provide accounting advice
and encourages clients to call with questions. For example, many clients were assisted with GASB
34/35, 45 and the new GASB 54 implementation, while keeping within independence standards, by: (1)
fielding questions; (2) reviewing and auditing conversion entries and supporting schedules; and, (3)
providing guidance and samples for the Management Discussion and Analysis audit report section.

TiMELY AUDITS: CWA is committed to meeting all audit deadlines. All of our LEA audits have been
performed according to agreed upon audit schedules with the final reports to the State of California

filed on time.

COMMITMENT TO QUALITY: CWA has received an “unqualified” audit opinion by our peer reviewers
regarding our firm’s Quality Control Standards. All audits submitted to the State have been approved.
Current client references are also provided later in this document.

SMOOTH AUDITOR TRANSITION: CWA specializes in LEA audits and its pariners also manage the
engagement so the transition to a new audit firm will be smooth. CWA guarantees that: (1) trained
and supervised staff will be on site; (2) clients will be given a detailed audit plan at an entrance -
conference held each spring; (3) CWA will be considerate of your staff and their workload; and, (4) all
audit findings will be discussed before the report is finalized.

FINDING SOLUTIONS: CWA is not content to simply identify problem areas that may exist in your
organization, but seeks ways to help provide solutions. Any CPA firm can discover a problem, but
with our combined backgrounds and experiences, we can supply our clients with a wide range of
possible solutions.

The following proposal provides more specific information on the scope of the audit services, our
experience, qualifications, client references and audit approach. We hope that you select our audit firm.
CWA is committed to providing you with excellent service.

_50_



PROFILE OF CWA

\
\

-51_



INION FIGH SCHOOL

PROFILE OF CWA

Christy White Associates {CWA), a professional corporation, is a California CPA firm with offices located
in 5an Diego, Rancho Cucamonga and Alameda. CWA is licensed with the State Board of Accountaricy
as a professional accountancy firm and is a certified small business and woman-majority owned firm.
Christy White, CPA, is the founding partner and along with Audit Partner Michael Ash, CPA will lead
the proposed auditing services.

FIRM INFORMATION
San Diego Office Rancho Cucamonga Office Alameda Office
2727 Camino Del Rio South - 8686 Haven Avenue 1150 Marina Village Parkway
Suite 219 Suite 250 Suite 201
San Diego, CA 92108 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 Alameda, CA 94501
Telephone: Telephone: Telephone:
(619) 270-8222 (619) 270-8222 (619) 270-8222
Fax: Fax: Fax:
(619) 260-9085 (619) 260-9085 (619) 260-9085

FIRM INDEPENDENCE

One of the benefits of an audit is having an “independent” opinion of your internal controls and
compliance. Our quality control program ensures that we adhere to the strictest standards of auditor
independence, including those required by the Standards for Audit of Governmental Organization,
Programs, Activities and Functions, published by the United States General Accounting Office. We
ensure that all firm partners and any staff working on the engagement do not have any financial or other
interests in your organization other than a strictly professional one. Our continued success as your
business partner depends upon our independence.

FIRM LICENSE, AFFILIATIONS AND ASSOCIATIONS

CWA is a member of the Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) and Government Quality Control
Center (GQCC) of the American Institute of CPAs, which requires an independent peer review every
three years. Christy White Associates is licensed with the California State Board of Accountancy. We are
members of the American Institute of CPAs (AICPA) and the California Society of CPAs.

In addition, we are association members with the California Association of School Business Officials, the

Government Financial Officers’ Association and the Certified Fraud Examiner’s Association. We have
two Certified Fraud Examiners on staff should the need arise for a fraud or forensic audit.

_52_



NT ALY FOR

HIGH SCHOGD ThsTioy

PROFILE OF CWA (CONTINUED)

ASSURANCES ON ABILITY TO PERFORM

Neither CWA nor our predecessor firm NNW, have defaulted on a contract or experienced fiscal issues,
including bankruptcy and receivership. NNW was legally dissolved in 2010 due to partial change in
ownership. Christy White, President of CWA was the founding partner of both CWA and NNW. CWA
was recognized as the “AICPA successor firm” to NNW. CWA has established a track record of the
highest quality control results and performance for over 12 years.

CWA envisions no problems in performing the Statement of Work and meeting all deadlines.
Approximately 90% of our revenues are derived from school district audits. We have 5 dedicated and
trained partners and 30 staff.

STATEMENT REGARDING THE STATUS OF ANY DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND ACCEPTANCE
OF AUDIT REPORTS BY THE SCO

CWA has a standing record of performing quality audits. Our clients and the State Controller's Office
have accepted all of our audit reports. Additionally, we have not and are not involved in litigation, or

any investigation by a state, federal or professional agency.

CWA meets all specific requirements imposed by
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations.

Cory OF QUALITY CONTROL REPORT OPINION
As members of the AICPA Private Practices Group we participate in the peer review process. The peer

review process is conducted every three years. Attached is a copy of our current quality control report
opinion issued March 2011. We are proud to report that the opinion is “Pass”, which is the best opinion.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

CWA is an equal opportunity employer. We do not discriminate based on race, ethnicity, age or religion.
We are in compliance with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations relating to equal
opportunity employment.

INDEMNITY
CWA has errors and omissions insurance and will indemnify and hold harmless the District from and

against all losses and claims in the execution of our work or the consequences of any negligence or
carelessness on our part. We are also fully insured with workers’ compensation.

_53_



ENT AUIT FOR SGUT Ty COU Jomr Unoss

PROMOSAL FOR I

sy

PROFILE OF CWA (CONTINUED)

FIRM HISTORY

CWA is incorporated in California, is licensed with the State Board of Accountancy as a professional
accountancy firm and is a certified woman-majority owned firm and a small business enteiprise. CWA
specializes in local government audits and we are listed in the California State Controller's Office CPA
Directory. Annually, we audit over 80 school districts, 3 municipalities, 6 counties and special districts, 30
Proposition 39 bonds, and over 25 charter schools. Our audit clients range in size from very large
governmental agencies (including, the San Diego County Treasurer-Tax Collector, San Diego Unified and
Garden Grove Unified) to mid-size and small entities, such as Kern River Cemetery District and City of
Madera. We serve clients throughout California from our three office locations due to our specialization
in governmental auditing, including Single Audits.

Christy White Associates (CWA) was established in 2010, having previously operated for 10 years as the
San Diego Office of the former firm of Nigro Nigro & White, PC. CWA has a blend of audit and
consulting experience, and with Christy White’s abundance of consulting know-how from past audit
experience, makes CWA'’s experience hard to match. CWA has 30 auditors, 7 CPAs and administrative
support. CWA anticipates adding more auditors as our practice continues to grow. We are proud to
offer our services to all public agencies.

The management and staff of Christy White Associates (CWA) all have a solid foundation in
governmental finance including years of experience in governmental agency audits, hands-on business
management, and consulting assignments with governmental agencies across California. In particular, it
is the technical strength of our managers and their direct personal involvement in all aspects of the
engagement that sets CWA apart from other CPA firms.

Mission: Christy White Associates’ promise to our clients is a worthwhile business relationship
with responstve, trustworthy advisors and timely delivery of quality assurance, accounting, and
consulting services.

Values: To carry out our Mission of providing high quality customer care with professional
mtegrity, Christy White Associates follows these guiding principles:
*  Provide clients with timely response and cost-conscious service
*  Preserve integrity via highly skilled, well-trained staff and a commitment to the ethical
practices and standards of our profession
*  Deliver unparalleled quality by focusing on the client need



PROFILE OF CWA (CONTINUED)

FIRM ORGANIZATION
Firm‘
Shareholders

Administrative
Support Team




1

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL QOUTLINE
—_—

1) INDEPENDENCE
2) LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA
3) QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF CWA.
4) PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE
5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH
6) IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL AUDIT PROBLEMS

_56-



1) INDEPENDENCE

s

_57..



PO THETRICT

1) INDEPENDENCE

CWA is independent of the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District (including board
members, administrators and staff. One of the benefits of an audit is having an “independent” opinion of
your financial statements and compliance matters. CWA's quality control program ensures that our firm
adheres to the strictest standards of auditor independence, including those required by the Standards for
Audit of Governmental Organization, Programs, Activities and Functions, published by the United States
General Accounting Office. We ensure that a]l firm partners and any staff working on the engagement do
not have any financial or other interests in your organization other than a strictly professional one. Qur
continued success as your business partner depends upon our independence.

_58_



2) LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA
—_—

_59_



2) LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA

CWA is licensed in the State of California as a Professional Accountancy Corporation. CWA is a member
of the Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of CPAs, which requires an
independent peer review every three years. Christy White Associates is licensed with the California
State Board of Accountancy. We are members of the American Institute of CPAs (AICPA) and the
California Society of CPAs. Key staff assigned to South Monterey County Joint Union High School
District’s audit are all licensed CPAs or CPA candidates. In addition we are association members with
the California Society of Municipal Finance Officers and the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners.

_60_



3) QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF CWA

_61_



3) QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF CWA

CWA'’s LEA AUDIT EXPERIENCE

CWA specializes in governmental auditing devoting over 90% of our practice to school district auditing
and consulting, which equates to over $3 million in annual revenues from school district audits. Firm
President and founder of CWA, Christy White has over 26 years of school district audit experience
garmered from public accounting practice and as a Senior Director at School Services of California for 7
years. Partners Michael Ash, John Dominguez and Heather Daud each have over 10 years of
governmental audit experience, both as auditors and working in school districts. In addition, Partmer
Michael Ash worked with a national CPA firm prior to CWA and internal audit for an international
company. Qur staff receives a minimum of 80 hours of continuing education annually specifically geared
towards school district auditing.

CWA completed last audit season having audited approximately 80 mid-to-large school districts on time.
Here is a sampling of our 2012 LEA audit clients. Many of these LEAs have been our client for over six

years:

Alameda Unified

Alhambra Unified

Anaheim City Elementary

Buena Park Elementary

Centinela Valley Union High

Compton Unified

Contra Costa County Office of Education
Culver City Unified

El Segundo Unified

Encinitas Union Elementary

Escondido Union High

Garden Grove Unified
Grossmont-Cuyamaca Community College District
John Swett Unified

Knightsen Elementary

Lennox Elementary

Magnolia Elementary

Mendocino County Office of Education

Nubia Leadership Academy
Oak Park Unified

Oceanside Unified

Pittsburg Unified

Pleasanton Unified

Redondo Beach Unified

San Bernardino Community College District
San Diego Unified

San Marcos Unified

San Pasqual Union Elementary
Santa Monica-Malibu Unified
South Pasadena Unified

South San Francisco Unified
Sweetwater Union High
Waterford Unified

William 5. Hart Union High
Willits Unified

Wiseburn Elementary

m
-62-



GUIISTRICY

3) QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF CWA (CONTINUED)

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEWS

CWA has long taken a risk-based audit approach in our audits of LEAs for audit effectiveness and
efficiency. For each engagement performed we conduct a thorough review of internal control systems,
assess control risk and suggest to our clients areas where improvements might be made. CWA is well
versed in the new recently released Risk-based Assessment Standards and will incorporate these

requirements into our audit programs.
Areas of internal control typically evaluated for our school district clients include:

» Cash receipting (e.g., transportation fees, facilities use fees, child care program fees, adult
school fees, developer fees, donations, federal and state remittances)

Purchasing, warehousing and accounts payable

Personnel requisitions/terminations and payroll processing

Cafeteria: meal tracking, reimbursements, sales, purchasing, inventory, etc.

Associated Student Body Accounts: cash receipt and disbursements, student stores, etc.
Construction accounting: bid procedures, change orders, project accounting, SAB-50 forms
Long term investments and debt financing

YV VVYVY

ABILITY TO COMPLETE WORK ON TIME AND STAFF CONTINUITY

CWA audits governmental entities year round. Our staff receives a minimum of 80 hours of continuing
education annually in governmental accounting and auditing. We have the capacity to meet all of the
District’s deadlines, and would encourage you to ask our references about their experience. We are a
local firm which benefits the District as we have a stake in the same community. Our close proximity
means we are readily available to accept meeting requests and will incur no travel costs!

CWA believes that staff continuity year to year is important to maximize our understanding of your
operations and minimize the impact of the audit on your staff’s workload. Unless the client specifically
requests a staffing change, we will ensure that each year the audit will be staffed with returning auditors,
to the extent possible. CWA has experienced a low turnover rate which we believe is due in part to our
competitive compensation package and the opportunities for advancement afforded by a growing CPA

firm.

CWA does not subconiract. All of our staff are either CPAs or CPA candidates. We also have two
Certified Fraud Examiners on staff, should the need arise.

11
-63-



4) PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF
QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

_64_



4) PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF
QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

SCHOOL DISTRICT AUDIT EXPERIENCE OF PERSONNEL

The firm partners and staff of Christy White Associates bring an extensive background of audit and
consulting experience to CWA clients. We have audited local educational agencies throughout California
and are familiar with the unique issues relative to school finance, in particular: budgetary constraints,
construction accounting, new state program issues, attendance accounting, state funding models and cash
flow management. We are familiar with the various organizational structures of local educational
agencies, from small and large K-12 districts, community school districts and county offices of education.
We are also highly experienced in auditing computerized systems and other uses of technology. The
brief biography of the firm owners below is followed by detailed resumes and staff bios.

President Christy White, CPA has served hundreds of local educational agencies, over the past 26 years,
nineteen years in public accounting auditing over 250 educational agencies and seven years with School
Services of California, Inc., a leading public education financial consulting and policy group. She has
provided audit and financial consulting services in areas of organizational analysis, budgeting,
negotiations and multi-year planning, in addition to developing and conducting six workshop series
throughout the State. Ms. White is known as a leading expert in attendance accounting, school district
organization, and fiscal analysis. As the founding partner of CWA, Christy provides her clients with
creative and practical solutions to problems.

Audit Partner Michael Ash, CPA has 14 years of experience auditing governmental agencies, nonprofits
and publically traded companies. This experience was garnered from five years as an auditor with
Arthur Anderson, several years auditing with local firms, including now CWA, and several years as an
internal auditor to an international real estate property management company. In addition to his
extensive knowledge of audit, business and financial issues; Michael is the Quality Control Partner in our

firm.

Audit Supervisor Sarah Fiehler has a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and a minor in
Dance from California State University San Marcos. She has over 3 years of professional experience
specializing in school district and Not-for-Profit Auditing. She has taken a leading role in the Federal
Clearinghouse submissions to the Federal Government for clients who receive an A-133 Audit. A
selection of school district audits she has been assigned to include: Alameda Unified School District,
Glenn County Office of Education, Santa Monica-Malibu Unified School District, Napa Valley
Community College and Pleasanton Unified School District.

172

_65_



4) PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF
QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED)

SCHOOL DISTRICT AUDIT EXPERIENCE OF PERSONNEL {CONTINUED)

Senior Auditor Kristen Chacon has a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Azusa Pacific
University, and three years of professional experience including, auditing, banking, and
management. She has worked on clients in a variety of industries, including County Offices of
Education, multiple School Districts, Charter Schools and non-profit organizations. Examples of past
audits she has contributed to include: Pleasanton Unified School District, 5an Diego Cooperative Charter
School, Mendocino County Office of Education, Fighting Back Santa Maria Valley, and the Napa Valley
College Foundation.

PROJECT MANAGERS

Partners Christy White, CPA and Michael Ash, CPA will actively manage the audits assisted by
Supervising Auditor Sarah Fiehler and Senior Auditor Kristen Chacon. No subcontractors will be used.

Resumes of key staff follow.

STAFF TRAINING PROGRAMS

CWA's program of staff development includes two full weeks of focused in-house training in the audit of
school districts. We also provide opportunities to staff to attend professional training provided by
outside providers, such as School Services of California, the California Society of CPAs and CASBO. A
sampling of training programs our staff have attended within the last year include:

Sampling of Training Courses Taken by Staff
Within the Past Year Training Provider Organization
*  Annual Government Finance Officers * Governmental Finance Officers
Conference Association
¢ Annual CASBO Conference « CASBO
* January, May and Summer Budget *  School Services of California, Inc.
Conferences
*  School District Conference » California Society of CPAs
» Fraud Auditing * Association of Certified Fraud Examiners
*  Charter School Fiscal Management »  Fiscal Crisis Management & Assistance
Team (FCMAT)
» Attendance and ASB Accounting « CASBO
12

_66_



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH
—_—

_67_



T OR

SOUTH SCHOOL IISTRICT

5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH

SCOPE OF THE AUDITS

The scope of auditing services provided includes the annual financial statements of South Monterey
County Joint Union High School District, a Single Audit under OMB Circular A-133, and Compliance
with State Audit Requirements for fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 through 2015. The financial audit
includes all funds of the district and all federal and state programs. In addition, we will provide
assistance with GASB implementation, including GASB 34 conversion entries without extra charge.

PURPOSE OF THE EXAMINATIONS
The purpose of the examination is to render the following opinions and reports:

¢ Auditor’s Opinion on the Basic Financial Statements

* Auditor’s Opinion on the Measure G Bond Financial Statements (separate audit)
* Auditor’s Opinion on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting and Compliance
* Auditor’s Opinion on State Compliance Requirements

* Auditor's Opinion on Federal Compliance Requirements

* Supplementary Information

*  Current Year Findings and Recommendations

*  Status Report on Prior-Year’s Findings and Recommendations

MANAGEMENT LETTERS

CWA also believes the purpose of a quality audit is to provide management with feedback on the
effectiveness of the internal control structure, comment on observed good fiscal practices and recommend
items to enhance the overall effectiveness and efficiency of the organization as a whole. CWA works
closely with our client’s management at the beginning, during and the end of the audit to ensure all areas
are appropriately addressed and findings are communicated early on. We will issue our final
management letter after thoroughly discussing each finding with management and incorporating the
district’s response in the Jetter. The findings will be compiled in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and standards established by the State Controller’s Office.

14
-68-



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

GENERAL AUDITING APPROACH

CWA believes the key to a good audit is efficiency. This ensures that the audit is thorough without
performing unnecessary procedures. By following the professional standards prescribed by Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) and Govermment Auditing Standards, we are certain that we are
meeting our own professional standards for the industry.

In addition, we will conduct the audit to meet procedures required of:

»  K-12 Audit Guide, as published by the State Controller’s Office

= Government Auditing Standards, including Performance Audit Standards for the bond audit
»  OMB Circular A-133 and the Compliance Supplements

=  Other guides as required by the federal and state agencies

The partners and principals of CWA have experienced the audit from both sides of the desk. For

example, Christy White worked as the Senior Director of Management Consulting Services at School

Services of California and Michael Ash worked as an Internal Auditor for an international real estate

development company. It is this unique perspective that provides our partners with the experience to

recognize important audit issues. The partners’ viewpoint is also tempered with appropriate sensitivity
" to our clients’ particular situations.

Our partners are committed to maintaining an active role in all aspects of the audit. We understand how
frustrating it can be to deal with someone that doesn’t understand your business, and will take every

measure to prevent that from occurring.

Our staff is highly trained to understand your unique business, and they are instructed to consult with
the partners on all aspects of the audit. We believe in a consistent approach to the audit, so we try as
much as possible to keep an auditing team together. The team includes two partners and a supervisor, as
well as senior and junior staff. Your audit team will have a thorough understanding of your school
district’s individual needs.

15

_69_



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE DETECTION OF FRAUD

CWA plans audit procedures to ensure that the financial statements and compliance areas are materially
free of errors and irregularities (i.e., fraud). In doing this, we consider the audit risk of each significant
transaction and group of transactions and design tests to ensure the transactions are free of material
errors and irregularities.  Our procedures are designed in accordance with SAS 22 (Planning and
Supervision), SAS 47 (Audit Risk and Materiality) and SAS 99 (Consideration of Fraud in a Financial

Statement Audit).

If fraud is suspected or detected in the preparation of financial statements or the misappropriation of
assets, CWA is experienced to bring the matter to the attention of the appropriate level in the
organization to ensure it is addressed expediently and that further instances are prevented from
occurring as quickly as possible.  Each of the firm’s partners who will be conducting a majority of the
work proposed for South Monterey County Joint Union High School District have dealt with issues
related to fraud as discovered by the audit and by clients through other means. In addition, CWA has 2
Certified Fraud Examiners on staff that can provide forensic audit services.

GASB STATEMENT #34, #45 AND #54 EXPERIENCE

The partners at CWA are thoroughly knowledgeable about GASB 34. CWA has assisted all of our school
district audit clients, without extra charges, by:

* Providing training on GASB 34 state software

* Providing training on conversion entries and GASB 34 reports

* Consulting on the management of fixed assets and depreciation schedules

* Providing sample Management Discussion and Analysis reports on diskette

We hold the philosophy that there are efficient ways to implement and manage the financial reporting
standard and meet the intent of GASB. For example, to help prepare our clients for GASB 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, we have participated
in statewide fraining, conferred with actuaries and developed a concise guide to implementation, the
GASB 45 Decision Guide, to help our clients make decisions related to:

* Implementation timelines

® Assessing the GASB’s impact on the financial status of the district
* Liability funding considerations

® Use of an irrevocable trust or informal set-asides of funds

*  Use of self-insurance fund

* How to allocate costs to all programs (resources)

* Conversion entries and other financial reporting requirements

CWA is well versed in GASB #54, Fund Balance Definitions, having presented throughout the state to LEA
groups on practical implementation considerations. We consult with all of our clients one-on-one and

without extra charge to ensure a smooth implementation.

“Fo-



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

DOCUMENTATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURES

CWA believes that an effective and efficient system of internal controls is critical to safeguard district
assets, ensure transactions are properly approved and recorded, and maintain compliance with federal
and state laws and regulations. Our audit approach starts with a thorough examination on the internal
control structure over cycles such as:

» Purchasing and accounts payable

*  Cash receipting and cash management
=  Personnel and payroll

»* Inventory and fixed assets

* Attendance and other compliance areas
=  Financial reporting

Our examination of internal controls helps us to plan our audit procedures but, more importantly to you,
we will communicate both positive control points and points where areas of improvement are needed.

LEVEL AND NATURE OF SUPPORT REQUIRED

CWA requests sufficient space in close proximity to the accounting department and access to office
equipment (e.g. copiers, phones and fax) be provided. We would also ask that the accounting staff be
generally available to answer questions and pull sampled documents throughout the course of the audit.
However, we are paperless and have a client portal for ease of document transmission.

TIME REQUIREMENTS

The following is an estimate of the audit work to be conducted each month. The final schedule would be
arranged based on the planning meeting that CWA holds with the Chief Business Official.

Proposed Percentage of
Month Work . Work Done

March (prior to P2) Attendance and ASB site visits and tests 10%
April- June Tests of Controls, Data Processing Review and - 30%

Inventory Observation, State Compliance

Testing
August Federal Compliance 10%
Late August/September | Year-end fieldwork, depending on when the 35%

books are closed
October/ November 15 Reports drafted, reviewed and finalized 14%
December/[anuary Board presentation 1%

Total 100%

_71._



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

CWA’s QuALITY CONTROL SYSTEM

CWA has received the highest level of assurance from our peer reviewer which is “Pass.” Our quality
control systems include policies and procedures on areas such as, leadership, ethical requirements,
acceptable of new clients, personnel management, engagement performance, monitoring and
communication. We actively monitor compliance with our quality control document through timely
review of workpapers, training on new standards, consultation on complex areas and sound human

resources practices.

CWA’S RECRUITMENT PROGRAM

CWA actively recruits CPA qualified candidates from our local universities. We participate in on campus
interviews, invite the best candidates to tour our offices and meet with our partners and staff. Our hiring
process includes a requirement to pass an accounting and auditing test in addition to the oral interview
process. We also recruit experienced staff through promotion of our firm and invitations to apply for

open positions.

CWA’S BUDGETING PRACTICES AND OVERRUN POLICY

CWA is the second largest firm in California conducting school district audits. Our firm partners and
managers have years of school district audit experience. We believe our proposed hours and budget are
reasonable and achievable. We do not bill for “extras” or failure on our part to budget properly. The
only time a fee change might be made is if the client significantly changes the scope of the engagement,
there are new or complex state/federal requirements or the client is unable to reasonably provide agreed
upon information in a timely manner. These types of events rarely happen from our experience. Should
an amendment on fees be required, we would meet first with the district to discuss the issues and agree
upon anew fee based on a mutual understanding and prior to incurring the added costs.

IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL AUDIT PROBLEMS

CWA is not content to simply identify problem areas that may exist in your organization, but seeks ways
to help provide solutions. If at any point during your audit we identify a problem or potential problem,
you will be notified and we will discuss a resolution to your problem that not only meets our
requirements but is designed to assist you to the smoothest implementation.



SCHOOL DHETRICT

5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

WORK PLAN FOR DISTRICT AUDIT AND ESTIMATED HOURS

The proposed work plan below shows the anticipated amount of work by major audit activity for the
District audit for fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 through 2015. These hours determine the audit fees we

proposed.

Audit Work Segments

Estimated Hours

of Completion

Estimated Hours

Audit Work Segments

of Completion

Planning, Supervision/Review
Planning
Audit Programs
Supervision and Quality Control Review
Contingencies/Subsequent Events & Related Parties
Fraud Risk Assessment
Board Minutes
Correspondence (including Confirmations)
Meeting and Preseniations
Entrance/Exit Conference
Other Meetings
Board Presentation
Internal Control Review
Internal Control Interviews and Documentation
Risk Assessment
Data Processing Review
Data Processing Interviews and Documentation
Transaction Testing
Cash Disbursements
Payrall
Cash Receipts
Journal Entries
Federal Single Audit
Planning

Testing of Major Programs

5
3
10

—

Noow oW

LS B - N

20

Cont'd next col.

19
-73-

State Compliance Testing
Attendance
All Other Areas
Substantive Testing Areas
Accounts Payable
Accounts Receivable
Analytical Review Procedures
Other Funds
Cash and Investments
Revenues
Fixed Assets
Fund Balance
Inventory
Long-Term Debt
Expenditures
Post-employment Benefits
Student Body Funds
Interfund Activity
Report Preparation and Review
Audit Reports Review and Opinions
Management Letters
Secretarial

Total Time

20

N o W o W Ut oo



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AUDITS AND SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE

All of CWA's partners and staff have experience in computerized financial systems. As part of every
audit, CWA evaluates the internal controls over key financial cycles and includes computer control
procedures. We work with clients on conversion issues and have worked on a variety of systems.

CWA has also consistently recommended “paperless” or near paperless systems with appropriate
operating controls (e.g. password protection, edit checks and supervision). As an example, for Stanislaus
County Office of Education we helped the county select online purchase order processing software that is
linked to the budget, finance and accounts payable systems. In Inglewood Unified School District, we
have automated the attendance accounting for 11 of the district's K-6 school sites and for the hourly

remedial programs that were manually kept.

Our partners are also experienced using state software, including SACS software. We have consulted
with school districts in the use of SACS software for the preparation of GASB 34 conversion entries and

reports.

We propose to conduct the audit engagement and submit the audit reports in compliance with the
instructions provided by the State Controller's Office.

CONSULTING SERVICES

In addition to the auditing services, we have provided in our proposed fee 8 free hours of consulting
services annually which may be utilized for any service that does not impair our auditor independence.
For example, we would be happy to provide free of additional charge in-service training on ASB, internal
controls or attendance accounting. In addition, we are always available without extra charge to field
technical questions. Should the District seek more services beyond those directly related to the audit
scope plus the 8 free hours provided, we would negotiate a contract for the added services based on
anticipated hours at our standard billing rates shown above.

CWA does not derive any income as a direct result in our involvement in
your audit other than the fees earned directly from the District for audit services.

20
-74 -



5) SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH (CONTINUED)

It is understood that the District reserves the right to reject this proposal and that this proposal will
remain open and not be withdrawn for a period of ninety days after the date scheduled for submission of
proposals.

The undersigned agrees to perform the audit services specified at a total cost not to exceed the amounts
shown below and including fifteen (15) copies of the Audit Report for the District, and copies of the
Audit Report to be filed with the County Office, State Departments and one (1) unbound report for
duplication purposes. In addition, CWA prepares without added charge the Federal Clearinghouse Data
Request Form at the conclusion of each audit and as required by OMB Circular A-133.

(Ao LAHTE

Christy White, CPA, President Date
Christy White Associates

April 10,2013

21
-75-



6) IDENTIFICATION OF ANTICIPATED
POTENTIAL AUDIT PROBLEMS

M

_76-



6) IDENTIFICATION OF ANTICIPATED
POTENTIAL AUDIT PROBLEMS

CWA believes that the conduct, skills and experience of its professional staff will keep potential audit
problems to a minimum. Nonetheless, audit problems may arise from time to time in the area of relations
with client staff, space and equipment arrangements at the client site, and coordination in completing the
annual financial statements.

We attempt to maintain positive working relations with client staff by providing detailed items requested
listings for interim and year-end fieldwork segments, and by conducting our work in an efficient and
organized manner while at the client site. This means consolidating our requests for supporting
schedules and source documents, and safekeeping any original documents in order to return them intact.
We utilize computing technology such as ProSystem Engagement to set up our trial balances and
leadsheets, and we use scanners to import source documents into our audit file. This computing
approach serves to make the audit process more efficient and effective, and we have found this also has a

positive impact on client relations.

Our usage of computing technology also minimizes the disruption at the client site for our staff to make
use of telephones and fax machines. Provided with a workspace, our audit staff has wireless Internet
connections (access to the Internet may be requested, but is not necessary), laptop computers, scanners,
printers, and other remote computing devices to minimize the disruption to client resources.

As the annual financial statements near finalization, coordination between the auditor and client is
important in order to ensure that all required elements are properly completed. From the issuance of
independent auditors’ reports, including management letters, to coordination on proper footnote
disclosures, coordination between applicable client staff and the auditor is valuable. We have found that
the key to avoiding problems as the audit process nears completion is open communication and dialogue
in order to keep the process moving along as efficiently as possible, and identifying and responding to
potential roadblocks that may arise, whether they are of a technical or an administrative nature. Our
experience in working with clients that prepare their own annual financial statements as well as those
that engage our assistance in developing the financial statement schedules is that open communication
and positive dialogue is key to making the audit finalization process as smooth as possible.

77
-77 -



CWA'’S REFERENCES

-78_



CWA'’S REFERENCES

RECENT ENGAGEMENTS: EXPERIENCE OF CWA STAFF
The listing below illustrates the depth and breadth of CWA’s experience as it relates to the proposed

audit of the District. Following on the next few pages are more detailed descriptions of governmental
audits, who among our propose audit team is involved and the client contact for a reference.

San Diego Unified School District (SDUSD)

CWA had provided since 2007-08 all independent audit services to SDUSD, the 2n largest school district
in the State. The District recently renewed, after competitive bid, CWA’s contract for a 5 year period
through 2015-16. The District has a budget of over $1.3 billion revenues annually. The District has an
active Audit Committee and we meet with them several times a year to review the audit scope, progress

and results.

In addition to the District’s financial and A-133 compliance audit, CWA conducts the annual financial
and performance audit over Proposition S Proposition 39 bond funds. The District has an authorization
of $2.1 billion and is issuing and expending hundreds of millions annually. The performance audit has
expanded scope requirements and we meet regularly, under the District’s directive, with their active

Citizens’ Oversight Committee.

CWA has delivered all audits on time and well ahead of past performance by the prior CPA firm,
according to the Audit and Finance Committee.

Below is contact information for SDUSD, and we encourage you to contact them for a reference.

Name of Entity: San Diego Unified School District
Contact Person: Jenny Salkeld, Chief Accountant
Lee Dulgeroff, Executive Director Proposition S Program
Address: 4100 Normal Street
San Diego, CA 92103-2682
Phone No.: 619-725-7667
Fax No.: 619-725-5510
Email: isalkeld@sandinet
ldulgeroff@sandi.net
Number of Years Using CWA's Services: 5

*** CWA provided all audit services to San Diego USD for the past 4 years. The District recently renewed a five
year contract with CWA after a competitive bid.

23
-79-



CALHHT OF 5OUTH M

CWA'’s REFERENCES (CONTINUED)

RECENT ENGAGEMENTS: EXPERIENCE OF CWA STAFF (CONTINUED)

Garden Grove Unified District (GGUSD)

CWA has been the independent auditor for GGUSD for the past eleven years. The audit services scope
for GGUSD includes these audits:

»  District financial and compliance audit, in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the K-12
Audit Guide

»  Proposition 39 financial and performance audit

» School readiness grant audits

GGUSD has approximately 60,000 pupils. Major federal programs tested have included; for example:
National School Lunch, Title ], Title II, Title Il and Special Education.

CWA has delivered all audits on time, and we encourage you to contact Nancy Mefford for a reference.

Name of Entity: Garden Grove Unified School District
Contact Person: Ms. Nancy Mefford, Director Fiscal Services
Address: 10331 Standord Ave.

Garden Grove, CA 92840
Phone No.: 714-663-6133
Fax No.: 714-663-6250
Email: nmefford@ggusd.net
Number of Years Using CWA's Services: 10
Total Staff Hours: 850

24

_.80_



PROVPOSAL I CLINION MIGH SCHOOL DNeTIeT

ki

CWA'’S REFERENCES (CONTINUED)

RECENT ENGAGEMENTS: EXPERIENCE OF CWA STAFF (CONTINUED)

Contra Costa County Office of Education (CCCOE)

CWA has been the independent auditor for CCCOE for the past six years. The audit services scope for
CCUSD includes the County's financial audit and compliance audits, in accordance with OMB Circular

A-133 and the K-12 Audit Guide.

CCCOE provides services to the county’s 252 schools or 18 school districts. Major federal programs
tested have included Special Education, National School Lunch, Adult Education, Title ], and Title X.

CWA has delivered all audits on time and we encourage you to contact Bill Clark for a reference.

Name of Entity: Contra Costa County Office of Education
Contact Person: Bill Clark, Associate Superintendent
Address: 77 Santa Barbara Road

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523
Phone No.: 925-942-3418
Fax No.: 925-945-1458
Email: belark@ceccoe k12.ca.us
Number of Years Using CWA’s Services: 6

75

-81-



AUTHT OF SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JO

CWA'’S REFERENCES (CONTINUED)

CWA references are provided in the preceding pages for the significant engagements. In addition, below

are more client references. We encourage you to contact any of our clients for a reference!

A Sampling of Recent Governmental Audits Completed By CWA

CWA Local Government Agency
Audit Clients

Fiscal Years Audited

Primary Contact

Telephone

County of San Diego Investment
Pool

Encinitas School District

Escondido Union High School
District

John Swett Unified School
District
Knightsen School District

La Mesa-Spring Valley School
District
Magnolia School District

Oceanside Unified School District

Santa Maria JUHSD

South San Francisco Unified

WestED (a JPA)

2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-

12

2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-

06, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09,
2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12

2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010~
11, 2011-12, 2011-12

2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-

10, 2010-11, 2011-12, 2011-12

2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-

12

2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-

06, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09,
2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12

2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-

07, 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10,

2010-11, 2011-12

2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-

08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11,

2011-12

2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-

12

2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-

08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11,

2011-12

2010-11, 2011-12

A
-82 -

Ms

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Ms

. Rebecca Shobe

. John Britt

. Nadine Kravietz

. Mike McLaughlin

. Teresa Sidrian

. Robyn Adams

. Kevin Smith

. Karen Huddleston

. Brenda Hoff

. Christine Gong

. Nancy Riddle

(619) 531-5687

(760) 944-4300

(760) 291-3214

(510) 245-4300

(925) 625-0073

(619) 668-5700

(714) 761-2771

(760) 757-2560

(805) 922-4573

(650) 877-8707

(415) 565-3000



FEE INFORMATION

,83_



FEE INFORMATION

FEE STRUCTURE FOR SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JoINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DisTRICT

We propose to conduct the audit engagement and submit the audit reports in compliance with the
instructions provided by the State Controller’s Office. Following is a list of personnel by classification
who will be assigned to the audits, indicating the estimated number of hours and rate per hour for the
audits. The rates below include charges for all the audits in the RFP. The hourly billing rates indicated in
the schedules below also apply to additional services not included in the original scope of work. -

Annual Independent Audit Proposed Fees

2012-13
Billing Estimated Multi-Year Discounted Fee
Classification Rates Hours 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Partner $ 185 20 % 3700 % 3,900 $ 4,100
Manager 145 40 5,800 6,100 6,400
Supervisor 125 80 10,000 10,500 11,000
Staff 95 100 9,500 10,000 10,500
Clerical Assistant 45 15 675 700 700
Totals Professional Fees 255 29,675 31,200 32,700
Plus: Actual and Reasonable Travel Costs 4,500 4,600 4,700
Totals Professional Fees - Multi-year Fee* % 34,175 $ 35,800 $ 37,400

* Includes all expenses associnted with the audit.

At CWA, we do not bill for extra services related to the scope of the audit or added costs (such as
printing). Our fees are all-inclusive and will not change unless there are significant changes in the scope
of the audits proposed, as imposed by state or federal agencies.

27
-84 -



APPENDIX

_85_



ADDITION AL INFORMATION

* RESUMES OF KEY AUDIT PERSONNEL
* QUALITY CONTROL REPORT OPINION
* INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

-86 -



RESUMES OF KEY AUDIT PERSONNEL

%KE

_87..



Audit and Review Services

Ms. White has twenty years of audit experience (in addition to 7 years consulting with LEAs) starting in
1986 with Coopers & Lybrand, an international CPA firm, progressing to Audit Manager at Matson &
Isom, a regional Northern California firm and now as CWA's audit partner in San Diego. Ms. White has
worked on over 250 school agency audits plus many governmental audits of cities, special districts, and
the Public Employment Retirement Service (PERS). The types of audits include:

* Financial statement audits * Internal control and data processing reviews
» Compliance and A-133 audits ¢ Fraud audits
* Special audits, including attendance

Management Consulting Services
Leading the consulting department at School Services of California, Inc. for seven years, Ms. White

worked with K-12 agencies in areas of:

* Budget development and planning »  Multi-Year financial projections
* Enroliment projections »  Fiscal support for negotiations
» Efficiency/ organizational studies » Salary, benefit and FTE surveys
* Interim business support services * Auditing and control analyses

AB 1200 fiscal reviews

* Unification feasibility studies

Workshops and Conferences
Ms. White authored and conducted 6 workshops statewide for School Services of California:

* Attendance accounting » State audits
» School district organization * Budget development
» Fiscal training for site administrators » Categorical program management

Currently, Ms. White presents annually Governmental Accounting for CASBO, ASB Accounting for the
Clovis County Office of Education and Boot Camp Training (School District Conference) for the California
Society of CPAs. Ms. White was the recipient of the 2006 Award for Outstanding Conference Volunteer
presented by the California Society of CPAs Educational Foundation.

The State’s Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) sponsored many of these
workshops. Ms. White also provides in-service training to her LEA clients as an additional service.

Continuing Education and Professional Associations

In addition to providing continuing education to other CPAs in the area of governmental audit and
accounting, Ms. White annually attends (as a member) school finance conferences, programs conducted
by the California Society of CPAs and conferences of the California Association of School Business
Officials (CASBO). CWA also conducts several days of school district audit in-service to our staff.

Education
Ms. White is a graduate of California State University, Chico. She earned her Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration with a concentration in Accounting in 1985 and became a CPA in 1988.

_88_



! ryj

MICHAEL D. ASH, CPA

EDUCATION
University of New Mexico, Albuquerque, NM, Bachelor of Business Administration with a concentration

in Accounting, May 1998, Graduated magna cum laude

EXPERIENCE
Prior to joining CWA in 2009, Michael had 13 years of public and private accounting experience,
including:

Hines Interests Limited Partnership, Houston, TX — a privately-owned, international real estate firm.

Approved and executed audit programs for property management and parking audit engagements
Performed testing of controls and reviewed work papers for Sarbanes-Oxley audit engagements
Assisted in construction audit engagements

Conducted audit planning, scheduling, staffing assignments, budgeting, and reporting

Developed audit staff through appropriate work assignments, training, and performance feedback
Generated reports out of Oracle-based accounting system

Investigated allegations of fraudulent activities at the company

Meyners + Company, LLC, Albuquerque, NM - a local accounting firm with over seventy professionals

that is an independent member of the BDO Seidman Alliance.

Supervised and directed staff accountants on audit engagements

Prepared and tracked audit engagement budgets

Drafted company financial statements and related disclosures

Identified client-specific accounting issues for manufacturing, healthcare and nonprofit clients
Provided client management with suggestions for improving internal controls

Arthur Andersen, Albuquerque, NM

Supervised and directed staff accountants on audit engagements

Drafted company financial statements and related disclosures for healthcare, manufacturing and
financial organizations

Assisted in auditing engagement areas for publicly-traded companies

Identified risks and developed specific programs to conduct audits in accordance with standards
Acted as liaison between clients and firm management

-89 -



YO

SARAH FIEHLER

Audit and Review Services
Ms. Fiehler has over three years of audit experience starting as a staff accountant in the fall of 2009 with
Nigro Nigro & White, PC CPA firm and is now a Supervisor for CWA in Alameda. Her experience from
working on a wide variety of school agency audits has provided her a strong understanding of local
educational agencies in the areas of accounts payable, cash, categorical programs, attendance accounting,
associated student body accounting, payroll and others. She is knowledgeable in California Education
Code and California School Accounting Manual. Ms. Fiehler has been engaged on several types of audits
including:

* Financial statement audits

*  Compliance audits

¢ Special audits, including attendance

» Internal control reviews

Ms. Fiehler has worked on clients in a variety of industries, including County Offices of Education,
multiple School Districts, Charter Schools and non-profit organizations.

In addition to her experience on audit engagements, Ms. Fiehler also has a leading role in the Federal
Clearinghouse submissions to the Federal Government for all CWA clients who receive an A-133 audit.

Continuing Education and Associations
Ms. Fiehler attends governmental and not-for-profit accounting and auditing conferences. She is a
participant in CWA'’s in-house training sessions for audit staff members.

Education
Ms. Fiehler is a graduate of California State University San Marcos in May 2009. At California State

University San Marcos, she earned a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration as well as a

minor in Dance.

_90_



RESUMES OF KEY AUDIT PERSONNEL (CONTINUED)

CWA staff work almost exclusively on K-12 audits and are trained one-on-one by our firm partners. Asa
result, our staff have quickly developed in their specialization. In addition to our partners and supervisor
assigned, the team of experienced assisting auditors include:

Auditors Assigned Educational Background Sample LEA Experience
Kristen Chacon, Senior »  Azusa Pacific University *  Pleasanton Unified, Pittsburg
Unified, Alameda Unified,
John Swett Unified, South San
Francisco Unified
John Coulter, Senior *  San Diego State »  Culver City, Santa Maria
University JUHSD, Santa Barbara City
Schools, Compton USD,
Grossmont-Cuyamaca CCD
Brian Badillo, Supervisor « (Califomnia State »  Sweetwater UHSD, Oceanside,
University, San Marcos Compton, South San
Francisco, Oak Park Unified,
San Diego USD

_91_



QUALITY CONTROL REPORT OPINION
—_— e

_92_



P | Jessic C. Povell, CPA
S PO\X/E“_ & SDAFFC’DD LLP Palrick D. Spoﬂovvd, CPA

' CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS itemd Ly the Colilewnics Fronnd f Avt by

Ml ez A baslibube 3 Casdifiood 10 Ay cansd e
System Review Report

To the Shareholder
Christy White, a Professional Accountancy Corporation
and the Peer Review Committee of the California Society of CPAs.

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Christy White,
a Professional Accountancy Corporation (the firm) in effect for the year ended December 31, 2010. Our
peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer
Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the
firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional
standards in all material respects. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the System
of quality control and the firm’s compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives,
scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the standards at

WWWw.aicpa.org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed under
Government Auditing Standards.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Christy White, a
Professional Accountancy Corporation in effect for the year ended December 31, 2010, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of
pass, pass with deficiency (ies) or fail. Christy White, a Professional Accountancy Corporation has
received a peer review rating of pass.

Sl ¢ S, S

March 22, 2011

664 W. Birch Courl ® San Bernopclino, CA 92410 » PO. Box 8847 Dec“cmds, CA 92375
Teleplmne 909-885-7721 * Fax 909-885-7541
- 9 3 -



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
———— ittt

-94_



DECLARATIONS

ACCOUNTANTS PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY

Policy Number: CAL108463-02

Effective Date: 08/01/2012 at 12:01 A M. Standard time at the address shown below
Expiration Date: 08/01/2013 at 12:01 A.M. Standard time at the address shown below
Retroactive Date: 08/01/2010

Item 1 - Named Insured: Christy White Accountancy Corporation

Item 2 - Business Address: 2727 Camino Del Rio S. #219

San Diego, CA 92108

Item 3 - Limits of Liability: $1.,000,000 Per Claim

$2.000.000 Policy Aggregate
Item 4 - Deductibles: $10.000 Per Claim Deductible
Item 5 - Total Premium: $14.701

Item 6 - The policy consists of this Declarations page. and the following policy forms and endorsements:

PL-1000-A Accountants Professional Liability Insurance Policy
PL-2001-A (CA) State Endorsement - California

PL-1026-A Limited Coverage for Known Claims

PL-1007-A Exclusion - Claims Following Insureds Suit for Fees
PL-1034-A Excluded Entities

NOTICE OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE- Coverage for acts of terrorism as defined under the Terrorism
Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (“TRIA™) is already included in your current policy. You should know that, effective
November 26. 2002, under your existing coverage, any losses caused by certified acts of terrorism would be partially
reimbursed by the United States under a formula established by federal law. Under this formula, the United States pays
90% of covered terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established deductible paid by CAMICO Mutual Insurance
Company. The portion of your annual premiun that is attributable to coverage for acts of terrorism is: $0.

PLEASE READ THESE DECLARATIONS, THE POLICY AND ENDORSEMENTS CAREFULLY.

CAMICO Mutual Insurance Company

Authorized Representative

PL-1001-A (rev. 03/08)

_95_



-~
TRAVELERS ]

. WORKERS COMPENSATION
ONE TOWER SQUARE

AND
HARTFORD, CT 06183 EMPLOYERS LIABILITY POLICY

TYPE v INFORMATION PAGE WC 00 00 01 ( A)

POLICY NUMBER: (IJUUB-4493R1 8-5-11)
RENEWAL OF (IVUB-4493R18-5-10)

INSURER: TRAVELERS PROPERTY CASUALTY COMPANY OF AMERICA

] NCCI CO CODE: 13579
INSURED: PRODUCER:

CHRISTY WHITE ACCOUNTANCY i PAYCHEX INS AGENCY INC

2727 CAMINO DEL RID S, STE 219 150 SAWGRASS DR

SAN DIEGO CA 92108 ROCHESTER NY 14620

Insured is A CORPORATION
Other work places and identification numbers are shown in the schedule(s) attached.

2. The policy period is from 08-15-11 to 08-15-12 12:01 A M. at the insured's malling address.

3. A. WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE: Part One of the policy appiies ta the Workers
Compensation Law of the state(s) listed here:

CA

. B. EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE: Part Two of the policy applies to work in each state listed in
item 3.A. The limits of our liability under Part Two are:

Bodily injury by Accident: $ 1000000 Each Accident _ !
Bodily Injury by Disease: $ 1000000 Policy Limit
Bodily Injury by Disease: $ 1000000 Each Employee |

: . |
C. OTHER STATES INSURANCE: Part Three of the policy applies to the states, If any, listed here:

AL AR AZ CO CT DC DE FL GA HI IA ID IL IN KS KY LA MA MD ME MI MN

MO MS MT NC NE NH NJ NM NV NY OK OR PA RI SC SD TN TX UT VA VT WI
wv

NIRRT A <

D. This poﬁcy includes these endorsements and schedules:

SEE LISTING OF ENDORSEMENTS - EXTENSION OF INFO PAGE

The premium for this policy will be determined by our Manuals of Rules, Classifications, Rates and Rating i
Plans. All required information is subject to verification and change by audit to be made ANNUALLY .

LTI 1)

DATE OF ISSUE: 07-01-11 MK
OFFICE: PAYROLL 70A i
PRODUCER: PAYCHEX INS AGENCY INC SV996 ’ _‘
-96- ?

249




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Williams 3" Quarter Report MEETING: May 15,2013

AGENDA SECTION: CJ ACTION

X INFORMATION

(J ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings

X Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

1

I

Summary:
Attached is the Willjams 3" Quarterly Report on items completed for fiscal year 2012-2013.

Recommendation:
This is an information item only.

Fiscal Impact:
None at this time.

Submitted By: Approved:

. IR
A [V " -

Director of MOTF Daniel R. Moirao Ed.D.
97 State Administrator




Monterey County Office of Education

Leadership, Support, and Service to Prepare All Students for Success

Dr. Nancy Kotowski
County Superintendent of Schools

April 18, 2013

Dr. Daniel Moirao

Superintendent

South Monterey County Joint UHSD
800 Broadway Street

King City, CA 93930

Dear Dr. Moirao:

California Education Code Section 1240 requires that the County Superintendent of Schools visit schools identified
for compliance review in accordance with the Williams and Valenzuela Settlements and report to you the results.
am pleased to provide, for submission to your governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting, the third quarterly
report for fiscal year 2012-2013 as required by Education Code section 1240(c)(2)(G) pursuant to the Williams and
Valenzuela Settlements. This report presents the results of the review of the South Monterey County Joint USD

for the period of January through March, 2013.
The purpose of the review visitation(s) as specified in California Education Code 1240 was to:

1. Determine if students have “sufficient” standards-aligned instructional materials in four core
subject areas (English language arts, mathematics, history/social science and science), including
science laboratory equipment in grades 9-12, and, as appropriate, in foreign languages, and health;

2. Determine if there is any facility condition that “poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health
or safety of pupils or staff™;

3. Determine if the school has provided accurate data on the annual school accountability report card
related to the sufficiency of instructional materials and the safety, cleanliness, and adequacy of
school facilities, including “good repair”; and

4. Determine the extent to which pupils who have not passed the California High School Exit
Examination (CAHSEE) by the end of grade 12 are informed that they are entitled to receive
CAHSEE intensive instruction and services for up to two consecutive years after completion of
grade 12 and the extent to which pupils who have elected to receive services are being served.

The law further requires that the County Superintendent:

1. Annually monitor and review teacher misassignments and teacher vacancies in schools ranked in
deciles 1-3 (2009 Base API);

2. Receive quarterly reports on complaints filed within the school district concerning insufficient
instructional materials, teacher vacancies and misassignments, emergency or urgent facilities

901 Blanco Circle « P O. Box 8085! & Salin~ 98 793912-0851 & www.monterey.ki2.ca.us
Salinas: 837 755 (1300 a Mnrrmioro. Q21 272 00ELE . ... 091 759 7000



issues, and CAHSEE intensive instruction and services under the Uniform Complaint Procedure;
and

3. Review audit exceptions under expanded authority in the areas of use of instructional materials
program funds, teacher misassignments, and information reported on the school accountability
report card and determine whether the exceptions are either corrected or an acceptable plan of
correction has been developed.

While the Uniform Complaint data is not mandated to be a part of this report, it is included so that you and the
citizens of our community will have a complete understanding of the environment in which the district is

functioning.
Definitions of basic terms are as follows:

* “Sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means each pupil, including English language learners,
has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home.

* A school facility condition that poses an “emergency or urgent threat” is a “condition that poses a threat to
the health or safety of pupils or staff while at school.”

*  “Good Repair” means the school facilities are clean, safe and functional as determined pursuant to the
school facility inspection and evaluation instrument developed by the Office of Public School
Construction [the Facility Inspection Tool (FIT)] or a local evaluation instrument that meets the same
criteria. Each school district that receives state funding for facilities maintenance is required to establish a
facilities inspection system to ensure that each of its schools is maintained in “good repair.”

* The meaning of each overall rating:
o Exemplary: The school meets most or all standards of good repair. Deficiencies noted, if any, are

not significant and/or impact a very small area of the school.

o Good: The school is maintained in good repair with a number of non-critical deficiencies noted.
These deficiencies are isolated, and/or resulting from minor wear and tear, and/or in the process
of being mitigated.

o Fair: The school is not in good repair. Some deficiencies noted are critical and/or widespread.
Repairs and/or additional maintenance are necessary in several areas of the school site.

o Poor: The school facilities are in poor condition. Deficiencies of various degrees have been noted
throughout the site. Major repairs and maintenance are necessary throughout the campus.

Findings are as follows:

* Instructional Materials — Sufficient.

* Facilities-- See Attached Report.

* School Accountability Report Card — See Attached Report.

*  Teacher Misassignments and Teacher Vacancies — Sufficient.

*  Uniform Complaint Procedure ~No complaints were received during this quarter.
* Valenzuela/CAHSEE Intensive Instruction and Services Program — Sufficient.

..99_



Please extend to your governing board, administration and site staff my appreciation for their professionalism in
addressing the compliance requirements for the Williams and Valenzuela Settlements Legislation.

Sincerely,

Nancy Kotowski, Ph.D.
Monterey County
Superintendent of Schools

-100-



[Jo [ o8eq

-101-

a41SOd LON D¥VS
_ £1/9/¢€ Y3IH A1 Sury

ddISOd 1ON DUVS _
| £1/9/¢ YBIH pleyuseIn

.. Tredar poo3,, Surpnjour ‘SanI[IoR} [00Y0S JO Aoenbape pue
‘SSauIUes|d ‘A19Jes pue sjelsjew [EUIORONOSUL pue $300q1xa) Jo Aousiorgns 105 pejrodar UOLBULIOJUL 3U3 JO A0BINOJR 3]} SUIILIAISP 0] PamalAal
19/ S]00Y0S FUIMOI[O] 2y} 10] (ITeak [00Y3s €10Z-210Z 2y3 Suwmp paystiqnd) (OYVS) pien Hodey AMiqeIunoooy 100Y0S Z102-1107 Y.

HOUVS) @IVD L904dTd ALI'TIIINNODDV TOOHDS

€107 'TrIdV
LOTYLSIA TOOHDS HOIH NOIN/1 LNIOIL AINNOD ATYAINOW HINOS Q04 LIOdTI ATHALIVNO ITH.L

NOLLVISIOAT INANATLLAS SINVITTIA

SIO0UICT IO 1UADIAIITT I Cavres v ov L oo



# 30 1 a8eg

'100Yds 3e afiym jyess 10 sidnd jo Kiajes io Hieay 2y 01 Jea1y) e s350d Jey) UONIPUOD AJ1[10€] € Sugaw Luonipuod Souaflawg .,

"EHRILID QUIBS 3U] S)93L JBY1 TUBWINASU] UOIEN|RAD |B20[ ® 10 uonanusuoy)
100U2S 91[qnd Jo 230 2y Aq padojanap Juawnysur uoen(eaa pue uopdadsuy Arj1oe) jooyas qu:cm:mSaqu:tBunmm_m:o:o:EUcm eam.:mu_ou._mmuw.:u&uEm:muE;:maEvooO:*

S80BUNS Joudjy| | “(plezey du)) senem pue sies) sey jadien G0z Wy

SBOBLINS JouajU| . ‘(piezey duy) senem sey jedien 20z wy
€i-/2-C paoejdas sy Buipan S32BLINS 1013U) "sa|f} Buyieo sujeys sajepp Ewmm_wnmi
R ‘(piezey diy) senem pue E
OBHNS Jousiu| slea) Jadies ‘son Buyjie0 sujels 191epn 901 wy
SOBUNS JOUBU| ‘Piezey duysanem pue siea) jedien 1O wy
. ‘sanea/siapnbysinods Buipng
SIEUSIEIN snopiezeH umop uo Bujiead Juey uuwipy
. IETER)
€1-22-¢ paoe(das a3 Buljien S90BLINS J0LB)U| sa)i} Buiieo suieys Jerepp eIpay
o ] ‘s1apnb pue sinods umop uo Buisadiueg .
cl-e-1 panedaypaseidas sjyb S|eUale snoplezey '(eoujos|g 'IOM J0U Op 0o} UeW Uo SYB| swog Aeigi n_/_
o . uayouM o
€1-/2-¢ paoceidal ay Buyen S30BLINS JOWaU| sa|n Buyiao suie)s sayepp 2010 S
€1-22-2 paiedas jlepp SUIBILUNO4/SYUIS '190nej Japun |lem uo sbewep Jsiepp sbe.ojs t
: : : uelpoisny
, "Buissiwypabewep s souequs apis
ZhG-11 pade|dal sy Buijiag mmucmn_\mmwmo.\m_oon_\wson:_g 1S8Mm U0 Joop Jopau) ‘usyolq st dojs Joop uolun
S22BUNS loya}u| A juspnis
1us spisino ayy Buljieo sueys isjepp
SUIBJUNOH/SHUIS ‘Buissiw s1 100p deojpuey Y s
-c- d . SH
Z1-G-L1 paoceldas apy Buyien S92BHNSG JOL3)Y| Aemjley u) sajy Buijieo uo Sule}s Jsjepp 9olo/aeT | zivLg playusal

-M0[3q pajou se ., AouaBIsws,, ue asod 1o #.J12d2I P03

» Ul 1M Aayy 1otoym ‘sanfroey Jo uonipuos 10] PaM3IASI 310M S[00YDS

‘SHLLITIOVA TOOHDS

£107 TRIdY
LOINLISIA TOOHDS HOIH NOINN ANIOL AINNOD ATYAINOW HINOS dOJ LHIOdHT ATIALIVNO QUL

NOLLVISIOAT INITWATLLAS SIAVITTIM

SIO0UHIC 10 103 DA AT ey Cavrss v P o 3



 Jo 7 a8eq

100405 1e 311ym J3e3s 1o sidnd jo Kajes 10 Yieay 2y 01 1ealy € sasod 1Y) uonIpuos ANJIOT] E SUBSW _UOHIPUOY Aousdiawug ,,

BLISILID aWwes ay) $199W Tey) Juawumsu; uonen[eAa [820] © 10 UonINISU0)
3 s HLLLIR13P SB [RUONOUNY pUB 2jes “UBa|d a1 San||19e) Ay sueaw .Aredat poony .,

TR e
'SI8U2Bs(q U0 sp.Ieoq
pebewep :spjay jegeseg pue |jeqyog

"uoneoo| ajod jjeghajop SUNoo
SPuno.b jooyos/punosbAelq @ 814 189100 Buiss|w :sunoo [leqiayseq ioopIngp

OVAH/HOIW | "uogeijusa sanag spasu woos [eamaslg | doyg oy

€l-12-¢ paoe|dal spieog

[45° 0l %" paoejdai s Bunien S8deuns Jousiul | Aemjjey spisino sayy Bulieo suwiess Jaepp wmwhmcdw_>
suielUNO4/syuIS Hom jou L_M_M%oﬂ

. : S80p jaoney ise| ‘uleluno) Jousixa Buissipy S.UBWIOM,
paitedal uiejunoy ‘Item uo eseq je Buyes) ‘suiejunoy wooy
choor psoe|das sisjqang SUIRUnoy/syUIS Bupiuup Jopaixe uo Jajqang Burssipy me“ww,w

S8oeUNg Joudul | (prezey duy) senem pue siesyseyjadien | g0g wy-g

-103-
|

S8%BUNG Joudul | “(prezey duy) sanem pue sies) seyjadie) | gpg wy-g

S ‘sajoy/Bunelolisiap/senea

_ lougixa J9pun Isny | €09 Wy-g
SNOPIEZEH 'S80BLINg Joua)u| (piezey duj) ssnem pue sies; sey jadien

S80BUNS Jousiu| | (piezey duy) senem pue siea) sey jadien $0Z Wy

) (LNODJ SH
$908/ING 10l18jU] (pyezey duj) sanem pue sies) sey jadien €02 Wy cLvL8 Em_u:mm@

-MO[3q pajou se ., Aouaiows,, ue asod 10 . dTeda1 poo3

» UL 313m ASy3 10(paym ‘sanqioey o UOTHPUOD 10] PaMIIARI 91am S]00YDG

*SALLI'TIOVA TOOHDS

2102 1equandag - 1sn3ny jo syjuow
: HI'AA 31} JO s)nsal oy sezirewwns 1odal SIy I

t107 TRIdV
LIOIAISIA TOOHDS HOIH NOINN INIOL AINNOD XA, JAINOW HLINO0S Y04 LI0dTd ATIILIVNO QIIH.L

NOLLVISIOAT INIINATLLAS SINVITTIM

SIOOUIC 10 1ITIATNIIA I v acd o Poacoee . op



+ Jo ¢ a8e(

100438 18 211y jyess o sjidnd jo Siajes 10 yijeay auy 0 jeaiy ¢ sasod YeLy) uontpuod A1j1oey € sueaw _uonipuod Adudglawg.,

"BLIALID awes A1 s122uW eyt juaunnsul uonenjeaa [ed0] e 10 uonannsuo;

10043 211qnd Jo sa1y O ayr £q padojaaap wawnnsur uonenjeas pue uonsadsul A1tj1oe) j0oyds 2y o) Juensind PRUILLIAIAP SB [BUOIIDUN] PUR AJES "URA[D 3IE sanifioe) ay sueaw _tredal poony..,

Z2L-L1-6 psoe|dal yuIg SUlBlUNC/SUIS ‘syuls pabeweq Y shog
‘Ino
€1-01-1 sduwej paoeiday [Eau813 st [aued 1By suo - Bunyby arenbapeu 05} wy
sbeweq jeinonng "1apialp wool pafieweq 2zl wy
‘(Jayoee] pue sjuepnis
cl-e-1l pauedas yun OVAH/HOINW 01 an0EASIP) PRoj AJeA S Jun Bupesyy chlwy
ujebe e91198 ‘wool 0] eale w
¢i-6c-8 panoWal pJod UoISUaIXT |EaL108I3 9310 3oeq woJy Buiuuni pioo uoisug)xg bl uy
FETGE)
EH0b-t padeidal sa)y Bujied S90BHNS JoLau| 1BOL}08|2 punole syl Buljiao sujess Jajepp €0} uy
- Jawiwins buunp ‘(p1ezZEy
Eb-cy paoce|dal aq 0} s19)207 SOJBUNS JoLayul Anfur) Buipnioud By usyouq ‘juag $19%007
S|EU3JE N Snoplezey ‘Buiias uo Buiddiyo jurey a4 shog
, =
Zh-L2-8 paieday OVYAH/HOIW ‘Buniomjou uepisneyxg | yy spio <
9800| pue Buissiw S -
2i-12-8 paoe|day say Bujian SB0BUNS JOLBJU| sal Buniso/sen mc___mu_wnc_mﬂm o1EM wniseuwin 4_1
a spunoigy jooyag/spunosbiely |
¢l-9-01L palleday ‘se0eINg Joua| Ajua 1som je Bupies) s uteunoy Bupjungg Bl8)BED
UOIIBIS8JU| UILIBAASaY ‘PIBOgSSEq Ul Sajwe | L6} Wy
"slopunb uo Buissiu | dOHS/E8]
sbeweq [einjonng SpJens :ajoN ‘sj{em pue Japeay jo1 Al wy
abewep |einpnig 'SWeaq Jouaixa uojol Aig | g} wy ZL/SL/8 SH buwﬂww

~MO[3q pajou se . AoudBiowa,, ue asod 10 , iredar Poo3,, ur a19m £ayy 1ay1oym ‘SONI[IOL] JO UOTITIPUOD 10] PaMIIASI S1oMm $]00Ydg

'SALLITIOVA TOOHDS

'T10¢ oquuadag - 1snSny Jo syjuow

Y 10§ (IdV aseq 6007) S[00Yds ¢ pue ‘T ‘1 S9[193p 1B Smalaal UOLBIUSWNDIOP PUB SHISIA S SWEIIA 9y} JO s} nsa1 oy} sezireuruns 11odal STy

€107 TIRIdV
LOIYLSTIA TOOHDS HOIH NOIN. INIOL AINNOD ATHAINOW HINOS 04 JHOdTI A THALIVNO CIIHL

NOLLVISIOAT INTNATLLAS SINVITTIM

SINDNDIIZYCI TN T TIATYIT 22 vy vom oY o — P



b JO - 93k

100425 1 3jiym jyess 1o sjidnd jo K1a7es 10 yieay 343 03 Yeatyy e sasod 1eyy uonipued AN[198) € sugAw Jvonipuod duadipwg.,,

.mm._vu.—.uu awres Ayl s1aaw u_m_.: :._DED\:mC_ :O._um:_m>u _muo_ B IO :O:U_‘Egmco,\u
100428 d1qnd Jo 33130 ay1 Aq padoje

AP JUAWNNSUL UOITEN[BAD pue uopdadsul Aoy [00yas ay 0y uensind PRUIULINAD SB [BUONDIUN PUE 2jTS "UBA[D are SanIog] ayl sueaw siedas poon)..,

£1-C-v pasiaay

1
Lo
o
—
1
SUlBIUNO4/SYUIS ‘pabewep aJe sjooney om| s cw%oi
(LNOD
‘laued jyby 6
S99BUNS Jousuy Ul Sulels seiep *Aijua Joop Aq uiom 100)4 ELL Wy ¢HsL/g | SH RO Bury

-MO[3q pajou se ., Aouafiows,, ue asod 10 e

Iredar poo3,, ur axom Loy 19UIAYM “SANI[IB] JO UONIPUOD I0] PIMITADI 1M §

[00yog
*SHILI'TIOVA TOOHDS

'T10C 13quandag - 1snSny jo syjuow
o 101 (IdV 2seg 6007) Sjooyos ¢ pue ‘7

[ S9[I99P J& smaraar uonejuawmOOp pue SISIA QS SsureIm oYl JO synsal oyl sazuewuwns 1rodas SIy L

£€107 TRIdV

00 AFYAINON HINOS YO LMOJITY A TIALY VIO CUIHL
NOLLVISIOAT INTINATLLAS SINVITTIM

SIOOUNC IO 13N T2 38y vaclom —~ e om



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Monthly Cash Flow Report MEETING: May 15, 2013

AGENDA SECTION: (J ACTION

X INFORMATION

CJ ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summa,

The attached Cash Flow as of the end of April, 2013 indicates a positive cash balance on June 30 of
$142,042.92. This cash flow projection includes the cash payment from the State for Prop 30 revenues for
2012-13 of approximately $2,286,378. This payment is to be made on June 27, 2013.

Recommendation:

Information only.

Fiscal Impact:

Submitted By: Approved:

/
~i
/ / /
(}/’ l// .,{:_/\,,4(./1‘ ‘ 7 /\ /(/‘de fw

._1%7,&,/:_1“\@ A /kJKZU "Z’r{{.,/‘"75“’;5[/%//5/3/»/ , :
i '

Lindi;)Grundhoff'er, Interim CBO f Daniel R. Moirao, State Admm]strator

-106-



Nd 0Z:¢t €£102/4/5 ‘pajuld

2 jo | abeg

(z102/90/90 AsY) yses

0'2'2102 - a1emyos Buipoday |e1ouBul S

uoneanp3 jo 1daq ejuIo,

SLNIWLSNArav ANV SIVNNODY
, . : S S . . , HSVD SN1d 'HSYD ONIANT 9
(60°Lp6'998) (2vzLB'EsT) €9°ESB'S/T | (85" vv0'2S0'L) (89°2£5'€9z) . (0S"vBE vE) (21°29£'269) v1'686 ¥2S (3 + V) HSVD ONIONT 4
(29'v/6'269) (S0'9z8'62 ') 128682282 (06'905'98/) (8Levi'6ee) 29216299 (9z9se’z1g'L) vE'L9S0EL ({@+0-9)
A T ISY3IHUOIA/ASYIHON] 1IN '3
(p0°0LE792] (9z'zz8] 89'906'2Z} (Sp'68Y'SES) 20°S£8'00E v0'Z817ECE 25°/GET/GE v0'L2Z 1BY S9pLL'ELO} SNOILOVSNYYL
133HS JONVYIVE TVLiOL
{9z°278) 0L66 Buues|) esuadsng
mc:m._mmocoz
(96°09¢) 000 (os°619'8S}) 10'2839'81 (vE'252'v02) G9'8€0'9.9 8v'£60'Sze BE'L8L'BLE 88'220'v 9y S3LLNIgYI TvLol8ans
0896 S8nuUanay palisjag
0y96 SueoT Juaing
2.669'tLe 00'0 2L'669'1g 0.96 Spund JayjQ o1 ang
{96'99¢€) 00°0 (zz'61£7081) 10°289'81 (vE 1527p02) S9'8€0'929 8v'€60'52¢ 8€'181'8LE g1'€2e'zry 6656-0056 a|geded sjunoosoy
: sahigen
{00°222792) 000 (zgzrs'se) (rp'208'919) 89°L.L0°20F 69°02Z' 666 00°15p'28S Zv'80p'600"L €5 LELLELZ S13SSV v.LoL8ns
[8)45:] S1assy jusuung Jsyio
0£Eh sa.nypuadx3 piedaiy
0z¢e6 Sal0ig
£9°0Ly'8E 000 £9°0Ly'8E 0LEB Spund JayjQo wol4 ang
(00°z22%92) 000 (Sy'ezips) (bv°208'91G) 89°220°Z01 69'022'666 00°'15v'28S Zv'80v'600"L 06'92.'860°¢C 6626-00Z6 8|geAladay sjunoaoy
000 000 66L6-LLLB Ainseal] uloN ysen
S}8ssy
ISNOILOVSNVYYL L33JHS ION' + 31°Q
oy'vi8'9LE") €e'zi0'LLe’e 09°221'SsS SE'029'982"L £5°8v2'909'2 SOEEroeet EINZEESTA SZ'LLOTYY E SINaWISHNaSId T Dy T
000 000 669.-0£92 sas Buoueul4 Jay m v
6292-009. INO sJgysuely pur |y
91°69.'62 ¥Z'ZEQ00} 69'2r8'SZ (8v'622'sz) by 66Z'G06 £L°8y1'8E 66v2-000L oBIno Jaylo
6659-0009 Aepno reyden
6665-0006 S20IM88
LS ISP V6L 0E'szy'L52 YA GL'169'Z82 6L°L86'POV 95°012'6p1 0v'622'L5¢ SE'L/E°9Z1 666¥-000v s9||ddng pue sxyoog
08'8Lp°1EC SZL0F'pIp 8S'6LGCL 88'ZEP'BYE EVLSY LYE 92'Lp0'25¢E €2'v06'€9¢E LLYbY'S6 666€£-000€ sjyauag sskoldwg
Z9'v61°59t 16°'809°CL1 82°L95' 11z LB'PLB'OLL 0S'€8LpLL Bp°0L8'8LL £2°0L7'881 ZB'SEryLL 6662-000Z Sayeles paysse|n
LE'086'SS9 €9°¥pSLET [ZAN: T 66'018°€0L 1692 WL L v.'01£'959 90'L 18229 LE'BSL'SOL 6661-000} ssle|es pajeayipsd
SLINIWISHNAESIA O
LL'60€£'099 #S'800'878 ELPLLT08L'2 06'209'EE0’L ££'0,2'090'2 £9'€eZ 189"l (£9'6F1'66) (Sp'88G'gLL) S1dI303Y Iv1OL
6.68-0E68 s22un0g Bupueulq 18Y)0 |V
00'29v'8e 000 6268-0168 Ul SIBJSUBL) puUNpa)u|
S1'916'98 6EPPE'EEL z0'125'86 62'025 Lve LE'9Z8'LGE £Evy6'0y €8°0Er v L9'8ESY 6648-0098 anuanay |e207 48410
8v'0Z6'ELL S6Br8'1SZ 0€'69Z' PE+ L9'LYE'EBE 00°£6V°LZS 00°08}'9z¢ 00°009°81 6658-00€8 anuanay alels Jayio
(vS'G20'pL) ObLvp'L91 Zv'SBSEAL [CEEE) £9'CEE"LS 00'7.S'96 00°LLE"} {o0'vsE'LE) 6628-0018 anuanay (elapa
S9'LEL'T 1Z2'E8L'C 000 000 000 000 000 000 6608-0808 Spun4 snosue||aosiy
£0'Lp6'2e} £8'269°0¢ 6€°,82'02E'C 06'Z1€'50Z 6E'6v1L°02 0£'969'6 (9v'525'1Z) BE'GPY'L 6,08-0208 saxe | Auadoid
00°856'6v2 00'€68'1.92 004Gp'LE S6'vZE'662 00'¥9¥'60E' 00'628°202"1 (00°920'29) {00°czy'28) 6108-0108 Juswuolpoddy (edidud
S30IN0S JIWIT BNUBABY
S1di303Y ‘9
(zv'zia'est) €9'E98'GLZ | (88'vb0'250'T) (89°ZESE9Z) (0S'v6Ep2) (21°,9€7269) v1'686'v2S 08°L2Y'¥BE : HSYDO ONINNIO3F 'Y
. g : o SRR : : HO HLNOW 3HL HONOMHL STvNLOV
Kieniqaq Alenuep Jaquiadsaq laqwanoN 183qojoQo Jaquwaidag 1snbny Anp
HSVD wio4

0000000 89099 /2

(1) Jeap 19Bpng - 198ysyiop mojysed

140d3H WIMTLINI €1-2102
uonosfoid JeaA JO pul

Alunog Aassiul
uBiH uowin or Alunog Asssiuop yin



Wd 02:Z1 €L0Z/LIS PRI 2 10 z sbeg {2102/90/90 A9Y) 1usen
0'2'2102 - a4em)yos Buinoday (epueuy

uolieanp3 4o 1daq eju.c

(86'829'991) B SINIWLSNray aNnv SvNaddvY
HSVD SNd 'HSYD ONIANT ‘D
- ) - : Z6Zr0ert (Se'ger'vos'L) {(61°9v9708S) (ze'086'89€71) {3+ V) HSYD DNIGNT 4
000 (82790171 9g) 000 (06712280¢) L2 HES9p0 L (9172p8ECE) €L'pEC 8L (E2'EE0'ZeS) {a+0-4)
ISVYIHUOIA/ISYIUONI LIN '3
18'820°cyS' 000 000 000 000 (v2012'8) 91'E5y'€9E SNOILOVSNYYL
o 133HS IONYIVE V104
B C&ZR) 000 0166 Bunes|) ssuadsng
mc:m\_mmocoz
0€298°615 000 000 000 000 {9z°56) (91'v62'pSE) S3ALLINGYIT IVLOLENS
000 0896 sanuanay paulsaq
000 0v96 SueQT juaung
2L'669'LE 0196 spun4 18ylQ o) ang
85291 86 (9z°56) (9162 vSE) 6656-0056 3|qedeqd sjunooay
sanqgen]
£5ELL'E0C 000 000 000 000 {00'90€76) 00'651'6 S13SSY v.l0L8ans
000 ove6 sjassy Juaiung Jayjo
B [ 0EE6 saunypusdx3 pledaly
- 1000 0z£6 s2.015
RS CEO YA 000 000 000 0L£6 Spun4 JayiQ woli4 ang
B U [T (00'90£76) 00'651'6 6626-0026 9|qBAIS09Y SjUNOJoY
"2 1000 66L6-LL16 Ainseas | ujjoN ysen
Sjossy
SNOILOVSNVYYL 133HS 30NV Iva 'af !
000 00°009'8Z} 8t 000 9ELBELL8'T By 20¥'098 ES'pPSH'EBE | 99°€L9She t LE'08LGBS L SINIWISHNESIQ TV1OL %
000 669.-029/ sasn Bupueugssyio vy | o
00°198°cE+ 00'198°EE} 629.2-0092 INQ sJ49ysuedy punuaiu) l
00'699'€S9'+ 2.'955'991 LeLog'ze LEP0E'ZE 0L'p9E'6 8.°6L2'68E 66v£-000L oBing s2ul0
000 000 6659-0009 Aenno |enden
000 000 6665-0005 sa0lneg
00'902°252'v 19°968°009"L £5°GZL'S0E 96 105 ZEE S8'096'S6 9.°2vS901 6665-000p sal/ddng pue syoog
00'29.'€20'C 00°000'0€ 0SSy ISy 89162192 8L LLL'GYE vy ELO'9LE 666£-000¢ sjyauag sakojdw]
00'ESp'zal'g £0'8E6'62 96'p10°2Sk V9111061 BV PELLLL 2L LYE'SEL 6662-0002 saue|es payisse|)
00'6v1'206'9 000 gL'6SE' L0 V6 p8L L8y vO'EPYEOL 19°9E5°869 6661-0001 Sale|eg psjesyal)
SLNIWISHNAESIO D
000 SZ'p9v'vZ0 oL 000 9v°699'895 '+ S/°8E6'905°¢ /E£219°69¢ €5°8SLEPDC Z6'E6Z0LL S1di303d V101
oo 6.68-0£68 $82.n0¢ Buueul4 Jayo v
000 (z6'zv1 1Y) 26'0892 6269-0168 U] sisjsues punpuaiul
22512558 000 000 19'60v'0Z Z1'£99'29 66.8-0098 anuaAay |e207 JaYI0
£0°510'955'C vOELE 2L 9p°599°221 9709118 6'L15'6E2 ¥9'0v0'EVE 6658-00€8 anuanay alels JsyiQ
00'0EZ'69V'L 6982 BEY 8L°ZPO'VEL 88'bbP 882 001226 66'802 691 6628-0018 anuanay |eiapa
[EEICK] 000 00'0 90'151e 98'Zrl'z 6608-0808 SpuUn4 snoaue|aosiiy
8v'082'8¢p'y {267¢) €49 20'652'204°1 6£'608'98 6£08-0208 saxe ) Apadoig
89'809'907'9 €L°1.r'986 00'8£'982°2 00°0pS'EL 00'8YLERL 6108-0108 Juswuotloddy (eduid
S82JN0S JwIT anuaaay
S1d1303Y '8
B GRS (61'979708S) {z€'086'89€"1) (60°2Ly6'9P8) : HSYO DONINNIO3IE 'Y
: : ; o T i (sweN yjuow 1BjuI)
, ¥ : o : (o p e . ; DR HO HINOW 3HL HONOYHL SIVYNLOY
Lanana VLol sjusuisnlpy s{enJooy aunp Rep idy youep FEEICTS)

HSVO wio4

(1) 183 19BpNng - 188USHIOM MOUSED
180d3Y WIY3LNI £1-2102
uonaalold Jea s 10 Du3a

Alunon Aassit

0000000 89099 /¢ ubiH uown wor AjunoD Assajuopy Uy



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNING BOARD
SUBJECT: Monthly Board Report of Revenues and MEETING: May 15,2013
Expenditures
AGENDA SECTION: - (J ACTION

X INFORMATION

J ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures
Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:

The Board Report of Revenues and Expenditures is provided monthly for the Board’s information. This report
reflects known changes in revenues and expenditures as of April 30, 2013. The district continues to anticipate
a positive ending fund balance in the General Fund.

Recommendation:

Information Only

Fiscal Impact:

3
5

Submitted By: Approved:

p / )
~ } / | Fetdon s 4 \)7 .
/\‘(/ e d_ 7 (LA //’ﬁ NCAL L,(ct A LQ/(\ 4 Lu‘u(,,&{
Linda Gmndhoffer “Interim CBO [ ,/ / Daniel R. Moirao, State Administrator

-109-



(6£°¢)

(€111L'es)

00°0% [$°S9TEL1S [$°S9T°E11$ 8EPSS60TS 00°00Z°66% SONUIASY [BI0T 2O ||V 00

000 - (91°0%) 00°0% 9196£°S$ 91'96€°S$ 00'96€°S$ 00°0% SV ueamiag SadIAIaS AdusBRIRU] (),
(S5°991) (9¥'€66'8$) 00°0% 9 E6EPLS 9 E6EPLS 00°00%°S$ 00°00%°S$ Isalaiul QO
0I'zE 69°T90°LS 00°0% [€LEG VTS [E°LEG YIS 00°000°C$ 00°000°ZC$ S[EIUY pue SasBaT (0
(00's€)  (T6°spE'6$) 000% 26'Sv0'9¢$ 26'SH0°9¢€$ 00°00L°9T$ 00°00L°92$ Onpad TY 01 °qNS JON SPJ "Q0}BARPIY "WWOD Q!
L0'8 EP'TEI'IELS 00°0% LS'8LY 66V 1S LS'8L9°66%° 18 00'L1E1€9L$ 00°69€'SL9'1$ S3NUBARY 21.3S 42110 [V 00(
1235)3 08°0vL°6T1$ 00°0% 0Tv6E'861$ 0T'v6£°'861% 00°SE1°8Z¢EY 00'6¥9°€87% STIUBAIY AIBROT 91BIS )
000 (00'8L¥'15$) 00°0% 00°8LY' 1SS 00°8LY' 1SS 00°0% 00°0% SJUSUWISINQUIISY 150D PajepuBly ()
8L°¢Ee 00 P8 1p1$ 000% 00°STLPSHS 00°STL PSHS 00°695°965$ 00°£78°CE9% 1BIA JUB.LINT - SJUILLILORI0AAY 2181S 4810 (0]
LY99 9S066°LILS 00°0% 97°€91°279¢$ 97°¢91°29¢% 78°¢S1°080°1% 00°078°€€SS SONUBARY [B49p34 1210 ||V 00(
000 (9¥'87€'€s) 00°0% 9v'87€€S 91'8¢€'€S 00°0% 00°0% Spung aA1asay 153104 QQ(
18°L¢ LY'601°LY1S 00°0% £5°996°147% £5°996°11¢$ 00'9L0°68¢$ 00'9L0'68€$ 2d[ 1edjuswizpiuy - uoyednpy [e103as (0|
000 00°0% 00°0% (00°618'+01$) (00'618°401$) (00'618'%019) 000% XBL AJ1900l1d JO nal-uj S[00YIS topeyD) 0 SI9JSUBL] (S
(rTsT)  (€8°99¢p$) 00°0% £8°L99°1¢$ £8'L99°1Z$ 00 10€°L1$ 00°Ep8°L1S 19jSuRl], uononpay SYAd 007
000 $8'890°1% 00°0% (58'890°1$) (S8'890°1%) 00°0% 00°0% SOXE | jusnpui[a Woy 3s3.9)u] pue safjjeudd (08
668 8L°61¥'CS 00°0% 1T'688°STS 7T'688°5TS 00°60€°8Z$ 0060£°82% SpUn{ JUsWAO[3APIY ANUNWIWOY) (L
(r6'69) (68°€8¥°L1) 000% 68°€8Y'TrS 68° €8V THS 00°000°SZ$ 00°000°sT$ SOXE ], |ejuswiz[aang W )Y
LTyl L00LT'8TTY 00°0% (L0'0LZ‘89%) (L0°0LZ'89%) 00°000°091% 00°000°091% SOXB] SIBBA 10Lid ﬂ 1€
w0 11)  (€9°612°819) 00°0% £9°61Z°¢81¢% £9°61Z°¢819 00°000°S91$ 00°000°91% SOXEB] ||0Y paindaesuf) oUN
L9'S 60°796'657% 000% 16'C86'72E S 16'C86°72E ¥$ 00°S¥6°T8S ¥$ 00°608°L6E 7S §|10Y Xe ] painosg Q]
€0ty 00°681°11% 00°0% 00 118%1$ 00'118%1$ 00°000°92$ 00°000°9Z$ uonduaxy slaumQ sWoy 001
00°0 (S6T1L°L01S) 00°0% S6TIL'LOLS S6°T1L°LOIS 00°0% 00°0% SIB9 A 10N - PIV 911§ NI SnUaADY 006
60°LP 00'CL5°096'C8  00°0% 00°L¥0°9TE S 00°Lp0°9TE'ES 00°619°982°9% 00°L90°L1E'SS 1B A JUBLIND - LY S1EIS WL 20USAY (0 [

1E°1 00°29+'8¢€$ 000% LT0£T'068°C$ LT0£T068'73 LT'T69°826'C% S6'€L6'TSTTS ddueeq Suruuidoq paIsnipy [EJ0], 4
) uejeg palaquunouq 9jeQ 0 B9 A JuaLIny unpiom pasao.ddy
paiaquinousun popuadxy

pung [esauan) | :

E10T/0E/P NI T10T/1/L wody

y10day paeog

13)joypurud| Aq paisont
£10T s X [ec
SIS H uotun jutof AUy A219}U0IA "0

Wd60:60°C1
§T 40 | 93ed

£102/L/8



psec 91°0Ev'CY 00°0% P8LOL'SS P8LOL'SY 00°8cT'8% 00°000°¢$ A[INOH - Salie[eS saply [euononnsu] (g
(19'79)  (01'5€9°'5%) 00°0% OI'SE9FIS 01'SE9'pI$ 00°000°6$ 00'000°¢c$ SIMHsSqNgS -saply [euoionysu] o1
P11 L6'L9T'1ES 00°0% ET8LTLETS CT8LTLETS 0T'9¥S$'892$ 0T LE0'9YTS SaLIB[ES SeplY [eUOlINUSU] (O
0101 TI'8¥0°01LY 00°0% 88 #00°61€'9% 88'v00°61€°98% 00°€50°6Z0°L$ Tr'010°9889% S[BIOL 000T #wwx

£8°0 00°001% 00°0% 00°006°11$ 00°006°11% 00°000°Z1% 00°000°C1$ pusansg - saliefeS pajeoye)) Jayi0 09(
e 00°096% 00°0% 00°0S1°LT$ 00°0S1°LC$ 00°011°82$ 00°000°2% AINOH - SoLIB[eS PaleIyiHa]) Y10 (OE
(€5°s8)  (00°0L6°T1%) 00°0% 00°0L¥ 618 00°0LY 678 00°005°9¢€$ 00°005°9¢% AP0 - satlejeS pajeoyile) B0
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% SoLIB[ES Pajedylla)] 1210 00(
(95°s5)  (00°00ST$) 00°0% 00°000°L$ 00'000°L$ 00°00S°t$ 00°005°+$ ~SSLIE[ES SI0JElSIUILPY PUB SIOSIAIRANS PRJBOYILD) (9
(SeLe) (28v0T°11$) 00'0% - 8 v0T 14S Z8v0T 118 00°000°0€$ 0003 S-SaLIB[ES 10JenSIUlWpY puB J0SIAISANS PRjBOYILID) ([(
15°6C 79°€S6'9¢€T$ 00°0% 8E'8€6°696¢ 8€°8£6°G96Y 00°768°208% 00°569°'¥58% S9Lg[eS SI0jBAS[UIWPY PUB SI0SIAISANG PRI (()(
000 (91'99%) oo,.om 91'v99% 91'v99% 00°0% 00°0% AlMOH - SaLIg[BS 110Aang [1and paiedyia) O
020 £0'675% 00°0% L6'ELY'TITS L6'ELY'TITS 00'£00°€92$ 00°€00°€9Z$ SoLIe[e§ Moaang |fand pajesyiiia) o
09'v9 0S'0v6°1€ES 00°0% 0S'10S°LTS 0S'T0S°L1% 00'CZry'61$ 00°000°8¢$ Spuaays - salle[eg slayoes] ()9(
8¢¢e 81°89T° LS 00°0% 78°964°€6$ 7896t°'€6% 00°S9L°0118 00°0¥S°16% A[INOH - SaLIe[eS siaydes] (g
[4%] v6'8LIOIS 00°0% 90'908°€L1S 90°908°€LT$ 00°686'681% 00°000'Z81% Sisyoea |, aymsqng w 0
LEL £8°9SH COPY 00°0% L1'66€°890°6% L1°66€°890°C% 00988 1L¥'SS YTLLTTYSS SalIB[ES SIaoea | ﬂ )0
08¢t 87°S08°L0S'v$  00°0% PO I10'1EP P1S PELIO ISP VIS TTLIS'YE6'8IS S6°T¥0°8S0°81S oueleq utuuidag 7p awoduy [ejo, ey

6°LT 8TEPE 69T VS 00°0% LY T8LOPS 1S L9 IBL'OVS' LIS S6'HTI'010'91S 00°690°S08°S1$ S[EI0L 0008 #xxy

000 (Sz°0%) 00°0% 00°0% 000% (Sz'0%) 00°0% SONUIASY PajoLysaluf] woy suonnqryuo) (pQ
000 (26'089°%) 00°0% 76'089°C% 76'089°C$ 00°0% 00°0% U] Si9fsUBl ] pUMYISIUL PAZLIOYINY B0 (06
000 000% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 000% 00°000°00S°1$ pun.{ 21353y [e1934S pue puny [eisusD) usamiag (07
000 000% 00°0% 00°009°81$ 00°009°81% 00°009'81% 00°0% S12UIO |1V WoL U] siajsuel] 19410 006
(169) (98'107'2$) 00°0% 98°9L0°€59% 98°9L0°€59% 00°SL8°019% 00°000°005% $994JO MUNOD IO SJUSWILOILIOAAY JO SIgjSuel (07

g 20ue|eg pataquunouy e 0] JE9A jua.Lnyy Junpom panoaddy
pataqunousupn papuadxy

Nd60:60°21 €102/L/8

§7jo gesey

£10T/0e/y U 107/ 1/L wody

y10day preog

pung [elauan) |

1a130ypurud| Aq personl
€107 B9k e
ISI(0'S™H uotuf) Jutof Ajuy) AS191U0N"0G



8¢'8 E9LIYTIS

00°0% 0S°€0L°GETS 0S°€0LGETS ELSTI'8PIS LIVLS'OPIS PJBOL111aD "35UBINSU] UOIBSUSALIOD) S ISMIOM (0,
'L ¥SPSP'8S 00°0% 9%°6L9°81% 9%'6L9°81% 00'vEL'LTS 000SLLT$ PalIsse|d "aourInSu| JUSWIAO[AWIBUL) 31BIS (0
8.8_ 00'8¥7$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$% 00°8%Z$ 00°8+C$ pusags "pajeoyinad INS 09!
€TTl 60°SIY6S 00°0% 16°8L5°L9% 16°8L5'L9$ 00'¥66'9L$ TP 106°SLS P31BD1 (1190 "9oURINSU| JUSUIAD|AWRUL S1BIS (0]
97°7C  $0°0TL'601% 00°0$ 96CI1'E8¢S 96°Z11'€8¢5¢ 00°€£8°761% 00'ZTs 1ESS Pa11SSe|d "sjyauag alejlom 7 YBRH (007
$8'S $8'987°0S% 00°0% SI'€LT'608% SI'ELT'608S 00'095°658$% SL'8EY'L98S PJedYILIAD "s}yausg rejem %9 YHEIH (0]
L8TT  vI'LE]'6ES 00°0% 98'¥9E'PELS 98 P9C PELS 00°20T'HL1 00°€L6'VLLS POLJISSE|D "2AIIBLLIAY| V//2.BOIPIIN/AYINDIS [BID0S ()07
00001  00°9L¥$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'9L+$ 00°9Lv$ pU3aNs "pajedy(Had "a111aY 1| V/eJedIP3|A/23S 205 (9|
6L'ST  8°160°91% 00°0$ 75°8€8°68S 75°8€8'68% 00°0€6°101% $8'89L°66% PIIBOLILID "BAIJRUISY| V//34BDIPOIA/ALINDAS [BI20S (0]
SI'VT  LESEE'LSS 00°0% €9°C11°081% €9°TI1°081% 00°8t+'LETS 00°6LT°85Z% POLISSE[D "LIRISAS JUaWBLIIY] ,SeaA0|awy o1qnd (07
000  {(S8691%$) 00'0$ $8°69¥% $8°697% 00°0% 00°0% POYISSEO "LIRISAS JUALIBINY  SI9YDBI | 9IRS ()07
00001  0069L'T$ 00'0$ 00°0% 00'0% 00°69L°C% 00°69LC% pusans ‘pajeoyIled "SYLS 091
6L 1L LLODG'LYS 00°0% €7°106°L0S$ €T 106°L0SS 00°208°SLSS TS'80T'1LSS POIBOLYILIO0 "UIAISAS JUSLIRLRY SI9UDBa | 27BIS ()]
Z5°61 SEP90'CTYS 00°0% LEBSEOPLILS LEBBEOVL 1S TLTSHTO1TS TLOLLEII'TS S[BI0L 0007 wnnx
000 (LS'80S%) 00°0% LS'80S$ LS'80S% 00°0% 00°0% QUWIHIBAQ - S3LIB[RS Paylisse[) 18y10 050
8S'IS  TP'66L'99% 00°0% 85°00LT9% 8S°00LT9% 00°00S°621% 00°00S°621% 190 - saLte[es pay!sse|] tayig N ¢
000  (L6p1TH) 00°0% L6F1TS L6'TITS 00°0% 00'0$ SWIHAAQ - SaLIB[ES 20130 pUE [B9LIR[] 7 ;[
v8LT  08'16E'1S 00°0% 0T'809°c$ 0T°809°t$ 00°000°5$ 00°000°C$ AlINOH - S3LIB|RS 90YJO pue [BDLIR]D (EQ
YIEL  p1'9L6'TS$ 00°0$ 98°201°05¢€$ 98'201°05¢$ 00°6L0°€0V$ 00'1LL'90¥$ SoLIe[eS 2210 % [BOLR]D 000
8€°1T P9 €9 OIS 00°0$ 9€°S69°v8¢€S 9€'569°v8ES 00'6€€°68%$ 00'6€£°687% S9LIB[ES SIOJRNSIUIWPY PUB SIOSIAISANS PaYISSE[D) (00
OI'EE  88'PLE'LIS 00°0% 4RI N4 T1'sT6'7es 00°00€°¥€$ 00°00T°¥€$ SWILIBAQ - Salie[RS 110Qang paiyisse|d (s
1P 1L 1866907 00'0$ £1°587°8% £1'587'8% 00'186'87% 00011628 A[INOH - SoLIB[ES 10AANg Poyisse|) (€0
(SS5L1) (€£L520'91%) 00°0% ELPSI'STS ELPS1STS 00°6Z1°6% 00'000°6$ SSlIB|ES HOoAANS payisse|d ymisqng ([0
L9°61  ¥8'898°7S1$ 00°0$ 89°18¥'479% 89'18%'%79% TSOSE'LLLS TS618°19L% SoLIB[ES 110QANS payisse[D) (00
g aoue|eg pataquunoug 9Je(] O Jed A juauny) Sunylom poaoddy
paIaquunouauny papuadxy

pung [eisuan |g

E10T/0€/p MY TIOT/1/L wody

110day paeog

Iajyoypunid| Aq pejsenl

€107 IBa g e
ISIQS'H uortu) juIof Ajuy) A2I2JUOIA 0S

Wd60-60:21 £107/L/S
$T 40 g adey



(v (€7159'9%) €' 6vP'SLS 0€200°L0Z$ 0£200°'L07$ 00'008°5LZ$ 00°008°€LZ$ AIDLIIIT (7
(§5°9)  (bSv¥S'TH) E08LI'PIS 1S'9LT'LTS 15°9.2°L28 00°058°8¢$ 00°058°8¢% sen 0
(£80)  (00'6+0°1%) 00'0$ 00°640°121$ 00°6+0'121% 00°000°021% 00°000°021% eduRINSU[ 18I0 ()
8L'9 00'008% 00°0$ 00°000°11$ 00000°11% 00'008°I 1§ 00°000°11% aoueInSU| (Q
S6'1 £v'6T7C$ 00°0% LS 1SS 1S LS1SS 118 00°18L°11% 00°€1E'pTS salysiaquisjy pue seng (Q
L991  00°009'v$ 00°0$ 00°000°€Z$ 00°000°€T$ 00°009°LT$ 00°0$ SpuLalg - 90UAIBJUOD pUE [2ABIL (]
LY L1ESH'SHS v0'95S 1% E1'¥8E'65$ E1'H8E°6S$ PEEGE901S 00'219'65% §90UAIRJUOD pUE [2ABL] Q)
000 00°0$ 0S°LL0'001S 0S°LO9PLS 0S°L09'vL$ 00°S89' %L1 00°000°002$ S93IAISG pajoRlUOD) ()
STLY  $1°2L6'61SS z991T' 1118 TL'ETT 69p$ TL'ETT 69%% 8%'TIP'001°IS  L8'06£°658% SIBIOL 000t xxxx
(1o'2)  (zresesy) 98'v€Ts 97'891°18% 9Z°89% (8% 00°05€'9L$ 00°0L8°LS$ juswiainDy pazi|e)laeduoN o
CELL 0S9TH'LS 00'00S'1$ 05°8L9% 05'8L9% 00°509'6$ 00'000°C1% SallL - sel[aang pue s|eLialRjy | [
v6'€ 07'860'v$ 61 vLT'8ES 19°€2L°19% 19°€7L°19% 00°960'01% 00°LLS'86% on4/ouij0seD - satjaang pue sjewerEl O
68'09  ¥30E6°89% 00°512'69$ 10'856°1€¢$ 10'8S6°1€28 S8'E01°0LLY YT EI8'1E9% §91]Aang pue s[eLsleN ()
TI9L 18°6LT°6% 00°0% 78°016'7$ 78'016'cs €9°981°71% £9'558°6% S[elIa)IA 0UI3 ey puE S00g Q)
6L'LT  16'€65°5ES LS'T66'1$ TS ¥8Y° 063 IS'v8%'06% 00'1L0°821% 00°SLT'6¥$ S[BLIZJEJA B|NOLLIND 2100 PUE SY00qIX8 |, PAA0IAAY e |(
. =

76'71 1€°60S°€SHS 00°0% I8'798°985°C$ 78'%98'986°7% EUVLEOPO'ES 12'7€8°080°¢$ SIBIOL 000€ wsrx |
69'1€  BE'8TS LY 00°0% 29'1L¥'2018 79 1LY 2018 00°000°0S1$ 00°000°0S1$ PajedlILIad Ss)yausg B0 001
(rT'sT)  (£8°99¢'t$) 00°0% £8°L99°IT$ £8°L99°17$ 00°10€°L1$ 00°Er8°LLS Paljisse|D "uolonpay SYAd 002
8T°6C  1T°1S£0Z$ 00'0$ 6L'TS1'60S 6L°2S1°67% 00'705°69% 00'¥05°69% Paljisse|d "syysuag aaley (07
@ro)  (Ls199) 00°0$ LS E9T'PSS LS E91'pSS 00°960'¢5$ 00960'%5$ Pa1BOL 319D "sjlyauayg 931119y Q]
06'8T  90°S8L'p1S 00°0$ v6 ELE9ES V6 ELEOES 00'651°15% 00°€8€°1S$ PO1JISSE[D "2dURINSU| UOBSULAWIOD) S IONIOA (07
00001  00°€08$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00'€08% 00'€08% pu=ans "pajesyiued DM 091

2 ooue|eg pataquunouy 91 0] B A juauny Sunyiopm posouddy

pasequunsuaun) pepuadxy

Nd60:60:T1 €10T/L/S
§T J0 y 98ey

E107/0E/p Ny T10¢2/1/L wolyg

310day paeog

pung |erusny [(

I9yjoypumid| £q pajson
E10T HBoA e
SIS H uorup) yuiof Ajuy) A2Iajuoiyos



£E6'ES  0S°€01°91$ 00°0% 0S°9SL°C1S 05°9SL°€1$ 00°098°67$ 00°095°LT$ $3UJO AJUNOD) 03 Suajsuel | 1L [V 00
9t'6v 0T1L8°€81% 00°0% 08'€99'881% 08°€99°881% 00°S€S°TLES 00°000°05€$ uSWAERd S1fda(] 10/pUB "$1S0D) SS30XY "UOUIN | 18I0 (Q
9108 00'L86'9% 0003 00'€h6'9$ 00°€p6'9% 00°0€6°ELS 00°0£6°€1% S|00Y2§ [elo2qg s1IS 00
8L°81 0€°110°S60°€Y  LO'SE6'1ELS L6'6E8'PSO'T1S LE'6E8PSOTIS  pEO8LI8HOIS LO'LY6'T68' VIS 0009 - 000T wsnx

000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 000% 00°0% S[BIOL 0009

000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% HUD 19a 000S§ 190 - JuaWwaInDy Q)
8L'8I1 0E€'110°660°€S  LO'SEGTELS LE'6E8YSOTIS L6'6EBYSITIS  HE98LISY OIS LO'LY6 6818 000S - 000T s

(483 8E°LI¥'686$ SY'81L°0T9% 81'8S€°6£5° 1S 81'8SE°6ES TS 10'v6¥°671°€$ S8'VE6'TSEIS SIEIOL 000S wxsx

0’1z 10°9vL°T$ S¥'699% vS9£5°6$ vS$9£5°6% 00°ZS6°21$ 00'080°Z1% S3UOUd B[N[{e]) - SUOHEDIUNWIIOD ()
r1ro) (L' 1v$) vLT69% L6°€0S°6T$ L6°€0S'678 00°SS1°0€$ oo.o.ﬁo,omw 9TEISO( - SUOHBIIUNWIWOY) ()
9L'¢E 0T°9¢+$ §8'16¢$ SO IBE LTS S6I8E11S 00°0€1°Z1$ 00°00£°¢$ QUOYa9a | - suonedIunNwWWoy)
000 00°0% 00'v0t$ 00'968% 00°968% 00°00€°1$ 00°000°C$ AULIAIS3ULY - SeSUBAXF BUlJRIeA() PUB SAOIAIIS JOId (9
¥C01 89°6LT91% 00987°CI$ TE6LY0ELS TE6LY0ETS 00°S¥0°651% 00°005°9¢$ SUJIT 91BMYOS-SISUSAXH BUNRILAQ 79 SIOIALLS JoId (G
00°¢s 00°001°1$ 00°0% 00°006% 00°006% 00°000°¢$ 00°091°1% SUISRISADY - SasULAXY 3UlBISAQ) 79 SIVIAILS JOI] (p(
00°0 00°0% 0003 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°008% OljeHOasURL], - s9sULAXH 3UlRIRA() 79 SIVIALSS JOId (7
LLTT 6L6LI'LTS L6'P0ESS YT 18€°C6$ vT 18763 00998471 00°000°0€$ [B397] -S9SULAXH 3UljR1aa() 79 S90IAIRS .mo._n_A__“ o
r86v PS81T°6L8$ Iy Sr8eeey 1L°001°1SS$ [L°001°166$ LOVOTPIL 1 $8'7T0'198% 90X 3UljeIad() pUB $3DIALIS BUI[NSUOD)/[BUOISSS}01 “ )C
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% [00d 010N - $9DIA18G JO 13JSURL | 10§ S$}SOD) 19011 *
6L01 06'02Z°LS 98'1€TCI$ YT 005 ¥¥$ vT°00S 8 00°€56°99% 00°001°8%% S[EJUSY pue sesea] (fQ
SELl £E0ELYSIS 81°970°5T$ 6L0EE 67$ 6L 0EE 61 00°0L6°68$ 00°05SL°S8% slieasy 0z0
1Tel 68°L9€°CS L9°060%$ P 69T IS vy e9r 1S 00°826°L1% 00°SLS'8TS SJUSLLLRIBY IDUBUSIUIBIAL (](
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 000§ 00°0% 00°00¢$ [0juoD 1594 0L(Q
(80'v) (80°0¥9'2$) BCLITHLS 0L°€90°Er$ 0L°€90°¢r$ 00" 1¥9°v9$ 00°00S°¥9% IseqlED (50
(ze'o) (68°5€LS) 6T°6€0°CS 09'9.8°61% 09°9L8°61% 00°081°2Z$ 00'CT15°61% 19mas 0%0
(6T1) _ (1£p81%) POL1Y'pS £9°990°01$ £9°990°01¢ 00°00€'¥1$ 00057118 12BM 0€0

g oue|eg pataqiunouy Qleq 0] JeoA juaLIn)) uppiom panoaddy
paiaquunauaun papuadxqy

Wd60:60:T1 €102Z/L/8
§T 40 ¢ azey

£10T/0E/y MY Z107/1/L wodyg

y1odayg paeog

pun [eiuan) [

I93joypurus| Aq psisanl
€107 :Iea g [e
ISI"S'H uorup) jutof A1uy) A21sjUoJN 0



-115-

£8'81 POVEQOVY'ES  LO'SE6TIELS £9°9PE°L60'VIS  €99PELE0'VIS  pEOIE69Z°81S LO'T8L1ZS918 000L - 000 sxxx
og6l PEETOSHES 0o'0% 99°90S°ZrH 1% 99°90S°THF'1$ 00°0€S°L8L'T$ 00'¥€8°879°T$ STBIOL 000L w#wws
00000  007198°¢€1$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0¢ 00°198°€E1$ 00°0% pun  eL1ajen) 03 puny [elauah Wwoli (09
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°000°0ZS$ 00°000°02S'$ 00°000°0ZS$ 00°000°0ZS$ SjusllARd 9914198 393 19YI0 006
650 ¥9°00T'v$ 00°0% 9CEPIEILS 9CEVIEILS 00'vPE'LILS 00'vvELILS 159493U] 921AIRS 192 008
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 0008 00°0% 00°0% $1500 123.1pu] JO sgjsuel] (QQ
5 9ouEjEg paisquinoug are(] 0 194 uaLIny Junprom poaoaddy
paraquinouaun papuadxyg

INd60:60°T1 €£10Z/L/8
§7 30 9 aged

E10T/08/y My T10T/1/L woly

110day paeog

pung [eRuany [(

Igjjoypurud| £q psissn

£10T B2 g (e
ISIA'S'H uortun yutof Ajup) A9193U0IN"0¢



08¢t
08'¢e

6¥°651
000
000
£8'81
8L°81
8L°81
t6'Le
[e'l

82°S08°L0S ¥$
8T°S08°LOS %

9°0LL'LOO' LS
00'0%

00°0%

PO PE0'0PPEY
0€°110°560°€$
0€'110'660°C$
8T EFE 69 VS
00'29t'8¢€$

00°0%
00°0%

(Lo'se6'1ELS)
00°0%
00°0%
LOSEG €LY
LO'SE6'TELS
LOSE6'1ELS
00°0%
00°0%

PO TI0 TEY VIS
PO LIO LEY V1S

1€°699°EEEs
00°0%

00°0%
£9°9v€°L60P1Y
L6'6E8'PSI'TIS
L6'6ES PSITIS
L9 18LOPS LIS
LT 0EZ'068'TS

FOI101EY P1S
Y6 L10°1EP V1S

1€°699°CEES
00°0%

00°0%
£99PCL60' V1S
LE'6ER'PSOTLS
L6'6E8 YS9 TIS
LOTSLOVS 1S
LT 0ET°068°C%

TTLIR'8EG 8IS
TTLIR'8EE'8LS

88'005'699%
00°0%

00°0%
PEOLE69T'81%
PEO8L 18P OIS
PE98L T8Y 91
S6PTI'010'91¢
LT'769'826'CS

$6'T0'8S0'81S
S6'Tr0'8S0'8 1S

88°192°9€S 1§
00'0%

00°0%
LO18L'1TS91S
LOLYPE'TO8 P1S
LOLY6'T68' V1S
00'690°508°S 1%
S6'ELE'TSTTY

aouejeqg Sulpuy 2y saimipuadxy (810
souejeq Fuiuuidog 79 awoouy "L
\O

—
—
t

(06L6) @ouBlRg pun,{ pajewisy le10 L
08L6 - 0LL6 1BI0L
61L6-01L6 |BI0L
000L - 0001 ‘reoL
0009 - 0001 ‘@0l
000S - 0001 ‘[®0L

182 A JUDLIND) BWIOdU] |BIO ]
souejeq Sutuuidag :[ejo

a

]

20UE|Bg

paJaqiunouaup)

Nd60:60:T1 €10T/L/8
§7J0 L agey

pasequinaug

ale(] 0] JBIA

papuadxy

juaLn)

unpom

paaotddy

£102/08/7 MY T10T/L/L woty

1x0doy preog

pung |eleusn [(

19130ypunid| Aq pejsenl
£10T “Jea Je:
ISIQ'S H uorup jutof Aur) A919)U0IA 08



00L19)

000 00°0% 00°L1$ 00'LTS 000$ 00°0% PRiJISSB|9 "90UBINSU] UOIIBSUDAWOD) S I9I0M (07
000 (88°0%) 00°0% 88°0% 88°0% 00°0% 00°0$ Pa1EOILII0 "90URINSU] UOIIBSUSALIOD) S 8310 (0]
000 (L¥'8%) 00°0$ LY'8$ LY'8$ 00°0$ 00°0$ PaLISSB[D "3dURINSU] JUSIAC|AWBU) JJBIS (0]
000  (v+'0%) 00°0% vv'0$ TS 00°0% 00°0% PoJEOY1LILD "9oURINSU] JUSWAC|AWIBULN 9JBIS (0]
000  (16°85%) 00°0% 16'85$ 16'85$ 00°0% 00°0% PIYISSE|D "3AlTRILIS)| /21BOIPIIA/AILINIONS [BI90S (07
000 (85°0%) 00°0% 85°0% 36°0% 00°0% 00°0% POIEOYILA0 "9ALIBLLIA)| V//24BDIPIN/AILINDAS [B1OOS (0]
000 (16°L8%) 00°0% 16°L8% 16°L8% 00°0$ 00°0% PRYISSE|D "WSISAS JUBWIALSY S33A0[awy o1jqnd (07
000 (oges) 00°0% 0€°€S 0€'e$ 00°0% 00°0% P27eOY 18D "UIRYSAS JUBLLIBINSY SI9Yoea ] 91BIS Q]
000 (00°0LLY) 00°0% 00°0LLS 00°0LLS 00°0% 00°0$ SIBIOL 0007 ssxs

000 (00'0LLY) 00°0% 00°0LLS 00°0LLS 00'0% 000$ S3LIB[BS 991440 % |BOLIBID 000
000 (00°0¥%) 00°0% 00°0v$ 00°0¥$ 00°0% 00°0% SIBIOL 0001 snws

000 (00°0¥%) 00°0% 00°0v$ 00°0p$ 00°0% 00°0% SslIg[eS SISUOBI], 000
000 (00°€85%) 00°0% 00'€85$ 00°£85$ 00°0% 15°980°€8€% doueeq Suluuidag 79 SWOIUJ [BO], 4yxy

000 (00'€85%) 00°0% 00°€85$ 00'€8S$ 00°0$ 00°0% SIEIOL 0008 wxwsx

i
000 (8S°L12°9€%) 00°0$ 8G°L12'9€% 8S°L1Z'9¢9 00°0% 00°0% U] SIysuel ] punjioiu] pazuoyny ayic - )g
000 (Ts'peS) 00°0% ISPES (49153 00°0% 00°0% 1S319U] §OO
000 00°€60°8$ 00°0% (00°€60°8%) (00°€60°8%) 00°0% 00°0% $0UIAY 93BIS OO [V 000
000 (06'188°C%) 00°0% 06'188°C$ 06'188°C% 00°0% 00°0$ SNUAAY AI81OT 31RIS 00
000 00'155°8E$ 00°0% (00°155°8€%) (00°155°8¢€%) 00°0% 00°0% Sfea X I0Lid - Pl 91EIS LWL aNusARY (06
000 (00°€60°8%) 00'0% 00'€60°8% 00°£60°8% 00°0% 00°0% PV SrejS-juswis|ijuy ssoaund usn sjooyss Japey) (o
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 15°980°€8¢$ doueeq Suluuidag paIsnipy [BI0L 4y xx
) aouejeq pataqiunouy e O] I3 juaLng Bunyiom paao.ddy
pasaquunauaun papuadxgy

Nd60:60°T1 £102/L/8
$T40 § 3gey

E10T/0E/y Y Z10Z/1/L wody

y1oday pleog

pun sjooyag seueys 60

Ja1yoypunud| £q pajsant

£10T Jea [eo
SIS H uotun) jutoy Auy) A2I9juon oS



-118-

000 (07'829%) 000% 0T'879% 07°829% 00°0% 000% 0008 - 000T »xxx
000 67°65¢$ 00°0% (67°65€$) (67°65¢%) 000% 00°0% S[BIOL 000S #xwx
000 6C°65¢% 00°0% (67°65¢€%) (67°65€%) 00°0% 00°0% S[EjuRY pue sases] (g(
000 (6¥'LL1S) 00°0% 6VLLLS 6y LLLS 00°0% 00°0% SIEIOL 000 wxxx
2 Jouejeg paiaquunouy 9Je( O] DA uauny Funom paaoutddy
pasaquinouaun pepuadxy

Wd60:60:T1 €10T/L/8
§T J0 6 9ved

£10T/08/p MY Z10T/1/L woaq

y10dayg paeog

puny sjooyog oyiey) 60

Iajjoypurusg| Aq pajsen
€107 ‘mag e
ISYA'S'H uorun juror A1uy) A2IsjUOA 0«



0070 (00°£85%) 00°0% 00'£8S$ 00°€85% 00°0% 16°980°¢8¢$ soue|eq Julpug 7 saumipuadxy [B10]
000 (00'£85%) 00'0% 00°€£85% 00°€85% 00°0% 15'980°€8€$ aouefeq Juluuideg 79 owoou] 4 |
2
b
000 0T'SH$ 00°0% (0T'svs$) (0T's¥$) 00°0% 1$°980°€8¢$ (06L6) souereq pung pejewinsy :[ejo]
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 08L6~ 0LL6 :IBIOL
000 00'0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 61L6-01L6 :[E10]
000 (07'829%) 00°0% 07'879% 07°829% 00°0% 00'0% 000L - 0001 :le10}
000 {0z'879%) 00°0% 07°829% 07'829% 00'0% 00°0% 0009 - 0001 :|e10L
0070 (0Z'829%) 00°0% 07'829% 07'879% 00°0% 00°0% 000S - 0001 :[e0L
000 {00°£859%) 00°0% 00°€85% 00°£85$ 00°0% 00°0% 183 A JuaLIny awoou] ([Bj0
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 15°980°€8¢€% souejeq Suluuidag :fejo]
3 aoue(eqg pasaquinouyg e O] 1B A jua.ny supyiopm paaoiddy
palaquunouaup papuadxy

Nd60:60'T1 €107/L/8

§C340 01 83eq

L10T/0L/y MY T10T/1/L woay

ya0day parvog

pun, sjooyog dajeyn 60

Jagjoypurug| Aq pajsanl
£107 Ieaj (e
SIS H uotu) 1oy Ajun) A219juon0S



08¢ 01'06SS1$ 89°¥LT'0SY TCTLIEvPEY ZTLLEpPES 009L1°01¥$ 00¥9L°192% pood 00(
4NN 60°€61% 99°'867$ $7'856$ ST'856$ 00°0St 1% 00°00L°Z$ satjaang pue s[el1aiely O0(
(zoze) (91°L86°11%) 00°0% 9L6T¥ 6v% O1'6ZH 6v$ 00°TrH'LES 00°0S+°0ES S[EIO T, 000€ v

6181 $L'9€5S 00'0$ STEIPTS STEIP'TY 00°056°7% 00°056'C$ palyisse|o "aoueINSU] UOIBSULALLOD) S IOIOM (07
PE8E  Y9LPLS 00°0% 9¢C0T' 1% 9¢T0T'1% 00°056'1% 00'0S6°1$ PaljIsse[d "adur.INSU] JUSWIAC|ALUBUN) 91BIS ()7
(F1°18)  (94°950°¢1$) 00°0% 9L 8¥1°6T% 9L 8PI'6TS 00°2760°91$ 00°001°6% PaLIsse[d "sjjouag alejom 9 YBIH (07
60°01 67'8€6% 00°0% 1S°19¢°8% 15'19€°8% 0000£°6% 00°00£°6$ DalJISSE[D "9AlBLIR)| /211 PN/AILINGRS [BIDOS (07
(€191) (8T'ESI‘19) 00°0% 8T €0€'8S 87°€0€'8% 00°0S1°L$ 00°0SI°LS PILISSE[D "WRISAS Jualuelllay sesAo(awg olqnd 0z
zrot (XAAT WAL 00°0% LLO6Y'601S LL'O6Y'601% 00°¢T8'1Z1$ 00'988°021% SIBIOL 0007 svxx

60°L1 0€'0v8°LS 00°0% 0L Sp0'8ES 0L'SP0'8ES 00'988°CH$ 00'988'Sp$ SoLIEg[eS SIOJBSIUILUPY PUB SIOSIAISANS PIYISSE[D) (00
68 £6'164'P$ 00°0% LOSYPILS LOSHELLS 00°LE6'SLS 00°000°5L$ Saliefeg 1loaang paylsse[d 000
PPy TELBE'SHTS 00°0% 89'698°CECS 89°698°7¢€S 00°€ST'8LSS 00'000°Z¢H$ ddue[eq SUrUUIZDg 29 WOIUL [BIO], 4y &
PP'Ty  ZCL8ESHTS 00°0% 89°698°7LES 89°G98'7ELS 00°€ST'8LSS 00'000°ZZ¥$ SIBI0 T, 0008 s u
00001  007198'€E1$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00 198°€E1$ 00'0% pun [elaush) wol4 "puny euslajz) 0] Q9
000 SS'8PEY 00'0% (S5 8pEY) (S5°8p€S) 00'0% 00°0% 1sa4eiu] 00O
686  T998L'6ES 00°0% 8€°996°6£% 8€'996°6€% 00°€SL'6LS 00°000°59% S3[eS $321A13G pood (01
LL'8E  06°S66°C1S 00°0% 0L'v01°Ces 01017228 00°001°9¢$ 00°000°52$ uouLINN PIIYD 000
L¥'L] STS6E°LSY 00°0% SLEPT LTS SLEPTILES 00'6£5°8Z£$ 00°000°ZEES SWeds0dd uonLInN pliyD 000
000 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% ddueleq Suluuidag pa)snipy [BIOL syxx

2 aoueeg pataquunouy e o] Ieo jua.Lny m:.cro\,? pasotddy
pataquinouaun papuadxy

INd60:60°C1 €102/L/S
§TJ0 1| sgeq

E10T/0E/y MY T107/1/L wolq

1rodoy paevog

pund eLeipied ¢ :

Iajoypunu3| £q pojsanb
€10T -1Bag [ed
ISIA'S'H uotu) juof Ajuy) A9IajUoA0g



-121-

98¢ 18°SE5°918 0S°99%°1S$ 69°0ST°01SS 69°0ST°015$ 00°€ST'8LSS 00°000°ZTH$ 0008 - 0001 »xxx
1233 SS°LOVS 91°¢68¢ 62°190°9§ 6219099 00°29¢°LS 00°002°9% SIBIOL 000S »xxvx
666 9'90v% 91'€68% TTOLL'TS TTOLLTS 00°0L0°%$ 00°00S'¥$ 20Xy sUHBILAQ PUE SADIAISS BUNNSUOD)/|BUOISSIJOL] (((
SO0 £8°0% 00°0% L1'BEL'TS LT'BEL'TS 00'6€L°1$ 00°00¢$ S1Basy pue sasear] ‘siguay 000
100 0r'os 00°0% 06°2SS°1$ 06°TSS°1$ 00°€SS1$ 00°002T°1$ §90UBI9JUOT) pue [3AeL], (00
£8't 61°E8LSTS PEELS 0SS LY 69T'SHES LY'69T°SpES 00'929°11¥$ 00'v9¥'¥9% SIBIOL 000F »sxx

2 ?ouejeq pasaquunoug dleq 0 Jea A jua.und) Sunyiom pasotddy

pasequinouaun papuadxq

Wd60:60:21

§T 40 7l °3ey

£10T/L/S

E10T/08/y MY T10T/1/L Wwody

110day paeog

pun eUSjRfE)) €|

Iayzoypuru3| £q poisent
£107 Jea X e
1SIA’S'H uoruf) yutof Ayun) ASIajuon0g



vy Ty TEL8ESHTS 00°0% 89°698°7€€% 89°698°Z¢€CS 00'EST'8LSS 00°000'Z2+$ 9ouejeq Suipuy 79 sainyipuadxy |BI0
YTy TEL8ESHTS 00°0% 89'698°7¢€€% 89°698°ZEES " 00°€5T'8LSS 00°000°2ZH% 2ouejeq Suiuuideg 9 swoou] i~
Q
i
00°0 15°158°822$ (05°991°15%) (10°68€°LLTS) (10'S8€°LLLS) 00'0% 00°0% (06L6) @ouefeq pung pajewinsy :[ejo]
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 08L6 - QLL6 :[®10L
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 61L6-01L6 ‘2101
987 [8°6£S°91% 0S°99%°15% 69°0ST°015$ 69°0SZ°01SS 00°€S7'8LSS 00°0007ZH$ 000L - 0001 :|®10L
98¢ 18'6£5°91% 05'99%°15% 69°0ST'01SS 69°052°015$ 00°€SZ'8LSS 00'000°7ZH$ 0009 - 0001 :[®m0L
98°¢C 18'5€591§ 0S'99%°1S$ 69°0S7°015% 69°0ST°015$ 00°€ST'8LSS 00°000°7Zr$ 000S - 0001 :[=0],
vy Ty TEL8E'SHTS 00°0% 89'698°7¢€% 89°698°7CES 00°€ST'8LSS 00°000°72H$ IED A JUSLIND BWODU] (B0
000 000% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% souejeg Suiuuifeg :|ejo]
g aouejeqg pataquunouy 9le O Jeo A juaLIng Junom paaoaddy
palaquinouaun) papuadxy

Nd60°60:21 €£10Z/L/S
§7 40 ¢ eved

£10T/08/p WY Z10Z/1/L wold

110day pieog

pun eLajaze) €| :

Iajjoypunid| Aq pejsont:

€107 Hea X [eo
ISI"S"H uotup) jutof Ajuy) K91ajuoiN'0S



(99'2)  (26°089'T$) 00°0% 26°089°LES 76'089°LES 00°000°S€$ 00°0% 000L - 000T #xxx
000 (z6'089°$) 00°0% 26'089°C$ 76°089°CS 00°0% 00°0% SIEIOL 000L w#rrx
000 (26'089'2$) 00°0% 26°089°C$ 76°089°C$ 00°0% 00°0% INQ Sl9jsuel] puryisiu] pazuoyny 2yQ 006
000 00°0¢% 00°0% 00°000°s€$ 00°000°S€$ 00'000°S€E$ 00°0% 0005 ~ 000T »xxx
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°000°S€S 00°000°5£$ 00°000°S€$ 000% SIEIOL 000S wxxxr |
o

000 000% 00°0% 00°000°S€$ 00°000°S€$ 00°000°5E$ 000% sieaay u 4
00 8C9% 00°0% T6°089°LES T6'089°LES 0T'L89°LES L9C9SE soue[eq FUIUUIZIY 79 SWODU] [BIOL, xyrsy |
¢00 8C'9% 00°0% TL'E66'VES TLE66PES 00°000°5¢€$ 00°0% SIBI0L, 0008 xrxs
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°000°S€S 00°000°5€$ 00°000°S€ES 00°0% SanuaARy [0 4310 IV 006
000 8C°9§ 00°0% (82°9%) (82°9%) 00°0% 00°0% 1salad] 000
000 00°0% 00°0% 000% 00°0% 00°0% 0003 Sanuaasy a3els LYo IV 000
000 00°0% 000§ 0T°L89°CS 07°L89°CS 0T'L89'C - L9°T9SY soug[eq FuluuiSag pAISN[PY [BIOY, 4 uux

g aouejeg paioquinauy 9je( O] JEIA u2.Ln70 Funyom paaouddy

“patequunausun pepuadxy

Wd60:60:21 €10T/L/8

§T 40yl egey

E10T/0E/y M TLOT/1/L wold

y1odoy parvog

pung souBuLjUIB N PO.LIBIR(] {|

Iagyoypurud| Aq pajsont
€10T IBo X [ec
SIS 'H uotu) jutof Aju) A2IejUon "0



200 82°9% 00°0% T6°089°LES C6'089°LES 0T'L89°LES L9°795% soueeq Fulpuy 7 saimipusdxy (8101
z00 82°9% 00°0% 76'089°LES T6'089°LES 0T L8ILES L9°795% eouejeqg SuiuuSag 79 awoou] i |
N
i
00001  07'L89°T$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 0T'L89°C$ L9°796% (06L6) soueleg pun, pajewinsy :elo]
000 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% 00°'0$ 08L6 - OLLG :[®10]
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 61L6-01L6 :[B10L
(99°L) (26°089'2%) 00°0% 76'089°L€% T6'089°LES 00°000°s¢$ 00'0% 000L - 0001 :lemoL
000 00°0% 00°0$ 00°000°S€$ 00°000°SE$ 00'000°SE$ 00°0% 0009 - 0001 :[=0L
00°0 00°0$ 00°0% 00°000°5€% 00°000°5€$ 00°000°SES 00°0$ 000S - 0001 :l=mo],
200 87°9% 00°0% TLE66'7ES TLE66°VES 00°000°SE$ 00°0% 182 A Jua.LIND 3L0oU] :{Bj0]
000 00°0% 00°0% 07°£89°C% 0T°L89°C% 0T'L89°C$ L9°T9SS aoueeq Butuuidag :[ejo]
g aoue|eg pasaquinouy e O 1w\ juaLny wEv_uo\K/ paaocaddy
pataquunouaun papuadxy

Wd60°60:21 £107/L/8
§T40 6| 9ved

E10T/0L/y MUY T10T/ 1/ WOy

j10day preog

pun soueuRjUIR | PALIRjR(] |

Iajjoypurug| Aq pajsant
£10T Iea X [ec
SIS H uoruq) Juiof Ajun) A219JUOTA 0%



000

(8S°21Z'9¢%)

00°0% 8S°L1T9€S 8S°L1T9€$ 00°0% 00°000°00S°1$
00°0 (85°L12°9¢$) 00°0% 86°L1Z9¢% 85°L1T°9¢€$ 00°0% 00°000°00S°1$
000 (8sL12'9¢$) 00°0% 8S°L1T9€S 8S°L1T°9¢€$ 000% 00°000°005°1%
otr6t TEP08'SYZ' 1S 00°0% 8T6££°900°cS 8T°6€£°900°¢C$ 09°Epi'TSTYY 8E'S0T6SL LS
000 (91'585°8%) 00°0% 91°685°8$ 91°685°8% 000% 00°0%
000 (91°585°8%) 00°0% 91'585°8S 91°685°8$ 00°0% 00°0%
0s°6¢ 8Y'68E'¥ST1S  00°0$ CI'PSL'L66'TS TUPSLL66TS 09°Ev1°Z5T ¥ 8E°S0T'65LLS

SE-SS»&?%
1
SIBIOL 000L »xxx

pun{ 8A1asay [B199AS puUE pun, [BIBUSD) UsemMIag (0T
2dueleq utuuidag 79 awoduy [vjo ], Py

SIBIOL 0008 xxxs

1s2133U] 0OQ!

sougjeq Jwuuidag paISnlPY [€JOL wuxs

=3

@

souejeg

paJsaquinduaun

Nd60:60:21 €102/L/8
$CJ0 91 s3eq

pataquinoug

918 0] leaA

papuadxgy

juaLng

Suniom

pasoaddy

£10T/0E/y MWy 210T/1/L woug

310day preog

UBY} 194JQ 10} pung 9ntasey [eroadg /| :

J9jjoypurugy £q parsant
£10T Tes X [eo
ISIQ'S'H uotun jurof Ajuy) A219juoA oS



0g'6t [ARAERY 248
14 [ANZIEASTAEY

S0t 06°120°78Z°1%

000 (8SL12°9¢%)

000 00°0%
000 00°0%
000 00°0%
000 00°0%

000 (91'585°8%)
05°6¢ 81 68€vST 1S

00°0%
00°0%

00°0%
00°0%
00'0%
00°0%
00°0%
00°0%
00°0%
00°0%

8T'6€€'900°¢S
82°6££°900°c$

0L 1Z1°0L6'28
00°0%

00'0%
85°L12°9¢%
00°0$

00°0%
91'585°8$
TI'PSLL66'TS

8T°6££°900'¢ %
8T°6££°900'¢CY

0L 1Z10L6'T$
00°0$

00°0$
85°L12'9€S
00°0$

00°0$
91°585°8$
TIbSLL66'TS

09°€P1°25T'v$
09°€P1°252'v$

09" E€F1°ZST¥$
00°0%
000%
00°0%
00°0%
00°0%
00°0%
09 €P1°TSTHY

8€'60T'65L LS
8€°C0T°6SL LS

8£'50T°652°9%
00°0%
00°0%
00°000°00S°1$
00°0%
00°0%
00°0%
8E°S0T°6SLLY

Souejeq Sulpug 7p saunjipuadxy [B10 |

aoue(eg FuiuuiBag 2p swoou] 1 |
\O
N
™
t

(06L6) @due[eg pung pejewsy :|ejo]
08L6 - 0LL6 1BI0]
61L6-01L6 ‘BI0L
000Z - 0001 ‘EI0L
0009 - 0001 ‘0L
000S - 0001 ‘=10

183 A JuUa.LIND 2WODU] :[BJO]
aouejeg JuiuuiBag :jejo]

°

pasaquinsuaun

INd60:60°T1 €10Z/L/8

§TJ0 L1 98eq

g Qouejeg

paiequunoug

djeQ 0] 1o

JuaLIng

papuadxg

Funylom

pasotddy

E10T/08/y M THOT/1/L wioay

y10day paeog

UBY} 19130 10} pun, 9a19say [e1oadg /|

Iajjoypuru3| Aq pajsant

€107 1ea g Jec
SIS H uotun) jutof Ayuy) A219)UOA"0S



000 #Z°0$

00°0% 9L°TL9°801S 9L°TL9°801% 00°€L9°801$ 00°€L9'V01S 000L - 000T sxx+
000 v7°0% 00°0% 9L°T7L9°801$ 9L°TL9'301S 00°€L9°801$ 00°€L9P01% SIBIOL 000L s
000 00°0% 00°0% 00'178%8% 00 1Z8°+8$ 00'1Z8°¥8$ 00'6L6°08% SjusWiaRd 921A19S 399 BYID 006
000 ¥T°0$ 00°0% 9L°168°¢€TS 9L158°€TS 00'758°¢T$ 00'%69°€T$ 1salaju] 391195 3199 008
000 00'0% 00°0% 00'0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 0009 - 000T xxxx
00°0 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% SIEIOL 0009 wxsx |
BN
000 00°0% 000% 00°0% 00'0$ 00°0% 00°0% HUD 134 gOOSS 12AQ - 1uswalnnyg 171_ 0
(91'zy)  (0€59¢'561%) 00°0% ¥’ L8L°859% TP L8L 8598 LTy e9rs ZULPS v pS ddur[eq BuruuIIag 29 SWOIUY [BIO] sy
(8% 17T (0€°€06'9514) 00'0% 0€'€06'E91$ 0€°€06°E91$ 00°000°L$ 00°000°LS S[BIOL (008 srwx
00001  00°000°C$ 00°0% 000% 00°0% 00°000'C% 00°000'T$ SaNU3AY [BOOT 1210 (1Y 006
(L8Lr1'C(8CE6ELSTE) 00°0% 8L E6E'791% 8 E6E°291S 00°000°S$ 00°000°S$ §334 19A0[2A2Q/UONEBINIA (0!
000 (T6'605°1%) 00°0$ 26°60S°1$ 6°605°1% 00°0% 00°0% 1sad91u] 000!
(€4'8)  (00Z9¥'3¢€%) 00°0% 1 p88'v61S I ¥88'v6v% (ANA4 A IS 7Y CULy8'LOYS dduefeq Suruuidag palsnlpy [BI0O] 4yxx
g Joueleg paiaquinouy )eQq 0] lea jua.Lnyy unjiopm paaoaddy
pasaquunouaun papuadxyg

Wd60:60°C1 €10Z/L/S
§7J0 8] adeq

E10T/0E/y W T107/1/L wody

j10day paeog

pund soni|e [ejde) g7 :

19jyoypurnugd| Aq paisanb

€107 1o K [BD
1SIQ’S'H uorup) jutof Ajuy) A2I9)UOA 0S



CIa)) (0€'59¢°561¢) 00°0% Tv'L8L'8S9$ C'L8L'8S9$ 1TTrE9rs [AWAZRA84Y oouefeq Butpug 79 sanjipuadxy [e10]
(91°z¥) (0€'59¢°561%) 00°0% TP'L8L8S9S TY'L8L 859 TITeTy'eors [AWAZ R AR souefeq FuiuuiBag 2 awoou] o.o L
(o
—
(Loss) (rS'S9€°5619) 000% 99°p11°0SS$ 99°v11°0SS$ TU6rLYSES [AR7ANNESY (06L6) 2ouejeg pun pajewinsy :[eio]
000 000% 0003 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 08L6-0LL6 ‘[=I0L
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 0008 61L6-01L6 ‘[®10]
000 v 0% 00°0% 9L°CLI'801S 9L°TL9'801$ 00°€L9°801% 00°€L9'¥01$ 000L - 0001 ‘=0
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 0009 - 0001 ‘=0l
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°08 00°0% 00°0% 0005 - 0001 ‘resoL
(8" 1vT'C (0€°€06°951$) 00°0% 0€'€06°€91$ 0€'€06°€91% 00°000°L$ 00°000°L$ B3 A JUaLINg awwodu] :[ejo ]
(€¥'8) (00'29¥'8£%) 000% TI'v88'v6vS P88 P61 [ARAAAIS 4 TLULY8LOYS souejeq Fuiuuieq :|ejo]
3 aouejeg pataquinoug dleq 0] lesp jua.ung Sunjiopm paaoiddy
pasequinouaun) pepuadxqy

INd60:60:21 €102/L/8
§T40 61 avey

EL0T/0E/p MY 210/ 1/L wo.g

y10doy preog

puny sauijoey [ede) G :

Iazoypurnud| Aq paissnk

€107 B9 [BD
SIS H uotu) Juiof A1uD) A219ju0i 08



£y 97 18¥'78S$ 00°SL691S 0S°S68°918% 0S°568°918% 9L71SE'9T1H 1% 00°L96°L59°CS 0009 - 000T wwrs
86°0F  97°L69°65S$ 00°051°8% 0SS #00°86L$ 0S'+00°86L% 9L'168°69¢'I$ 00°L96°L09C$ S[BI0L 0009 xrxx
86'0F  97°L69'65S$ 00°051°8% 0S5 v00°86LS 0S'$00'86L% 9L'168°69¢° 1§ 00°L96'L09°C$ SSULPlIng JO JUSLLBACIAW] pUE SBUIP{ING N
TSy 00'p8L'TTS 00'578°8% 00°168°81¢% 00'168°81% 00'005°0S$ 00°000°0S$ 000S - 0007 xxvx M
A

ISy 00'P8L°TTS 00'578°8% 00°168°'81¢$ 00°'168°81$ 00°005°0S$ 00°000°05$ SIBIOT, 000S xxxs
ISy 00p8LTTS 00'578'8% 00'168°81% 00'168°S1$ 00°005°0S$ 00°000°0S$ 20XF 3uUljelda( pue $IDIAISS BUIINSUOD)/[BUOISSJOLd  000(
010 9%'69¢€' 1§ 00°0% 0E°T8Y' PP 1S 0E T8 PIP 1S 9L IS8'SIP'1S 1S°196°90L°C$ ddue[eq Suluui3ag 29 AWOIUY [BIO] 4yxy
9561 9%'69¢° 1% 00°0% S 0€9°6S #S°0£9°C$ 00°000°L$ 00°000°'L$ S[EIOL 0008 xxsx
9661 oF'69€° 1% 00°0% $S0£9°6S 7S 0€9°S$ 00°000°L$ 00°000°L$ 1se4=3U] 0009
000 00°0% 00°0% 9L 168°80%'1$ 9L 158°30%'1$ 9L 1S8°80%° 1% 16°196'669°C% ueeq Jutuuidag paisnipy [B10] yurx

g aduejeg pasaquinouy 9jeq 0] Jeo A juakny wEvto>> panouddy

pataquinouaun papuadxqy

Nd60:60°T1 €£10Z/L/8
§T 30 QT 93k

E10T/0e/y MW ZT10¢/1/L wodq

y1odayg paeog

(te[nday) wetSoug A(oe  |00yog ¢¢ yi

1ap30ypunig| Aq pajsanb:

€107 1B X [BOS
ISIAS H uotur) juror Ajuy) A2I9juoy og



010 9p 69€°1$ 00°0% 0ET8Y'PIP'IS  0CT8P'PIVIS 9L 1S8'S1H'1g 1S°196°90L°C$ 2oue|eg Buipuy 7p sainyipuadxy [ej0)
01'o 9%'69¢° 1% 00°0% 0E'T8Y'VIP' IS 0CT8Y'PIVIS 9L ISS'SIH' 1S 16°196'90L'T$ dougleq SuluuiBag 79 awoou) _n_U .
[¢9]
]
gtz (08'111°18S8)  (00°SL691%) 08'985°L65% 08'985°L65% (00°005%) 1S 766°8p% (06L6) @durleg pun pajewinsy :jeio
000 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 00'0% 00°0% 08L6 - 0LL6 :[®I0L
00°0 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 00'0% 00'0% 00'0$ 61L6-01L6 :[B10],
£l LY 97'18+'28S$ 00°6L691% 0S°S68°918$ 05°668°918% 9L 1SE9LY 1S 00°L96'LS9°T$ ‘ 000L - 0001 :[®0L
€llp 97 184°785$ 00'SL6'91% 05°668°918% 05'568°918% 9L 1SE 9P 1S 00°L96°L59°T$ 0009 - 0001 :[=i0],
71°SP 00'v8L'TTS 00°528°8% 00'168°81% 00'168°8T1$ 00'005°0S$ 00°000°0S% 000S - 0001 ‘[e0L
9661 9P 69¢€° 1§ 00'0% #S0£9°S% $S0€9°S% 00°000°L$ 00'000°L$ B9 A Jua.ny) awoou] ([ejo]
000 00°0% 00°0% IL'IS8'8OP' IS  9L'IS8'80V 1S 9L'1SS'80H°IS [S°196°669°C$ Pouefeq uluuidag :ejo]
2 9oue|eg paiaquinoug e 0] B9\ juaLIny Funpom pasotddy
pataqunouaun papuadxg

Wd60°60:C1 £102/L/S
$TJ0 |z 9gey

E10T/0S/y NIy T10T/1/L woud

y1odoy paeog

(te[n8ay) wetoid Ao, |[ooYas §¢ ;|

13330ypurudy Aq pajsanb

£10T B9 [ed
ISIA'S H uorup) juiof AjuD) AaIsjuop os



-131-

00001  00°8€8°9¥91$  00°0% 000% 00'0$ 00'8€8°9¥9°1$  00'VI90SH' I
00001  00°8€8°9¥9°I$ " 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'8€8°9¥9°1$  00'P19°0SH'1% soue[eq FuruuiSog paISn[PV [EJOL xssx
g douejeg pa.taquinouy 28] O tea A jua.Lng Sunyiom panotddy
pasaquunouaun) papuadxy
pung uonduwepay pue jsela)ju] puog |G
[oX
NA60'60°Z1 €102/L/ €102/0€/% NI Z10Z/1/L Wwody

Iagjoypurud| Aq paisanb

Q £10¢ :1ea x [eo
$T 40 77 adeyg 310 @NH @hﬂomﬂ 1SI(T'S"H uoruq) jwof Ajuy) A2I9uojn’og



00001  00°8£8°9¥9°l$  00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'8€8°949°1$ 00'v19°0SH° 1§ 2oueleq Buipuy 7p sainyipuadxy [ejog
00°001 00'8€8°9¥9°1$  00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'8£8°9¥9°1$ 00'719°0SH°1$ soueeqg Suluudag 79 awoou] n_/_ L

[4p]

i
00'001 00'8€8°9¥9°1$  00°0% 00°0% 000% 00°8£8°9¥9'1$ 00 ¥19°0St° 1% (06L6) @oue(eg pun, pajeulsy :{ejo]
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 08L6 - 0LL6 :[®10]
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 61L6-01L6 ‘[=10L
000 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 000L - 0001 :|m0L
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 0009 - 0001 :[m0L
000 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 000S - 0001 :[=0]
000 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 189 A JUBLIND) SLU0DU] (B0
00001 00'8€8°9¥9'1$  00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'8€8°9¥9°1¢ 00'#19°0SH' 1§ 2oue[eq Suiuuidag :[ei0]

2 aoue|eg pataquunouy 98] O dBaA jua.ungy gunpiom panoiddy

paaquinousup)

Nd60:60:21 €10Z/L/8
$TJ0 €T 93ed

papuadxy

£107/0E/y Ny Z107/1/L woud

110doy preog

pung uondwapay pue 1sa10)u] puog |G :

Bto.:v::._w_ Aq parsent
£10T ‘18X [eo
SIS H uotup) Jurof Ajup) A219juop oS



-133-

000 (8¥'68€'4ST'18) 0008 8 68E VST IS 8V 68€¥ST 1S 00°0% 00°0%

000 (8¥'68€¥ST'18)  00°0$ 8Y°68€PST'IS 8V 68E VST 1S 0008 00°0% 2oue[eq 3UIUUIBAY PAISNIPY [BIOL s
2 Joueleg palaquunouy 9] O] JBIA L) Sunyiom pasouddy
paaquuinouaun) pepuadxg

Wd60°60:21 €10Z/L/8
$TJ0 pz 95ed

C10Z/0L/y Uy T10T/ 1 /L wody

110day paeog

pun{ 291A195 1G9(] 95 |

1950ypunud| Aq paisanb

€107 B0 X [BD!
SIS H uotup) juiof AjuD) Aa1ejuoy'os



000 (87°68E'PST'1$)  00°0% 8Y'68EPST'IS  8¥'68EPST IS 00°0$ 00°0% oueleq Suipug 79 sainjipuadxy (g0
000 (8¥'68€'¥ST'1$)  00°0% 8¥'68EYST'IS  8Y'68E ST IS 0008 00°0% soue[eg FutuuiSag 29 awoou] | -
o
i
000 (8¥°68€°PST'1$) 000 8Y'68E'ST'IS  8K'68CPSTIS  00°0% 00°0$ (06L6) @ouejeg puny pajewnsy (e
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 08L6 - 0LL6 ‘l®10L
000 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 61L6-01L6 :|=10L
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 000% 00°0% 000L - 0001 ‘le30f
000 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 0009 - 0001 :[e10L
000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 0005 - 0001 ‘=oL
000 00'0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 183 A Jua.LInD awoou] g0,
000 (8¥°68€'vST'1$) 00708 8V 68EPSTIS  8P68E'WST IS 00°0% 00°0% souejeq Suiuuiag :ejo]
2 aouejeg pataquinouy jeq 0 JeoA juaLny) Jupjiom pasoiddy
patequunousun papuadxgy

Nd60:60:C1 €102/L/S
§T 30 ST o8y

£10T/0E/y nW Z10T/1/L wotq

110day paeog

pun4 201A195 193 9 f

Iajjoypunud £q pajsanb:
€107 1180 % [BOs
ISI’S H uotup) jutof Ajuy) Aa1sjuo oS



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Site Enrollment, Attendance, and Referral Statistics MEETING: May 15, 2013

AGENDA SECTION: J ACTION

X INFORMATION

) ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures
X Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Attached are reports for each site indicating enrollment, attendance, and discipline.

Recommendation:
This is an information item only.

Fiscal Impact:

None
Sul%mitted By: Approved:

,/r j e /7//“'2 7 /7 ) , } / 1,"'\ 7 .

f L 4 / P 7 R PN
/f ,L,/c e A i [ L(;:,L,,- Lot / «_ Y, %7 q{ A e
‘Daniel R. Mmrao, Ed.D. _ Daniel R Mouao Ed.D.

State Administrator State Administrator

-135-



Greenfield High School

5/8/2013 2:37:14 PM

2012-2013 Daily Apportionment for Month 9 Page 1
Day # Date Holiday Enrollment Apportionment  Difference Percent Present
161 3/25/2013 873 809 64 92.67%
162 3/26/2013 872 836 36 95.87%
163 3/27/2013 872 834 38 95.64%
164 3/28/2013 871 819 52 94.03%
165 3/29/2013 @ 0 0 0
166 4/1/2013 @ 0 0 0
167 4/2/2013 @ 0 0 0
168 4/3/2013 @ 0 0 0
169 4/4/2013 = @ 0 0 0
170 4/5/2013 @ 0 0 0
171 4/8/2013 871 803 68 92.19%
172 4/9/2013 872 828 44 94.95%
173 4/10/2013 873 836 37 95.76%
174 4/11/2013 876 838 38 95.66%
175 4/12/2013 876 696 180 79.45%
176 4/15/2013 875 827 48 94.51%
177 4/16/2013 875 844 31 96.46%
178 4/17/2013 876 842 34 96.12%
179 4/18/2013 876 840 36 95.89%
180 4/19/2013 876 831 45 94.86%
Month 9 Average: 873.86 820.21 93.86%

@ = School not in session

Spring Break 3-29-2013 - 4/5/2013

-136-




e € v 9 S 0L Sz sl W
S - b - Z 4 S (1) o068y (3) Anuejorgy 7|

€ - - b b b € (3) snndnusiq “toineyag  ge

| - L - - - l  (3) edousipaqosiq ‘Joneysg /¢

€ - - - b 14 € (3) soueyeq Joineysg  og

i - ! - - - b (3)jo vononyseq ‘Auedold, gl

) - L - - - L Buiysipueag ‘ayuy, g1

| | - z - - 2 (3) Jo uojssassoy ‘sbrug, g0

N | - - - L L (3) eljeulaydeley ‘sbrug, 20

£ | - € L - 4 (2)(e) 0068 (3) Inessy, 10

] b - - - - ¥ ¥ (3)Jo uoissessod ‘loyodly, 10
W 4 2L L1 0L 8 |ejo ] SWEN pue # apoY

Xag apeln
| abed €L02/0€/Y 03 £10Z/L/y wouly Juoday uolnnquisiqg auljdiosig savy €L0¢g-¢loe

eL0Z/9/s | |ooyos ybiH pleyusain



King City High School 52013 24856 pm

2012-2013 Daily Apportionment for Month 9 Page 1
Day # Date Holiday Enroliment Apportionment  Difference  Percent Present
161 3/25/2013 888 838 50 94.37%
162 3/26/2013 885 859 26 97.06%
163 3/27/2013 884 833 51 94.23%
164 3/28/2013 883 833 50 94.34%
165 3/29/2013 @ 0 0 0
166 4/1/2013 @ 0 0 0
167 4/2/2013 @ 0 0 0
168 4/3/2013 @ 0 0 0
169 4/4/2013 @ 0 0 0
170 4/5/2013 @ 0 0 0
171 4/8/2013 881 835 46 94.78%
172 4/9/2013 882 852 30 96.60%
173 4/10/2013 882 856 26 97.05%
174 4/11/2013 880 839 41 95.34%
175 4/12/2013 881 850 31 96.48%
176 4/15/2013 882 866 16 98.19%
177 4/16/2013 882 873 9 98.98%
178 4/17/2013 881 833 48 94.55%
179 4/18/2013 881 865 16 98.18%
180 4/19/2013 881 871 10 98.86%
Month 9 Average: 882.36 850.21 96.36%

@ = School not in session

Spring Break 3-29-2013 - 4/5/2013

-138-




-139-

¥ £ - z v L L sl

b - - | - - b (1)(e) o8y (3) Bunubly  ¢g

L b - b } - Zz [o0yog jo uondrusiq /¥

- ! - - | - | 00687 (3) Jo esn 'sbrug, 0}

z | - - z b €  (3)Jouossessod 'sbrug, g0

N A 2k L 0L B lejol BWEN pUE # 8p0)
Xag apelin)

| abed
€10¢/8/8

€102/0€/¥ 01 €10Z/1/¥ woly Jiodey uonnquysiq sujdiasig sav

|jooyos ybiH Ao Bury

€102-¢l0c




Portola-Butler Contin. High School ss20131252.43

2012-2013 Daily Apportionment for Month 9 Page 1
Day # Date Holiday Enrollment Apportionment  Difference  Percent Present ’

161 3/25/2013 111 107 4 96.40%

162 3/26/2013 112 110 2 98.21%

163 3/27/2013 112 109 3 97.32%

164 3/28/2013 112 110 2 98.21%

165 3/29/2013 @ 0 0 0

166 4/1/2013 @ 0

167 4/2/2013 @ 0 0 0

168  4/3/2013 @ 0 0 0

169 4/4/2013 @ 0 0 0

170 4/5/2013 @ 0 0 0

171 4/8/2013 111 111 0 100.00%

172 4/9/2013 107 107 0 100.00%

173 4/10/2013 107 107 .0 100.00%

174 4/11/2013 106 ' 106 0 100.00%

175 4/12/2013 106 106 0 100.00%

176 4/15/2013 104 104 0 100.00%

177 4/16/2013 103 103 0 100.00%

178 4/17/2013 102 102 0 100.00%

179 4/18/2013 101 101 0 100.00%

180 4/19/2013 102 102 0 100.00%
Month 9 Average: 106.86 106.07 99.26%

@ = School not in session

Spring Break 3-29-2013 - 4/5/2013

-140-



-141-

v - z L L - ¥ is|go]

L - L - - - L (1)(e) 0068y (3) Bunybly  zg

b - - b - - L (3) eAndrusiq ‘loineysg  gg

L - L - - - L (2) eleuwssydesey ‘sbrug, /0

L - - - L - L (z)e) o068y (3) Nnessy, 10

N 4 ZL Ly 0L 6 |ejo]. SWeN pue # apoD
Xag apelD)

| obey
€102/8/S

€102/0€/¥ 031 €1.0Z/1/y wouy yoday uonnquisiq aulidiosig sqv

looyas yBiH ‘uuog usjng-ejoyiog

€10¢-¢loc



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: California Healthy Kids Survey MEETING:

AGENDA SECTION: J ACTION

(J INFORMATION

) ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Leaming and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
The California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) is the largest statewide survey of resiliency, protective factors, and

nisk behaviors in the nation. Across California, the CHKS has led to a better understanding of the relationship
between students' health behaviors and academic performance, and is frequently cited by state policymakers and
the media as a critical component of school improvement efforts to help guide the development of more
effective health, prevention, and youth development programs.

The CHKS also helps schools meet the current requirements of the federal Safe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities Act (SDFSC) as embodied in Title IV of the No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB) 0/ 200]1. NCLB
requires that CDE collects data on the incidence, prevalence, age of onset, and perception of health risks and
social disapproval of drug use by youth, and violence in schools and communities through anonymous student
and teacher surveys.

During the month of May SMCJUHSD will be administering the CHKS to all students in grades 9 and 11 at
GHS and KCHS and to all students at the Portola-Butler Continuation High School. All parents have been sent
a letter explaining the purpose and the process for having their students participate in the survey. Parents have
the right to withdraw permission for their son/daughter to take the survey.

Recommendation:
It1s recommended that the State Administrator approve the district’s participation in the CHKS Survey.

Fiscal Impact:
The cost will not exceed $250.00.

Submntted By: : Approved:

g X
4 / ,}O .
SR SN ) .
Cansce 4. MeCerthy V79 S VIS,
Ny A =
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
- 14 2 -.dministrator




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Board Policies First Reading MEETING: May 15,2013
AGENDA SECTION: (J ACTION
X INFORMATION
(J ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Leammg and Student Safety

Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:

Attached are a series of Board Polices, Administrative Regulations and Exhibits that will govern the South
Monterey County Joint Union High School District. These are presented as a first reading for the Boards’ edits

etc.

Recommendation:

To review these policies and AR’s for conSJderallon before making final approval.

BP 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials (Revised)
AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials (Revised)

BP 6161.11 Supplementary Instructional materials (new)

AR 6173.1 Education for Foster Youth (revised)

BP 6174 Education for English Language Learners (revised)
AR 6174 Education for English Language Learners (revised)
E 6174 Education for English Language Learners (new)

AR 6183 Home and Hospital Instruction (new)
BB 9322 Agenda Meeting Materials (revised)

BB 9323.2 Actions By the Board (revised)
E 9323.2 Actions by the Board (revised)

Fiscal Impact:
None

Submitted By:

Uie i Viste

“Daniel R. Mouao Ed.D.
State Administrator

Approved

4 @Mpa@ﬂ (P

Damel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
-143- State Administrator




BP 6161.1 (a)

BP 6161.1 Instruction
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad
spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect society's diversity, and enhance the use of
multiple teaching strategies and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials
based on a determination that such materials are an effective learning resource to help students
achieve grade-level competency and meet criteria specified in Jaw. Textbooks, technology-based
materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with state and district content
standards and the district's curriculum in order to ensure that they effectively support the
district's adopted courses of study.

(c/- 0440 - District Technology Plan)

(cf- 6000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf- 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf 6143 - Courses of Study)

(¢f- 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)

(¢/. 6161 - Equipment, Books and Materials)

(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

(cf- 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

(cf- 9000 - Role of the Board)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials shall be
reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish an
instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional
materials. This process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shal] also encourage
the participation of parents/guardians and community members. (Education Code 60002)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the
materials meet the criteria specified in law and administrative regulation. (Education
Code 60400)

All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the district
office.

(cf- 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

Individuals who participate in the selection or evaluation of instructional materials shall not have
a conflict of interest, as defined in administrative regulation, in the materials being reviewed.

-144-



BP 6161.1 (b)

(cf- 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Complaints concemning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law, Board
policy, and administrative regulation.

(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

The Board's priority in the selection of instructional materials is to ensure that all students in
grades K-12 are provided with instructional materials that are aligned to state content standards
in the core curriculum areas of reading/language arts, mathematics, science, and history-social

science.

The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for a
specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials
support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers piloting
the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted.

Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Textbooks or Instructional Materials

The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the district's
textbooks or instructional materials. (Education Code 60119; 5 CCR 9531)

The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day students
attend school for that year. (Education Code 60119)

The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community
members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the hearing and in three
public places within the district, the Superintendent or designee shall post a notice containing the
time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place during or immediately
following school hours. (Education Code 60119)

(cf- 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

-145-



BP 6161.1 (c)

At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in
each school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or instructional
materials which are aligned to the state content standards adopted pursuant to Education
Code 60605 or the Common Core Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8
and which are consistent with the content and cycles of the state's curriculum frameworks.
Sufficiency of instructional materials shall be determined in each of the following subjects:

(Education Code 60119)

1. Mathematics

(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)

2. Science

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)

3. History-social science

(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)

4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an
adopted program

(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction)
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)

5. Foreign language
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction)

6. Health

-146-



BP 6161.1 (d)

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

The Board shall also make a written determination as to whether each student enrolled in a
foreign language or health course has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials that are
consistent with the content and cycles of the state curriculum frameworks. The Board shall
determine the availability of science Jaboratory equipment, as applicable to science laboratory
courses offered in grades 9-12. (Education Code 60119)

In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient
textbooks and/or instructional materials to use in class and to take home. However, this does not
require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a digital format as
long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the class and to
take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district and has the ability to use
and access them at home. However, the materials shall not be considered sufficient if they are
photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied to address
a shortage. (Education Code 60119)

For the 2008-09 through 2012-13 fiscal years, the Board shall also make a determination that all
students within the district who are enrolled in the same course have "identical" standards-
aligned textbooks or instructional materials from the same adoption cycle, as defined in
Education Code 1240.3, 60119, and 60422. (Education Code 1240.3, 42605)

However, the district may purchase the newest adopted instructional materials for students
in district schools ranked in deciles 1-3 of the base Academic Performance Index in any one
of the past three school years without necessarily purchasing these materials for use in
other district schools. (Education Code 1240.3)

If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks and/or instructional materials, the
Board shall provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, for each
school in which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-
aligned textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the reasons that each student
does not have sufficient textbooks and/or instructional materials. The Board shall take any
action, except an action that would require reimbursement by the Commission of State
Mandates, to ensure that each student has sufficient materials within two months of the
beginning of the school year in which the determination is made. (Education Code 60119)

Legal Reference:

-147 -



BP 6161.1 (e)

EDUCATION CODE

1240 County superintendent, general duties

1240.3 Definition of sufficiency for categorical flexibility

33050-33053 General waiver authority

33126 School accountability report card

35272 Education and athletic matenals -

42605 Tier 3 categorical flexibility

44805 Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations
49415 Maximum textbook weight

51501 Subject matter reflecting on race, color, etc.

60000-60005 Instructional materials, legislative intent

60010 Definitions

60040-60052 Instructional requirements and materials

60060-60062 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers
60070-60076 Prohibited acts (re instructional materials)

60110-60115 Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education

60119 Public hearing on sufficiency of matenals

60200-60206 Elementary school materials

60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers

60240-60252 State Instructional Matenals Fund

60350-60352 Core reading program instructional matenials

60400-60411 High school textbooks

60420-60424 Instructional Materials Funding Realignment Program
60510-60511 Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials

60605 State content standards

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

9505-9535 Instructional materials, especially:

9531-9532 Instructional Materials Funding Realignment Program
Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Flexibility Provisions in the 2008 and 2009 State Budget: Policy Considerations for Governance
Teams, Budget Advisory, March 2009

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION CORRESPONDENCE
1002.90 Selection of Instructional Matenials, CIL: 90/91-02
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Standards for Evaluation of Instructional Materials with Respect to Social Content, rev. 2000
STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES

01-05 Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, September 2001
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Association of American Publishers: http://www.publishers.org

Califorma Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

(11/06 11/09) 11/10

-148-



BP 6161.1 (f)

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15,2013
Adopted: King City, California

-149-



AR 6161.1 (a)

AR 6161.1 Instruction
‘Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Instructional Materials Funding Realignment Program

The district shall use state funds received under the Instructional Materials Funding Realignment
Program to ensure that each student is provided with standards-aligned textbooks or instructional
matenials, in an electronic or hard-bound format, in the core curriculum areas of

reading/language arts, mathematics, science, and history-social science. (Education Code 60422,

60422.3)

Instructional materials for grades 9-12 shall be adopted by the Governing Board. Standards-
aligned materials in each core curriculum area shall be provided to each student at the beginning
of the first school term that commences no later than 24 months after those materials are adopted
by the Board, as applicable. (Education Code 60422)

(cf- 6011 - Academic Standards)

For grades 9-12, the Superintendent or designee shall review instructional materials in history-
social science, mathematics, reading/language arts, and science using a standards map in order to
determine the extent to which the materials are aligned to the content standards adopted by the

SBE.

After the Board has certified that all students have been provided with standards-ali gned
instructional materials in the core curriculum areas, the district may use any remaining program
funds for the purposes specified in Education Code 60242. (Education Code 60119, 60422)

Cnteria for Selection and Adoption of Instructional Materials

. o :

In recommending textbooks or other instructional materials for adoption by the Governing
Board, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that such materials:

1. Are aligned to any applicable academic content standards adopted by the State
Board of Education (SBE) pursuant to Education Code 60605 and/or Common
Core Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8

2. For instructional materials in high schools, be provided by publishers who comply with

the requirements of Education Code 60040-60048, 60060-60062, and 60226 (Education
Code 60400)

-150-



AR 6161.1 (b)

3. Do not reflect adversely upon persons because of their race or ethnicity, gender,
religion, disability, nationality, sexual orientation, occupation, or other characteristic listed
in Education Code 220, nor contain any sectarian or denominational doctrine or
propaganda contrary to law (Education Code 51501, 60044)

3. To the satisfaction of the Board, be accurate, objective, current, and suited to the needs
and comprehension of students at their respective grade levels (Education Code 60045)

4. With the exception of literature and trade books, use proper grammar and spelling
(Education Code 60045)

5. Not provide any exposure to a commercial brand name, product, or corporate or company
logo unless the Board makes a specific finding that the use is appropriate based on one of
the following: (Education Code 60048, 60200)

a. The commercial brand name, product, or corporate or company logo is used in text
for an educational purpose as defined in guidelines or frameworks adopted by the
SBE.

b. The appearance of a commercial brand name, product, or corporate or company logo
i an 1llustration is incidental to the general nature of the illustration.

(cf- 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

6. If the matenals are technology-based materials, be both available and comparable to
‘other, equivalent instructional materials (Education Code 60052)

7. Meet the requirements of Education Code 60040-60043 for specific subject content

8. Support the district's adopted courses of study and curricular goals

e 6141 Corrieshum-Devel | el
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction)
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction)

(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)

(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

-151-



(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)

9.

AR 6161.1 (c)

Contribute to a comprehensive, balanced curriculum

10. Demonstrate reliable quality of scholarship as evidenced by:

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

18.

a. Accurate, up-to-date, and well-documented information
b. Objective presentation of diverse viewpoints
c. Clear, concise writing and appropriate vocabulary

d. Thorough treatment of subject

'Provide for a wide range of materials at all levels of difficulty, with appeal to students of
varied interests, abilities, and developmental levels

Include materials that stimulate discussion of contemporary 1ssues and improve students’
thinking and decision-making skills

Contribute to the proper articulation of instruction through grade levels
As appropriate, have corresponding versions available in languages other than English

Include high-quality teacher's guides

Meet high standards in terms of the quality, durability, and appearance of paper,
binding, text, and graphics

When available from the publishers, include options for lighter weight materials in order
to help minimize any injury to students by the combined wei ght of instructional
materials

Instructional Materials Evaluation Committee

The Superintendent or designee may establish an instructional materials evaluation committee to
evaluate and recommend instructional materials for Board approval. This committee shall
substantially be composed of teachers and may also include administrators, other staff who have
subject-matter expertise, parents/guardians, community members, and students as appropriate.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided above and in law, and
shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its recommendations.

-152-



AR 6161.1 (d)

Conflict of Interest

To ensure integrity and impartiality in the evaluation and selection of instructional materials, any
district employee who is participating in the evaluation of instructional materials and not
otherwise designated in the district's conflict of interest code shall not:

1. Accept any emolument, money, or other valuable thing or inducement to directly or
indirectly introduce, recommend, vote for, or otherwise influence the adoption or
purchase of any instructional material (Education Code 60072)

Sample copies of instructional materials are excepted from this prohibition. (Education
Code 60075)

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

2. Be employed by or receive compensation from any person, firm, organization, or any of
its subsidiaries or controlling entities submitting instructional materials to the district

3. Have or negotiate a contractual relationship with any person, firm, or organization or any
of its subsidiaries or controlling entities submitting instructional materials to the district

4. Have an interest as a contributor, author, editor, or consultant in any textbook or other
mstructional material submitted to the district

(11/06 11/09) 11/10

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013
Adopted: King City, California

-153-



BP 6161.11 (a)

Instruction

Supplementary Instructional Materials

The Governing Board encourages the use of supplementary instructional materials to
enrich the curriculum and enhance student learning. Such materials shall be aligned with
district goals, curriculum objectives, and academic standards and shall supplement and not
supplant the use of Board-adopted basic instructional materials that serve as the primary

learning resources.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

Supplementary instructional materials include, but are not limited to, instructional
materials that are designed to serve one or more of the following purposes: (Education
Code 60010)

1. To provide more complete coverage of one or more subjects included in a given
course

2. To meet the various learning ability levels of students in a given age group or grade
level

3. To meet the diverse educational needs of students with a language disability in a

given age group or grade level

4. To meet the diverse educational needs of students reflective of a condition of
cultural plaralism

5. To use current, relevant technology that further engages interactive learning in the
classroom and beyond

(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction)
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)

-154-



BP 6161.11 (b)

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)

Supplementary instructional materials may be selected by the State ‘
Administrator/Superintendent or designee, school administrators, or teachers, as
applicable, and obtained through donations to the district and/or available funding sources
designated for these purposes.

(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation)
(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests)
(cf. 4132/4232/4332 - Publication or Creation of Materials)

As appropriate, supplementary instructional materials shall meet the criteria developed for
the selection and evaluation of basic instructional materials as described in AR 6161.1 -
Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials. Supplementary instructional
materials shall be directly related to the course of study in which they are being used and
shall be appropriate for the age and maturity level of the students.

The use or reproduction of supplementary instructional materials shall be in accordance
with federal copyright law.

(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials)

Supplementary Materials Aligned with Common Core Standards

The Board may approve supplementary instructional materials that are not on the lists
approved by the SBE but which are aligned with the Common Core Standards provided
that the materials comply with the evaluation criteria established by the SBE and
Education Code 60050, 60060-60062, and 60226. The Board shall select content review
experts who possess the qualifications specified in law to review and recommend such

-155-



BP 6161.11 (c)

supplementary materials. The majority of the content review experts shall be teachers who
are credentialed and/or authorized in the subject area they are reviewing and the
remainder shall include appropriate persons from postsecondary educational institutions,
school and district curriculum administrators, and other persons who are knowledgeable
in the subject area. (Education Code 60605.86-60605.88)

Appropnateness of Materials

Whenever a district employee proposes to use a supplementary resource which is not
included in the approved learning resources of the district, he/she shall preview the
material to determine whether, in his/her professional judgment, it is appropriate for the
grade level taught and is consistent with district criteria for the selection of supplementary
instructional materials.

The employee shall confer with the Superintendent or designee as necessary to determine
the compliance of the material with district criteria. The primary considerations should be
the educational value, appropriateness, and relevance of the materials as well as the ages
and maturity of the students.

(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs)
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction)
(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

233.5 Duty regarding instruction in morals, manners, and citizenship
18111 Exclusion of books by governing board

51510 Prohibited study or supplemental materials

51511 Religious matters properly included

51933 Sex education materials

60010 Definitions

60050 Social content review of instructional materials

60060-60062 Requirements of publishers

-156-



BP 6161.11 (d)

60200.7 Suspension of state instructional materials adoptions
60226 Learner verification of instructional materials

60242 Uses of instructional materials funds

60400 Adoption of high school instructional materials

60605.8 Common Core Standards

60605.86-60605.88 Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core
Standards

60811.3 English language development standards

COURT DECISIONS

McCarthy v. Fletcher, (1989) 207 Cal. App. 3d 130

Fowler v. Board of Education of Lincoln County, (1978) 819 F.2d 657

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2000
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

(12/90 10/95) 11/12

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15,2013
Adopted: King City, CA

-157-



AR 6173.1 (a)

AR 6173.1 Instruction
Education For Foster Youth
Definitions

Foster youth means a child who has been removed from his/her home pursuant to Welfare and
Institutions Code 309, is the subject of a petition filed under Welfare and Institutions Code 300
or 602, or has been removed from his/her home and is the subject of a petition filed under
Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602. (Education Code 48853.5)

Person holding the right to make educational decisions means a responsible adult appointed by a
court pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 361 or 727.

School of origin means the school that the foster youth attended when permanently housed or the
school in which he/she was last enrolled. If the school the foster youth attended when
permanently housed is different from the school in which he/she was last enrolled, or if there is
some other school that the foster youth attended within the preceding 15 months and with which
the youth is connected, the liaison shall, in consultation with and with the agreement of the foster
youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the youth, determine, in
the best interests of the foster youth, which school is the school of origin. (Education Code

48853.5)

Best interests means that, in making educational and school placement decisions for a foster
youth, consideration is given to, among other factors, educational stability, the opportunity to be
educated in the least restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve academic progress, and
the foster youth's access to academic resources, services, and extracurricular and enrichment
activities that are available to all district students. (Education Code 48850, 48853)

Dastrict Liaison

The Superintendent designates the following position as the district's liaison for foster youth:
(Education Code 48853.5)

Assistant Superintendent
800 Broadway - King City, CA 93930
(831) 385-0606
(cf- 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
The liaison for foster youth shall:
1. Ensure and facilitate the proper educational placement, enrollment in school, and

checkout from school of students in foster care (Education Code 48853.5)

-158-



AR 6173.1 (b)

2. Ensure proper transfer of credits, records, and grades when students in foster care transfer
from one school to another or from one district to another (Education Code 48853.5,

48645.5)

When a student in foster care is enrolling in a district school, the liaison shall contact the
school last attended by the student to obtain all academic and other records, within two
business days of receiving the request. When a foster youth is transferring to a new
school, the liaison shall provide the student's records to the new school within two
business days of receiving the new school's request. (Education Code 48853.5)

(cf- 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

3. As needed, make appropriate referrals to ensure that students in foster care receive
necessary special education services and services under Section 504 of the federal

Rehabilitation Act of 1973

(¢f: 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf- 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

4. Ensure that students in foster care receive appropriate school-based services, such as
supplemental instruction, counseling, or after-school services

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/Afier School Programs)

(cf- 5149 - At-Risk Students)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(cf- 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program)

(cf- 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)
(cf. 6177 - Summer School)

(cf- 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

5. As needed, ensure that students in foster care receive appropriate school-based
services, such as counseling and health services, supplemental instruction, and after-school

services

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program)

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)
(cf. 6177 - Summer School)

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

-159-



AR 6173.1 (c)

6. Develop protocols and procedures so that district staff, including principals, school
registrars, and attendance clerks, are aware of the requirements for the proper enrollment,
placement, and transfer of foster youth

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)
(¢/- 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4331 - Staff Development)

7. Collaborate with the county placing agency, social services, probation officers, juvenile
- court officers, nonprofit organizations, and advocates to help coordinate services for the

district's foster youth

(cf- 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf- 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

8. Monitor the educational progress of foster youth and provide reports to the
Supernintendent or designee and the Governing Board based on indicators identified in

Board policy

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly monitor the caseload of the liaison, as well as
his/her additional duties outside of the foster youth program, to determine whether adequate time
and resources are available to meet the needs of foster youth in the district.

(cf- 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(¢f- 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision)

Enrollment

A foster youth placed in a licensed children's institution or foster family home within the district
shall attend programs operated by the district unless one of the following circumstances applies:
(Education Code 48853, 48853.5) :

1. The student has an individualized education program requiring placement in a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school or agency, or in another local educational agency.

{cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(¢f- 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education)




AR 6173.1(d)

2. The parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make educational
decisions for the student determines that it is in the best interest of the student to be placed
in another educational program and submits a written statement to the district indicating

that determination and that:

a. He/she is aware that the student has a right to attend a regular public school in the
least restrictive environment.

b. The alternate educational program is a special education program, if applicable.

c. The decision to unilaterally remove the student from the district school and to place

him/her in an alternate education program may not be financed by the district.
(¢f. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students)

d. Any attempt to seek reimbursement for the alternate education program may be at
the expense of the parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make educational
decisions for the student.

(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students)

3. At the initial placement or any subsequent change in placement, the student exercises
his/her right to continue in his/her school of origin, as defined above.

a. The student may continue in the school of origin for the duration of the court's
Jjurnsdiction or, if the court's jurisdiction is terminated prior to the end of a school
year, then for remainder of the school year.

b. To provide the student the benefit of matriculating with his/her peers in accordance
with the established feeder patterns of school districts, a student who is transitioning
between school grade levels shall be allowed to continue in the district of origin in the
same attendance area. A student who is transitioning to a middle school or high
school shall be allowed to enroll in the school designated for matriculation in another
school district.

The liaison may, in consultation with and with the agreement of the foster youth and the person
holding the right to make educational decisions for the youth, recommend that the youth's right
to attend the school of origin be waived and he/she be enrolled in any school that students living
in the attendance area in which the foster youth resides are eligible to attend. All decisions shall
be made in accordance with the foster youth's best interests. (Education Code 48853.5)

-161-



AR 6173.1 (e)

Prior to making any recommendation to move a foster youth from his/her school of origin, the
liaison shall provide the youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for
the youth with a written explanation of the basis for the recommendation and how this
recommendation serves the youth's best interests. (Education Code 48853.5)

The role of the liaison shall be advisory with respect to placement decisions and determination of
the school of origin. (Education Code 48853.5)

If the Haison, in consultation with the foster youth and the person holding the right to make
educational decisions for the foster youth, agrees that the best interests of the youth would be
served by his/her transfer to a school other than the school of origin, the principal or designee of
the new school shall immediately enroll the foster youth. The foster youth shall be immediately
enrolled even if he/she: (Education Code 48853.5)

1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last
attended

(cf- 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripls)
2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms
(cf- 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

3. Is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic
records, proof of residency, and medical records, including, but not limited to, immunization
records or other documentation

(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing)
(cf- 5141.31 - Immunizations)
(cf 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

If a person with the right to make educational decisions for a foster youth or the foster youth
disagrees with the liaison's enrollment recommendation, he/she may appeal to the
Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make a determination within 30 calendar days of
receipt of the appeal. Within 30 calendar days of receipt of the Superintendent's decision, the
parent/guardian or foster youth may appeal that decision to the Board. The Board shall consider
the issue at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

(cf 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

If any dispute arises regarding the request of a foster youth to remain in the school of origin, the
youth has the right to remain in the school of origin pending resolution of the dispute. (Education
Code 48853.5)

-162-



AR 6173.1 ()

Transportation.

Upon request, the district may provide transportation for a foster youth to and from his/her
school of origin when the student is residing within the district and the school of origin is within

district boundaries.

Transfer of Coursework and Applicability of Graduation Requirements

When a foster youth transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and issue full credit
for any coursework that the foster youth has satisfactorily completed while attending another
public school, a juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency and shall
not require the foster youth to retake the course. (Education Code 51225.2)

If the foster youth did not complete the entire course, he/she shall be issued partial credit for the
coursework completed and shall be required to take the portion of the course that he/she did not
complete at his/her previous school. However, the district may require the foster youth to retake
the portion of the course completed if, in consultation with the holder of educational rights for
the foster youth, the district finds that the foster youth is reasonably able to complete the
requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial credit is issued to a foster
youth in any particular course, he/she shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if
applicable, so that he/she may continue and complete the entire course. (Education Code

51225.2)

In no event shall the district prevent a foster youth from taking or retakiﬁg a course to meet the
eligibility requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of
California. (Education Code 51225.2)

When a foster youth in grade 11 or 12 transfers into the district from another school district or
transfers between high schools within the district, he/she shall be exempted from all coursework
and other graduation requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to the statewide
coursework requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3 and the high school exit
examination, unless the district makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete
the additional requirements in time to graduate from high school while he/she remains in foster
care. (Education Code 51225.3, 60851)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any student who is granted an exemption and, as
appropriate, the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the student, if any of
the requirements that are waived will affect the student's ability to gain admission to a
postsecondary educational institution and shall provide information about transfer opportunities
available through the California Community Colleges. (Education Code 51225.3)

(cf- 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(¢cf- 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)

-163-



AR 6173.1 (g)

Grades/Credits

Grades for a student in foster care shall not be lowered if the student is absent from school due to
either of the following circumstances: (Education Code 49069.5)

1. A decision by a court or placement agency to change the student's placement, in which
case the student's grades and credits shall be calculated as of the date he/she left school

2. A verified court appearance or related court-ordered activity
(cf- 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)

Eligibility for Extracurricular Activities

A foster youth who changes residences pursuant to a court order or decision of a child welfare
worker shall be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for participation in
interscholastic sports or other extracurricular activities. (Education Code 48850)

(cf- 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf- 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(11709 11/10) 11/11

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013 »
Adopted: King City, California

-164-



BP 6174 (a)

BP 6174 Instruction
Education For English Language Learners

The Governing Board intends to provide English language learners with a challenging
curriculum and instruction that develop proficiency in English as rapidly and effectively as
possible in order to assist students in accessing the full educational program and achieving the
district's academic standards. The district's program shall be based on sound instructional theory
and shall be adequately supported so that English language learners can achieve results at the
same academic level as their English-proficient peers in the regular course of study.

The Board encourages staff to exchange information with staff in other districts and the county
office of education about programs, options and strategies for English language learners that
succeed under various demographic conditions.

(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching Students of Limited English Proficiency)

English learners shall be provided English language development instruction targeted to
their English proficiency level and aligned with state content standards. The district's
program shall be based on sound instructional theory and adequately supported in order to
assist students in accessing the full educational program.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

-165-



BP 6174 (b)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff employed to teach English
learners possess the appropriate authorization from the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing.

(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Language Learners)

The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parent and community involvement in the
development, implementation, and evaluation of English language development programs.
In addition, to support students' English language development, the Superintendent or
designee may provide an adult literacy training program for parents/guardians and
community members that leads to English fluency.

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures which provide for the 1dentification,
assessment and placement of English language learners and for their redesi gnation based on
criteria adopted by the Board and specified in administrative regulations. B

To evaluate program effectiveness, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly examine
program results, including reports of the English language learners' academic achievement, their
progress towards proficiency in English and the progress of students who have been redesi gnated
as fluent English proficient. The Superintendent or designee shall annually report these findings
to the Board and shall also provide the Board with regular reports from any district or
schoolwide English leamer advisory committees.

(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Type of Instruction

Students who are English language learners shall be educated through "sheltered English
immersion" or "structured English immersion" during a temporary transition period not normally
intended to exceed one year. "Nearly all" of the classroom instruction in the district's sheltered

-166-



BP 6174 (c)

English immersion program shall be in English, but with the curriculum and presentation
designed for students who are learning the language. (Education Code 305, 306)

The district has defined the term "nearly all" as follows:

* The student’s primary language may be used as support to clarify meaning and
facilitate comprehension

When an English language leamer has acquired a reasonable level of English proficiency as
measured by any of the state-designated assessments approved by the California Department of
Education or any locally developed assessments and using other criteria developed by the
district, he/she shall be transferred from a structured English immersion classroom to an English
language mainstream classroom in which the instruction is "overwhelmingly” in English.
(Education Code 305; 5 CCR 11301)

An English language learner has acquired a "reasonable level of English proficiency" when
he/she has achieved the following:

* ELD Level 4 “Early Advanced” (level 4) or “Advanced” (level 5) as assessed by the
California English Language Development Test (CELDT)

(cf- 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf- 6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Upon the request of his/her parent/guardian, a student shall be placed in an Enghsh language
mainstream classroom. (5 CCR 11301)

Parental Exception Waivers

At any time during the school year, the parent/guardian of an English language learner may have
his/her child moved into an English language mainstream program.

Parent/guardian requests for waivers from Education Code 305 regarding placement in a
sheltered English immersion program shall be granted in accordance with law and administrative

regulation.

If the Superintendent or designee denies the waiver request, he/she shall provide a written
justification to the parent/guardian describing the reasons for the denial. A parent/guardian may
appeal the Superintendent's decision in writing to the Board. The Board may consider the matter
at its next regular Board meeting. The Board may decide not to hear the appeal, in which case the
Superintendent's decision shall be final. If the Board hears the appeal, the Superintendent shall
send the Board's decision to the parent/guardian within seven working days.

y
B
B
5
b
o]

(D]

ode2132_1
\AS 3 Vare i we



BP 6174 (d)

To evaluate the effectiveness of the district's educational program for English learners, the
Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually, regarding the
progress of English learners towards proficiency in English, the number and percentage of
English learners reclassified as fluent English proficient, the number and percentage of
English learners who are or are at risk of being classified as long-term English learners, the
achievement of English learners on standards-based tests in core curricular areas, and a
comparison of current data with data from at least the previous year. The Superintendent
or designee also shall provide the Board with regular reports from any district or
schoolwide English learner advisory committees.

Legal Reference:

-168-



BP 6174 (e)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

300-340 English language education

430-446 English Learner and Immigrant Pupil Federal Conformity Act
33050 State Board of Education waiver authority

44253.1-44253.11 Qualifications for teaching English learners

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

51101-51101.1 Rights of parents

52130-52135 Impacted Languages Act of 1984

52160-52178 Bilingual Bicultural Act

52180-52186 Bilingual teacher training assistance program
54000-54028 Programs for disadvantaged children

60200.7 Suspension of state instructional materials adoptions

60605.87 Supplemental instructional materials, English language development
60810-60812 Assessment of language development

62005.5 Continuation of advisory committee after program sunsets
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

11300-11316 English learner education

11510-11517 California English Language Development Test

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1701-1705 Equal Educational Opportunities Act

6312 Local education agency plans

6801-6871 Title 11, Language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant
students

7012 Parental notification

COURT DECISIONS

-169-



BP 6174 (f)

Valeria G. v. Wilson, (2002) 307 F.3d 1036
California Teachers Association v. State Board of Education et al., (9th Circuit, 2001) 271

F.3d 1141

McLaughlin v. State Board of Education, (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 196

Teresa P. et al v. Berkeley Unified School District et al, (1989) 724 F.Supp. 698
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

83 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 40 (2000)

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

California English Language Development Test (CELDT): 2012-13 CELDT Information
Guide, 2012

English Language Development Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten
Through Grade Twelve, 2012

Matrix of Test Variations, Accommodations, and Modifications for Administration of
California Statewide Assessments

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION NONREGULATORY GUIDANCE
Assessment and Accountability for Recently Arrived and Former Limited English
Proficient (LEP) Students, May 2007

WEB SITES
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

(10/98 11/02) 11/12

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013
Adopted: : ' King City, California

-170-



AR 6174 (a)

AR 6174 Instruction

Education For English Language Learners

Definitions

English learner means a student who does not speak English or whose native language is not

English and who is not currently able to perform ordinary classroom work in English, also
known as a limited English proficient or LEP child. (Education Code 306)

Long-term English learner means an English learner who is enrolled in grades 6-12, has
been enrolled in schools in the United States for more than six years, has remained at the
same English language proficiency level for two or more consecutive years as determined
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT) or any successor test, and
scores far below basic or below basic on the English language arts test of the California
Standards Tests or any successor test. (Education Code 313.1)

English learner at risk of becoming a long-term English learner means an English learner
who is enrolled in grades 5-11 in the United States for four years, scores at the intermediate
level or below on the CELDT or any successor test, and scores in the fourth year at the
below basic or far below basic level on the English language arts test of the California
Standards Tests or any successor test. (Education Code 313.1)

English language classroom means a classroom in which the language of instruction used by the
“teaching personnel is overwhelmingly the English language, and in which such teaching
personne] possess a good knowledge of the English language. (Education Code 306)

English language mainstream classroom means a classroom in which the students either are
native English language speakers or already have acquired reasonable fluency in English.
(Education Code 306)

Sheltered English immersion or structured English immersion means an English language
acquisition process in which nearly all classroom instruction is in English but with the
curriculum and presentation designed for students who are learning the language. (Education
Code 306)

-171-



AR 6174(b)
Bilingual education/native language instruction means a language acquisition process for
students in which much or all instruction, textbooks, and teaching maternials are in the student's

native language. (Education Code 306)

Identification and Assessment

Upon enrollment, each student's primary language shall be determined through use of a home
language survey. (5 CCR 11307)

Within 30 calendar days of their initial enrollment, students who are identified as having a
primary language other than English, as determined by the home language survey, and for whom
there 1s no record of results from an English language development test shall be assessed using
the California English Language Development Test (CELDT). (5 CCR 1151 D

All students shall have sufficient time to complete the CELDT as provided in the directions for
test administration. (5 CCR 11516)

Upon enrollment in the district, each student's primary language shall be determined
through use of a home language survey. (5 CCR 11307)

Any student who is identified as having a primary language other than English as
determined by the home Janguage survey, and who has not been previously identified as an
English learner by a California public school or for whom there is no record of results from
an administration of an English language proficiency test, shall be assessed for English
proficiency using the CELDT. The test shall be administered between 60 calendar days
before the date of first enrollment in a district school and 30 calendar days after the date of
first enrollment, but not before July 1 of that school year. (5 CCR 11511)

The CELDT shall be administered in accordance with 5 CCR 11511-11516.7.

-172-



AR 6174 (c)

Variations and accommodations in test administration may be provided pursuant to 5
CCR 11516-11516.7. Any student with a disability shall be allowed to take the CELDT
with those accommodations for testing that the student has regularly used during
instruction and classroom assessment as delineated in the student's individualized
education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan that are appropriate and necessary to
address the student's individual needs. If he/she is unable to participate in the assessment
or a portion of the assessment with such accommodations, he/she shall be administered an
alternate assessment for English language proficiency as set forth in his/her IEP. (5 CCR

11516-11516.7)

(cf. 6152.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

(cf- 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf- 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

The district shall notify parents/guardians of their child's results on the CELDT within 30
calendar days. (5 CCR 11511.5)

(cf- 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Within 90 days of initial enrollment, students identified as having limited English proficiency
shall be further assessed for primary language proficiency in comprehension, speaking, reading
and wnting. The Superintendent or designee shall develop criteria for determining student needs
on the basis of these assessments. (former Education Code 52164.1, 62002)

Before students are enrolled in a program for English language learners, parents/guardians shall
receive information about the program and their opportunities for parental involvement. This
information shall include the fact that an individual student's participation in the program 1s
voluntary on the part of the parent/guardian. (Education Code 52173)

Not later than 30 calendar days after the beginning of the school year, each parent/guardian of a
student participating in, or identified for participation in, a language instruction program
supported by federal Title III funds shall receive notification of the assessment of his/her child's
English proficiency. The notice shall include all of the following: (Education Code 440; 20 USC

6312)

-173-



AR 6174 (d)
1. The reason for the student's classification as English language learner

2. The level of English proficiency

3. A descnption of the program for English language development instruction, including a
description of all of the following:

a. 'The manner in which the program will meet the educational strengths and needs of
the student

b. The manner in which the program will help the student develop his/her English
proficiency and meet age-appropriate academic standards

¢. The specific exit requirements for the program, the expected rate of transition from
the program into classrooms not tailored for English language learner students, and
the expected rate of graduation from secondary school if Title 1 funds are used for
students in secondary schools

d. Where the student has been identified for special education, the manner in which the
program meets the requirements of the student's IEP

4. Information regarding a parent/guardian's option to decline to allow the student to
become enrolled in the program or to choose to allow the student to become enrolied in

an alternative program

5. Information designed to assist a parent/guardian in selecting among available programs,
if more than one program is offered

Parent/guardians also shall be notified of the results of any reassessments. (Education Code
52164.3)

Parental Exception Waivers

At the beginning of each school year, parents/guardians shall be informed of the placement of
their children in a structured English immersion program and shall be notified of an opportunity
to apply for a parental exception waiver. (Education Code 310; 5 CCR 11309)

A parent/guardian may request that the district waive the requirements of Education Code 305,
pertaining to the placement of a student in a structured English immersion program if the one of
the following circumstances exists:

1. Students who already know English: The student already possesses good English

language skills, as measured by standardized tests of English vocabulary comprehension,
reading and writing, in which the student scores at or above the state average for his/her

-174-



AR 6174 (e)

grade level or at or above the fifth-grade average, whichever is lower. (Education Code
311(a))

2. Older students: The student is age 10 years or older, and it is the informed belief of the
school principal and educational staff that an alternate course of study would be better
suited to the student's rapid acquisition of basic English skills. (Education Code 311(b))

3. Students with special needs: The student already has been placed, for a period of not less
than 30 calendar days during that school year, in an English language classroom and it is
subsequently the informed belief of the school principal and educational staff that the
student has special physical, emotional, psychological or educational needs and that an
alternate course of educational study would be better suited to the student's overall
educational development. (Education Code 311(c))

The parent/guardian shall personally visit the school to apply for the waiver. (Education Code
310)

Upon request for a waiver, the Superintendent or designee shall provide to the parents/guardians:
(Education Code 310, 311; 5 CCR 11309)

1. A full written description, and a spoken description upon request, of the intent and
content of the structured English immersion program, any alternative courses of study
and all educational opportunities offered by the district and available to the student, and
the educational materials to be used in the different educational program choices

2. For a request for waiver pursuant to Education Code 311(c) for students with special
needs, notification that the student must be placed for a period of not less than 30
calendar days in an English language classroom and that the Superintendent must
approve the waiver pursuant to Governing Board guidelines

***Note: Education Code 311 provides that a waiver may be granted when the student has such
special physical, emotional, psychological, or educational needs that an alternate course of study
would be better suited to the student's overall educational development, as provided in item #3
below. The State Board of Education (SBE) has declared that the definition of "special needs" is
broader than special education, or any other specific medical condition, in that expert
documentation justifying the waiver need not be presented by the parent/guardian. Rather, the
determination as to whether a child has "special needs" should be based on the parent/guardian's
opinion that an alternative program is better for his/her child. According to the CDE, for a
special education student, the IEP determines placement of that student, and therefore a waiver
pursuant to this section is not required. ***

3. The student already has been placed, for a period of not less than 30 calendar days during

that school year, 1n an English language classroom and it is subsequently the informed belief of
the principal and educational staff that the student has special physical, emotional, psychological,

-175-



AR 6174 (f)

or educational needs and that an alternate course of educational study wou]d be better suited to
the student's overall educational development.

Upon request for a waiver, the Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians
with a full written description and, upon request, a spoken description of the intent and
content of the structured English immersion program, any alternative courses of study, all
educational opportunities offered by the district and available to the student, and the
educational materials to be used in the different educational program choices. For a_
request for waiver pursuant to item #3 above, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the parent/guardian that the student must be placed for a period of not less than 30
calendar days in an English language classroom and that the waiver must be approved by
the Superintendent pursuant to any guidelines established by the Governing Board.
(Education Code 310, 311; 5 CCR 11309)

The principal and educational staff may recommend a waiver to a parent/guardian
pursuant to item #2 or #3 above. Parents/guardians shall be informed in writing of any
recommendation for an alternative program made by the principal and staff and shall be
given notice of their right to refuse to accept the recommendation. The notice shall include
a full description of the recommended alternative program and the educational materials
to be used for the alternative program as well as a description of all other programs
available to the student. If the parent/guardian elects to request the alternative program
recommended by the principal and educational staff, the parent/guardian shall comply
with district procedures and requirements otherwise applicable to a parental exception
waiver, including Education Code 310. (Education Code 311; 5 CCR 11309)

Parental exception waivers pursuant to item #2 above shall be granted if it is the informed
belief of the principal and educational staff that an alternate course of educational study
would be better suited to the student's rapid acquisition of basic English Ianguage skills.
(Education Code 311)

Parental exception waivers pursuant to item #3 above shall be granted by the
Superintendent if it is the informed belief of the principal and educational staff that, due to
the student's special physical, emotional, psychological, or educational needs, an alternate
course of educational study would be better suited to the student's overall educational
development. (Education Code 311)

-176-



AR 6174 (g)

All parental exception waivers shall be acted upon within 20 instructional days of
submission to the principal. However, parental waiver requests pursuant to item #3 above
shall not be acted upon during the 30-day placement in an English language classroom.
Such waivers shall be acted upon no later than 10 calendar days after the expiration of that
30-day English language classroom placement or within 20 instructional days of submission
of the waiver to the principal, whichever is later. (5 CCR 11309)

Any individual school in which 20 students or more of a given grade level receive a waiver
shall offer an alternative class where the students are taught English and other subjects
through bilingual education techniques or other generally recognized educational
methodologies permitted by law. Otherwise, the students shall be allowed to transfer to a
public school in which such a class is offered. (Education Code 310)

In cases where a parental exception waiver pursuant to item #2 or #3 above is denied, the
parent/guardian shall be informed in writing of the reason(s) for the denial and advised
that he/she may appeal the decision to the Board if the Board authorizes such an appeal, or
to the court. (5 CCR 11309)

Waiver requests shall be renewed annually by the parent/guardian. (Education Code 310)

Pursuant to Education Code 311(b) and 311(c), the principal and educational staff may
recommend a waiver to a parent/guardian for a student 10 years or older and a student with
special needs. Parents/guardians shall be informed in writing of any recommendation for an
alternative program made by the principal and staff and shall be given notice of their right to
refuse to accept the recommendation. The notice shall include a full description of the
recommended alternative program and the educational materials to be used for the alternative
program as well as a description of all other programs available to the student. If the
parent/guardian elects to request the alternative program recommended by the principal and
educational staff, the parent/guardian shall comply with district procedures and requirements
otherwise applicable to a parental exception waiver, including Education Code 310. (5 CCR

11309)

When evaluating waiver requests pursuant to Education Code 311(a) for students who already
know English and other waiver requests for those students for whom standardized assessment
data are not available, other equivalent assessment measures may be used. These equivalent
measures may include local assessments, local standards and teacher evaluations.

-177-



AR 6174 (h)

Parental exception waivers pursuant to Education Code 311(b) for students 10 years or older
shall be granted if it is the informed belief of the principal and educational staff that an alternate
course of educational study would be better suited to the student's rapid acquisition of basic
English language skills. (Education Code 311)

Parental exception waivers pursuant to Education Code 311(c) for students with special needs
shall be granted if it is the informed belief of the principal and educational staff that, due to the
student's special physical, emotional, psychological or educational needs, an alternate course of
educational study would be better suited to the student's overall educational development.
(Education Code 311)

The principal shall consider all waiver requests made pursuant to Education Code 311(c) for
students with special needs and shall submit a rationale of the decision regarding the waiver to

- the Supernintendent or designee. When determining whether or not to recommend the approval of
the waiver request, the principal shall assume that the facts justifying the request attested by the
parent/guardian are a true representation of the child's condition.

Each waiver shall be considered on its individual merits with great deference given to parental
preference for student placement.

The principal or designee shall act upon all parental exception waivers within 20 instructional
days of submission to the principal. However, parental waiver requests pursuant to Education
Code 311(c) for students with special needs shall not be acted upon during the 30-day placement
in an English language classroom. These waivers shall be acted upon no later than 10 calendar
days after the expiration of that 30-day English language classroom placement or within 20
mstructional days of submission of the waiver to the principal, whichever is later. (5 CCR

11309)

All parental exception waivers shall be granted unless the principal and educational staff have
determined that an alternative program offered at the school would not be better suited for the
overall educational development of the student. (5 CCR 11309)

Individual schools in which 20 students or more of a given grade level receive a waiver shall be
required to offer such a class; otherwise they must allow the students to transfer to a public
school in which such a class is offered. (Education Code 310)

Students wishing to transfer shall be subject to the district's intradistrict and interdistrict
attendance policies and administrative regulations. Students wishing to transfer to another district
shall also be subject to the receiving district's interdistrict attendance policies and administrative

regulations.

(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(¢f. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)

-178-



AR 6174 (i)

In cases where a parental exception waiver pursuant to Education Code 311(b) or (c) is denied,
the parent/guardian shall be informed in writing of the reason(s) for the denial and advised that
he/she may appeal the decision to the Board if the Board authorizes such an appeal, or to the
court. (5 CCR 11309)

Waiver requests shall be renewed annually by the parent/guardian. (Education Code 310)

Reclassification/Redesignation

-179-



AR 6174 (j)

The district shall continue to provide additional and appropriate educational services to
English learners for the purposes of overcoming language barriers until they: (5 CCR

11302)

1. Demonstrate English langnage proficiency comparable to that of the district's
average native English language speakers

2. Recoup any academic deficits which may have been incurred in other areas of the
core curriculum as a result of language barriers

English learners shall be reclassified as fluent English proficient when they are able to
comprehend, speak, read, and write English well enough to receive instruction in an
English language classroom and make academic progress at a level substantially equivalent
to that of students of the same age or grade whose primary language is English and who
are in the regular course of study. (Education Code 52164.6)

The following measures shall be used to determine whether an English learner shall be
reclassified as fluent English proficient: (Education Code 313; 5 CCR 11303)

1. Assessment of English language proficiency using an objective assessment
instrument, including, but not limited to, the CELDT.

-180-



AR 6174 (k)

2. Participation of the student's classroom teacher and any other certificated staff with
direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions related to the student.

3. Parent/guardian opinion and consultation. The Superintendent or designee shall
provide the parent/guardian with notice and a description of the reclassification process
and of his/her opportunity to participate in the process and shall encourage his/her
involvement in the process.

4. Student performance on a statewide assessment of basic skills in English.

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor the progress of reclassified students to
ensure their correct classification and placement. (5 CCR 11304)

Students shall be monitored for at Jeast two years following their reclassification. As part of

this evaluation, the Superintendent or designee shall identify whether the student needs any
additional academic support to ensure his/her language and academic success.

Advisory Committees

At the district level when there are more than 50 English language learners in the district and at
each school with more than 20 English language learners, parent/guardian advisory committees
shall be maintained to serve the advisory functions specified in law. (5 CCR 11308)

Parents/guardians of English language learners shall constitute committee membership in at least
the same percentage as their children represent of the total number of students in the school.

(Education Code 52176)

The district's English language advisory committee shall advise the Board on at least the
following tasks: (5 CCR 11308)

1. The development of a district master plan of education programs and services for English
learners, taking into consideration the school site plans for English learners

2. The distnctwide needs assessment on a school-by-school basis

3. Establishment of a district program, goals and objectives for programs and services for
English learners

-181-



AR 6174 (1)
4. Development of a plan to ensure compliance with applicable teacher or aide requirements

5. Administration of the annual language census
6. Review of and comment on the district's reclassification procedures

7. Review of and comments on the written notification required to be sent to
parents/guardians pursuant to 5 CCR 11300-11316

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Commitiees)

(cf- 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf- 6020 - Parent Involvement)

In order to assist advisory members in carrying out their responsibilities, the Superintendent or

designee shall ensure that committee members receive appropriate training and materials. This
training shall be planned in full consultation with the members. (5 CCR 11308)

(10/98 11/02) 3/03

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013
Adopted: King City, California

-182-



E 6174 (a)

Instruction
Education For English Language Learners

PARENTAL EXCEPTION WAIVER
EDUCATION CODE 311

Student's Name: Grade:

School: Date of Birth:

Student's Primary Language:

I request a waiver of the placement of my child in the school's structured/sheltered English
immersion program for the following reason:

__ My child possesses good English language skills. (Education Code 311(a))

__ My child is 10 years of age or older and I believe that an alternate course of study is better
suited to my child's rapid acquisition of English. (Education Code 311(b))

__ Ibelieve that my child has special needs and that an alternate course of study is better suited
to his/her educational development. (Education Code 311(c))

Iunderstand that the objective for my child is to be taught English as rapidly and effectively as
possible. I have been provided a full written description of the intent and content of the
structured English immersion program; any alternative courses of study offered by the district
and made available to my child; all educational opportunities offered by the district and made
available to my child; and the educational materials to be used in the different educational

program choices.
I'have personally visited the school to apply for this waiver.

T'understand that I must request that this waiver be reconsidered annually, each school year.

Parent/Guardian Signature:

Date:

Address:

City: State: Zip:

Phone Number:

-183-



E 6174 (b)

For School Use Only:

For waivers pursuant to Education Code 311(a), student's English standardized test scores:
(Scores must be at or above the state average for the child's grade level or above the 5th grade

average) .

Waiver Granted/Denied: Date:

Signature: Title:

(10/95 10/98) 11/12

Exhibat: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013
Adopted: King City, CA

-184-



AR 6183 (a)

AR 6183 Instruction
Home And Hospital Instruction

A student with a temporary disability which makes school attendance impossible or inadvisable
shall receive individual instruction in the student's home or in a hospital or other residential
health facility, excluding state hospitals. This instruction applies to students incurring a physical,
mental or emotional disability after which they can reasonably be expected to return to regular
day classes or an alternative education program without special intervention. It does not apply to
students identified as individuals with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 56026.
(Education Code 48206.3) '

(cf- 6158 - Independent Study)
(cf- 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

Home or hospital instruction shall be provided only by teachers with valid California teaching
credentials who consent to the assignment. (Education Code 44865)

(cf- 4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 4113 - Assignment)

The district shall offer at least one hour of instruction for every day of instruction offered by the
district in the regular education program. No student shall be credited with more than five days
of attendance per calendar week or credited with more than the total number of calendar days
that regular classes are offered by the district in any fiscal year. (Education Code 48200,

48206.3)

Insofar as possible, the teacher providing home or hospital instruction shall consult with the
student's current classroom teacher(s) so as to provide a continuity of instruction that enables the

student to stay abreast with the regular school program.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification through any reasonable means that the
student requires home instruction. In addition, this verification shall also state that the disabling -
condition will not expose the teacher to a contagious disease that can be transmitted through
casual contact. Home or hospital instruction shall not be denied to students with Hepatitis B,
herpes or HIV/AIDS, as long as the home or hospital practices current preventive protocol as
determined by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control.

(cf- 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens)
(cf- 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions)

(cf. 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

-185-



AR 6183 (b)

Nondistrict Students

A student of another district who is temporarily disabled and confined to a hospital or health
facility within this district shall be eligible to receive individual instruction in this district.
(Education Code 48207)

In such circumstances, it is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to notify the district of the
student's presence in a qualifying hospital. (Education Code 48208)

Upon receiving such notification, the Superintendent or designee shall: (Education Code 48208)

1. Within five working days of the notification, determine whether the student is able to
receive individualized instruction and, if so, when it shall begin. Instruction shall begin
no later than five working days after the Superintendent or designee has determined that
the student is able to receive individualized instruction.

2. Within five working days of the beginning of the individualized instruction, the
Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification to the district in which the
student was previously enrolled stating that the student shall not be counted by that
district for purposes of computing average daily attendance, effective the date on which
individualized instruction began.

Alternatively, the Superintendent or designee may enter into an agreement with the district in
which the student was previously enrolled to have that district provide the individualized
mnstruction. (Education Code 48208)

Parental Notifications
At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
parents/guardians that: (Education Code 48208, 48980)

1. Individual instruction is available for temporarily disabled students as prescribed by
Education Code 48206.3.

2. If a student becomes temporarily disabled, it is the parent/ guardian's responsibility to
notify the receiving district of the student's presence in a qualifying hospital.

(cf- 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

44865 Qualifications for home teachers
45031 Home teachers

48200 Minimum school day

-186-



AR 6183 (c)

48206.3 Pupils with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions; computing
average daily attendance

48206.5 Continuation of individual instruction programs for students with temp. disabilities
48207 Pupils with temporary disabilities in hospitals out- side of school district; compliance
with residency requirements

48208 Presence of pupils with temporary disabilities in qualifying hospitals; notice by
parents or guardians; commencement of individualized instruction

48980 Required notification of rights and availability of nutrition and individualized
instruction programs

51800-51802 Employment of home teachers

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

421 Method of verification

423 Prolonged illness

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNT JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

First Reading: May 15,2013
Adopted: King City, California

-187-



Bylaws of the Board BB 9322 (a)
AGENDA/MEETING MATERIALS

Governing Board meeting agendas shall state the meeting time and place and shall briefly describe
each business item to be transacted or discussed, including items to be discussed in closed session.
(Government Code 54954.2)

(cf- 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9321- Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board on any agenda
item before or during the Board's consideration of the item. The agenda shall also provide members

of the public an opportunity to testify at regular meetings on matters which are not on the agenda but
which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Education Code 35145.5; Government

Code 54954.3)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduci)

Each meeting agenda shall list the address designated by the Superintendent or designee for public
- inspection of agenda documents that have been distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the

meeting. (Government Code 54957.5)

The agenda shall specify that an individual who requires disability-related accommodations or
modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the Board meeting
should contact the Superintendent or designee. (Government Code 54954.2)

Agenda Preparation

The Board president and the Superintendent, as secretary to the Board, shall work together to
develop the agenda for each regular and special meeting. Each agenda shall reflect the district's
vision and goals and the Board's focus on student learning.

(cf- 0000 - Vision)

(¢f- 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf- 9121 - President)

(cf- 9122 - Secretary)

A Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the
Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request shall be in writing and be submitted
to the Superintendent or designee with supporting documents and information, if any, at least one
week before the scheduled meeting date. Items submitted less than a week before the scheduled
meeting date may be postponed to a later meeting in order to allow sufficient time for consideration
and research of the issue.

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether a request 1s within the subject matter

jurisdiction of the Board. Items not within the subject matter junisdiction of the Board may not be
placed on the agenda. In addition, the Board president and Superintendent shall determine if the item

-188-



BB 9322 (b)

is merely a request for information or whether the issue is covered by an existing policy or
administrative regulation before placing the item on the agenda.

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether an agenda item is appropriate for
discussion 1n open or closed session, and whether the item should be an action item subject to Board
vote, an information item that does not require immediate action, or a consent item that is routine in

nature and for which no discussion is anticipated.

Any Board action that involves borrowing $100,000 or more shall be discussed, considered, and
deliberated upon as a separate item of business on the meeting agenda. (Government Code 53635.7)

(cf- 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

All public communications with the Board are subject to requirements of relevant Board policies and
administrative regulations.

(cf- 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf- 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf- 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 1340 — Access to District Records

(cf- 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf- 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

Consent Items

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may act upon more than one item by a single vote
through the use of a consent agenda. Consent items shall be items of a routine nature or items for
which no Board discussion is anticipated and for which the Superintendent recommends approval.

In accordance with law, the public has a right to comment on any consent item. At the request of any
member of the Board, any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given individual
consideration for action as a regular agenda item.

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may bundle a number of items and act upon
them together by a single vote through the use of a consent agenda. Consent agenda items
shall be items of a routine nature and items for which Board discussion is not anticipated and
for which the Superintendent recommends approval.

-189-



BB 9322 (c)

When any Board member requests the removal of an item from the consent agenda, the item
shall be removed and given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item.

The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any
consent agenda item that has not been previously considered. However, the agenda need not
provide an opportunity for public comment when the consent agenda item has previously been
considered at an open meeting of a committee comprised exclusively of all the Board members
provided that members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on the item at
that meeting, unless the item has been substantially changed since the committee considered it.

(Government Code 54954.3)
Agenda Dissemination to Board Members

At least three days before each regular meeting a copy of the agenda and agenda packet shall be
forwarded to each Board member, including the Superintendent or designee's report; minutes to be
approved; copies of communications; reports from committees, staff, citizens, and others; and other
available documents pertinent to the meeting.

When special meetings are called, the Superintendent or designee shall make every effort to
distribute the agenda and supporting materials to Board members as soon as possible before the

meeting.

Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may
confer directly with the Superintendent or designee to ask questions and/or request additional
information on agenda items. However, a majority of Board members shall not directly or
through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take action on any matter
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications)
Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public

The Superintendent or designee shall mail a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents
constituting the agenda packet to any person who requests the items. The materials shall be mailed at
the time the agenda is posted or upon distribution of the agenda to a majority of the Board,
whichever occurs first. (Government Code 54954.1)

If a document is distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to a meeting, the Superintendent or
designee shall make the document available for public inspection at the time the document is

-190-



BB 9322 (d)

distributed to a majority of the Board provided that the document is a public record under the Public
Records Act and relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular Board meeting. The
Superintendent or designee may also post the document on the district's web site in a position and
manner that makes it clear that the document relates to an agenda item for an upcoming meeting.

(Government Code 54957.5)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf- 1340 - Access to District Records)

Any documents prepared by the district or the Board and distributed during a public meeting shall be
made available for public inspection at the meeting. Any documents prepared by another person
shall be made available for public inspection after the meeting. These requirements shall not apply to
a document that is exempt from public disclosure under the Public Records Act. (Government Code

54957.5)

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any
writings distributed at the meeting available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. (Government Code 54954.1)

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in wnting and shall be valid for
the calendar year in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January 1 of each

year. (Government Code 54954.1)

Persons requesting mailing of the agenda or agenda packet shall pay an annual fee, as determined by
the Superintendent or designee, not to exceed the cost of providing the service.




BB 9322 (e)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35144 Special meetings

35145 Public meetings

35145.5 Right of public to place matters on agenda
GOVERNMENT CODE

6250-6270 Public Records Act

53635.7 Separate item of business

54954.1 Mailed agenda of meeting

54954.2 Agenda posting requirements; board actions
54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body
54954.5 Closed session item descriptions

54956.5 Emergency meetings

54957.5 Public records

54960.2 Challenging board actions; cease and desist
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.160 Effective communications

36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

COURT DECISIONS

Mooney v. Garcia, (2012) 207 Cal.App.4th 229
Caldwell v. Roseville Joint Union High School District, 2007 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 66318

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2010

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003
WEB SITES

-192-



BB 9322 (f)

CSBA, Agenda Online: http://www.csba.org
California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov

Bylaw SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013
Adopted: King City, California

-193-



BB 9323.2 (a)

BB 9323.2 Board Bylaws
Actions By The Board

The Governing Board shall act by a majority vote of all of the membership constltutmg the Board,
unless otherwise required by law. (Education Code 35164)

An "action" by the Board means: (Government Code 54952.6)
1. A collective decision by a majority of the Board members

2. A collective commitment or promise by a majority of the members to make a positive or
negative decision

3. A vote by a majority of the members when sitting as the Board upon a motion, proposal,
resolution, order, or ordinance

The Board shall not take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. (Government Code
54953)

Actions taken by the Board in open session shall be recorded in the Board minutes. (Education Code
35145)

(ctf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings)

Action on Non-Agenda Items

After publicly identifying the item, the Board may take action on a subject not appearing on the
posted meeting agenda under any of the following conditions: (Government Code 54954.2)

1. When a majority of the Board determines that an emergency situation exists, as defined for
emergency meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.5

2. When two-thirds of the members present, or if less than two-thirds of the members are
present then by a unanimous vote of all members present, determine that the need to take
immediate action came to the district's attention after the agenda was posted

3. When an item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued from, a meeting that occurred
not more than five days earlier

(cf- 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf- 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

Challenging Board Actions




BB 9323.2 (b)

The district attorney's office or any interested person may file an action in court to stop or
prevent the Board's violation or threats of violations of the Brown Act, to determine the
applicability of the Brown Act to ongoing or future threatened Board actions, to determine the
validity, under California or federal law, of any Board rule or action to penalize any of its
members or otherwise discourage the member's expression, or to compel the Board to audio
record its closed sessions because of its violation of any applicable Government Code
provision. (Government Code 54960)

The district attorney or any interested person may present a demand that the Board cure and
correct a Board action which he/she alleges is in violation of law regarding any of the
following: (Government Code 54960.1)

1. Open meeting and teleconferencing (Government Code 54953)

2. Agenda posting (Government Code 54954.2)

3. Closed session item descriptions (Government Code 54954.5)

4. New or increased tax assessments (Government Code 54954.6)

5. Special meetings (Government Code 54956)

-195-



BB 9323.2 (¢)

6. Emergency meetings (Government Code 54956.5)

Any demand to "cure and correct" an alleged violation shall clearly describe the challenged action
and the nature of the alleged violation and shall be presented to the Board in writing within 90 days
of the date when the action was taken. If the alleged violation concerns action taken in an open
session but in violation of Government Code 54954.2 (agenda posting), the written demand must be
made within 30 days of the date when the alleged action took place. (Government Code 54960.1)

Within 30 days of receiving the demand, the Board shall do one of the following: (Government Code
54960.1)

1. Cure or correct the challenged action and inform the demanding party in writing of its actions
to cure or correct.

2. Determine not to cure or correct the alleged violation and inform the demanding party in
writing of its decision to not cure or correct.

3. Take no action. If the Board takes no action within the 30-day review period, its inaction
shall be considered a decision not to cure or correct the action.

In addition, the district attorney's office or any interested party may file an action in court to
determine the applicability of the Brown Act to any past Board action not specified in
Government Code 54960.1, if the following conditions are met: (Government Code 54960.2)

1. Within nine months of the alleged violation, a cease and desist letter is submitted to the
Board, clearly describing the past Board action and the nature of the alleged violation.

2. The time for the Board to respond has expired and the Board has not provided an
unconditional commitment to cease and desist from and not repeat the past action alleged to
have violated the Brown Act.

-196-



BB 9323.2 (d)

-197 -



BB 9323.2 (e)

(3/00-11/02)3/11

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

15266 School construction bonds

17466 Declaration of intent to sell or lease real property

17481 Lease of property with residence for nondistrict purposes
17510-17511 Resolution requiring unanimous vote of all members constituting board
17546 Private sale of personal property

17556-17561 Dedication of real property

17582-17583 District deferred maintenance fund

35140-35149 Meetings

35160-35178.4 Powers and duties

48660-48661 Community day schools, establishment and restrictions
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE ,
425.16 Special motion to strike in connection with a public issue
1245.240 Eminent domain vote requirements

1245.245 Eminent domain, resolution adopting different use
GOVERNMENT CODE

53090-53097.5 Regulation of local agencies by counties and cities
53724 Parcel tax resolution requirements

53790-53792 Exceeding the budget

53820-53833 Temporary borrowing

53850-53858 Temporary borrowing

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:

54952.6 Action taken, definition

54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance; secret ballots
54960-54960.5 Actions to prevent violations

65352.2 Coordination with planning agency

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

3400 Bid specifications

20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder
20113 Emergencies, award of contracts without bids

COURT DECISIONS

Los Angeles Times Communications LLC v. Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors (2003)
112 Cal.App.4th 1313

McKee v. Orange Unified School District (2003) 110 Cal.App.4th 1310
Bell v. Vista Unified School District (2002) 82 Cal.App.4th 672

Boyle v. City of Redondo Beach (1999) 70 Cal.App.4th 1109

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, 2009
ATTORNEY GENERAYL PUBLICATIONS

-198-



BB 9323.2 (f)

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2007
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov
Institute of Local Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org

(11702 3/11) 11/12

Bylaw SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15,2013
Adopted: King City, California

-199-



E 9323.2 (a)

Bylaws of the Board

Actions By The Board

ACTIONS REQUIRING MORE THAN A MAJORITY VOTE

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board:

1.

Resolution declaring intention to sell or lease real property (Education Code 17466)

(c/. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property)

2.

Resolution declaring intent of Governing Board to convey or dedicate property to the
state or any political subdivision for the purposes specified in Education Code 17556
(Education Code 17557)

Resolution authorizing and directing the Board president, or any other presiding officer,
secretary, or member, to execute a deed of dedication or conveyance of property to the
state or a political subdivision (Education Code 17559)

Lease for up to three months of school property which has a residence on it and which
cannot be developed for district purposes because funds are unavailable (Education Code

17481)

Temporary borrowing before receipt of fiscal income, if implemented pursuant to
Government Code 53820-53833 (Government Code 53821)

Upon complying with Government Code 65352.2 and Public Resources Code 21151 2,
ordering city or county zoning ordinances inapplicable to a proposed use of the property
by the district (Government Code 53094)

(¢f. 7131 - Relations with Local Agencies)
(cf- 7150 - Site Selection and Development)
(c¢f- 7160 - Charter School Facilities)

7.

Resolution to transfer excess local funds from a deferred maintenance fund when state
funds are insufficient to match local funds being held in the deferred maintenance fund
(Education Code 17582, 17583)

For districts with an ADA of 2,500 or less seeking to add a community day school on an
existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities are not available
for a community day schoo! (Education Code 48661)

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

-200-



E 9323.2 (b)

9. Resolution of intent to issue general obligation bonds with the approval of 55 percent of
the voters of the district (Education Code 15266)

(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

10. Resolution of intent to issue bonds within a school facilities improvement district with
the approval of 55 percent of the voters of the school facilities improvement district
(Education Code 15266)

(cf- 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Districts)
11. Resolution to place a parcel tax on the ballot (Government Code 53724)
12. Resolution of necessity to proceed with an eminent domain action and, if the Board
desires to use the property for a different use than stated in the resolution of necessity, a
subsequent resolution so authorizing the different use (Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240,

1245.245)

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting:

1. Determination that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action
came to the district's attention after the posting of the agenda. If less than two-thirds of
the Board members are present at the meeting, a unanimous vote of all members present
1s required. (Government Code 54954.2)

2. Determination that a closed session is necessary during an emergency meeting. If less
than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of all members

present is required. (Government Code 54956.5)

{cf- 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(¢f- 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board:

1. The expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property or personnel
to meet a national or local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, or
sabotage, or to provide for adequate national or local defense (Government Code 53790-
53792)

(cf- 3110 - Transfer of Funds)
2. Resolution, adopted between July 15 and August 30, to borrow funds of up to 25 percent
of the estimated income and revenue to be received by the district durin g the current

fiscal year from apportionments based on average daily attendance for the preceding
school year (Government Code 53822-53824)

-201-



E 9323.2 (c)

3. Declaration of an emergency in order to authorize the district to include a particular brand
name or product in a bid specification (Public Contract Code 3400)

(cf- 3311 - Bids)

Actions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board: -

1. Resolution authorizing and prescribing the terms of a community lease for extraction of
gas (Education Code 17510-17511)

2. Waiver of the competitive bid process pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 when the
Board determines that an emergency exists and upon approval of the County

Superintendent of Schools (Public Contract Code 20113)

Action Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting:

1. Pnvate sale of surplus property without advertisement in order to establish that such
property is not worth more than $2,500. Disposal of surplus property in the local dump or
donation to a charitable organization requires the unanimous vote of the Board members
present to establish that the value of such property would not defray the cost of arranging
its sale. (Education Code 17546)

To: (Name of district attorney or any interested person)

The Governing Board of (name of school district) has received your cease and desist letter
dated (date) alleging that the following described past action taken by the Board violates
the Ralph M. Brown Act: (Describe alleged past action as set forth in the cease and desist
letter.)

In order to avoid unnecessary litigation and without admitting any violation of the Ralph

M. Brown Act, the Board hereby unconditionally commits that it will cease, desist from,
and not repeat the challenged past action described above. The Board may rescind this

-202-



E 9323.2 (d)

commitment only by a majority vote of its membership taken in open session at a regular
meeting and noticed on its posted agenda as "Rescission of Brown Act Commitment." You
will be provided with written notice, sent by any means or media you provide in response
to this message, to whatever address(es) you specify, of any intention to consider rescinding
this commitment at least 30 days before any such regular meeting. In the event that this
commitment is rescinded, a notice will be delivered to you by the same means as this
commitment, or by mail to an address that you have designated in writing, and you will
have the right to commence legal action pursuant to Government Code 54960(a).

Sincerely,

(Name)
(Title of Board President or other designee)

Exhibit SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
First Reading: May 15, 2013
Adopted: King City, California

-203-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: King City Young Farmers Donation MEETING: May 15,2013

AGENDA SECTION: J ACTION

J INFORMATION

X  ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

X

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Leamning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:

The King City Young Farmers Foundation has graciously donated $5,100 to the Greenfield ASB FFA Club.
The donation is to be used at the discretion of the advisor and officers of the club.

Recommendation: P

Accept the $5,100 donation on behalf of the Greenfield ASB FAA Club

Fiscal Impact:

Submatted By: Approved:

N t - /

%L/)/I/{LL_/ / )r’\lu. I“({ 7 /=‘“)¢7LC’%} ,/;/H{»g,u 7( i / ey u’?.,cu/’
Lindh Grundhoffer Interim CBO o Daniel R. Monao, State Administrator

-204-



o | 1038
3 90-4461/1211
KING CITY YOUNG FARMERS-FNDT I [(\

P O BOX 712
KING CITY, CA 93930 ?7 ‘(D -5

order fer of (\}‘er’ﬂ ‘(é/fg k /2:‘ 74§ ‘
T 7'/)01);/%71 s //u/’(/,,,,//f i # //_
ST CAPITAL BANK \

King City Branch
432 Broadway Slreet. King City, CA 93930

831-385-8900 ; //‘// # K\
gy 3-213 D‘!@,«g'?w) L //\‘““ 'K’_l\

l:LELLLLELEﬂLDBBWD3DODLDBELW \\J

V DELUXE WALLET OR

-205-




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Approval of the 2012-13 Memorandum of MEETING: May 15,2013
Understanding between SMCJUHSD and the King City Joint
Union High School Teachers Association

AGENDA SECTION: "X ACTION

(J INFORMATION

J  ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures
Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

X Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solition
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
"~ Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updaﬁng Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:

On April 26, 2013 the KCTUHSDTA ratified a Memorandum of Understanding to take four (4) furlough days
between then and the end of the 2012-13 school year. The agreement means an approximate reduction of
1.959% to the 2012-13 salaries for this bargaining unit.

Recommendation:;

Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the district and KCTUHSDTA.

Fiscal Impact:

A savings of approximately $143,411

Submitted By: Approved: .
. / . } s N
v (. o i) / % 1 .
gy R L, '~ g y Dl I S
‘]'l\,\L'/aAV—"(, i /{// _:x e 4’& ﬁ( ’ / )/l—f .'—)74{'%/} 4/ S AALASC i / Lél—{./b i~
Lindh Grundhoffer, Interim CBO {,/ U Daniel R. Moirao, State Administrator

-206-



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The King City Joint Union High School Teachers’ Association will take four (4) furlough days during the
2012-13 school year on the following days:

May 16 71 ,\M;)

May 20 fj

May 24

May 31

Teine [ 1z /M,wﬁ’l’“/
Each furlough day will save the district $36,084.98 for a total of $144,339.92 for the 2012-13 fiscal year.
The intent of this MOU is to reduce the $656,391.49 deficit which the District apportioned to the

Association for the 2013-14 school year.

The Association agrees to ensuring that this MOU is ratified by end of business on May 3, 2013. The
Association also agrees that the next negotiation session will be on April 30, 2013.

\——_‘—7 P ’/Z/ e % R
/7 /,:\ yy a Zﬁz /’"} oo / p

LA

e ! iy
= 7 s L// ;o a7 . ('w- A ) S
o = / T GIWS .. %F AT YD B {~'.=_;7.;:x:/'/:§
~— =5 Y - = ~ i /’ T

/'/:2/ P S~ ;
[ e 7
On Behalf of KCJUHSTA Date On Behalf of the District Date

-207-



Monterey County Office of Education

Page 1

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
in accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/1991), GC 3547.5, and CCR, Title V, Section 15449

Name of School District:

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Name of Bargaining Unit:

King City Joint Union High School Teachers Association

Certificated, Classified, Other:
The proposed agreement covers the period beginning: July 1, 2012 and ending: June 30, 2013
(date) (date)
The Governing Board will act upon this agreement on: May 15, 2013
(date)

This form, along with a copy of the proposed agreement, should be submitted to the County Office at least 10 working
days prior to the date the Governing Board will take action. Please note that school districts with a Qualified or
Negative certification pursuant to E.C. section 42131 mustallow the COE at least ten (10) working days to review
and comment on any proposed agreement.

A. Proposed Change in Compensation

Column 1
Compensation Current Year Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement
Annual
Cost Prior to Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Proposed Agreement Current Year MultiYr Agreement only: || Multiyr Agreement only:
Increase/(Decrease) 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
FY 2012-13 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15
1 ||Salary Schedule $ 5,471,856 (126,904)[I $ - 1% -
(This is to include Step and Column, which is
also reported separately in ltem 6.)
: R ey -2.32% 0.00% 0.00%
2 llOther Compensation - $ 266,817
Stipends, Bonuses, Longevity, Overtime,
Differential, Callback or Standby Pay, elc.
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Description of other compensation
 [(Statutory Benefits - STRS, PERS, FICA, [[§ 752,713 16,507 || $ - 8 -
WC, U], Medicare, etc.
: ST -2.193% 0.00%, 0.00%
' [[Health/Welfare Plans h) 827,664 -8 - % -
| N . 0.00% 0.00%| 0.00%
Total Compensation - Add Jtems 1 thru 4 $ 7,319,050 (143,411) || $ - i -
-1.95%% 0.00% 0.00%
Step and Column - Due to movement plus || § - - $ - $ -
any changes due to settlement. Thisisa
subset of Item No. 1.
Total Number of Represented Employees 76.50 76.50 76.50 76.50
(Use FTEs if appropriate)
Total Compensation Average Cost per $ 95,674 (1,875) {| $ - 18 -
Employee
-1.959%)] 0.00% 0.00%

-208-




13.

14.

Monterey County Office of Education

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 2

What was the negotiated percentage increase approved? For example, if the increase in "Year 1" was for

less than a full year, what is the annualized percentage of that increase for "Year 1"?

AN APPROXIMATE REDUCTION IN TEACHERS SALARIES OF 2.2% FOR 2012-13 ONLY

. What was the negotiated percentage increase:

. Are there reopeners? Yes

- Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges added to the schedules? (If yes, please explain.)

NO

On-Going[ | OR  One-Time[X]

NOD

Please include comments and explanations as necessary. (If more room is necessary, please attach an

additional sheet.)

Does this bargaining unit have a negotiated cap for Health and Welfare benefits?

If yes, please describe the cap amount.

UP TO $10,000 TOWARD MEDICAL PREMIUMS

Yes No[:'

Proposed negotiated changes in noncompensation items (i.e., class size adjustments, staff development

days, teacher prep time, classified staffing ratios, etc.

NONE

)

What are the specific impacts (positive or negative) on instructional and support programs to
accommodate the settlement? Include the impact of changes such as staff reductions or increases,
program reductions or increases, elimination or expansion of other services or programs (i.e., counselors,

librarians, custodial staff, etc.)

-209-



Monterey County Office of Education Page 3

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
D. What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement?

WE ARE STILL IN NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE 13-14 YEAR

E. Will this agreement create or increase deficit spending in the current or subsequent year(s)?
"Deficit Spending" is defined to exist when a fund's expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues
and other financing sources in a given year. If yes, explain the amounts and justification for doing so.

NO

F. Identify other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as binding
arbitrations, grievance procedures, etc.

G. Source of Funding for Proposed Agreement:
1. Current Year

2. Ifthis is a single year agreement, how will the ongoing cost of the proposed agreement be funded in
subsequent years (1.e., what will allow the district to afford this contract)?

GENERAL OPERATING FUNDS

3. If this is a multiyear agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used, to fund these
obligations in subsequent years? (Remember to include compounding effects in meeting obligations.)

-210-



Monterey County Office of Education Page 4a

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Unrestricted General Fund

Bargaining Unit: King City Joint Union High School Teachers Association
Column 1 * Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions | Total Current Budget
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement (Columns 1+2+3)
Before Settlement

(As of 1/31/13)

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES T e ) o
Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) $ 11,186,355 | § - 18 11,186,355
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) $ 1,889,326 | § - |3 - 15 1,889,326

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES 5 13,075,681 | § , - |3 - 1§ 13,075,681

UNRESTRICTED EXPENDITURES

5,730,871 (105.576) 5,625,295

Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) 5 5 5 5
Classified Salaries (2000-2999) 5 1,638,290 | $ - 13 - |5 1,638,290
Employee Benefits (3000-3999) b 2,438,836 | § (13,733) [ $ - 13 2,425,103
Books and Supplies (4000-4999) $ 319,495 | $ -3 - 13 319,495
Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) | $ 1,566,703 | $§ - 15 - 15 1,566,703
Capital Outlay (6000-6599) $ - (3 - |3 - 13 -
Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499) 5 1,278,834 1 § - S - 13 ],278,834
Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399) $ (29,707} § - IS - 15 (29,707)
Other Adjustments " BT | L L L
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED EXPENDITURES |5 12943322 |8 (119.309)| 5 TS 12824013
OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT) 5 132,359 | % 119,309 | § - 13 251,668
Transfers In and Other Sources (8910-8979) Ay - 18 - 13 - |8 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses (7610-7699) $ 133,861 | § - 18 - 15 133,861
Contributions (8980-8999) $ (1,666,169} | $ -5 - 13 (1,666,169)

CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 3 (1,667,671)| § 119,309 | § - 15 (1,548,362)

UNRESTRICTED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,126,291 2,»12‘6,29] ’

Pri Yr Audit Adjustmnts/Restatemnts (97.93/9795) $ (38,462) 1§ (38,462)

CURR YR UNRESTRICTED ENDING BALANCE | $ 420,158 | $ 119,309 | § - 15 539,467

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9719) 3 60008 s s 6,000
Committed/Assigned Amounts (9750-9780) $ - 13 - 13 - 13 -

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (9789) $ 544,356 | § - 1§ - 18 544,356
Unappropriated/Unappropriated Amounts (9790) | $ (130,198) | § 119,309 | § - |3 (10,889)

* Please see question on page 7.

-211-



Monterey County Office of Education

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 4b

H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Restricted General Fund

Bargaining Unit: King City Joint Union High School Teachers Association
Column 1 * Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions | Total Current Budget
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement (Columns 142+3)

Before Settlement

(As of 1/31/13)

RESTRICTED REVENUES g T o
Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) 5 - 18 - 13 -
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) hY 2,539,089 | § - 13 - |3 2,539,089

TOTAL RESTRICTED REVENUES 3 2,539,089 | - 13 - {3 2,539,089

RESTRICTED EXPENDITURES s T s
Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) h 1,296,564 | $ (21,328)( 5 - |8 1,275,236
Classified Salaries (2000-2999) $ 534495 $ - 18 - |93 534,495
Employee Benefits (3000-3999) h) 632,287 | $ (2,774)| § - |5 629,513
Books and Supplies (4000-4999) $ 521,543 1 § - 18 - 18 521,543
Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) | § 1,043,418 | § - 15 - 15 1,043,418
Capital Outlay (6000-6599) ) - |3 - |3 - |8 -
Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499) S 292,880 | $ - 15 - |3 292,880
Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399) h) 29,707 | § - 18 - 18 29,707
Other Adjustments L L ot : e

TOTAL RESTRICTED EXPENDITURES S 4350895|5  (24.100)[3 s 4326795

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 0 (1,811,805)| % 24,102 | $ - |3 (1,787,703)
Transfers In and Other Sources (8910-8979) $ - 1% - 18 - |93 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses (7610-7699) 3 - |8 - |8 - 13 -
Contributions (8980-8999) h) 1,666,169 | § - |3 S 1,666,169

CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

(145,637)

(121,535)

798,904

RESTRICTED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 798,904
Pri Yr Audit Adjustmnts/Restatemnts (9793/9795) | § 3,500 E s 3 3,500

CURR YR RESTRICTED ENDING BALANCE 3 656,767 241028 s 680,869

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE: | o T
Restricted Amounts (9740) 3 656767 | 3 22.102] 3 680,869

* Please see question on page 7.

-212-



Monterey County Office of Education Page 4c

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Combined General Fund

Bargaining Unit: King City Joint Union High School Teachers Association
Column 1 * Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions | Total Current Budget
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement (Columns 1+2+3)

Before Setilement
(As of 1/31/13)

REVENUES LT LA RN e
Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) $ 11,186,355 - 15 11,186,355
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) $ 44284158 - 18 - 18 4,428,415

TOTAL REVENUES g 15,614,770 | § - |8 - |8 15,614,770

EXPENDITURES T e ' S R R
Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) $ 7,027.435 | § (126,904)| $ - |8 6,900,531
Classified Salaries (2000-2999) $ 2;] 72,785 (% -8 - 18 2,172,785
Employee Benefits (3000-3999) 5 3,071,123 | § (16,507){ $ - 18 3,054,616
Books and Supplies (4000-4999) $ 841,038 | § - 18 - |8 841,038
Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) | § 2,610,121 | % - 15 - 15 2,610,121
Capital Outlay (6000-6599) $ - 18 - 15 - 15 -
Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499) 5 1,571,714 | $ - 18 - 18 1,571,714
Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399) $ - |8 - 1% - |3 -
Other Adjustments S » . N

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5 12aa7]s  GBAD[S |5 1750808

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) b (1,679,446)1 § 143,411 | § - |8 (1,536,035)
Transfer In and Other Sources (8910-8979) h) - 13 - 18 - 18 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses (7610-7699) h) 133,861 | $ - 18 - 1% 133,861
Contributions (8980-8999) s -3 - 13 - 13 -

CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

FUND BALANCE (1,669,896)

2,925,195

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,925,195

3 (34,962)

Pri Yr Audit Adjustmnis/Restatemnts (9793/9795) | § (34,962

CURRENT YEAR ENDING FUND BALANCE ) 1,076,926 | § 143,411 1§ - 15 1,220,337

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE: |

6,000

Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9719) 3 6,000 | § s s

Restricted Amounts (9740) b 656,767 | § 24,102 | - 18 680,869
Commitied/Assigned Amounts (9750-9780) h) - |$ - 18 - 13 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (9789) g 544356 | § - |8 -8 544,356
Unappropriated/Unappropriated Amounts (9790) | § (130,198} $ 119,309 | $ - |3 (10,889)
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage 2.38% 3.09%

* Please see question on page 7.

-213-



Monterey County Office of Education

Page 5

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

I. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS UNRESTRICTED FUNDS

Unrestricted General Fund Multiyear Projection

Bargaining Unit:  King City Joint Union High School Teachers Association
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Total Current Budget First Subsequent Year | Second Subsequent Yea
After Settlement After Settlement After Settlement
UNRESTRICTED REVENUES SR i R
Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) 5 11,186,355 | $ 11,344,741 | § 11,585,270
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) 3 A 1,889,326 | § 1,886,493 | § 1,882,400
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES 3 13,075,681 | §$ 13,231,234 | § 13,467,670
UNRESTRICTED EXPENDITURES o Y o
Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) $ 5,625,295 | $ 5,728.465 | § 5,757,107
Classified Salaries (2000-2999) 3 1,638,290 | § 1,646,481 | $ 1,654,713
Employee Benefits (3000-3999) b 2,425,103 | § 2,486,306 | $ 2,500,706
Books and Supplies (4000-4999) h 319,495 |§ 345,176 | § 346,440
Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) 5 1,566,703 | § 1,453,132 | § 1,474,888
Capital Outlay (6000-6999) A - by - |3 -
Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499) A 1,278,834 | § 1,278,834 | § 1,278,834
Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399) N (29.707) | § (24.198)| $ (18,384)
Other Adjustments NI 1s - |$ -
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED EXPENDITURES by ‘ ‘]2:854,01 3‘ b 12,914,196 | § 12,994.304
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 3 251,668 |§ 317,038 |$ 473,366
Transfers In and Other Sources (8910-8979) $ - $ - 1% -
Transfers Out and Other Uses (7610-7699) $ 133861 |§ 125,000 | § 100,000
Contributions (8980~8999) : (Enter as a 3 (1,666,169} | § (1,609.919)| $ (1,648,557)
CUREE]\\JT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
3 - (1,417,881) | § (1,275,191)

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

(1,548,362)

2,126,291

5 (878,414)

UNRESTRICTED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3 / 539,467 b‘
Pri Yr Audit Adjustmnts/Restatemnnts (9793/9795) b (38,462)
UNRESTRICTED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 539,467 |§ (878,414) [ § (2,153,605)
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE: ' ;
Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9719) S 6.000 | 5.000 |5 6,000
Committed/Assigned Amounts (9750-9780) b - Ay - |5 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (9789) h 544,356 | §$ 516,535 | § 518,727
Unappropriated/Unappropriated Amounts (9790) $ (10,889) | § (1,400,949) | $ (2,678,332)

WARNING: 9790 Unappropriated Amounts must be positive

-214-



Monterey County Office of Education

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

J. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES

1. State Reserve Standard

Page 6

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

Total Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses
a. |(Including Cost of Proposed Agreement)

$

17,284,667

State Standard Minimum Reserve Percentage for
b. |this District Enter percentage:

0.00%

0.00%

Drstrict (For districts with less than 1,001 ADA,
this is the greater of Line a. times Line b. or
¢.1561,000)

State Standard Minimum Reserve Amount for this

61,000

61,000 | $

61,000

2. Budgeted Unrestricted Reserve (After Impact of Proposed Agreement)

General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted
a. |Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789)

$

544,356

516,535 §

518,727

General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted
b. |Unappropriated Amount (9790)

(10,889)

(1,400,949)

(2,678,332)

Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted
c. |Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789)

Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted
d. |Unappropriated Amount (9790)

e.|Total Available Reserves

533,467

(884,414)

(2,159,605)

f. [Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage

3.09%

-29480458.33%

#DIV/0!

3. Do unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum reserve amount?

4. If no, how do you plan to restore your reserves?

We are still in negotiations will all units.

2012-13
2013-14
2014-15

-215-

No .
No
No




Monterey County Office of Education Page 8

SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

K. SALARY NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENT

The following section is applicable and should be completed when any salary and benefit negotiations are settled afier the district's fina) budget has been adopted.

COMPARISON OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT TO CHANGE IN DISTRICT BASE REVENUE LIMIT

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

a. Prior-Year Base Revenue Limit (BRL) per ADA: $7.366.34 § 733734 $ 7.501.34 $ 7,744.34 5 7.872.34

Plus: COLA (enter amount per ADA) ($29.00) $164.00 $243.00 $128.00 $173.00

Plus: Equalization Aid (enter amount per ADA)
b. Current-Year BRL per ADA: § 7.337.34 $ 7.501.34 § 7.744.34 $ 7.872.34 5 8,045.34
c. Change in BRL per ADA: (b) minus (a) {529.00) 5164.00 $243.00 $128.00 $173.00
d. Percentage Change in BRL per ADA: (c) divided by (a) {0.39%) 2.24% 3.24% 1.65% 2.20%

The Current-Year BRL per ADA is reduced (deficited) beginning in 2008-09.

e. Less: Deficit percentage 17.963% 20.602% 22.272% 22.272% 22.272%
f. Deficit percentage converted to dollar amount: (b) times {e) $1,318.01 $1,545.43 51.724.82 $1,753.33 $1,791.86
g. Current-Year BRL per ADA with Deficit: (b) minus (f) ' $ 6,019.33 5 5.955.91 5 6.019.52 $ 6.119.01 § 6,.253.48
h. Change in BRL per ADA with Deficit: (g) minus (a) (51.347.01) ($1,381.43) (51,481.82) ($1,625.33) (51,618.86)
i. Percentage Change in BRL per ADA with Deficit: (h) divided by (a) (18.29%) (18.83%) (19.75%) (20.99%) (20.56%)
J- Change from Prior Year Deficited BRL per ADA: (g) current year minus (g) prior year 5 (6342 563.61 599.49 $134.47
k. Percentage Change from Prior Year Deficited BRL per ADA: (j) divided by (g) prior year (1.05%) 1.07% 1.65% 2.20%
1. Total Compensation Percentage Increase (enter from Page 1, Section A, Line 5) 0.00% 0.00% (1.96%) 0.00% 0.00%
m. Proposed agreement is within/(exceeds) change in undeficited BRL: (d) minus (1) (0.39%) 2.24% 5.20% 1.65% 2.20%
n. Proposed agreement is within/(exceeds) change in deficited BRL: (k) minus (1) (1.05%) 3.03% 1.65% 2.20%

-216-



Monterey County Office of Education Page 9

L. CERTIFICATION NO. 1: CERTIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT'S ABILITY TO MEET THE COSTS
OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

This disclosure document is intended to assist the district's Govemning Board in determining whether the district can
meet the costs incurred under the tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement in the current and subsequent years. This
certification page should be signed by the Superintendent and Chief Business Official at the time of public disclosure.
The absence of one or both of the signatures should serve as a "red flag" to the district's Governing Board.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 3547.5, the Superintendent and Interim Chief
Business Official of the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District, hereby certify that the District can
meet the costs incurred under this Collective Bargaining Agreement during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2012
to June 30, 2013.

Board Actions
The board actions necessary to meet the cost of the agreement in each year of its term are as follows:

Current Year

Budget Adjustment
Budget Adjustment Categories: Increase/(Decrease)
Revenues/Other Financing Sources 3 -
Expenditures/Other Financing Uses 3 (143.411)
Ending Balance(s) Increase (Decrease) b 143,411

Subsequent Years

Budget Adjustment

Budget Adjustment Categories: Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues/Other Financing Sources ) -
Expenditures/Other Financing Uses 3 -
Ending Balance(s) Increase (Decrease) b -

Budget Revisions

If the district does not adopt all of the revisions to its budget needed in the current year to meet the costs of the
agreement at the time of the approval of the proposed collective bargaining agreement, the county superintendent of
schools is required to issue a qualified or negative certification for the district on its next interim report.

Assumptions
See attached page for a list of the assumptions upon which this certification is based.

Certifications
I hereby certify 1 am unable to certify
District Superintendent Date
(Signature)
1 hereby certify 1 am unable to certify
Chief Business Official Date
(Signature)

-217 -




Monterey County Office of Education Page 10

M. CERTIFICATION NO. 2

The disclosure document must be signed by the district Superintendent or designee at the time of public disclosure and
by the President or Clerk of the Governing Board at the time of formal board action on the proposed agreement.

The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement and is
submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as provided in the
"Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement") in accordance with the requirements of AB 1200
and Government Code Section 3547.5.

15-May-13
District Superintendent (or Designee) Date
(Signature)
Linda Grundhoffer 385-0606
Contact Person : Phone

After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its

meeting on:  May 15,2013 , took action to approve the proposed Agreement with the
King City Joint Union High School Teachers Association Bargaining Unit.
15-May-13
President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)

-218-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding: Early = MEETING: May 15,2013
Retirement Incentive - CTA

AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION

(J INFORMATION

(J ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

X Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
The South Monterey County Joint Union High School District and the King City High School Teachers®

Association have reached an agreement on an early retirement incentive. If sufficient teachers participate in this
incentive, there would be a cost savings to the district in hiring teachers with fewer years of experience.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the State Administrator approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the King City

High Teacher’s Association regarding early retirement.

Fiscal Impact:
The overall impact would be a cost savings, conservatively estimated at about $150,000.00

Submitted By: Approved:

e

oy e ’I' AL A - i
."{‘ !‘-/-4/7 b A ’ Jod O (o [\/ gt ;), 4 5 ‘.)' A . :"‘fv—‘},
(G ) Mt (g SR e
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D. Dame] R. M01rao Ed.D.
State Administrator State Administrator

-219-



Souvta Monterey County JOINT Union Hica Scaoor Districr

800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 + 831-385-0606 « FAX 331-385-0695

Memorandum of Understanding
between the
King City High School Teachers Association
and the
South Monterey County Joint Union High School district.
For the 2012-2013 Academic year only

For any eligible employee who submits an irrevocable letter of retirement on or before noon of May 16,
2013, to take effect July 1, 2013, the District will guarantee one of the following options:

Option 1 - Any employee who qualifies for the “Early Retirement Program,” Article 21, who is at least
sixty (60) years old by June 30, 2013, will receive benefits through the District with the same
health plan provided all Association members until age sixty-five (65) or is eligible for
Medicare Coverage and will also receive $10,000 per year for the subsequent three (3) years
that can be used to purchase benefits through the District with the same health plan

provided all Association members.

Option 2 - Any employee who is at least 57 years of age and has at least 10 years of service in the
District by June 30, 2013, will receive benefits through the District with the same health plan
provided all Association members at the rate of $10,000 from the commencement of the
retirement to age sixty-five (65) or when eligible for Medicare coverage or equivalent.

Option 3 - Any employee who has 10 years of service in the District and is sixty-five (65) years old or
older as of June 30, 2013, will receive $30,000 to be paid out over the 3 years at the amount

of $10,000 per year.

This incentive shall not apply to anyone turning in a retirement letter after noon on May 16, 2013.

For KCHSTA: For tf}e Dlstrict _
e C”_//_\ i Y
e —/;-7 r,_‘/—-——-—\ iy : i
& \\M“_____/»/ Danlel R. Monrao Ed. D
; State Administrator
7 ’
d A B -7 e
= > L 2O/
i/ -
Date )
GREENFIELD High School KING CITY High School PORTOLA-BUTLER PORTOLA-BUTLER
2255, EL Camino Reul 720 Brondway Sireet Continuation High Schoal Lodependent Study Program
Greenfield, CA 93927 KRing City, CA 93930 760 Broudwuy Street 213 3. El Camine Resl
531-674-2751 831-185-5461 King City, CA 93930 Greenlicld, CA 93927

- 2 2 O 661 #31-674-3275



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution #26:12/13 Designation of MEETING: May 15,2013
Authorized Agent to Sign School Orders

AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
(J INFORMATION

J ACTION/CONSENT

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA’s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Duane Wolgamott will be joining the district as the Business Manager; therefore his name needs to be added to

the hist of individuals authorized to sign school orders.

Recommendation:
The recommendation is to approve Resolution #26:12/13 Authorized Signatures.

Fiscal Impact:

None.
Submitted By: . Approved
S/ } @) 2 . A £
i T
’% e ls (/»% ; "/L/M_/Z_/"-d" ,( f ‘4,4, /( Z (_&/vf_‘.c;.-»
Daniel R. Monao EdD. Damel R. Monao Ed.D.
State Administrator State Administrator

-221-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 26:12/13
Designation of Authorized Agent to Sign School Orders

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District, Monterey County,

ON APPROVAL BY
State Administrator Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D., effective June 1, 2013.

IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the State Administrator that, pursuant to provisions of
Education Code Section 42632 or 85232.

Daniel R. Moirao
Shirley Laws
Duane Wolgamott
Claudia Arellano

Be authorized and are hereby empowered to sign any and all orders in the name of said district,
drawn on the funds of said district.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this approval shall stand and that all additions and deletions
shall be submitted in writing to the County Office of Education.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by State Administrator, Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
I, Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full,

true, and correct copy of a resolution duly passed and adopted at a regularly called and
conducted meeting held on said date.

Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D., State Administrator Date

Signature of Authorized person(s):

Daniel R. Moirao

Duane Wolgamott

Claudia Arellano

Shirley Laws

-222-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution #28:12/13 Designating MEETING: May 15,2013
the Business Manager as Part of Senior Management

AGENDA SECTION: x ACTION

(J INFORMATION

(J ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures
Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution
Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA*s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Under Education Code (EC) section 45100 and 45108.5 the Governing Board may adopt a resolution

designating certain positions, including the Business Manager as senior management of the classified service.
Under EC 45100.5(b), “Employees whose positions are designated as senior management of the classified
service shall be a part of the classified service and shall be afforded all rights, benefits, and burdens of other
classified employees, except that they shall be exempt from all provision relating to obtaiming permanent status
in a senior management position.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the State Administrator adopt Resolution #28:12/13 designating the Business Manager

as a Senior Manager in the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District.

Fiscal Impact:
No additional fiscal impact.

Submmed By: Approved:
) / 'f/
7/ /’ ’7 ’) , R
Danie] R. Moirao, Edfb. Dan:e] R. Mmrao EdD.
State Administrator State Administrator

-223-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 28:12/13

RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE SPECIFIED POSITION AS SENIOR MANAGEMENT
OF THE CLASSIFIED SERVICE

WHEREAS, Education Code sections 45100.5 and 45108.5 permit the State
Administrator acting on behalf of the Governing Board to designate classified positions in this
District as senior management; and

WHEREAS, employees whose positions are designated as senior management of the
classified service shall be a part of the classified service and shall be afforded all rights, benefits,
and burdens of other classified employees, except that they shall be exempt from all provisions
relating to obtaining permanent status in a senior management position; and

WHEREAS, notice of reassignment or dismissal from a position in the senior
management of the classified service shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of

Education Code section 35031,

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the State Administrator on behalf of the
Governing Board of the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District that the
position of Business Manager is a senior management classified position under the provisions of

Education Code section 45108.5.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the State Administrator or his desi gnee 1s authorized
to enter into a contract on behalf of the Governing Board with the person hired into or occupying
this position reflecting the status of the position as senior management for a term and
compensation set by the State Administrator on behalf of the Governing Board.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the State Administrator on behalf of the Governing Board
of the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District on May 15, 2013.

Daniel Moirao, Ed:D., State Administrator,
South Monterey County Joint Union High School District

-224-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Board Policies — Second Readings MEETING: May 15,2013
AGENDA SECTION: J ACTION
| XX INFORMATION
J ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve/Sustain Student Achievement through STAR Test and Other Assessment Measures

Improve School Climate and Student Discipline in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
o Develop/Sustain Fiscal Crisis Long-Term Solution

Ensure Board and Administrator Participation in CSBA*s Masters in Governance and Other Trainings

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
XX Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
The following Board Policies were presented for a first reading at the March 13, 2013 meeting of the board.

They are now presented as a second reading with modifications to the Policies and Administrative Regulations
as suggested by the Board of Education and are now ready for approval.

BP 3100 Business and Noninstructional Operations (revised)

BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)
AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (revised)

AR 5125 Student Records (revised)

BF 5136 Gangs (new)
AP 5136 Gangs (new)

AR 5141.31 Immunizations (revised)

BP 5144 Discipline (revised)
AR 5144 Discipline (revised)

BP 5144.] Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)
AR 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process (revised)

BP 5145.6 Parental Notification (revised)

Recommendation:
It 1s recommended that the State Administrator accept these Board Policies

Fiscal Impact:

None
Submitted By: ALY i Apprpved: 'KLA

o ) {14 AR, - £ 7 O AN S p

/:(J(j{’ ) / / ,;f" i )’,‘, LA ;( L. \L_].‘{”(’ { ),? Fol At o
el i [/ Lo AT Ry A A =z
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D. Daniel R. Moira(u), Ed.D.

State Administrator =225~ State Administrator



BP 3100 (a)
BP 3100 Business and Noninstructional Operations

Budget

The Governing Board recognizes its critical responsibility for adopting a sound budget for each
fiscal year which is aligned with the district’s vision, goals, and priorities. The district budget
shall guide administrative decisions and actions throughout the year and shall serve as a too] for
monitoring the fiscal health of the district.

(cf- 0000 - Vision)

(cf- 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf- 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

(cf- 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)
(cf- 9000 - Role of the Board)

The district budget shall show a complete plan and itemized statement of all proposed
expenditures and all estimated revenues for the following fiscal year, together with a comparison
of revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year. The budget shall also include the
appropriations limit and the total annual appropriations subject to limitation as determined
pursuant to Government Code 7900-7914. (Education Code 42122)

Budget Development and Adoption Process
The Superintendent or designee shall establish an annual budget development process and
calendar in accordance with the single budget adoption process described in Education Code

42127(e) and (g).

In order to provide guidance in the development of the budget, the Board shall annually establish
budget priorities based on identified district needs and goals and on realistic projections of
available funds.

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the preparation of a proposed district budget for
approval by the Board and shall involve appropriate staff in the development of budget

projections.

The Board encourages public input in the budget development process and shall hold public
hearings and meetings in accordance with Education Code 42103 and 42127.

(cf 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf- 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)
(cf- 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The budget that is formally adopted by the Board shall be in the format prescribed by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction. The Superintendent or designee may supplement this
format with additional information as necessary to effectively communicate the bud get to the

Board, staff, and public.

-226-



BP 3100 (b)

Budget Advisory Committee
The Board may appoint a budget advisory committee composed of staff, Board representatives,

and/or members of the community.

The committee shall develop recommendations during the budget development process and its
duties shall be assigned each year based on district needs. All recommendations of the committee

shall be advisory only and shall not be binding on the Board or the Superintendent or designee.

(¢ 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups)
(cf- 3350 - Travel Expenses)

{cf- 9130 - Board Committees)

(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives)

Budget Criteria and Standards

In developing the district budget, the Superintendent or designee shall analyze criteria and
standards adopted by the State Board of Education which address estimation of funded average
daily attendance (ADA), projected enrollment, ratio of ADA to enrollment, projected revenue
limit, salaries and benefits, other revenues and expenditures, facilities maintenance, deficit
spending, fund balance, and reserves. The budget review shall also 1dentify supplemental
information regarding contingent liabilities, use of one-time revenues for ongoing expenditures,
use of ongoing revenues for one-time expenditures, contingent revenues, contributions, long-
term commitments, unfunded liabilities, and the status of labor agreements. (Education Code
33127,33128, 33129; 5 CCR 15440-15451)

The Board shall establish and maintain a general fund reserve for economic uncertainty that
meets or exceeds the requirements of law. (Education Code 33128.3; 5 CCR 15450)

The Board may establish other budget assumptions or parameters which may take into
consideration the stability of funding sources, legal requirements and constraints on the use of
funds, anticipated increases and/or decreases in the cost of services and supplies, categorical
program requirements, and any other factors necessary to ensure that the bud get 1s a realistic plan
for district revenues and expenditures.

(¢f- 2210 - Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy)
(cf- 3110 - Transfer of Funds)

Fund Balance

The Board shall adopt a formal resolution that provides for classification of fund balances in the
general fund and is compliant with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement 54. The resolution also shall:

1. Establish specific steps for committing funds that cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the Board takes action to remove or change the constraint

-227-



BP 3100 (c)

2. Express the authority of the Board and/or delegate authority to other person(s) to identify
intended uses of assigned funds

2. Establish the order in which fund balances will be spent when multiple fund balance
types are available for an expenditure

3. Address the minimum fund balance in the general fund by establishing an appropriate
level of unrestricted fund balance that will be maintained in the general fund, the
circamstances under which the unrestricted fund balance can be spent down, and the
procedure for replenishing deficiencies

The Board reserves the authority to review and amend this resolution as needed to reflect
changing circumstances and district needs.

Long-Term Financial Obligations

The district's current-year budget and multi-year projections shall include adequate provisions
for addressing the district's long-term financial obligations, including, but not limited to, long-
term obligations resulting from collective bargaining agreements, financing of facilities projects,
unfunded or future liability for retiree benefits, and accrued workers' compensation claims.

(cf- 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement)

(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation)

(cf- 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits)

(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing)

(cf- 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits)

The Board shall approve a plan for meeting the district's long-term obligations to fund
nonpension, other postemployment benefits (OPEBs). This plan shall include a specific funding
strategy and the method that will be used to finance the district's annual fiscal obligations for
such benefits in a manner that continually reduces the deficit to the district to the extent possible.
The Board reserves the authority to review and amend the funding strategy as necessary to
ensure that it continues to serve the best interests of the district and maintains flexibility to adjust

for changing budgetary considerations.

When the Superintendent or designee presents a report to the Board on the estimated accrued but
unfunded cost of OPEBs, the Board shall disclose, as a separate agenda item at the same
meeting, whether or not it will reserve a sufficient amount of money in its budget to fund the
present value of the benefits of existing retirees and/or the future cost of employees who are
eligible for benefits in the current fiscal year. (Education Code 42140)

When the Superintendent or designee presents a report to the Board on the estimated accrued but

unfunded cost of workers' compensation claims, the Board shall disclose, as a separate agenda
item at the same meeting, whether or not it will reserve in the budget sufficient amounts to fund

-228-



BP 3100 (d)

the present value of accrued but unfunded workers' compensation claims or if it is otherwise
decreasing the amount in its workers' compensation reserve fund. The Board shall annually
certify to the County Supenntendent the amount, if any, that it has decided to reserve in the
budget for these costs. The Board shall submit to the County Superintendent any budget
revisions that may be necessary to account for this budget reserve. (Education Code 42141)

Budget Amendments

Whenever revenues and expenditures change significantly throughout the year, the
Superintendent or designee shall recommend budget amendments to ensure accurate projections
of the district's net ending balance. When final figures for the prior-year budget are available,
this information shall be used as soon as possible to update the current-year budget's beginning
balance and projected revenues and expenditures.

In addition, budget amendments shall be submitted for Board approval when the state budget is
adopted, collective bargaining agreements are accepted, district income declines, increased
revenues or unanticipated savings are made available to the district, program proposals are
significantly different from those approved during budget adoption, interfund transfers are
needed to meet actual program expenditures, and/or other significant changes occur that impact
budget projections.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

1240 Duties of county superintendent of schools

33127-33131 Standards and critena for local budgets and expenditures
35035 Powers and duties of superintendent

35161 Powers and duties, generally, of governing boards

42103 Public hearing on proposed budget; requirements for content of proposed budget
42122-42129 Budget requirements

42130-42134 Financial certifications

42140-42141 Disclosure of fiscal obligations

42602 Use of unbudgeted funds

42605 Tier 3 categorical flexibility

42610 Appropriation of excess funds and limitation thereon
44518-44519.2 Chief business officer training program

45253 Annual budget of personnel commission

45254 First year budget of personnel commission

GOVERNMENT CODE

7900-7914 Appropriations limit

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
15060 Standardized account code structure
15440-15451 Cnteria and standards for school district budgets

-229-



BP 3100 (e)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS ,
Maximizing School Board Governance: Budget Planning and Adoption, 2006
Maximizing School Board Governance: Understanding District Budgets, 2006
School Finance CD-ROM, 2005
CALJFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
California School Accounting Manual
FISCAL CRISIS AND MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE TEAM PUBLICATIONS
Fiscal Oversight Guide for AB 1200, AB 2756 and Subsequent Related Legislation,
September 2006
GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION
Best Practice: Appropriate Level of Unrestricted Fund Balance in the General Fund, 2009
GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENTS
Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, March
2009
Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, June 2004
Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements.and Management's Discussion and Analysis - For
State and Local Governments, June 1999
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org
California Department of Education, Finance and Grants: http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg
California Department of Finance: http://www.dof.ca.gov
Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team: http://www.fcmat.org
Government Finance Officers Association: http://www.gfoa.org
Governmental Accounting Standards Board: http://www.gasb.org
Legislative Analyst's Office: http://www.lao.ca.gov
School Services of California, Inc.: http://www.sscal.com
(11/08 11/09) 7/10

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: May 15, 2013 | King City, California

-230-



BP 5113.1 (a)

BP 5113.1 Students
Chronic Absence And Truancy

The Governing Board believes that excessive student absenteeism and tardiness, whether caused
by excused or unexcused absences, may be an early warning sign of poor academic achievement
and may put students at risk of dropping out of school. The Board desires to ensure that all
students attend school in accordance with the state's compulsory education law and take full
advantage of educational opportunities provided by the district.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

The State Administrator/Superintendént or designee shall establish a system to accurately
track student attendance in order to identify individual students classified as chronic absentees
and truants, as defined in law and administrative regulation.

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies that focus on
prevention of attendance problems, which may include, but are not limited to, efforts to provide a
safe and positive school environment, relevant and engaging learning experiences, school
activities that help develop students' feelings of connectedness with the school, school-based
health services, and incentives and rewards to recognize students who achieve excellent
attendance or demonstrate significant improvement in attendance. The Superintendent or
designee also shall develop strategies that enable early outreach to students as soon as they show
signs of poor attendance.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement)

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall work with students and
parents/guardians to identify factors contributing to chronic absence and truancy. Based on this
needs assessment, he/she shall collaborate with community agencies, includin g, but not limited
to, child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, and/or public health care agencies, to ensure
that alternative educational programs and nutrition, health care, and other support services are
available for students and families and to intervene as necessary when students have serious

attendance problems.

(cf- 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf- 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf- 5030 - Student Wellness)

-231-



BP 5113.1 (b)

(c/ 5145.6 - School Health Services)

(cf- 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

(cf- 5149 - At-Risk Students)

(cf- 6158 - Independent Study)

(cf- 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(¢f- 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

(cf- 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf- 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

(cf- 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

(cf- 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)
(cf- 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

(cf- 6184 - Continuation Education)

(cf- 6185 - Community Day School)

Students who are 1dentified as truants shall be subject to the interventions specified in law and
administrative regulation. ‘

A student's truancy, tardiness, or other absence from school shall not be the sole basis for his/her
out-of-school suspension or expulsion. Alternative disciplinary strategies and positive
reinforcement for attendance shall be used whenever possible.

As required by law, habitually truant students shall be referred to a district truancy specialist, a
truancy mediation program operated by the county's district attorney or probation officer, and/or
a juvenile court.

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall regularly analyze data on student
absence to identify patterns of absence district wide and by school, grade level, and student
population. Such data shall be used to identify common barriers to attendance, prioritize
resources for intervention, and monitor progress over time. The Superintendent or designee shall
periodically report this information to the Board for purposes of evaluating the effectiveness of
strategies implemented to reduce chronic absence and truancy and making changes as needed. As
appropriate, the Superintendent or designee also shall provide this information to key school staff
and community agency partners to engage them in program evaluation and improvement.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent)
37223 Weekend classes
41601 Reports of average daily attendance
46000 Records (attendance)
46010-46014 Absences
46110-46119 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools
46140-46147 Attendance 1n junior high and high schools
48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance)

-232-



BP 5113.1 (c)

48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

48260-48273 Truants

48290-48296 Failure to comply; complaints against parents
48320-48325 School attendance review boards
48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance
48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

60901 Chronic absence

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

PENAL CODE

270.1 Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor

272 Parent/guardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal lhability for truancy
830.1 Peace officers

VEHICLE CODE

13202.7 Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

601-601.4 Habitually truant minors

11253.5 Compulsory school attendance

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

306 Explanation of absence

420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Improving Student Achievement by Addressing Chronic Absence, Policy Brief, December
2010
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
School Attendance Review Board Handbook, 2009
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
Attendance Counts: http://www.attendancecounts.org
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:
http://www.cascwa.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
(11/99) 11/1

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, California

-233-



AR 5113.1 (a)

AR 5113.1 Students
Chronic Absence And Truancy

Definitions -

Chronic absentee means a student who is absent for any reason on 10 percent or more of the
school days in the school year, when the total number of days the student is absent is divided by
the total number of days the student is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular day
schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

Truant means a student who is absent from school without a valid excuse three full days in one
school year, or tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day without
a valid excuse on three occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof. (Education
Code 48260)

Habitual truant means a student who has been reported as a truant three or more times within the
same school year, provided the district has made a conscientious effort to hold at least one
conference with the student and his/her parent/guardian. (Education Code 48262, 48264.5)

Chronic truant means a student who has been absent from school without a valid excuse for 10
percent or more of the school days in one school year, from the date of enrollment to the current
date, provided the district has met the requirements of Education Code 48260-48263 and 48291.

(Education Code 48263.6)

For purposes of classifying a student as a truant, valid excuse includes, but is not limited to, the
reasons for which a student shall be excused from school pursuant to Education Code 48205 and
48225.5. A valid excuse also may include other reasons that are within the discretion of school
administrators and, based on the facts of the student's circumstances, are deemed to constitute a -
valid excuse. (Education Code 48260)

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits)

Truancy Specialist

The Superintendent or designee shall appoint a district truancy specialist to monitor the
attendance of district students. Such district truancy specialist shall perform duties related to
compulsory full-time education, truancy, compulsory continuation education, and any additional
duties prescribed by the Superintendent. (Education Code 48240, 48243, 48244)

(c/: 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits)

-234-



AR 5113.1 (b)

Addressing Chronic Absence

When a student is identified as a chronic absentee, the district truancy specialist shall
communicate with the student and his/her parent/guardian to determine the reason(s) for the
excessive absences, ensure the student and parent/gnardian are aware of the adverse
consequences of poor attendance, and jointly develop a plan for mmproving the student's school
attendance.

(cf- 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The student may be referred to a student success team or the truancy specialist to assist in
evaluating the student's needs and identifying strategies and programs that may assist him/her.

(¢f- 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf- 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students)

(¢/- 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(¢f. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

(¢f. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(¢f. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(¢f. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf- 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

A student who is struggling academically may be offered tutoring or other supplemental
mstruction, extended learning opportunities, and/or alternative educational options as

appropriate.

(cf- 6158 - Independent Study)

(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes)

(¢f- 6178.1 - Work Experience Education)

(cf- 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

(¢f. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)
(¢ 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

(¢f- 6184 - Continuation Education)

Whenever chronic absenteeism is linked to a non-school condition, the district truancy specialist
may recommend community resources and/or collaborate with commmunity agencies and
organizations to address the needs of the student and his/her family.

(cf- 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental 4 gencies and the Schools)

(¢f. 5145.6 - School Health Services)

Addressing Truancy

A district truancy specialist, peace officer, probation officer, or school administrator or designee
may arrest or assume temporary custody, during school hours, of any minor student found away
from his/her home who is absent from school without a valid excuse. Any person arresting or

-235-



AR 5113.1 (c)

assuming temporary custody of a minor student shall deliver the student and make reports in
accordance with Education Code 48265 and 48266. (Education Code 48264, 48265, 48266)

(cf- 3515.3 - District Police/S ecurity Department)

The district truancy specialist shall investigate a complaint from any person that a
parent/guardian has violated the state compulsory education laws contained in Education Code

48200-48341. (Education Code 48290)

When a student has been identified as a truant, as defined above, the following steps shall be
implemented based on the number of truancies he/she has committed:

1. Imtial truancy

a. A student who is initially classified as truant shall be reported to the truancy specialist.
(Education Code 48260)

b. The student's parent/guardian shall be notified: by the most cost-effective method
possible, which may include email or a telephone call, that: (Education Code 48260.5)

(1) The student is truant.
(2) The parent/guardian is obligated to compel the student to attend school. If the

parent/guardian fails to meet this obligation, he/she may be guilty of an infraction of
the law and subject to prosecution pursuant to Education Code 48290-48296.

(3) Alternative educational programs are available in the district.

(4) The parent/guardian has the right to meet with approprate school personne! to discuss
solutions to the student's truancy.

(5) The student may be subject to arrest or held in temporary custody by a probation
officer, a peace officer, a school administrator or attendance supervisor or his/her

designee under Education Code 48264 if found away from home and absent from
school without a valid excuse.

(6) The student may be subject to suspension, restriction, or delay of his/her driving
privilege pursuant to Vehicle Code 13202.7.

(7) It is recommended that the parent/guardian accompany the student to school and
attend classes with the student for one day.

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

-236-



AR 5113.1 (d)

c. The student may be required to attend makeup classes on one day of a weekend pursuant

to Education Code 37223. (Education Code 48264.5)

The student may be given a written warning by a peace officer. A record of this warning
may be kept at school for not less than two years or until the student graduates or
transfers from the school. If the student transfers, the record may be forwarded to the new
school. (Education Code 48264.5)

(cf- 5125 - Student Records)

¢. The State Administrator/Superintendent or district truancy specialist may notify the

district attorney and/or probation officer of the name of each student who has been
classified as a truant and the name and address of the student's parents/guardians.
(Education Code 48260.6)

2. Second truancy

Any student who has once been reported as a truant shall again be reported to the truancy
specialist as a truant if he/she is absent from school without valid excuse one or more
days or is tardy on one or more days. (Education Code 48261)

The student may be required to attend makeup classes on one day of a weekend pursuant
to Education Code 37223. (Education Code 48264.5)

The student may be assigned to an after-school or weekend study program within the
county. If the student fails to successfully complete this study program, he/she shall be
subject to item #3 below. (Education Code 48264.5)

An appropriate district staff member shall make a conscientious effort to hold at least one
conference with the student and parent/guardian by communicating with the
parent/guardian at least once using the most cost-effective method possible, which may
include email or a telephone call. (Education Code 48262)

. The truancy specialist may notify the district attorney and/or probation officer whether

the student continues to be classified as a truant after the parents/ guardians have been
notified in accordance with item #1b above. (Education Code 48260.6)

3. Third truancy (habitual truancy)

a.

A student who is habitually truant, irregular in school attendance, or habitually
insubordinate or disorderly during attendance at school may be referred to, and required
to attend, a truancy mediation program established by the district attorney or the
probation officer, or a comparable program deemed acceptable by the district’s truancy
specialist. (Education Code 48263, 48264.5)

-237-



AR 5113.1 (e)

Upon making a referral to the probation department, the Superintendent or district
truancy specialist shall provide the student and parent/guardian, in writing, the name and

address of the SARB or probation department and the reason for the referral. This notice
shall indicate that the student and parent/guardian shall be required, along with the
district staff person making the referral, to meet with a probation officer to consider a
proper disposition of the referral. (Education Code 48263)

If the student does not successfully complete the truancy mediation program or other
similar program, he/she shall be subject to item #4 below. (Education Code 48264.5)

If the truancy specialist determines that available community services cannot resolve the
problem of the truant or insubordinate student or if the student and/or student's
parents/guardians have failed to respond to the directives of the district or to services
provided, the truancy specialist may so notify the district attorney and/or the probation
officer. (Education Code 48263)

Upon his/her fourth truancy within the same school year, the student shall be within the
jurisdiction of the juvenile court. (Education Code 48264.5; Welfare and Institutions

Code 601)

If a student has been adjudged by the county juvenile court to be a habitual truant, the
Superintendent or district truancy specialist shall notify the juvenile court and the
student's probation or parole officer whenever the student is truant or tardy on one or
more days without a valid excuse in the same or succeeding school year, or is habitually
insubordinate or disorderly at school. The juvenile court and probation or parole officer
shall be notified within 10 days of the violation. (Education Code 48267)

5. Absence for 10 percent of school days (chronic truancy)

The district truancy specialist shall ensure that the student's parents/guardians are offered

a.
language-accessible support services to address the student's truancy.

b. If a chronically truant student is at least age 6 years and has not reached the age of 18
years, the attendance supervisor shall notify the parents/guardians that failure to
reasonably supervise and encourage the student's school attendance may result in the
parent/guardian being found guilty of a misdemeanor pursuant to Penal Code 270.1.

Records

The Superintendent or district truancy specialist shall maintain accurate attendance records for
students identified as habitual or chronic truants. The Superintendent or designee also shall
document all contacts with a student and his/her parent/guardian regarding the student's
attendance, including a summary of all conversations and a record of all intervention efforts.

-238-



AR 5113.1 ()

The Superintendent or designee shall gather and transmit to the County Superintendent of
Schools the number and types of referrals made to the SARB and of requests for petitions made

to the juvenile court. (Education Code 48273)

(3/02 11/10) 11/12

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: May 15, 2013 King City, California

-239-



AR 5125 (a)
AR 5125 Students

Student Records

Definitions

Student means any individual who is or has been in attendance at the district and regarding
whom the district maintains student records. (34 CFR 99.3)

Attendance includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence,
videoconference, satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunication
technologies for students who are not physically present in the classroom, and the period during
which a person is working under a work-study program. (34 CFR 99.3)

Student records are any items of information (in handwriting, print, tape, film, computer, or
other medium) gathered within or outside the district that are directly related to an identifiable
student and maintained by the district, required to be maintained by an employee in the
performance of his/her duties, or maintained by a party acting for the district. Any information
maintained for the purpose of second-party review is considered a student record. Student
records include the student's health record. (34 CFR 99.3; Education Code 49061, 49062; 5

CCR 430)

Student records do not include: (34 CFR 99.3; Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430)

1. Dairectory information

(cf- 3125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

2. Informal notes compiled by a school officer or employee which remain in the sole
possession of the maker, are used only as a personal memory aid, and are not accessible
or revealed to any other person except a substitute

3. Records of the law enforcement unit of the district, subject to the provisions of 34 CFR
99.8

(cf- 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 3513.3 - District Police/Security Department)

4. Records created or received by the district after an individual is no longer a student in
attendance and that are not directly related to the individual's attendance as a student

5. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher
Mandatory permanent student records are those records which are maintained in perpetuity and

which schools have been directed to compile by state law, regulation, or administrative
directive. (5 CCR 430)

-240-



AR 5125 (b)

Mandatory interim student records are those records which the schools are directed to compile
and maintain for stipulated periods of time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law,
regulation, or administrative directive. (5 CCR 430)

Permitted student records are those records having clear importance only to the current
educational process of the student. (5 CCR 430)

Access means a personal inspection and review of a record, an accurate copy of a record or
receipt of an accurate copy of a record, an oral description or communication of a record, and a
request to release a copy of any record. (Education Code 49061)

Disclosure means to permit access to, or the release, transfer, or other communication of,
personally identifiable information contained in education records to any party, except the party
that provided or created the record, by any means including oral, written, or electronic. (34 CFR

99.3)

Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to: (34 CFR 99.3)
1. The student's name
2. The name of the student's parent/guardian or other family members
3. The address of the student or student's family

4. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or
biometric record (e.g., fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA sequence,
facial characteristics, and handwriting)

5. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's
maiden name

6. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific
student that would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not
have personal knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with

reasonable certainty

7. Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the
1dentity of the student to whom the student record relates

Adult student is a person who is or was enrolled in school and who is at least 18 years of age. (5
CCR 430)

Parent/guardian means a natural parent, an adopted parent, legal guardian, surrogate parent, or
foster parent. (Education Code 49061, 56050, 56055)

School officials and employees are officials or employees whose duties and responsibilities to

-241-



AR 5125 (c)

the district, whether routine or as a result of special circumstances, require that they have access
to student records. School officials and employees include contractors, consultants, volunteers,
or other parties to whom the district has outsourced district functions and who perform services
for which the district would otherwise use employees.

A legitimate educational interest is one held by school officials and employees whose duties
and responsibilities to the district, whether routine or as a result of special circumstances,
require that they have access to student records.

Custodian of records is the employee responsible for the security of student records maintained
by the district and for devising procedures for assuring that access to such records is limited to
authonized persons. (5 CCR 433)

County placing agency means the county social service department or county probation
department. (Education Code 49061)

Persons Granted Access Without Prior Written Consent

The following persons or agencies shall have absolute access to any and all student records in
accordance with law:

1. Parents/guardians of students younger than age 18 years, including the parent who is not
the student’s custodial parent (Education Code 49069; Family Code 3025)

2. An adult student age 18 or older or a student under the age of 18 who attends a
postsecondary institution, in which case the student alone shall exercise i ghts related to
his/her student records and grant consent for the release of records (34 CFR 99.3, 99.5)

3. Parents/guardians of an adult student with disabilities who is age 18 years or older and has
been declared incompetent under state law (Education Code 56041 .5)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

In addition, the following persons or agencies shall have access to those particular records that
are relevant to their legitimate educational interest: (34 CFR 99.31; Education Code 49076)

1. Parents/guardians of a dependent student age 18 or older (Education Code 49076, 34
CFR 99.31)

2. Students who are age 16 or older or who have completed the 10th grade (Education
Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

3. School officials and employees consistent with definition provided in the section
"Definitions" above (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

-242-



4.

AR 5125 (d)

Members of a school attendance review board (SARB) and any volunteer aide age 18 or
older who has been investigated, selected, and trained by the SARB to provide follow-
up services to a referred student (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 5113.1 — Truancy and Chronic Attendance)

5.

8.

10.

Officials and employees of other public schools, school systems, or postsecondary
institutions where the student intends or is directed to enroll, including local, county, or
state correctional facilities where educational programs leading to high school
graduation are provided, or where the student is already enrolled, as long as the
disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer (Education Code

49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

When the district discloses personally identifiable information to officials of another
school, school system, or postsecondary institution where the student seeks or intends to
enroll, the Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable attempt to notify the
parent/guardian or adult student at his/her last known address, provide a copy of the
record that 1s disclosed, and give the parent/guardian or adult student an opportunity for
a hearing to challenge the record. (34 CFR 99.34)

Amny county placing agency acting as an authorized representative of a state or local
educational agency which is required to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported
education program pursuant to item #6 above (Education Code 49076)

Federal, state, and local officials, as needed for an audit, evaluation, or compliance
activity related to a state or federally funded education program and in accordance with
a written agreement developed pursuant to 34 CFR 99.35 (Education Code 49076; 34

CFR 99.3, 99.31, 99.35)

Any person, agency, or organization authorized in compliance with a court order or
lawfully issued subpoena (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)

Unless otherwise instructed by the court, the Superintendent or designee shall, prior to
disclosing a record pursuant to a court order or subpoena, give the parent/guardian or
adult student at least three days' notice of the name of the requesting agency and the
specific record requested, if Jawfully possible within the requirements of the judicial
order. (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)

Any district attorney who is participating in or conducting a truancy mediation program
or participating in the presentation of evidence in a truancy petition (Education Code »

49076)

A prosecuting agency for consideration-against a parent/guardian for failure to comply
with compulsory education laws (Education Code 49076)

-243-



11.

12.

13.

AR 5125 (e)

Any probation officer district attorney or counsel of record for a minor student for the
purposes of conducting a criminal investigation or an investigation in regards to

declaring the minor student a ward of the court or involving a violation of a condition of
probation subject to specified evidentiary rules (Education Code 49076)

When disclosing records for these purposes, the Superintendent or desi gnee shall obtain
written certification from the recipient of the record(s) that the information will not be
disclosed to another party without prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian
or the holder of the student's educational rights, unless specifically authorized by state
or federal law. (Education Code 49076)

Any judge or probation officer for the purpose of conducting a truancy mediation
program for a student or for the purpose of presenting evidence in a truancy petition
pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 681 (Education Code 49076)

In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the
Superintendent or designee that the information will be used only for truancy purposes.
Upon releasing student information to a judge or probation officer, the Superintendent
or designee shall inform, or provide written notification to, the student's parent/guardian
within 24 hours. (Education Code 49076)

Any county placing agency for the purpose of preparing a health and education
summary pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 16010 for a child placed in foster
care, fulfilling educational case management responsibilities required by the juvenile
court or by law, or assisting with the school transfer or enrollment of a student

(Education Code 49076)

(cf- 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the
Superintendent or designee that the information will be used only for truancy purposes.
Upon releasing student information to a judge or probation officer, the Superintendent
or designee shall inform, or provide written notification to, the student's parent/guardian
within 24 hours. (Education Code 49076)

14. Foster family agencies with jurisdiction over currently enrolled or former students may
access those students' records of grades and transcripts and any individualized education
program (IEP) developed and maintained by the district with respect to such students.
(Education Code 49069.3)

(/. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

When authorized by law to assist Jaw enforcement in investigations of suspected kidnapping,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the identity and location of the
student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another public school district or

-244-



AR 5125 (f)

California private school. The information shall be released only to designated peace officers,
federal criminal investigators, and federal law enforcement officers whose names have been
submitted in writing by their ]aw enforcement agency in accordance with the procedures
specified in Education Code

49076.5. (Education Code 49076.5)

15.Appropriate law enforcement authorities, in circumstances where Education Code 48902
requires that the district provide special education and disciplinary records of a student with
disabilities who is suspended or expelled for committing an act violating Penal Code 245

(Education Code 48902, 49076)

16. Designated peace officers or law enforcement agencies in cases where the district is
authorized by law to assist law enforcement in investigations of suspected criminal conduct or
kidnapping and a written parental consent, lawfully issued subpoena, or court order is submitted
to the district, or information is provided to it indicating that an emergency exists in which the
student's information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other
individuals (Education Code 49076.5; 34 CFR 99.1-99.67)

In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the 1dentity and
location of the student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another public
school district or California private school. (Education Code 49076.5)

When disclosing such records, the State Administrator/Superintendent or desi gnee shall obtain
written certification by the recipient of the records as described in item #11 above. (Education

Code 49076)

At his/her discretion, the State Administrator/Superintendent or designee may release
information from a student's records to the following: (34 CFR 99.31, 99.36; Education Code

49076)

1. Appropriate persons, including parents/guardians of a student, in an emergency, if the
health and safety of the student or other persons are at stake

2. Accrediting associations

3. Under the conditions specified in Education Code 49076 and 34 CFR 99.31,
organizations conducting studies on behalf of educational institutions or agencies for the
purpose of developing, validating, or administering predictive tests, administering
student aid programs, or improving instruction, provided that:

a. The study is conducted in a manner that does not permit personal identification of

parents/guardians and students by individuals other than representatives of the
organization who have legitimate interests in the information.

-245-



AR 5125 (g)

b. The information is destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes for which the
study is conducted.

c. The district enters into a written agreement with the organization that includes the
information in 34 CFR 99.31.

6. Officials and employees of private schools or school systems where the student is
enrolled or intends to enroll

5. Local health departments operating countywide or regional immunization information
and reminder systems and the California Department of Public Health, in which case the

Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's parent/guardian of his/her ri ghts in
accordance with law prior to releasing the information (Health and Safety Code 120440)

6. Contractors and consultants having a legitimate educational interest based on services or
functions which have been outsourced to them through a formal written agreement or
contract by the district, excluding volunteers or other parties (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 3600 - Consultants)

7. Agencies or organizations in connection with the student's application for or receipt of
financial aid, provided that, information permitting the personal identification of a
student or his/her parents/guardians for these purposes may be disclosed only as may be
necessary to determine the eligibility of the student for financial aid, determine the
amount of financial aid, determine the conditions which will be imposed regarding the
financial aid, or enforce the terms or conditions of the financial aid (Education Code
49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.36)

. County elections officials for the purpose of identifying students eligible to register to
vote or offering such students an opportunity to register, subject to the provisions of 34
CFR 99.37 and under the condition that any information provided on this basis shall not
be used for any other purpose or transferred to any other person or agency (Education

Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.37)
(¢/- 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

(o]

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee may release information specified in law
regarding a student's immunization record to local health departments operating countywide or
regional immunization information and reminder systems and the California Department of
Public Health. Prior to releasing such information, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the parent/guardian of his/her rights in accordance with law. (Health and Safety Code 120440)

Persons Granted Access With Prior Written Consent

Persons, agencies, or organizations not afforded access i ghts by law may be granted access

-246-



AR 5125 (h)

only through written permission of the parent/guardian or adult student, or by judicial order.
(Education Code 49075)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of
records to others. Either parent may grant consent if both parents notify the district, in writing,
that such an agreement has been made. (Education Code 49061)

(cf- 5021 - Noncustodial Parents)

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to
another person or agency without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student
unless specifically allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act. (Education Code 49076)

De-Identification of Records

When authorized by law for any program audit, educational research, or other purposes the State
Administrator Superintendent or designee may release information from a student record
without prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult student after the removal of all personally
identifiable information, a reasonable determination that the student's identity is not personally
identifiable, whether through single or multiple releases, and taking into account other
reasonably available information. (34 CFR 99.31)

Process for Providing Access to Records

Student records shall be maintained in a central file at the school attended by the student or,
when records are maintained in different locations, a notation shall be placed in the central file
indicating where other records may be found. Parents/guardians shall be notified of the location
of student records if not centrally located. (Education Code 49069; 5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall be responsible for the security of student records and shall ensure
that access is limited to authorized persons. (5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall develop reasonable methods, including physical, technological,
and administrative controls, to ensure that school officials and employees obtain access to only
those student records in which they have legitimate educational interests. (34 CFR 99.31)

To inspect, review, or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a
request to the custodian of records. Prior to granting the request, the custodian of records shall
authenticate the individual's identity. For those individuals for whom the law requires that
access be granted based on a legitimate educational interest, the request shall specify such

mterest involved.
When prior written consent is required by law, the parent/guardian shall provide a written,

signed and dated consent before the district discloses the student record. Such consent may be
given through electronic means in those cases where it can be authenticated. The district's

-247-



AR 5125 (i)

consent form shall specify the records that may be disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure,
and 1dentify the party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may be made. Upon request by
the parent/guardian, the district shall provide him/her a copy of the records disclosed. (34 CFR

99.30)

Within five business days following the date of request, a parent/guardian or other authorized

person shall be granted access to inspect, review, and obtain copies of student records during
regular school hours. (Education Code 49069)

Qualified certificated personnel shall be available to interpret records when requested.
(Education Code 49069)

The custodian of records or the Superintendent or designee shall prevent the alteration, damage,
or loss of records during inspection. (5 CCR 435)

Access Log

A log shall be maintained for each student's record which lists all PETsons, agencies, or
organizations requesting or receiving information from the records and the legitimate
educational interest of the requester. (Education Code 49064)

In every instance of inspection by persons who do not have assi gned educational responsibility,

the custodian of records shall make an entry in the log indicating the record inspected, the name
of the person granted access, the reason access was granted, and the time and circumstances of

inspection. (5 CCR 435)

The log does not need to include record of access by: (Education Code 49064)
1. Parents/guardians or adult students
2. Students who are 16 years of age or older or who have completed the 10th grade
3. Parties obtaining district-approved directory information

(¢f- 3123.1 - Release of Directory Information)

4. Parties who provide written parental consent, in which case the consent notice shall be
filed with the record pursuant to Education Code 49075

5. School officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest
The log shall be accessible only to the parent/guardian, adult student, dependent adult student,

student age who is 16 years or older or who has completed the 10th grade, custodian of records,
and certain state/federal officials. (Education Code 49064; 5 CCR 432)

-248-



AR 5125 ()

Duplication of Student Records

To provide copies of any student record, the district shall charge a reasonable fee not to exceed
the actual cost of providing the copies. No charge shall be made for providing up to two
transcripts or up to two verifications of various records for any former student. No charge shall
be made to locate or retrieve any student record. (Education Code 49065)

Changes to Student Records

No additions except routine updating shall be made to a student's record after high school
graduation or permanent departure without prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult student.

(5 CCR 437)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student or an adult student may challen ge
the content of a record or offer a written response to a record. (Education Code 49061)

(cf- 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)

Retention and Destruction of Student Records

All anecdotal information and assessment reports maintained as student records shall be dated

and
signed by the individual who onginated the data. (5 CCR 431)

Mandatory Permanent Student Records

The following Mandatory Permanent Student Records shall be kept indefinitely: (5 CCR 432,
437)

1. Legal name of student
2. Date and place of birth and method of verifying birth date
(cf. 5111 - Admission)
3. Sex of student
4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student
a. Address of minor student if different from the above

b. Annual verification of parent/guardian's name and address and student's residence

(cf- 5111.1 - District Residency)
(¢f- 3111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment)

-249-



AR 5125 (k)

5. Entrance and departure dates of each school year and for any summer session or other
extra session

6. Subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter, and marks or
credits given

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
7. Verification of or exemption from required immunizations

(cf- 5141.31 - Immunizations)

8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent

Mandatory Interim Student Records

Mandatory Interim Student Records, unless forwarded to another district, shall be maintained
subject to destruction during the third school year following a determination that their
usefulness has ceased or the student has left the district. These records include: (Education
Code 48918, 51747; 5 CCR 432, 437, 16027)

1. Expulsion orders and the causes therefor

(cf- 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf- 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

2. Alogidentifying persons or agencies who request or receive information from the
student record

3. Health information, including verification or waiver of the health screening for school
entry

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

4. Information on participation in special education programs, including required tests,
case studies, authorizations, and evidence of eligibility for admission or discharge

(cf- 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

5. Language training records

(cf- 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)

6. Progress slips/notices required by Education Code 49066 and 49067

-250-



AR 5125 (1)

7. Parental restrictions/stipulations regarding access to directory information

8. Parent/guardian or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary
action

9. Parent/guardian authorization or denial of student participation in specific programs
10. Results of standardized tests administered within the past three years

(¢f 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program)
(cf-6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)

11. Written findings resulting from an evaluation conducted after a specified number of
missed

assignments to determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in independent
study

(cf- 6158 - Independent Study)

Permitted student records may be destroyed six months after the student completes or
withdraws from the educational program, including: (5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Objective counselor and/or teacher ratings
2. Standardized test results older than three years
3. Routine disciplinary data

(cf- 3144 - Discipline)

4. Verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns
5. All disciplinary notices
6. Supplementary attendance records

Records shall be destroyed in a way that assures they will not be available to possible public
inspection in the process of destruction. (5 CCR 437)

Transfer of Student Records

If a student transfers into this district from any other school district or a private school, the
Superintendent or designee shall inform the parent/guardian of his/her rights regardin g student
records, including the right to review, challenge, and receive a copy of student records.
(Education Code 49068; 5 CCR 438)

-251-



AR 5125 (m)

When a student transfers into this district from another district, the Superintendent or designee
shall request that the student's previous district provide any records, either maintained by that
district in the ordinary course of business or received from a law enforcement agency, regarding
acts committed by the transferring student that resulted in his/her suspension or expulsion.

(Education

Code 48201)

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)
(cf- 3119 - Students Expelled From Other Districts)

When a student transfers from this district to another school district or to a private school, the

Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of the student's mandatory permanent record as
requested by the other district or private school. The original record or a copy shall be retained
permanently by this district. If the transfer 1s to another California public school, the student's
entire mandatory interim record shall also be forwarded. If the transfer is out of state or to a
private school, the mandatory interim record may be forwarded. Permitted student records may

be :
forwarded to any other district or private school. (Education Code 48918; 5 CCR 438)

Upon receiving a request from a county placing agency to transfer a student in foster care out of
a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall transfer the student's records to the next
educational placement within two business days. (Education Code 49069.5)

All student records shall be updated before they are transferred. (5 CCR 438)

Student records shall not be withheld from the requesting district because of any charges or fees
owed by the student or parent/guardian. (5 CCR 438)

If the district is withholding grades, diploma, or transcripts from the student because of his/her
damage or loss of school property, this information shall be sent to the requesting district along
with the student's records.

(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)

Notification of Parents/Guardians

Upon any student's initial enrollment, and at the beginning of each school year thereafter, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians and eligible students, in writing, of
their rights related to student records. Insofar as practicable, the district shall provide these
notices in the student's home language and shall effectively notify parents/guardians or eligible
students who are disabled. (34 CFR 99.7; Education Code 49063)

(cf- 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
The notice shall include: (34 CFR 99.7, 99.34; Education Code 49063)

-252-



AR 5125 (n)
1. The types of student records kept by the district and the information contained therein
2. The title(s) of the official(s) responsible for maintaining each type of record
3. The location of the log identifying those who request information from the records

4. District criteria for defining school officials and employees and for determining
legitimate

educational interest
5. Duastrict policies for reviewing and expunging student records
4. The night to inspect and review student records and the procedures for doing so

7. The right to challenge and the procedures for challenging the content of a student record
that the parent/guardian or student believes to be inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in
violation of the student's privacy rights

(cf 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)
8. The cost, if any, charged for duplicating copies of records

9. The categories of information defined as directory information pursuant to Education
Code 49073

10.The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the
student's records except when disclosure without consent is authorized by law

11.The availability of the curriculum prospectus developed pursuant to Education Code
49091.14 containing the titles, descriptions, and instructional aims of every course
offered by the school

(cf- 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

12. Any other rights and requirements set forth in Education Code 49060-49078, and the
right of parents/guardians to file a complaint with the United States Department of
Education concerning an alleged failure by the district to comply with 20 USC 1232g

13. A statement that the district forwards education records to other agencies or institutions

that request the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already
enrolled as long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment

(3/06 3/08) 3/09

-253-



AR 5125 (o)

Regulation: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, California

-254-



BP 5136 (a)

Students
Gangs

The Governing Board desires to keep district schools free from the threats or harmful influence
of any groups or gangs which exhibit drug use, violence or disruptive behavior. The
Superintendent or designee shall take steps to deter gang intimidation of students and staff and
confrontations between members of different gangs. He/she shall exchange information and
establish mutually supportive efforts with local law enforcement authorities.

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide inservice training which helps staff to identify
gangs and gang symbols, recognize early manifestations of disruptive activities, and respond
appropriately to gang behavior. Staff shall be informed about conflict management techniques
and alerted to intervention measures and community resources.

The Board realizes that students become involved in gangs for many reasons, such as peer
pressure, the need for a sense of belonging, and lack of refusal skills. Age-appropriate gang
violence prevention education shall start with students in the early elementary grades and may
start in kindergarten. '

To further discourage the influence of gangs, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that
school rules of conduct and any school dress code prohibiting gang-related apparel are enforced
consistently. If a student exhibits signs of gang affiliation, staff shall so inform the
parent/guardian.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety P]an)
(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming)
(ct. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35183 Gang-related apparel

32282 School safety plans

41510-41514 School Safety Consolidated Competitive Grant

48907 Student exercise of free expression

51264 Educational inservice training; CDE guidelines

51265 Gang violence and drug and alcohol abuse prevention inservice training
51266-51266.5 Model gang and substance abuse prevention curriculum
PENAL CODE

186.22 Participation in criminal street gang

-255-



BP 5136 (b)

13826-13826.7 Gang violence suppression
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
7101-7184 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act

Management Resources:

CDE PUBLICATIONS
On Alert:  Gang Prevention in School and Inservice Guidelines, January 1994

CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Protecting Our Schools: Governing Board Strategies to Combat School Violence, 1995

(2/94 10/95) 10/96

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, CA

-256-



AR 5136 (a)

AR 5136 Students

Gangs

Prevention and Intervention Measures

In order to discourage the influence of gangs, school staff shall take the following measures:

1. Any student displaying behavior, gestures, apparel or paraphernalia indicative of gang
affiliation shall be referred to the principal or designee.

a. The student's parent/guardian shall be contacted and may be asked to meet with school staff.
b. The student may be sent home to change clothes if necessary.

(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

2. Staff members shall be provided with the names of known gang members.

3. Students who seek help in rejecting gang associations may be referred to community-based
gang suppression and prevention organizations.

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)

4. Any gang graffiti on school premises shall be removed, washed down or painted over as soon
as discovered.

a. Daily checks for graffiti shall be made throughout the campus.

b. Graffiti shall be photographed before it is removed. These photographs shall be shared with
local law enforcement authorities and used in future disciplinary or criminal action against the

offenders.

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

5. Classroom and after-school programs at each school shall be designed to enhance individual
self esteem, provide positive reinforcement for acceptable behavior, and foster interest in a
variety of constructive activities. These programs shall also:

a. Explain the dangers of gang membership

b. Provide counseling for targeted at-risk students

-257-



AR 5136 (b)

c. Include lessons or role-playing workshops in gang avoidance skills and nonviolent conflict
resolution, including communication skills, anger management, ethnic/cultural tolerance, and
mediation skills

d. Assign individual gang members to cooperative learning groups in which they may work
toward common goals with students who are not members of their gang

e. Provide school-to-career instruction

f. Provide positive interaction with local law enforcement staff

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

Gang prevention lessons may be taught jointly by teachers and law enforcement staff.

6. Staff shall actively promote membership in authorized student organizations which can
provide students companionship, safety, and a sense of purpose and belonging, including:

a. Positive sports and cultural activities and affiliations with the local community

(cf. 6145 - Extracurnicular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

b. Structured, goal-oriented community service projects
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
Community Outreach

Gang prevention classes or counseling offered for parents/ guaraians shall address the following
topics:

1. The dangers of gang membership

2. Warning signs which may indicate that children are at risk of becoming involved with gangs
3. The nature of local gang apparel and graffiti

4. Effective parenting techniques

5. Conflict resolution techniques

-258-



AR 5136 (c)

Community programs shall address:

1. The scope and nature of local gang problems

2. Strategies by which each segment of the community may alleviate gang problems

(2/94 10/95) 10/96

Regulation = SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15, 2013 King City, CA 93930

-259-



AR 514131 (a)

AR 5141.31 Students
Immunizations

Required Immunizations

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians, upon school
registration, a written notice summarizing the state's immunization requirements.

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall not unconditionally admit any student
to a district secondary school, unless that student has presented documentation of full
immunization, in accordance with the age/grade and dose required by the California Department

of Public Health (CDPH), against the following diseases: (Health and Safety Code 120335; 17
CCR 6020)

1. Measles, mumps and rubella (MMR)
2. Diphtheria, tetanus and pertussis (whooping cough) (DTP, DTaP, or Tdap)
3. Poliomyelitis (polio)
4. Hepatitis B
5. Varicella (chickenpox)
6. Haemophilus influenza type b (Hib meningitis)
7. Any other disease designated by the CDPH
(cf- 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

The student's immunization record shall be provided by the student's health care provider or from
the student's previous school immunization record. The record must show the date that each dose

was administered.

Exemptions

Exemption from immunization requirements is allowed when: (Health and Safety Code 120365,
120370; 17 CCR 6051)

1. The student's parent/guardian provides a written statement by a licensed physician that,
due to the physical condition or medical circumstances of the student, one or more
immunizations are considered unsafe or are permanently not indicated. The physician's statement
shall indicate the specific nature and probable duration of the medical condition or circumstances

-260-



AR 5141.31 (b)

that contraindicate immunization. In such circumstances, the student shall be exempted from one
or more vaccines to the extent indicated by the physician's statement.

(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs)

2. The student's parent/guardian provides a letter or affidavit documenting which
immunizations required by Health and Safety Code 120355 have been given and which
immunizations have not been given on the basis that they are contrary to the parent/guardian's

beliefs.

When immunization(s) are contrary to the parent/guardian's personal beliefs but there is good
cause to believe that the student has been exposed to one of the communicable diseases listed in
Health and Safety Code 120325, the student may be temporarily excluded from school until the
local public health officer is satisfied that the student is no longer at risk of developing the

disease.

On or after January 1, 2014, the parent/guardian shall also submit a form prescribed by the
CDPH which includes a signed attestation by a health care practitioner that indicates he/she has
provided the parent/guardian with information regarding the benefits and risks of the
immunization and the health risks of the communicable diseases listed in Health and Safety Code
120335 to the person and the community. The parent/guardian shall sign a statement indicating
that he/she has received this information. Neither the health care practitioner nor the
parent/guardian shall sign these statements more than six months prior to the date that the student
is subject to the immunization requirement. In lieu of the original form, the district shall accept a
photocopy of the signed form or a letter by a health care practitioner that includes all information
and attestations included on the form.

Exclusions Due to Lack of Immunizations

Any student without the required evidence of immunization may be excluded from school until
the immunization is obtained or the student presents a letter or affidavit of exemption from
his/her parent/guardian or physician to the Superintendent or designee.

(cf- 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance)
(cf- 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

Before an already admitted student is excluded from school attendance because of lack of
immunization, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian that he/she has 10
school days to supply evidence of proper immunization or an appropriate letter of exemption.
(Education Code 48216; 17 CCR 6040)

This notice shall refer the parent/guardian to the student's usual source of medical care or, if the

student has no usual source of medical care, then to the county health department or school
immunization program, if any. (Education Code 48216)

-261-



AR 5141.31 (¢)

The Superintendent or designee shall exclude from further attendance any already admitted
student who fails to obtain the required immunization within 10 school days following the
parent/guardian’s receipt of the notice specified above, unless the student i1s exempt from
immunization for medical reasons or personal beliefs. The student shall remain excluded from
school until he/she has received another dose of each required vaccine due at that time. The
student shall also be reported to the attendance supervisor or principal. (17 CCR 6055)

Conditional Enrollment

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee may conditionally admit a student with
documentation from an authorized health care provider that: (Health and Safety Code 120340; 17

CCR 6000, 6035)

1. He/she has received some but not all required immunizations and is not due for any
vaccine dose at the time of admission

2. He/she has a temporary exemption from immunization for medical reasons

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's parents/guardians
of the date by which the student must complete all the remaining doses when they become due as

specified in 17 CCR 6035.

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall review the immunization record of
each student admitted conditionally every 30 days until that student has received all the required
immunizations. If the student does not receive the required immunizations within the specified
time limits, he/she shall be excluded from further attendance until the immunizations are
received. (Health and Safety Code 120375; 17 CCR 6070)

Records

The StateAdministrator/Superintendent or designee shall record each new entrant's
immunizations in the California School Immunization Record and retain it as part of the student's
mandatory permanent student record. District staff shall maintain the confidentiality of '
immunization records and may disclose such information to state and local health departments
only in accordance with law. (Health and Safety Code 120375, 120440; 17 CCR 6070)

(cf- 5125 - Student Records)

- Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, California

-262-



BP 5144 (a)

BP 5144 Students
Discipline

The Governing Board desires to prepare students for responsible citizenship by fostering self-discipline
and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, effective
classroom management, and parent involvement can minimize the need for discipline. Staff shall use
preventative measures and positive conflict resolution techniques whenever possible. In addition,
discipline shall be used in a manner that corrects student behavior without intentionally creating an

adverse effect on student learning or health.

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall approve, for each school, a
complement of effective, age-appropriate strategies for correcting student behavior. Such
strategies may include, but are not limited to, conferences with students and their
parents/guardians; use of study, guidance, or other intervention-related teams; enrollment in a
program teaching prosocial behavior or anger management; and participation in a restorative
justice program. Staff shall use preventative measures and positive conflict resolution
techniques whenever possible. Disciplinary measures that may result in loss of instructional time
or cause students to be disengaged from school, such as suspension and expulsion, shall be
imposed only when required by law and when other means of correction have failed. (Education

Code 48900.5)

(cf: 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf- 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(¢f- 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(¢f- 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf- 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Board policies and administrative regulations shall outline acceptable student conduct and
provide the basis for sound disciplinary practices. Each school shall develop disciplinary rules to
meet the school's particular needs. However, the rules shall be consistent with law, Board policy,
and district regulations. The Board may review, at an open meeting, the approved school
discipline rules for consistency with Board policy and state law. (Education Code 35291.5)

{cf- 5131 - Conduct)
(cf- 5131.1 - Bus Conduci)

At all times, the safety of students and staff and the maintenance of an orderly school
environment shall be priorities in determining appropriate discipline. When misconduct occurs,
staff shall attempt to identify the causes of the student's behavior and mmplement appropriate
discipline. Persistently disruptive students may be assi gned to alternative programs or removed
from school in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

(cf- 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf- 3515 - Campus Security)

-263-



BP 5144 (b)

(c¢f- 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

(cf 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)

(cf- 5136 - Gangs)

(cf- 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf- 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(¢f. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

(cf- 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

(cf- 6184 - Continuation Education)

(cf- 6185 - Community Day School)

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules fairly, consistently, and in accordance with the district's
nondiscrimination policies. :

(cf- 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as
necessary to assist staff in developing consistent classroom management skills, immplementing
effective disciplinary techniques, and establishing cooperative relationships with
parents/guardians.

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4331 - Staff Development)

Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal
punishment includes the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical pain
on a student. (Education Code 49001)

However, corporal punishment does not include any pain or discomfort suffered by a student as a
result of his/her voluntary participation in an athletic or other recreational competition or
actrvity. In addition, an employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect
himsel/herself, students, staff, or other persons, to prevent damage to property, or to obtain
possession of weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of the student is not
corporal punishment. (Education Code 49001)

(ct. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE
32280-32288 School safety plans
35146 Closed sessions

-264-



BP 5144 (c)

35291 Rules

35291.5-35291.7 School-adopted discipline rules
37223 Weekend classes

44807.5 Restriction from recess

48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion
48980-48985 Notification of parent/guardian
49000-49001 Prohibition of corporal punishment
49330-49335 Injurious objects

CIVIL CODE v

1714.1 Parental liability for child's misconduct
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

307 Participation in school activities until departure of bus
353 Detention after school

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, October 2011
Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity during the School Day, Fact Sheet, 2009
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PROGRAM ADVISORIES
Classroom Management: A California Resource Guide for Teachers and Administrators of
Elementary and Secondary Schools, 2000

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES

01-02 School Safety, Discipline, and Attendance, March 2001

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15, 2013 King City, California

-265-



AR 5144 (a)

AR 5144 Students
Discipline
Site-Level Rules

In developing site-level disciplinary rules, the principal or designee shall solicit the participation,
views, and advice of one representative selected by each of the following groups: (Education

Code 35291.5)
1. Parents/guardians
2. Teachers
3. School administrators
4. School security personnel, if any
(cf: 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)
5. For junior high and high schools, students enrolled in the school
Each school shall review its site-level discipline rules at least every four years.

It shall be the duty of each employee of the school to enforce the school rules on student
discipline. (Education Code 35291)

To the extent possible, staff shall use disciplinary strategies that keep students in school and
participating in the instructional program. Disciplinary strategies may 1nclude, but are not
limited to:

1. Discussion or conference between school staff and the student and his/her
parents/guardians

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

2. Referral of the student to the school counselor or other school support service personnel
for case management and counseling

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

-266-



AR 5144 (b)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

3. Convening of a study, guidance, resource panel, or other intervention-related team to
assess the behavior and develop and implement an individual plan to address the behavior in
partnership with the student and his/her parents/guardians

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

4, When applicable, referral for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational
assessment, including for purposes of creating an individualized education program or a Section

504 plan

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

5. Enrollment in a program for teaching prosocial behavior or anger managemeht
6. Participation in a restorative justice program
7. A positive behavior support approach with tiered interventions that occur during the

school day on campus

8. After-school programs that address specific behavioral issues or expose students to
positive activities and behaviors, including, but not limited to, those operated in collaboration

with local parent and community groups
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

9. Restriction from passing period and/or break periods as provided in the section below
entitled "Passing Period Restriction"

10.  Detention after school hours as provided in the section below entitled "Detention A fter
School"

11. Community service as provided in the section below entitled "Community Service"
12. In accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation, restriction or

disqualification from participation in extracurricular activities
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular/Cocurricular Activities)
13. Reassignment to an alternative educational environment

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)

-267-



AR 5144 (c)

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

14. Suspension and expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative
regulation

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Passing Period Restriction

A teacher may restrict a student's passing period and/or break time only when he/she believes
that this action is the most effective way to bring about improved behavior. When passing period
- restriction may involve the withholding of physical activity from a student, the teacher shall try
other disciplinary measures before imposing the restriction. Passing period restriction shall be
subject to the following conditions:

I. The student shall be given adequate time to use the restroom and get a drink or eat lunch,
as appropriate.

2. The student shall remain under a certificated employee's supervision during the period of
restriction.
3. Teachers shall inform the principal of any passing period restrictions they impose.

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

Each school shall file a copy of its rules with the Superintendent or designee.

The rules shall be consistent with law, Board policy, and district regulations. The Governing
Board may review, at an open meeting, the approved school discipline rules for consistency with
Board policy and state law. (Education Code 35291.5)

Each school shall review its site-level discipline rules at least every four years.

It shall be the duty of each employee of the school to enforce the school rules on student
discipline. (Education Code 35291)

-268-



AR 5144 (d)

Corporal Punishment
Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student.

Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of,
physical pain on a student. (Education Code 49001)

Corporal punishment does not include any pain or discomfort suffered by a student as a result of
his/her voluntary participation in an athletic or other recreational competition or activity. In
addition, an employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect himself/herself,
students, staff, or other persons, er to prevent damage to property, or to obtain possession of
weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of the student is not corporal punishment.

(Education Code 49001)

(cf- 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)
(c¢f- 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

Detention After School

Students may be detained for disciplinary reasons up to one hour after the close of the maximum
school day. (5 CCR 353)

If a student will miss his/her school bus on account of being detained after school, or if the
student is not transported by school bus, the principal or designee shall notify parents/guardians
of the detention at least one day in advance so that alternative transportation arrangements may
be made. The student shall not be detained unless the principal or designee notifies the

parent/guardian.

In cases where the school bus departs more than one hour after the end of the school day,
students may be detained until the bus departs. (5 CCR 307, 353)

Students shall remain under the supervision of a certificated employee during the period of
detention.

Students may be offered the choice of serving their detention on Saturday rather than after
school.

(c¢f. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes)
Community Service
As part of or instead of disciplinary action, the Board, Superintendent, principal, or principal's

designee may, at his/her discretion, require a student to perform community service during
nonschool hours, on school grounds, or, with written permission of the student's parent/guardian,

-269-



AR 5144 (e)

off school grounds. Such service may include, but is not limited to, community or school outdoor
beautification, campus betterment, and teacher, peer, or youth assistance programs. (Education

Code 48900.6)

This community service option is not available for a student who has been suspended, pending
expulsion, pursuant to Education Code 48915. However, if the recommended expulsion is not
implemented or the expulsion itself is suspended, then a student may be required to perform
community service for the resulting suspension. (Education Code 48900.6)

Notice to Parents/Guardians and Students
At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify

parents/guardians, in writing, about the availability of district rules related to discipline.
(Education Code 35291, 48980)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide written notice of the rules related to discipline
to transfer students at the time of their enrollment in the district.

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, California

-270-



BP 5144.1 (a)

BP 5144.1 Students
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in
an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and
well-being, and promotes their learning and development. The Board shall develop rules and
regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary
processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension
and/or expulsion.

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

To correct the behavior of any student who is subject to discipline, the State
Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall, to the extent allowed by law, first use alternative
disciplinary strategies specified in AR 5144 - Discipline. (Education Code 48900.5)

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion also shall be used with students who are truant, tardy, or
otherwise absent from assigned school activities.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

Except for single acts of a grave nature or offenses for which suspension or expulsion is required
by law, suspension or expulsion shall be used only when other means of correction have failed to
bring about proper conduct or the student's presence causes a continuing danger to
himself/herself or others.

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending,
and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be those specified in law and administrative

regulation.

-271-



BP 5144.1 (b)

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly,
consistently, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Zero Tolerance

The Board supports a zero tolerance approach to serious offenses in accordance with state and
federal law. This approach makes the removal of potentially dangerous students from the
classroom a top priority and ensures the standardized treatment of all students. Staff shall
immediately report to the Superintendent or designee any incidence of offenses specified in law,
Board policy, and administrative regulation as cause for suspension or expulsion.

Student Due Process

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and
expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law. The State
Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall comply with procedures for notices and appeals
as specified in administrative regulation and/or law. (Education Code 4891 1,48915, 48915.5)

(cf- 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Individuals with Disabilities))

The Board recognizes that students who are suspended from school often have no supervision or
guidance during the school hours when they are off campus and may fall behind in the
coursework. The Board believes that, in many cases, it would be better to manage the student's
behavior by keeping the student at school and providing him/her with supervision that is
separated from the regular classroom.

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall establish a supervised classroom
suspension program which meets the requirements of law for students suspended for any of the
reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, who pose no imminent danger or
threat at school, and for whom an expulsion action has not been initiated. .

The State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall examine alternatives to off-campus
suspension and may establish a suspension program which involves progressive discipline during
the school day on campus; use of conferences between staff, parents/ guardians and students;
detention; student study teams or other assessment-related teams; and/or referral to school
support services staff. The use of such alternatives does not preclude off-campus suspensions.

Required Parental Attendance

The Board believes that parental involvement plays an important role in the resolution of
classroom behavior problems. The Board expects that teachers will communicate with
parents/guardians when behavior problems arise.

-272-



BP 5144.1 (c)

Whenever a student is suspended from class by a teacher because he/she committed an obscene -
act, engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity, disrupted school activities, or otherwise willfully
defied valid staff authority, the teacher of the class from which the student was removed may
provide that the student's parent/guardian attend a portion of a school day in the class from which
the student was suspended. (Education Code 48900.1)

Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance

Teachers should reserve the option of required parental attendance for cases in which they have
determined that it is the best strategy to promote positive interaction between the teacher and the
student and his/her parents/guardians and to improve the student's behavior.

Any teacher requiring parental attendance pursuant to this policy shall apply the policy
uniformly to all students within the classroom. (Education Code 48900.1)

When a teacher requires parental attendance, the principal shall send a written notice to the
parent/guardian stating that his/her attendance is required pursuant to law. (Education Code

48900.1)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

A parent/guardian who has received a written notice shall attend class as specified in the notice.
After completing the classroom visit and before leaving school premises, the parent/guardian
also shall meet with the principal or designee. (Education Code 48900.1)

At the meeting with the student's parent/guardian, the principal or designee shall explain the
district's and school's discipline policies, including the disciplinary strategies that may be used to
achieve proper student conduct.

When a parent/guardian does not respond to the request to attend school, the principal or
designee shall contact him/her by telephone, mail, or other method that maintains the
confidentiality of the student's records.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

District regulations and school-site rules for student discipline shall include procedures for
implementing parental attendance requirements. Parents/guardians shall be notified of this
policy prior to its implementation. (Education Code 48900.1)

Before requiring parental attendance, the teacher shall make reasonable efforts to have the
parent/guardian visit the class voluntarily. The teacher also may inform the parent/ guardian
about available resources and parent education opportunities. The principal or designee shall
contact a parent/guardian who does not respond to the request to attend school. The Board
recognizes that parent/guardian compliance with this policy may be delayed, modified, or

-273-



BP 5144.1 (d)

prevented for reasons such as serious iI]ness/injury/disabi]ity, absence from town, or inability to
get release time from work.

Supervised Suspension Classroom

To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of
the reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent
danger or threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been Initiated,
the Superintendent or designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom program which
meets the requirements of law.

Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about
proper conduct. (Education Code 48900.5)

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order

On a case-by-case basis, the enforcement of an expulsion order may be suspended by the Board
pursuant to the requirements of law.

Monitoring the Use of Suspension and Expulsion

At the end of each school year, the State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall present
a report to the Board regarding the use of suspension and/or expulsion in district schools. The
report shall include, but is not limited to, outcome data which the district is required by law to
collect and data related to the effect of suspension and/or expulsion on the district's minority
student populations or groupings.

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

212.5 Sexual harassment

233 Hate violence

1981 Enrollment of students in community school

17292.5 Program for expelled students

32261 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
35145 Open board meetings

35146 Closed sessions (regarding suspensions)

35291 Rules (for government and discipline of schools)
35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline
48645.5 Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system
48660-48667 Community day schools

48853.5 Foster youth

-274-



BP 5144.1 (e)

48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion
48950 Speech and other communication
48980 Parental notifications

49073-49079 Privacy of student records
CIVIL CODE

47 Privileged communication

48.8 Defamation liability

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
1985-1997 Subpoenas; means of production
GOVERNMENT CODE

11455.20 Contempt

54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

11014.5 Drug paraphernalia

11053-11058 Standards and schedules
LABOR CODE

230.7 Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on
behalf of a child

PENAL CODE

31 Principal of a crime, defined

240 Assault defined

241.2 Assault fines

242 Battery defined

243.2 Battery on school property

243.4 Sexual battery

245 Assault with deadly weapon

245.6 Hazing

261 Rape defined

266¢c Unlawful sexual intercourse

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15, 2013 King City, California

-275-



AR 5144.1 (a)

AR Students
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Definitions

Suspension from school means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment
purposes. However, suspension does not mean any of the following: (Education Code 48925)

1. Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student
will receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing Board for
students of the same grade level.

2. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students.

3. Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the
remainder of the class period without sending the student to the principal or desi gnee as provided
in Education Code 48910. Removal from a particular class shall not occur more than once

every five school days.

Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control, or the
general supervision, of school personnel. (Education Code 48925)

Day means a calendar day unless otherwise specifically provided. (Education Code 48925)

School day means a day upon which the schools of the district are in session or weekdays during
the summer recess. (Education Code 48925)

Student includes a student's parent/guardian or legal counsel. (Education Code 48925)

Principal's designee means one or more administrators or, if there is not a second administrator at
one school site, a certificated person specifically designated by the principal, in writing, to assist
with disciplinary procedures. Only one such person may be designated at any time as the
principal's primary designee and only one such person may be designated as secondary designee
for the school year. The names of such persons shall be on file in the principal's office.
(Education Code 48911)

School property, for the purposes described in Education Code 48900, includes, but is not
limited to, electronic files and databases. (Education Code 48900(u))

Notice of Regulations

At the beginning of each school year, the principal of each school shall ensure that all students
and parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related to discipline, including

-276-



AR 5144.1 (b)
suspension and expulsion. (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion

Any student, including a student with disabilities, may be subject to suspension or expulsion
when it 1s determined that he/she:

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person or
willfully used force or violence upon another person, except in self-defense. (Education Code

48900(a))

A student who aids or abets the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another
person, as defined in Penal Code 31, may be suspended, but not expelled. However, such a
student may be suspended or expelled pursuant to Education Code 48900(a) when he/she has
been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider or abettor, a crime of physical
violence in which the victim suffered great or serious bodily injury. (Education Code 48900(t))

2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous
object, unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained
written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the principal or
designee's concurrence. (Education Code 48900(b))

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of, any
controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or
intoxicant of any kind. (Education Code 48900(c))

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

4, Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in
Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and then
sold, delivered, or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or material and
represented same as such controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant. (Education

Code 48900(d))

5. Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. (Education Code 48900(e))

-277-



AR 5144.1 (¢)

6. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property. (Education
Code 48900(f)) ‘

7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. (Education Code
48900(g))

8. Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including,
but not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff,
chew packets, and betel, except that this restriction shall not prohibit a student from using or
possessing his/her own prescription products. (Education Code 48900(h))

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vul ganity. (Education
Code 48900(i))

10. Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphemalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5. (Education Code 48900(3))

11. Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of
supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in
the performance of their duties. (Education Code 48900(k))

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

12. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. (Education Code
48900(1))

13. Possessed an imitation firearm. (Education Code 48900(m))

Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a
firearm. (Education Code 48900(m))

14. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c¢,
286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243 4.
(Education Code 48900(n))

15. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in
a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness

and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness. (Education Code 48900(0))

16. Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug
Soma. (Education Code 48900(p))

-278-



AR 5144.1 (d)

17. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing. (Education Code 48900(q))

Hazing means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution,
which 1s likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in
physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective student. Hazing does not include
athletic events or school-sanctioned events.

18. Engaged in an act of bullying. (Education Code 48900(r))

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, directed toward one or more
students that has or can reasonably be predicted to have the effect of placing a reasonable student
in fear of harm to himself/herself or his/her property; cause the student to experience a
substantially detrimental effect on his/her physical or mental health; or cause the student to
experience substantial interferences with his/her academic performance or ability to participate
in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Bullying shall include any act of sexual harassment, hate violence, or harassment, threat, or
intimidation, as defined in Education Code 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4 (items #20-22 below),
that has any of the effects described above on a reasonable student.

Electronic act means the transmission of a communication, including, but not limited to, a
message, text, sound, image, or post on a social network Internet web site, by means of an
electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless
communication device, computer, or pager. A post on a social network Internet web site shall
include, but is not limited to, the posting or creation of a burn page or the creation of a credible
impersonation or false profile for the purpose of causing a reasonable student any of the effects
of bullying described above.

Reasonable student means a student, including, but not limited to, a student who has been
identified as a student with a disability, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in
conduct for a person of his/her age, or for a person of his/her age with his/her disability.
(Education Code 48900(r))

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

19. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. (Education Code
48900.7)

-279-



AR 5144.1 (e)

A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully threatens to
commit a crime which will result in death or great bodily injury to another person or property
damage in excess of $1,000, with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat,
even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out. (Education Code 48900.7)

A student in grades 9-12 is also subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it
1s determined that he/she:

20. Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5. (Education Code
48900.2)

Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a reasonable

person of the same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have a negative

impact upon the victim's academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
educational environment. (Education Code 212.5, 48900.2)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

21. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence
as defined in Education Code 233. (Education Code 48900.3)

Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75. Such acts
include injuring or intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim's civil rights, or
damaging a victim's property because of the victim's race, ethnicity, religion, nationality,
disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation; a perception of the
presence of any of those characteristics in the victim; or the victim's association with a person or
group with one or more of those actual or perceived characteristics. (Education Code 233; Penal

Code 422.55)

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

22. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or
students that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected effect
of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the ri ghts of

school personnel or students by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment.
(Education Code 48900.4)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
A student may be suspended or expelled for any of the acts listed above if the act is related to
school activity or school attendance occurring at any district school or within any other school

district, at any time, including, but not limited to, the following: (Education Code 48900)

1. While on school grounds

-280-



AR 5144.1 (f)

2. While going to or coming from school
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)

3. | During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus
(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity
Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance

A teacher may remove any student from his/her class for the remainder of the day and the
following day for any act listed in "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above. (Education

Code 48910)

When removing a student from his/her class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to
the principal or designee and send the student to the principal or designee for appropriate action.
If that action requires the continuing presence of the student at school, he/she shall be
appropriately supervised during the class periods from which he/she has been removed.

(Education Code 48910)

As soon as possible, the teacher shall ask the student's parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher
conference regarding the removal. A counselor or psychologist may attend the conference if it
1s practicable, and a school administrator shall attend if either the parent/guardian or teacher so
requests. (Education Code 48910)

A student removed from class shall not be returned to class during the period of removal without
the approval of the teacher of the class and the principal. (Education Code 4891 0)

A student removed from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of
removal. However, if a student is assigned to more than one class per day, he/she may be
placed in any other regular classes except those held at the same time as the class from which the
student was removed. (Education Code 48910)

The teacher of any class from which a student is removed may require the student to complete
any assignments and tests missed during the removal. (Education Code 48913)

Pursuant to Board policy, a teacher may require the parent/guardian of a student whom the
teacher has removed to attend a portion of a school day in his/her child's classroom. When a
teacher makes this request, the principal shall send the parent/guardian a written notice that the
parent/guardian's attendance is requested pursuant to law. (Education Code 48900.1)

-281-



AR 5144.1 (g)

The notice shall specify that the attendance may be on either the date the student is scheduled to
return to class or within one week thereafter.

This notice shall also:

1. Inform the parent/guardian when his/her presence is expected and by what means he/she
may arrange an alternate date

2. State that if the parent/guardian does not have a means of transportation to school, he/she
may ride the school bus with the student

3. Ask the parent/guardian to meet with the principal after the visit and before leaving
school, as required by Education Code 48900.1

Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or Designee

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student for any of the acts listed in
"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion” above. A student may be suspended only when the
Superintendent or principal has determined that other means of correction have failed to bring
about proper conduct in the student. (Education Code 48900.5)

However, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may impose a suspension upon a first
offense if he/she determines that the student violated items #1-5 listed in "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion" above or if the student's presence causes a danger to persons or

property or threatens to disrupt the instructional process. (Education Code 48900.5)

In addition, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall immediately suspend any student
found at school or at a school activity to be: (Education Code 48915)

1. Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm,
unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated
school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence

2. Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g)

3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as
defined in item #14 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion” above

5. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921
The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student from school for not more than

five consecutive school days unless the suspension is extended pending expulsion. (Education

-282-



AR 5144.1 (h)

Code 48911)

A student may be suspended from school for not more than 20 school days in any school year
unless, for purposes of adjustment, the student enrolls in or is transferred to another regular
school, an opportunity school, or continuation school or class, in which case suspension shall not
exceed 30 days in any school year. However, this restriction on the number of days of
suspension does not apply when the suspension is extended pending an expulsion. (Education
Code 48903, 48911, 48912)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

The district may count suspensions that occur while a student is enrolled in another school
district toward the maximum number of days for which the student may be suspended in any
school year. (Education Code 48903)

Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:

1. Informal Conference: Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference
conducted by the Superintendent, principal, or designee with the student and, whenever
practicable, the teacher, supervisor, or school employee who referred the student to the principal.
At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action,
presented with the evidence against him/her, and given the opportunity to present his/her version
and evidence in support of his/her defense. (Education Code 48911)

This conference may be omitted if the Superintendent, principal, or designee determines
that an emergency situation exists involving a clear and present danger to the lives, safety, or
health of students or school personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both
the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student's right to return to school for the
purpose of the conference. The conference shall be held within two school days, unless the
student waives his/her right to it or is physically unable to attend for any reason. In such a case,
the conference shall be held as soon as the student is physically able to return to school.

(Education Code 48911)

2. Administrative Actions: All requests for student suspension are to be processed by the
principal or designee. A school employee shall report the suspension, mncluding the name of the
student and the cause for the suspension, to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code

48911)

3. Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, a school employee shall
make a reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a
student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension.
(Education Code 48911)

This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student. (Education Code

-283-



AR 5144.1 (i)

48900.8)

In addition, the notice may state the date and time when the student may return to school.
If school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the
suspension, the notice may add that state law requires the parent/guardian to respond to such
requests without delay.

4. Parent/Guardian Conference: Whenever a student is suspended, school officials may
meet with the parent/guardian to discuss the cause(s) and duration of the suspension, the school
policy involved, and any other pertinent matter. (Education Code 48914)

While the parent/guardian is required to respond without delay to a request for a
conference about his/her child's behavior, no penalties may be imposed on the student for the -
failure of the parent/guardian to attend such a conference. - The student may not be denied
readmission solely because the parent/guardian failed to attend the conference. (Education

Code 48911)

5. Extension of Suspension: If the Board is considering the expulsion of a suspended
student from any school or the suspension of a student for the balance of the semester from
continuation school, the Superintendent or designee may, in writing, extend the suspension until
such time as the Board has made a decision. (Education Code 48911)

Any extension of the original period of suspension shall be preceded by notice of such
extension with an offer to hold a conference concerning the extension, giving the student an
opportunity to be heard. This conference may be held in conjunction with a meeting requested
by the student or parent/guardian to challenge the original suspension. Extension of the
suspension may be made only if the Superintendent or designee determines, following a meeting
in which the student and the student's parent/guardian were invited to participate, that the
student's presence at the school or at an alternative school would endanger persons or property or
threaten to disrupt the instructional process. (Education Code 48911)

If the student involved is a foster youth, the Superintendent or desi gnee shall notify the district
liaison for foster youth of the need to invite the student's attorney and a representative of the
appropriate county child welfare agency to attend the meeting. (Education Code 48853.5,
48911, 48918.1)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
In addition to suspending a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may provide

services or require the student to participate in an alternative disciplinary program designed to
correct his/her behavior and keep himv/her in school.

-284-



AR 5144.1 (j)

Suspension by the Board

The Board may suspend a student for any of the acts listed in "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion” above and within the limits specified in "Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or
Designee" above. (Education Code 48912)

The Board may suspend a student enrolled in a continuation school or class for a period not
longer than the remainder of the semester if any of the acts listed in "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion" occurred. The suspension shall meet the requirements of Education Code 48915.

(Education Code 48912.5)

When the Board is considering a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action (except

expulsion) against any student, it shall hold closed sessions if a public hearing would lead to

disclosure of information violating a student's right to privacy under Education Code
49073-49079. (Education Code 35146, 48912)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The Board shall provide the student and his/her parent/guardian with written notice of the closed
session by registered or certified mail or personal service. Upon receiving this notice, the
student or parent/guardian may request a public meeting, and this request shall be granted if
made in writing within 48 hours after receipt of the Board's notice. However, any discussion
that conflicts with any other student's right to privacy still shall be held in closed session.
(Education Code 35146, 48912)

Supervised Suspension Classroom

Students for whom an expulsion action has not been initiated and who pose no imminent danger
or threat to the school, students, or staff may be assigned to a supervised suspension classroom in
a separate classroom, building, or site for the entire period of suspension. The following
conditions shall apply: (Education Code 48911.1)

1. The supervised suspension classroom shall be staffed in accordance with law.
2. The student shall have access to appropriate counseling services.
3. The supervised suspension classroom shall promote completion of schoolwork and tests

missed by the student during the suspension.

4. Each student shall be responsible for contacting his/her teacher(s) to receive assignments
to be completed in the supervised suspension classroom. The teacher(s) shall provide all
assignments and tests that the student will miss while suspended. If no such work is assigned,
the person supervising the suspension classroom shall assign schoolwork.

-285-



AR 5144.1 (k)

At the time a student is assigned to a supervised suspension classroom, the principal or designee
shall notify the student's parent/guardian in person or by telephone. When the assignment is for
longer than one class period, this notification shall be made in writing. (Education Code

48911.1)
Authority to Expel
A student may be expelled only by the Board. (Education Code 48918(j))

The Board shall expel, as required by law, any student found to have committed any offense
listed below under "Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion." (Education Code

48915)

For all other grounds listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion," the Board
shall order a student expelled upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, principal, or
designee, only if the Board makes a finding of either or both of the following: (Education Code

48915(b) and (e))

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about
proper conduct

2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing
danger to the physical safety of the student or others

Mandatory Recommendation for Expulsion
Unless the Superintendent, principal, or designee finds that expulsion is inappropriate due to

particular circumstances, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall recommend a student's
expulsion for any of the following acts: (Education Code 48915(a))

1. - Causing serious physical injury to anotherangerous object of no reasonable use to the
student
3. Unlawful possession of any controlled substance, as listed in Health and Safety Code

11053-11058, except for the first offense for the possession of not more than one ounce of
marijuana, other than concentrated cannabis

4. Robbery or extortion
5. Assault or battery, as defined in Penal Code 240 and 242, upon any school employee
In determining whether or not to recommend the expulsion of a student, the State

Administrator/Superintendent, principal, or designee shall act as quickly as possible to ensure
that the student does not lose instructional time. (Education Code 48915)

-286-



AR 5144.1 (1)

Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall recommend that the Board expel any student
found at school or at a school activity to be: (Education Code 48915(c))

1. Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm,
unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a certificated
school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence

However, possession of an imitation firearm, as defined in Education Code 48900(m), shall not
be regarded as an offense requiring a mandatory recommendation for expulsion and mandatory
expulsion. ' ‘

2. Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g) at another person
3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as
defined in item #14 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above

5. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

Upon finding that the student committed any of the above acts, the Board shall expel the student.
(Education Code 48915)

Student's Right to Expulsion Hearing

Any student recommended for expulsion shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether
he/she should be expelled. The hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the
Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that the student has committed one of the acts
listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion." (Education Code 4891 8(a))

The student is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing for a period of not
more than 30 calendar days. The request for postponement shall be in writing. Any subsequent
postponement may be granted at the Board's discretion. (Education Code 48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical during the regular school year to comply with these time
requirements for conducting an expulsion hearing, the Superintendent or desi gnee may, for good
cause, extend the time period by an additional five school days. Reasons for the extension shall
be included as a part of the record when the expulsion hearing is held. (Education Code

48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical to comply with the time requirements of the expulsion hearing

-287-



AR 5144.1 (m)

due to a summer recess of Board meetings of more than two weeks, the days during the recess
shall not be counted as school days. The days not counted during the recess may not exceed 20
school days, as defined in Education Code 48925. Unless the student requests in writing that
the expulsion hearing be postponed, the hearing shall be held not later than 20 calendar days
prior to the first day of the next school year. (Education Code 48918(a))

Once the hearing starts, all matters shall be pursued with reasonable diligence and concluded
without unnecessary delay. (Education Code 48918(a))

After a determination that one of the grounds listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion" has occurred, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall offer the student and
his/her parent/guardian the option to waive a hearing and stipulate to the expulsion. The
stipulation agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by the student and his/her

parent/guardian.
Rights of Complaining Witness

An expulsion hearing involving allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery may be postponed
for one school day in order to accommodate the special physical, mental, or emotional needs of a
student who is the complaining witness. (Education Code 48918.5)

~ Whenever the Superintendent or desi gnee recommends an expulsion hearing that addresses
allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery, he/she shall give the complaining witness a copy
of the district's suspension and expulsion policy and regulation and shall advise the witness of
his/her nght to:  (Education Code 48918.5)

1. Recerve five days' notice of his/her scheduled testimony at the hearing

2. Have up to two adult support persons of his/her choosing present at the hearing at the
time he/she testifies

3. Have a closed hearing during the time he/she testifies
Whenever any allegation of sexual assault or sexual battery is made, the Superintendent or
designee shall immediately advise complaining witnesses and accused students to refrain from

personal or telephone contact with each other during the time when an expulsion process is
pending. (Education Code 48918.5)

Written Notice of the Expulsion Hearing
Written notice of the expulsion hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's

parent/guardian at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing. The notice shall
include: (Education Code 48900.8, 48918(b))

-288-



AR 5144.1 (n)

1. The date and place of the hearing.

2. A statement of the specific facts, charges, and offense upon which the proposed
expulsion 1s based.

3. A copy of district disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation.

4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation, pursuant to Education Code
48915.1, to provide information about the student's status in the district to any other district in
which the student seeks enrollment. This obligation applies when a student is expelled for acts
other than those described in Education Code 48915(a) or (c).

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

5. The opportunity for the student or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or be
represented by legal counsel or by a nonattorney advisor.

Legal counsel means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the practice of law in
California and is an active member of the State Bar of California.

Nonattorney advisor means an individual who is not an attorney or lawyer, but who is
familiar with the facts of the case and has been selected by the student or student's
parent/guardian to provide assistance at the hearing.

6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing.
7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing.
8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary

evidence on the student's behalf, including witnesses.

At least 10 days prior to a hearing to determine if a student who is a foster youth as defined
under Education Code 48853.5 should be expelled for an offense not requiring a mandatory
recommendation for expulsion, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's attorney
and a representative of an appropriate county child welfare agency. If the hearing is pursuant to
an offense requiring a mandatory expulsion recommendation, the Superintendent or designee
may provide the same notification. The notice shall be provided by the most cost-effective
method possible, including by email or a telephone call. (Education Code 48918, 1)

Conduct of Expulsion Hearing

1. Closed Session: Notwithstanding the provisions of Government Code 54953 and
Education Code 35145, the Board shall conduct a hearing to consider the expulsion of the
student in a session closed to the public unless the student requests in writing at least five days

-289-



AR 5144.1 (0)

prior to the hearing that the hearing be a public meeting. If such a request is made, the meeting
shall be public unless another student's privacy rights would be violated. (Education Code

48918(c))

Whether the expulsion hearing is held in closed or public session, the Board may meet in
closed session to deliberate and determine whether or not the student should be expelled. If the
Board admits any other person to this closed session, the parent/guardian, the student, and the
counsel of the student also shall be allowed to attend the closed session. (Education Code

48918(c))

If a hearing that involves a charge of sexual assault or sexual battery is to be conducted in
public, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his/her testimony heard in closed
session when testifying in public would threaten serious psychological harm to the witness and
when there are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm, including, but not limited
to, videotaped deposition or contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the
hearing room by closed-circuit television. (Education Code 48918(c))

2. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by
any means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written
transcription of the proceedings can be made. (Education Code 48918(g))

3. Subpoenas: Before commencing a student expulsion hearing, the Board may issue
subpoenas, at the request of either the student or the Superintendent or designee, for the personal
appearance at the hearing of any person who actually witnessed the action that gave rise to the
recommendation for expulsion. After the hearing has commenced, the Board or the hearin g

officer or administrative panel may issue such subpoenas at the request of the student or the
County Superintendent of Schools or designee. All subpoenas shall be issued in accordance
with the Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1985.2 and enforced in accordance with Government

Code 11455.20. (Education Code 48918(3))

Any objection raised by the student or the Superintendent or designee to the issuance of
subpoenas may be considered by the Board in closed session, or in open session if so requested
by the student, before the meeting. The Board's decision in response to such an objection shall
be final and binding. (Education Code 48918(i))

If the Board determines, or if the hearing officer or administrative panel finds and
submits to the Board, that a witness would be subject to unreasonable risk of harm by testifying
at the hearing, a subpoena shall not be issued to compel the personal attendance of that witness at
the hearing. However, that witness may be compelled to testify by means of a sworn
declaration as described in item #4 below. (Education Code 48918(i))

-290-



AR 5144.1 (p)

4. Presentation of Evidence: Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the expulsion
hearing, but relevant evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of
evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. The decision of
the Board to expel shall be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed any of
the acts pursuant to Education Code 48900 and listed in "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion" above. (Education Code 48918(h))

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While no finding
shall be based solely on hearsay, sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from
witnesses whose disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an
unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm. (Education Code 48918(f))

In cases where a search of a student's person or property has occurred, evidence
describing the reasonableness of the search shall be included in the hearing record.

5. Testimony by Complaining Witnesses: The following procedures shall be observed
when hearings involve allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery by a student: (Education
Code 48918, 48918.5)

a. Any complaining witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to testify.

b. Any complaining witness shall be entitled to have up to two adult support persons,
including, but not limited to, a parent/guardian or legal counsel, present during his/her testimony.

C. Before a complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that the
hearing i1s confidential. -

d. The person presiding over the hearing may remove a support person whom he/she. finds is
disrupting the hearing. :
€. If one or both support persons are also witnesses, the hearing shall be conducted in

accordance with Penal Code 868.5.

f. Evidence of specific instances of prior sexual conduct of a complaining witness shall be
presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard unless the person conducting the hearing
determines that extraordinary circumstances require the evidence to be heard. Before such a
determination is made, the complaining witness shall be given notice and an opportunity to
oppose the introduction of this evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of this evidence,
the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent/guardian, legal counsel, or
other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of a
complaining witness shall not be admissible for any purpose.

-291-



AR 5144.1 (q)

g. In order to facilitate a free and accurate statement of the experiences of the complaining
witness and to prevent discouragement of complaints, the district shall provide a nonthreatening
environment.

(1) The district shall provide a room separate from the hearing room for the use of the
complaining witness before and during breaks in testimony.

2 At the discretion of the person conducting the hearing, the complaining witness shall be
allowed reasonable periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which
he/she may leave the hearing room.

(3) The person conducting the hearing may:

(a) Arrange the seating within the hearing room so as to facilitate a less intimidating
environment for the complaining witness

) Limit the time for taking the testimony of a complaining witness to the hours
he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other
hours '

(c) Permit one of the support persons to accompany the complaining witness to the
witness stand

6. Decision: The Board's decision as to whether to expel a student shall be made within 40
school days after the student is removed from his/her school of attendance, unless the student
requests in writing that the decision be postponed. (Education Code 48918(a))

Alternative Expulsion Hearing: Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel

Instead of conducting an expulsion hearing itself, the Board may contract with the county
hearing officer or with the Office of Administrative Hearings of the State of California for a
hearing officer. Alternatively, the Board may appoint an impartial administrative panel
composed of three or more certificated personnel, none of whom shall be members of the Board
or on the staff of the school in which the student is enrolled. (Education Code 48918(d))

A hearing conducted by the hearing officer or administrative panel shall conform to the same
procedures applicable to a hearing conducted by the Board as specified above in "Conduct of
Expulsion Hearing," including the requirement to issue its decision within 40 school days of the
student's removal from school, unless the student requests that the decision be postponed.
(Education Code 48918(a) and (d))

The hearing officer or administrative pane] shall, within three school days after the hearing,

determine whether to recommend expulsion of the student to the Board. If expulsion is not
recommended, the expulsion proceeding shall be terminated and the student shall be immediately

-292-



AR 5144.1 (1)

reinstated. The Superintendent or designee shall place the student in a classroom instructional
program, any other instructional program, a rehabilitation program, or any combination of these
programs after consulting with district staff, including the student's teachers, and with the
student's parent/guardian. The decision to not recommend expulsion shall be final. (Education

Code 48918(e))

If expulsion is recommended, findings of fact in support of the recommendation shall be
prepared and submitted to the Board. All findings of fact and recommendations shall be based
solely on the evidence presented at the hearing. The Board may accept the recommendation
based either upon a review of the findings of fact and recommendations submitted or upon the
results of any supplementary hearing the Board may order. (Education Code 4891 8(9))

In accordance with Board policy, the hearing officer or administrative panel may recommend
that the Board suspend the enforcement of the expulsion for a period of one year. (Education
Code 48917, 48918)

Final Action by the Board

Whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in closed or public session by the Board, a hearing
officer, or an administrative panel, the final action to expel shall be taken by the Board at a
public meeting. (Education Code 48918(j))

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

If the Board conducts the hearing and reaches a decision not to expel, this decision shall be final
and the student shall be reinstated immediately.

Upon ordering an expulsion, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for
readmission to a school within the district. For a student expelled for any act listed under
"Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion" above, this date shall be one year from
the date the expulsion occurred, except that the Board may set an earlier date on a case-by-case
basis. For a student expelled for other acts, this date shall be no later than the last day of the
semester following the semester in which the expulsion occurred. If an expulsion is ordered
during summer session or the intersession period of a year-round program, the Board shall set a
date when the student shall be reviewed for readmission not later than the last day of the
semester following the summer session or intersession period in which the expulsion occurred.
(Education Code 48916)

At the time of the expulsion order, the Board shall recommend a plan for the student's
rehabilitation, which may include: (Education Code 4891 6)

1. Periodic review, as well as assessment at the time of review, for readmission

2. Recommendations for improved academic performance, tutoring, special education

-293-



AR 5144.1 (s)

assessments, job training, counseling, employment, community service, or other rehabilitative
programs

With parent/guardian consent, students who have been expelled for reasons relating to controlled
substances or alcohol may be required to enroll in a county-sponsored drug rehabilitation
program before returning to school. (Education Code 48916.5)

Written Notice to Expel

The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the student or
parent/guardian. This notice shall include the following:

1. The specific offense committed by the student for any of the causes for
suspension or expulsion listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion”
(Education Code 48900.8)

2. The fact that a description of readmission procedures will be made available to
the student and his/her parent/gnardian (Education Code 48916)

3. Notice of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board of Education
(Education Code 48918)

4. Notice of the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student
during the time of expulsion (Education Code 48918)

5. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district

in which the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district,
pursuant to Education Code 48915.1 (Education Code 48918)

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order

In accordance with Board policy, when deciding whether to suspend the enforcement of an

expulsion order, the Board shall take into account the following criteria:

1. The student's pattern of behavior
2. The seriousness of the misconduct
3. The student's attitude toward the misconduct and his/her willingness to follow a

rehabilitation program

-294-



AR 5144.1 (t)

The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion shall be govemed by the following:

1. The Board may, as a condition of the suspension of enforcement, assign the student to a
school, class, or program appropriate for the student's rehabilitation. This rehabilitation
program may provide for the involvement of the student's parent/guardian in the student's
education. However, a parent/guardian’s refusal to participate in the rehabilitation program shall
not be considered in the Board's determination as to whether the student has satisfactorily
completed the rehabilitation program. (Education Code 4891 7)

2. During the period when enforcement of the expulsion order is suspended, the student
shall be on probationary status. (Education Code 48917)

3. The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order may be revoked by the Board if
the student commits any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above
or violates any of the district's rules and regulations governing student conduct. (Education
Code 48917)

4. When the suspension of enforcement of an expulsion order is revoked, a student may be
expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order. (Education Code 4891 7)

5. Upon satisfactory completion of the rehabilitation assignment, the Board shall reinstate
the student in a district school. Upon reinstatement, the Board may order the expunging of any
or all records of the expulsion proceedings. (Education Code 48917)

6. The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of any decision to suspend the
enforcement of an expulsion order during a period of probation to the student or parent/guardian.
The notice shall inform the parent/guardian of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County
Board, the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student duning the period of
expulsion, and the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which
the student seeks to enroll of his/her status with the expelling district, pursuant to Education
Code 48915.1(b). (Education Code 48918(j))

7. Suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order shall not affect the time period and

requirements for the filing of an appeal of the expulsion order with the County Board.
(Education Code 48917)

Right to Appeal

The student or parent/guardian is entitled to file an appeal of the Board's decision with the
County Board. The appeal must be filed within 30 days of the Board's decision to expel, even if
the expulsion order is suspended and the student is placed on probation. (Education Code
48919)

-295-



AR 5144.1 (u)

The student shall submit a written request for a copy of the written transcripts and supporting
documents from the district simultaneously with the filing of the notice of appeal with the
County Board. The district shall provide the student with these documents within 10 school
days following the student's written request. (Education Code 48919)

Notification to Law Enforcement Authorities

Prior to the suspension or expulsion of any student, the principal or designee shall notify
appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities of any student acts of assault which may
have violated Penal Code 245. (Education Code 48902)

The principal or designee also shall notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities
of any student acts which may involve the possession or sale of narcotics or of a controlled
substance. In addition, law enforcement authorities shall be notified regarding any acts by
students regarding the possession, sale, or furnishment of firearms, explosives, or other
dangerous weapons in violation of Education Code 48915(c)(1) or (5) or Penal Code 626.9 and
626.10. (Education Code 48902)

Within one school day after a student's suspension or expulsion, the principal or designee shall
notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities, by telephone or other appropriate
means, of any student acts which may violate Education Code 48900(c) or (d), relating to the
possession, use, offering, or sale of controlled substances, alcohol, or intoxicants of any kind.

(Education Code 48902)
Post-Expulsion Placements

The Board shall refer expelled students to a program of study that is: (Education Code 48915,
. 48915.01)

1. Appropriately prepared to accommodate students who exhibit discipline problems

2. Not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at any
elementary school, unless the program is offered at a community day school established at such a

site
3. Not housed at the school site attended by the student at the time of suspension

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

When the placement described above is not available and when the County Superintendent so
certifies, students expelled for acts described in items #6-13 and #20-22 under "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion” above may be referred to a program of study that is provided at
another comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at an elementary school.

-296-



AR 5144.1 (v)

(Education Code 48915)

The program for a student expelled from any of grades K-6 shall not be combined or merged
with programs offered to students in any of grades 7-12. (Education Code 48916.1)

Readmission After Expuision
Readmission procedures shall be as follows:

1. On the date set by the Board when it ordered the expulsion, the district shall consider
readmission of the student. (Education Code 48916) '

2. The Superintendent or designee shall hold a conference with the parent/guardian and the
student. At the conference the student's rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed and the
Superintendent or designee shall verify that the provisions of this plan have been met. School
regulations shall be reviewed and the student and parent/guardian shall be asked to indicate in
~writing their willingness to comply with these regulations.

3. The Superintendent or designee shall transmit to the Board his/her recommendation
regarding readmission. The Board shall consider this recommendation in closed session if
mformation would be disclosed in violation of Education Code 49073-49079. If a written
request for open session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, it shall be

honored.

4. If the readmission is granted, the Superintendent or desi gnee shall notify the student and
parent/guardian, by registered mail, of the Board's decision regarding readmission.

5. The Board‘may deny readmission only if it finds that the student has not satisfied the
conditions of the rehabilitation plan or that the student continues to pose a danger to campus
safety or to other district students or employees. (Education Code 4891 6)

6. If the Board denies the readmission of a student, the Board shall determine either to
continue the student's placement in the alternative educational program initially selected or to
place the student in another program that serves expelled students, including placement in a
county community school. (Education Code 48916)

7. The Board shall provide written notice to the expelled student and parent/guardian
describing the reasons for denying readmittance into the regular program. This notice shall
indicate the Board's determination of the educational program which the Board has chosen. The
student shall enroll in that program unless the parent/guardian chooses to enroll the student in
another school district. (Education Code 48916)

Maintenance of Records

-297-



AR 5144.1 (w)

The district shall maintain a record of each suspension and expulsion, including its specific
cause(s). (Education Code 48900.8)

Expulsion records of any student shall be maintained in the student's mandatory interim record,
and sent to any school in which the student subsequently enrolls upon written request by that
school. (Education Code 48918(k))

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
The Superintendent or designee shall, within five working days, honor any other district's request
for information about an expulsion from this district. (Education Code 4891 5.1)
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

Outcome Data

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following data: (Education Code 48900.8,
48916.1)

1. The number of students recommended for expulsion

2. The spf:ciﬁc grounds for each recommended expulsion

3. Whether the student was subsequently expelled

4. Whether the expulsion order was suspended

5. The type of referral made after the expulsion

6. The disposition of the student after the end of the expulsion period

In addition, the State Administrator/Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate student data
collected based on race, color, nationality, religion, disability, and other categories protected
from discrimination under the law.

(3/10 3/12) 7/12

Regulation =~ SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, CA

-298-



BP 5145.6 (a)

BP 5145.6 Students
Parental Notifications

The Governing Board recognizes that notifications are essential to effective communication
between the school and the home. The Superintendent or desi gnee shall send students and
parents/guardians all notifications required by law, including notifications about their legal
rights, and any other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and

mvolvement.

(cf- 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
"(¢f- 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The notice required pursuant to Education Code 48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each
academic year and may be provided either by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested
by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used to communicate with
parents/guardians in writing. (Education Code 48981, 48982)

If any activity specified in Education Code 48980 will be undertaken by any school during the
forthcoming school term, the notice shall state that fact and the approximate date on which any
such activity will occur. No such activity shall be undertaken with respect to any particular
student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual
notification or other separate special notification. (Education Code 48983-48984)

The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return
it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a
signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is
an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate
in any particular program has been given or withheld. (Education Code 48982)

Notifications to parents/guardians shall be written both in English and in the family's primary
language when so required by law. (Education Code 48981, 48985; 20 USC 6311, 6312)

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is, for any reason, unable to
understand the district's printed notifications, the principal or designee shall work with the
parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

221.5 Prohibited sex discrimination
231.5 Sexual harassment policy

-299-



BP 5145.6 (b)

262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of civil
remedies

310 Structured English immersion program

440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development
17288 Building standards for university campuses

17612 Notification of pesticide use

32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members

32255-32255.6 Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals

32390 Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian
35160.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities

35178.4 Notice of accreditation status

35183 School dress codes; uniforms

35186 Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities
35256 School Accountability Report Card

35291 Rules for student discipline

37254 Intensive instruction for students who have not passed High School Exit Examination
37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

39831.5 School bus rider rules and information

44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds

46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services

46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes

46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

48000 Minimum age of admission

48070.5 Promotion or retention of students

48204 Residency requirements

48205 Absence for personal reasons

48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions
48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals

48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance

48216 Immunization

48260.5 Notice regarding truancy

48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy

48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department
48354 Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act
48357 Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act
48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students

48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension

48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer

48911 Notification in case of suspension

48911.1 Assignment to supervised suspension classroom

48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension

48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district

-300-



BP 5145.6 (c)

48916 Readmission procedures

48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

48980 Required notification at beginning of term

48980.3 Notification of pesticide use

48981 Time and means of notification

48982 Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice

48983 Contents of notice

48984 Activities prohibited unless notice given

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

48987 Child abuse information

49013 Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees
49063 Notification of parental rights

49067 Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course

49068 Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record

49069 Absolute right to access

49073 Release of directory information

49076 Access to student records

49077 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order
49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization

49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student

49451 Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent

49452.5 Screening for scoliosis

49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes

49452.8 Oral health assessment

49456 Results of vision or hearing test

49472 Insurance

49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries

49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions

49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970
51225.3 Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria
51229 Course of study for grades 7-12

51513 Personal beliefs; privacy

51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction

52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language
skills

52164.3 Reassessment of English learners; notification of results

52173 Bilingual education

52244 Advanced Placement program

54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement

56301 Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights

56321 Special education: proposed assessment plan

56321.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education

56329 Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment

56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting

-301-



BP 5145.6 (d)

56341.5 Individualized education program team meetings

56343.5 Individualized education program meetings

58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment

60641 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program

60850 High School Exit Examination

60852.4 High School Exit Examination; waiver for student with disabilities
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

1596.857 Right to enter child care facility

104855 Availability of topical fluoride treatment

120365-120375 Immunizations

120440 Sharing immunization information

124100 Health screening and immunizations

PENAL CODE

627.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

850 Definitions; notification regarding use of California Modified Assessment
863 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program

3052 Behavioral intervention

3831 General standards, Gifted and Talented Education program

4622 Notification of uniform complaint procedures

4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal
4702 Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act
4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy

11303 Reclassification of English leamers

11309 Parental exception waivers

11523 Notice of proficiency examinations

18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17

6040 Time period to obtain needed immunizations

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1232g Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act

1232h Privacy rights

1415 Procedural safeguards

6311 State plans

6312 Local education agency plans

6316 Academic assessment and local education agency school improvement
6318 Parental involvement

7012 Instruction in English language development

7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

1758 Child nutrition programs

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7

245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

-302-



BP 5145.6 (e)

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.7 Student records, annual notification

99.34 Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies

99.37 Disclosure of directory information

104.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education
104.36 Procedural safeguards

104.8 Nondiscrimination

106.9 Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex

200.61 Teacher qualifications

300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation

300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings

300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability
300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with
disability

300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities
300.508 Due process complaint

300.530 Discipline procedures

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40

763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions
763.93 Asbestos management plans

(3/06 3/07) 11/12

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15,2013 King City, California

-303-



BP 5145.6 (¢)

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.7 Student records, annual notification

99.34 Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies

99.37 Disclosure of directory information

104.32 Dastrict responsibility to provide free appropriate public education
104.36 Procedural safeguards

104.8 Nondiscrimination

106.9 Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex

200.61 Teacher qualifications

300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation

300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings

300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability
300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with
disability .

300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities
300.508 Due process complaint

300.530 Discipline procedures

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40

763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions
763.93 Asbestos management plans

(3/06 3/07) 11/12

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: May 15, 2013 King City, California

-304-



